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ko3t eVar" introduction to tuc genealogies which T nave ssen
-=-=-bound Looks or wimeogiepiec pages- --the cempiler has come to
the ssme conclueion &s I: what started as an attempt o satisfy o
minor curiosity snowballed into a mejor interest. Along with this
comes the realization that tae acountlated notes should not be

confined to one notobook.

when I decided to look into the ancestry of the O'Eanion and
Leavitt fowilies, T had no idea waere it would lead nor now fascin-
ating it would be.  Thanks to co-orerative relatives and ar ex-
cellernt gerzalogy section in the Denver ILibrarv, the research
rroved astonishingly successful. It had never occurred to me that
our familv was so deeply rooted in this cowuitry.

Iost of the Leavitt lines and branches in New fngland are sstab-
lishnes up to a point. Though I have numerous notes on the ('Baniouns
and O'pannons of Kentuony as well as the earlier families of Vir-
ginia, I have yet to find our direct line. Genealogical research -
cen never be waolly "coapleted". Rather then waiting untii I ac-
cumulate more data, this seems a good time to pass on my notes in

nores of helping someons else who may be bitten by the genealogy
bug! - The casual reader may not be interested in the ie+a11 but for
any one caring to do further research, such details are vital.

One of the first and very important clues came from Cousin
Virginia Coonradt Dav1s who sent me some papers which had belonged
to her mother, Josie G'Banion Coonradt. Of particular intsrest
were two notes jotted down by Aunt Josie. The first one concerned
the O'Banions and the sscond concerned the New England side of the
family. ‘The wording ssems to indicate that they were answers to
questions put to Josie's parents, frances Leavitt end Elias logan
U*banicn.

"0 'Banions born in Mounroe, Kentucky. In 1858 ceme to 1/2 mile
of old Coilcord Church near Greernview, I1l. Grendmother (iuth)
vas deughter of bavid and betsy Crews Turner whio formerly lived
in Virglnla. (Cul pepner, Co.) plias L. ('Banion and Frances.

A, Leavitt were married, 1873, Decatur, Illinois."

-+ + + + + +

"Jeremiah Swett----- Grandfuiher

sarah French-------Grandmother

»ehetibel Briah (second wife and tne grandmother I knew)

Great Grandfather died when Jeremiah 14 yeers old.

‘The old farm called Swett's Hill was old’ hom~ place; now

called French Hiil. :

Uncle John Irench (childrens ‘Warren, Ana, Thomes, Ssm)

The 0ld housz burned and Father built a cottage called “Leavitt

Cottage" out father lost his land and other relatives now
OWIL tnls, a vsaluable piece of timber on this land.
Father, born 1813, dica after we moved".

T found a Jprem ah Swett of New Hampshire who had m (1st) Narv(7)
dau. of fzekiel French and (2nd) Mehitable Lryer. (Grandmother
¥rances had a New England accent which would wccoun+ for the bryer
sounding like Briah!i) kext, I found an Bzekiel French who, among
other children, had a daugater Szlly and a son John., This John had
childran named Tnomas, bam, John, Ann, and Warren. This seemsd proof
that I had the right families and from then on, one name led to an-
other. I copied or photostated everything I could find.



In fawily research it is of sreat importance Tv nolte itne naues
of children. In earlier days children were slmost always nhamed for
varents, grandparents, etc. Ais bronchss epread out, similar names
appear and others, from the mother's side, are addzd. By the 3rd
or 4th generation it is often wnossible to guess tae branch to which
& child belongs. This is most helpful when scarcaing for records
of confirmation. ¥aking charts of the members of each family is
another valvable aid.

There are other points which one learns in a study of this tyve.
A few of them—-- o
1. before 1752 liarch was considered the 1st month and Mar. 25th was
the date the year changed. When the calendar was changed there
was an 11 day discrepancy; i.e. 12 FPeb. 1729 (New Stvle) was 1 Feb
1728 (0la Style). This accounts for some of the variations in
dates found in different books.
In the 17th century, cousin might mean any kin except brother,
sister, son, or daughter. Iowadays a chiid of a first cousin
means lst cousin once removed.
Stepchild may be cazlled son-in-~law.
brother or sister mav not necessarily mean blood relationship.
i.other or father may be in-law or step.
Deacon-~-~-ton title
Mister---important or gentle blood
Goodman or wife~--respected.
Freeman~~right to vote or commit self in trade.

In printing these "notes" I have iacluded somes wills morec fully
because of tiieir historical interest.  For the sams reason are in-
cluded stories of siblings who are not in our direct line.

sone brancines of the family are quite incomplete and mav alwzyvs
remein so--varticularly where the early records name a wife by her
first name only. I feel sure the Fifield iine cen be established, and
in the case of lkiartha "Batch", wife of Joseph (6) ILesavitit, there are
several possibilities. Jith one excention, I found no other name of
Batch, though I did find Hatch ana Balch. Some of the o0id records are
not easy to read and Balcih or Hatcn could easily bz mistaken for Batch.

The list of Coats-of-Arms has been included only because a study
of geneulogy inevitebly runs into rasferences to heraldry. This is an
interesting field with very definite rules.

Most abbreviations should bs easy to understand--b=born, m=
married, d=died, dau=daughter, etc. Under references, NLHGE or Hegiste:
stands for the Kew England mistorical and Genealogical Register. They
are a wonderful set of books, and a new one isproduced each year.

I nope to keep working on all of these lines and most heartily
welcome any corrections or additious.
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1967 CORRECTIONS & ADDITIONS

Recently I spent several hours visiting Gilmanton, N.H. where
I met a delightful couple, Mr., and Mrs. G. Clinton Brown, who are
very interested in the history of that beautiful area. Gilmanton
claims 26 cemeteries, two of which I visited without finding any of
"our" names. Since then, Mrs, Brown has been more successful. In the
Gilmanton Private Cemetery on the road to Loudon, N.H. she found what
I had been looking fore---¥rench, Swett, and Lesvitt. Some of the very
0old stones were unreadable, but those inscriptions which she copied
are of great importance. )
Lucy, Wife of John French, age 92, 1880
In memory of William Swett, 12 Reg. Co. B, N.H, Vol, who died Jan. 18,
1863, ae. 41.
In memory of Iura lf,, only daughter of William and Abia Swett, Aug.
16, 1852, ae. 6 yrs. and 6 mos.
ELD Jeremiah Swett, Died Aug. 27, 1840, Ae, 34 yrs. Son of Jeremish
and Sally Swett,
llehetable, Wife of Jeremiah Swett, Died Aug, 22, 1877.
Jeremiah Swett, Died Jan. 6, 1866, Ae, 82.
Joseph Leavitt, Died (Rest of stone off its base and down in ground)
Hannah ¥,, Wife of Joseph Leavitt, Died Nov, 21, 1856, Ae. 64.
betsey, Wife of Joseph Leavitt, Died July 23, 1873, Aec. 57.

The latter is a correction to my previous information.
s + + + O+ o+

A book on witches, "The Devil in Massachusetts" by Marion L. Starkey
mentions Sarah Atkinson, Mary Bradbury and Robert Pike,
+ + + + + o+

Page 7 DBecauvse the family of Edward and William Hutchinson has not
been definitely connected to the other branch of Hutchinsons
their right to the coat-of-arms has been questioned. However,
according to NEHGR Vol 98, p 18-~--Hutchinson Arms; Edward m
Susanna (bur. Wells Me., 164~-. Arms accepted by Committee on
Heraldry, NEHG Society. Hutchinson Record #2.

+ + + + +

Page 28 It is possible that Hannah Cheney was the 2nd wife of John

Atkinson (2) rather than John (3%.
+ + + + + +

Page %6 Saco Vallevy Settlement Ridlon 1895
Uame: This is a scandinavian surname transplanted into Scot-
land and England by the Viking invaders at a very early period.
The name is sometimes spelled Keme(s). Families long domi-
ciled in Devonshire bear the surname Came. Arthur Came, the
earliest person of the name known to have settled in N.E. had
land grented to him in the town of York, Jan. 14, 1670, Full
maiden name of wife unknown--firs+t name Violet. He probably
died about the time he deeded property to son Sam (1710) as
he was called "aged, decripped and almost past labor®. Con-
stable of York, 1674. Son Sam b ca 1673/4, d 26 Dec. 1768,
95th year; m 1699 Patience (b 1678) dau of Sam Bragdon.

+ + + + + +

Page 39 Saco Valley Settlement Ridlon 1895
Capt. ilhomas (4) Bradbury moved to Narragansett No. 1 (Buxton,
ie.) in 1759, where he purchased 2 lots of land for 600
pounds old tenor, He was a man of sterling integrity who be-
came prominent in township affairs and was highly esteemed as
a citizen.




Page 59 Hlstorv of Plvmouth Stearns Vol 2 1906

Nathan1e1 lierrill @ Susanna Wilterton, sister of ﬂregorv
Ullter+on, cne of the orlglnal proprietors of hartford, Conn.
She d 25 Ja.u. 1672. _

! + + + + 4+ + «
Page 63-4 For ‘scme tlme I have been trying to clarlfv generatlons (4)
and (5) of -our French family as given in Stearn’s Geénealogy
and Family History of N.d., 1908. Earlier generations are
coufirmed by other sources. Daniel Lancaster's History of -
Gilmanton, 1845, may have been the source for some of the in-
formation by -Stearns, but at the same time it offered other
items of interest. I have been harboring a theory that the
children listed for Samuel (4) (with the exception of Samuel
(5) were actually other relatives and that many of the child-
ren ligte® for Samuel (5) were really children of Samuel (4).
Space proalolts including my reasons but I have typed them
out and would be glad to "discuss" them with anyone who may
be interested. This speculation does not ‘change our llne.
Notes from'History -of Gilmanton=-~ILancaster
‘Sam French of South Hampton had brothers Henry, bengamln and
one other who settled in Chester. (#fL believe this is incorrect.
benjamin settled in Gilmanton on place now owned by Jeremiah
Hall whose mother was a dau. of his brother in Chester. A
sister of Benjamin m lkioses Tage and settled on adjacent lot.
Children of Sam (5) and Ezekial (6) are same as listed in Stearns
fzekial, son.of Sammuel, b 1 May 1753, settled Gilmaenton in

1792, still living 1845, over 90 years old.
Samuel, b 4 July 1753 still living Gilmanton 1345,
Benjemin French settled Gilmanton 1780.
Benjamin Frenuh Sr. 1694-1791; died over 90 years of age.

+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+
Page 90 Hdistory of ﬂamnton Dow

Following may be ch of Wm. (1) oy Giles (., Trobably Wm.)

John Fifield d 8 Aug. 1665

Jaran Fifield m James Hobbs 1673

kiary Fifield m Samuel Haines 1673
Ch of Benjamin Fifield (2) and Mary Colcord

John 21 Nov. 1671 m Abigail in Kingston 1726

Shuah 27 Sept 167%; 4 14 Nov. 168%
T==dan. 3 May 1676 . .

Joseph 7 Lar.,1677; m Sarah Sherburne, 24 Apr. 1701 (Kgsin)
Edward . 7 har. 1678; settled Stratham; m Elizabeth

Benjamin 10 Feb. 1682; unm. Hstate settled - 1726.

Jonathan - m Jan. 1723 Hannah Wait - .

" Mehitabel .9 Apr. 1687; m John Sanborn
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Mremeral Armory”  William prms trong Crozier

"Mathews Americon Armourv end Bilue Beok® L1307

“An Americern ATMCIYT (herles K. Boltou 1964
Atkingon Bury 3t. Bdwonds. Suffolk

Arms s L cross voided between 4 lions rampant or.

Crests A dove with wings expandad

Mottos Nil pacimus no sponte Del

{Mathews)

Bertlett  (Ernely, Sussex) Richard Barilett, Newbury, Mass. 1634
Arms s Sable, three falconer's sinister gloves pendant argent
tasseled or.
Crest: A swan argent, couched, with wings cxpanded.
: (Crozier)

Bradbury (Essex and Suffolk) Thomas Bradbury, Salisbury, Mass.
hrms: Sable, a chevron ermine betw 3 round buckles argent,
the tongues pendant. '
Crest: A boar’s head erect between 2 ostrich feathers.
(Pairdbairnts Crests)
(N.E. Reg. 86, p 282)

Bragdon
T Trms:  Argent, & lion passent azure betw 3 fleur-de-lis guies
Crest: A boar issusut of a rock ppr.
(Gen. and Fam. Hist. State of Me.-ILittle

Emery (Essex) gJohn Erery, Newbury, Mass, 1635
s Argent, 3 bars nebulee gules, in chief as many
torteaux.
Crests Out of a mural crown a demi horse argent, maned or.
collared gules, studded of the first,
Mottos Pidelis et suvavis (Faithful and pleasant)

(Crozier)
French Bdviard FPrench, Ioswich, Mass. 1626
Arms : Azure, 2 chevron detween 3 boar's heads or.
Crests A boar’s head erased
Mottos Tuebor (I will defend)

(Crozier and Mathews)

Hutchinson Willism Hutchinson, Boston ilass. 163%, son of
Edward (Lincolnshire)
Arms: Per pale gules and azure semee Oof CIross crosslets or,
a lion rampant argent, armed and langued of the 3rd.
Crest: Out of a duczl coronet or, a cockatrice azure combed,
beaked, wattied gules.
Mottoes: 1 Gerit crucem fertiter
5 Nihil humani slienum (nothing human is alien)
(Crozier and Mathews)

Tevett (William Ievet, Normanton 1447)
Arms ¢ Sable, a fess, battled on both sides between three
lcoypards hesds erased argent.
Crests Gadfly, wings addorsed ppr.
(Fairbairn's Crests)
(Leavitt, Desc. of Thomas; loyes)
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Herrick Arms) pules. 2 porcupines in pele a“g,
aymal or. (Eolton anl Mathews)
Sable, on 3 cheveon acgeni between 3 gtaves raguly ory
infizmed wpr, a iluur«dc 11is 4an?
Nn a8 tower or, a Cornish chough pp in the dextar
fecot & flenr-de--lis (AbHTP*“laTh“Wn,

{Guleg—-Fairhaions’

{(Mathews, bolton Fairteilmm;
Merrill John and Nethaniel Mewrill, Ipswich, Masz. 1623
falishua ? o, Wiltghhire, Enz. .

Arms:  Arvgent, & bar azure, betw 3 saacocks heads ewused pupr.

Crests A peacock’s head srasec pox- :

(Orozier. Foltcn, latnews)
Perkins John Terkins M 1590. of Newent Glcucsstiershire, Eng.
Masz, 16303 TIpswich, Mass. 1654
trmsz Or. a fesse dencethee betw ten billets ermire.
Crests A pineapple prr ssalxsed and leaved vert.
{(Methsws)
Stockmen John Stockmaan, Salisbury, Mass.
irms: Asure, a dance betw % lions geld
{H.E, Regicter 209, n 167)
Webstar John Webster Oarbridge and Hmmbingdonshirs, Eng. time Henry
RN '
Ipswich, Mase, 163%

Arms: Azure on o bsca argent coiized or. tevween 2 demni liocns
ramonont @*mlwp, 8 uose guies hetwaen 2 bear s heads
couved satle

Crest: A dragonis heed ccnped regardant quarievly rer fesse

' emozstied or and vart, flemes Lzaming from moutia
{Mathews )
(Gyans and Allied Femilies)

Waeelwright

Armss

Crest:

Exeter, Mass. 1638

Rav. Johm Wheelwright. founder of
nesr Alford, Lincoln-

son of Robt. Whe SLTT1*h1 of faleby,
shire, Ing. :
Ermine, on a fesse or, vetween 3 lions
%z plates a
A-lion's head

heads erased,
ZaLLC

a1

‘\_
-~

erssed.

{(Mathews)
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Leavitt-England “-g

The following information may -be found in much greater detail in the -
“iew England Historical and Benealogical Register™ Vol. 1913
(Thomas Levet of Exeter and Hamptone--Victor ¢, Sanborn)

as well as "Descendants of Thomas Leavitt¥-Emily Noves.. The  latter is
not as easily available.” ' ‘ o

. A gystenatic investigation of clues by lir. Sanborn and sirs. Noves
gives no positive proof of the ancestry of our Thomas ILevett of Exeter
and Hampton. However, they both feel that the most probable line is
that of Lircolnshire and Yorkshire, connected with both Wheglwright and
Wwentworth., — .

The Wheelwright-Hutchinson -tradition points 1o ILincolnshire, since

that county furnished the entire Wheelwright connection. William Went-
worth of Exeter, kass. came from Lincolnshire, but was descended from
the Yorkshire line. Near hic ancestral home lived a Yorkshire family of
Levetts, belonging to the lesser landed gentrv, seated at Normanton for
some generations, and acquiring in the fifteenth centurv a fair estate,
though not the manor, at High Melton. These lormanton and Ilielton Leavetis
intermarried with the Wentworths. . Their pedigree appeared in the visit-
ation of Yorkshire of 1612, and. is printed in Hunter's Deanery of Don-
caster. It has been amplified by a descendant, Mr. lMilner-Gibson-Cullum,
in "3 liiscellanea Genealogica et Heraldica® Vol. 1, and is in part as
follows:

"It would seem possible to construct a pedigree of the Hormanton
and Melton levets extending .two centuries farther back than the pedigree
printed herein, . Thus we find in 1249 a Hamond de Iyvet. In 1272-1307
lived a Nicholas de Lyvet, who held from John de Vesci the menor of

Hooton, later Hooton=-Levet, as well as feew in Wickersley and Pickburn;

he is mentioned in Xirby's Quest. In 1327 we find a William Levet of
Hooton~Levet, who m. Constantia, dau. of Roger de Wickersley and gran-
daughter of Richard fitz Turgis, who, with John de Buslle,.foundgq tbe
Cistercian Abbey of Roche. In 1377 John Levet, son and heir of William
Levet sold to Richard carry of London, all his ancestral rights in the
Roche Abbey. In 1392 lived William Levet of Tylse, who was a feofee
of Thomas de barley. In 1420 William Levet and Elizabeth his wife lived
in Hooton-Levet. These Levets sold Hooton-Levet to the Cliffords and
perhaps removed to Normanton, where we find a William Levet who was
admitted in 1447 to be a tenant of the prior of St. John of Jerusale?.
He it is who heads the peuigree of the Normanton and Melton Levetts."

1 William Levett of Hormanton 1447, m. unknown. Tenant to the FPrior
of S8t. John, 2 Lkov. 1447
ch., William (2) -
) Robert of Normanton, mentioned 1484 ]
Elizabeth,; m. Thomas Gargrave, father of Sir. Thomas

> William Tevett, son. of William (1), of Normenton 1480, of Melton 148t
m. Eiizabeth, dau. and coheir of Robert Syward of lielton.
ch, William (3) ,
Williem who m. Elizabeth Syward is mentioned in a deed of 1480
as being of liormanton. ~The Levet estates in Melton came from- this
marriage. In the early 'years of the reign. of Henry VII, Elizabeths

: . : . : 88
.sister Agnes married John Frankysh. In a deed dated 20 Juihe 14
tne.esta%E of kobert Syward was partitioned between John Frankysh

S : PR A i : Roth-~
and Williem Levitt, by which the former had ;an@e in Bently,
sham, Dalton, and Kimnersworth; and Willism Levitt had lands att
Melton, lexborough, Wildthrope, and Arksey, with meadow lands a

Bently. .
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3 William Levett, son of William (2); m Ann, dau. of John Barub
Gh (4) William, b ab. 1500 ’ s

4 William Levett, son of William (3)
b ab 15003 d. 1576; buried &t Sprotborough
m. Blizabeth Wentworth, daw. and coheir of Wm Wentworth
of Sprotborough T -
ch. nicholas (5) .
Jane  m. Jan. 1556 Richard Collbrand of Wrath

5 Nicholas Levett, son of William (4=-3-2-1)

. b ab 1520, d. 1598 (1524-1578.Hoyes) bur. Rotherham;
- of Normanton and :elton; u. Anne, dau of kalph
Westby of Ravenfield, Yorkshire
ch. Ralph (6) . :
Ann m Francis Hallom
. Jane RS

6 Ralph Levett, son of Nicholas (5), William (4-3-2-1)
b ab. 1545;(1541 Loyes) d. 1581; bur. HMelton; of Normanton
and lielton
m. Blizabeth West, dau. of George of Barnborough and Aughtcn

ch. Francis d. 25 Aug. 1571
(7)Thomas  bp 1572 P ;
Wiiliam bp 1574, m. Elizabeth (Vickars or Wray)
Sheppard; d.s.p. 1638. Lived at bentley
Robert bp 7 Oct. 15765 d. 26 June 1655; bur. Normanton
m. Prances Nalson, dau. of John. They had a son
Thomas bpt. 1609 and d. young. A later son Thoma>
b. 1619; d. 1665; m.” 1655 Jonauna Jacques.
Catherine, bp 1578; m. Wm. Strelley
Elizabeth m. John Morley
Gertrude, b, 1580; 4 1585

7 Thomas Levett, son of Ralph (6), Nicholas (5), Wm (4-3-2-1)
bp 31 Aug. 1572; d. 1623; bur. at Melton
m. Elizabeth miriin of Thurcroft, dau. of Robert.
ch. Thomas o 1594

Mary b 4 Jan. 1597; d. young
Ralph bp 1600; d. 1652; m. Anne Hutchinson, dau. of Edward
and ‘sister of Mary Hutchinson Wheelwright
John bv 16043 m. Mary fiote. Through his wife, John
acquired the manors of lMelton and pently. Though
he was a lawyer, he was unthrifty andé through him
the Levett estate at lielton and the larger estates
of his wife fell into the hands of others.
Jane b 1607; d. 1632; m. Anurew Goodhound
Peter b 1610: d. 1672; Vicar of Cantley -

The last Levetts living at Melton were the children of Thomas (7)

Levett who d. 1623. The lands were lost through his son John.

_An abstract of the will of Thomss (7) Levett follows: :
"The will of Thomas fLevett of High Melton, gent. 7 Oct. 1622

I give to my wife, Elizabeth %40, over and above her portion of my goods
To Thomas Levet; my son and heiar apparent all glass and seeling in or
about my house at Melton. To Ralph Levett, my second, 20, to be paid
within one month after he shall commence Maister of Arts in..one of the
Universities of Cambridge or Oxford. And whereas I have spetiall desire
to have my two younger sons, John Levett and Peter Levett, to be educate.l
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and brought up &% Thelir bosks. wherelv They he furnished with knowledge
and learning to bscome profitable members in God's Church or the Common-
wealth of this lands I do heweby vray and desire my said wife, my eldes?
son Thomas, and my second son, Ralfe, to .be aiding and assisting to the
caid John and Peter therein. And thersforve rather to allow them to their
books and to assist them in their studies. I do bequest to tne said John
Levett 220 to be paic to him within one month after he shall have taken
there degree of laster of Arts in Cambridge or OxZord. Saumz bequest to

1.
A
T

Teter Levett. 1o my daughter, Jaine Levett, #40 cver snd hesides her
portion. The bequest to my three vounger sons to be raised out of the

lands in Cadeby, purchased of Richard Waterhouvse. If this devise be in-
sufficient then I do require my eldest son +to consider how chargeable his
own education hath been to me end how much to the hinderance of his young
brethren‘s vreferment, and therefore I do pray him to give wavy to this
devise. 1iy wife to be executrix.

"My bretihren, Robert ¥irfin of Thurcrof’, and William Tevett of bentie
to be supravisors. To my good friend lenry Saxtcr, clerk, 1Cs, in thank-’

ful rememberance of God's blessing by him ag a secondarv ceuse in the in-
doctrinating of my children." Proved 1 lavr 162%

8 Thomas tevett, son of Thomas (7), Relph (6), Iliicholas (5), Wm. (4-3-2-1)

D 23 July 1594 at selton, Eng.
m. Margaret Lindley, dau. of John of Rutland

Thomas (8) was graduated at Lincoln College, Oxford, 1610, aged 16; 3B.A.

1612/% of Orleans University. In 1621 he was entered as a barristver
at Lincoln's Ian and was still of Lincoln‘'s Tnn in 1625. usefore 1633
he had moveu to Tixover, Co. Hutland, a small hamlet in the smxallest
counts of England. ‘Thomas Levett of Tixover is said in all the prinh
pedigrees to have married a daugnter of John Lindley of ieathiey. It
is certain that in 1613 lergaret, the oniy daughter of this John Lindiey
was married to “Thomas ievit, Bsqg.,® who is named as son-in-law anc
surervisor in John Licdley's will, 31 ¥May 161%. However, there was &
Thomas Levett of Sussex who died in 1616, leaving a will aad a widow
Margaret, sole executrizm. If Ilargaret Lindley did marry Thomas of TiX-
over, it was an early marriage, for he was dbut rineteen at the date of
her father's will, and nad taken his B.A. at Oxford only very recently
on 8 Feb. 1612/3. DBut this marriage of 1613 would permit the biwth of
our Thomas Levett in 1616.

srAVictor Sanborn mede a search of other Levetts in the arez and came 1o
this conclusion in 1913. 3
wpnue in five generations of the Melton Levetts there iB appareniiy
but one possibility for our Thomas Levet, nemelys He may have been a #on
of Thomas of Tixover and a nephew of Ralph of Grainsby, the brother-in-law
of John Wheelwright. The dates for such a theorv harmonize wo well and
the probability of a Wheelwright and Wentworth connection is so sirong,
that until proof to the contrary is shown I feel convinced that this 1s
our line. Could the wills of any of the four sons of Thomas (7) Levelt of
Melton be found, this theory might be confirmed or upset. but in spite
a careful search at both principal and diocesan registries no probate PLO -
ceedings for any of the four sons have been discovered. P?obably Thomas
and Ralph Ievett died during the confused Commonwealth period from 1650
to 1660. dJohn Levett was living in 1665 and Peter Levett died in 1672.



LN
Te-u

T

< N
v
N ot

1 Thomas Tevits, ¥ 1L£16 in Fngland. bslieved to Ye son of Thomas
and Margeret (Lindiey) Leviti. 4 28 Nov. 1£96 at
Hampton Fells, N.H. aged 80, m 1644
Isabella Bland, widow of Francis Asten (Austin)
b 1611/2, dau of John and Isabel FBland, d. 19 Feb. 1698

Thomas Leavitt {(Levit, Leavit, Lovet) arrived in Bostom in July 1637.
It is possible that he proceeded at once to Exeter and thus
antedated the orgenized settlement. Tradition has it that there
were 3 other persons dwelling at the falis of the Sguamscot before
the arrival of the company of Wheelwright in 16%8. One of these
men was Thomas Leavitt. He took upland on the eastern side of the
fresh river just above the falls and the same long remained in the
possession of his descendants. In the 1lst division cf lands he
received one of the smaller shares, 4 acres and 20 polses of the up-
lands. His name was also aprsnded tc the Combinations a voluntary
association for govermmental purposes, which wes drawn up by the
pagtor (Wihselwright) and subscribed by him and probably the greater
number of the adult males of the settlement~---gatea 4 Juiy 1639.

Thomas Ieavitt moved to Hampton, N.H. before March 1644 and
bought land on Taylor River on Ithe road betwesn danpion and Exeter.
After his marriage in 1644 he lived on the Austin nomestead, the
property of his wifs, Isabel, from her first hustand. He lived in
Hampton until hiz death in 1696, a quiet, useful citvigen, selcdom
prominent in town metters. He wes nerhaps a tanner, though tie
only deed from him in the 0ld records Cescribes him as "planter®.

He was a selectman 1657, 1667; Constable 1664; Grand Jury 1579:
Oath of Allegiance to Massachusetts 1678; Freed from training 1631,
prcbably on account of age or disability. The Dukes County records
show a power of attorney dated 16 Apr. 1691 from Thomas and Isabel
Levet to their son John, authorizing him to deal with Isabel's
share of the FBland estates in Martha's Vineyard. Apparently some
dispute between John Levet and another coheir, Elias, son of -Philip
Watson, wes settled by a division in 1699.

Thomas Leavitt died 28 Nov. 1695. His will and inventory are
on file at Concord, N.H. (Probate Records, Vol. 2, p 26 and Vol. 3,
P 125). There is no record of burial of Thomas or his wife but
it is presumed theyv lie in the 01ld Pine Grove Cemetery near Excter.
A boulder with a bronze tablet was erected for Thomas in this
cemetery by The National Association of Leavitt Families in 1937.

An abstract of the will of Thomas LeavZett is as follows:
9 July 1692. To loving wife the thirds of all lands and meddows,
etc., with housing convenient during her life. To wife two cows,
two swine, three sheep, my brass and puter, the thirds of all my
corn. To son Hezron Levet 100 acres at the new plantation, H20
formerly given him and 5s after my decease.

To Hezron's son Thomas Levet £1J to be paid him at the age oY
one and twenty. Residue of lands and housing to sons Aretas and
John Levet equally, John to divide and Aretas %o choose.
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To son Aretas all in his house and ralf the wedges. half the cross
in

cut saw, and half the touls about husbandry, wiik his house that
he now lives in. To son {(Jobhn) Tevetr the o ther half the tools

mentioned with all oawpenter tools and his hsuse and ground.
o son Jauwes Levet 510
To three daughters sabelia Towle, Jemuima Kaowles, and Kezia

Tucker, 5s anlece,
Executors: wife and son John Levet.
Viltuessess Abranham Dreke, 9r., Abreahsm Draka Jr., HKobert Drake.

(The “three daughters® Jsabella Towle, Jemims Knowles and Kezia
© Tucker were the thvee childrsa of Isabel Biland by her first
husband, Francis Asten.) )

Inventory #210.1.0. inclucdes sil buildings, houvsing, barn, and house
lot contairing 10 acres. 15 acres upland. 25 =zcres mead and marsh.
5 acres upliend and swamp. 4 sharss commonsge. 60 acres in the Worth
Division. 100 acres in New Pilantation. Appraised by Abraham Drake 3
end John Smith. ' '

Cnildren of Thomas and Isabella (Pland) Lecvitt

(2) Hezron b 1645; 4 30 Iov, 1712: @ Martha Tavlior

Aretas b 1646; resided at Hamplon and died thers 1739.
n. 1678 Ruth.Sleepor. I= was o farmer and served
in King William's wer. Oun 25 Dec. 1710 he couveyed
to sone Jauwes and Thomas certain lands at Hampton.
The estate of Themas Lavet, the father, was finallw
ﬂlVldea in 1725 by Sergt. Joha Levet and James, the
sor. of Aretas. :

John Ievet, Sergeant, b ab 1648; d 1726/7, m. Deliverance kobie.
He sexrved in several campalgos against indians

James b 10 rov. 1652Z2; 4 Portsmouth L.H. 4 Apr. 1718
m 1692 widow Sarah Partridge. FHe moved to Portsmouth
at the age of 16, beceme rmrominent in town affeirs
and the wealtnlest man of his familr., de had no
children.

~

keferences for Leavitt femily-

“Leavitt Descendants of Themas™  Bmily Leaviht howves 1953
"ew Dngland Historicel Registei 1613 pv 56--81
(Tnomap Levet of kxeter end H°mpmon --Victor Channing Sanborn)

"History of Exeter® C.H. bell 1833
Vital Statistics of Newbury, uass.
Mass. Soldiers and Scilors of Revolutioneary Wer--From the Ardhives

Vol. 9 ©p 613
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1 John Leavitt b 1608 England; d. .ov. 1691 america _
~m 1) Mary (Lovitt?); d, & July 1686 Lincham, :.8S8.
2) Sarah Gilman; 16 vec, 1646, dau daward.

.ef«: "Netr England Historical Register' 1913
"Leavitt Descendants of Jolm" xmily Noyes

John Leavitt was tﬁe 'J".;irst oif the name to seti.ie in America. The exact

tine of his arrival and on which ship is not precisely knovm but there

is a tradition vhich has come dowm over the years. It says that he came
on a later sailing of the Mayflower having run awvay from a tailor
apnrenticeship at the age of 19. Boys vere not freed from apprentice~
ship until are 21 and if he ran avay to Ameriea, it would have to be a
secret between him and the Captain~<his name would not appear on the
ships's list. : _ .

His Uncle, exploreir Christopher Leaitt, and Robert Gorges, son of Jir
Ferdinando, came to NiE, in 1623, sent hy the King.  They tried to start
settlements alonz the coast of Massachusets, Maine, W.,Hs Christopher re.
turned to England in 1624, but he was back in NiE, in 1629, It may be
that John came with him. At any rate, both Chiistopher and John Leavitt
went aboard the "Arabella" to greet Gov. Winthrop in 1630.

John settled first at Dorchester, known then 4s Mattapan. He was a tailor
by trade., It is said that his master found him and took his property,
which he would be allowed to do under the rules of apprenticeship, During
the next years, John visited Dover and Exeter, In.1636 and 1637 he was
granted a number of lots in Hingham.. His first marriage was to liary=-e~ (It
is not known whether her name was Lovitt before marriage since Leavitt and
Lovitt sometimes appeared -interchangeably in records). ©She died in 1646,

Ch. of John and Mary: John 1637 Elizabeth 1644;
Hannah 1639; 4 1662 - d 1688
Samuel 1641; d 1707 Jeremiah 1646
d, 1689
Children of John and Sarah Gilman Leavitt
1. Israel bpt 23 Apr. 1648; 4 26 Dec., 1696; m Lydia Jackson
2, Moses 12 Aug 1650; d 17 June 1730; m Dorothy Dudley
3, Jasiah L May 1653; d 14 Sept 1708; m Margaret Johnson
4, Kehemiah 22 Jan 16563 d 25 liay 1715; m Alice Gilman
5. Sarah 25 ieb, 1659; 4 after 1689

m Samuel Howe who built Red Horse Tavern at Sudbury,
Masgs., subject of "Wayside Inn" by Longfellow

6. lary 12 June 1661; d after 1689; married twice
7. Hannah 20 Lar. 1664%; 4 5 Oet. 1728; m twice
8. Abigail 9 Jec,. 1667; d after 1689

Jdohn Leavitt was a Veacon of the church at Hingham for many years, He
was also a selectman, a magistrate, and a representative of the General
Court, His gremisons buil!t a house in 1712 on the site where his log
cabin had stood- In 1812 znother Leavitt houss was built on that site,
and has been a place for Leavitt family reunions throughtout the years,
drawing family mesbers from all over the United States.



2 Moses Leavitt b 12 Aug. 1650 Hingham, lass -
d 1731 Exeter, N.H. S
m 26 Oct 1681 Dorothy Dudley, dau Rev. Samuel

lMoses Leavitt was a surveyor and a most prominent man in Exeter and in -
N.H. Several generations of his family engaged in the hat, wool and
leather business. Like his father, he was a Representative of the
General Court, a selectman, and Moderator for many years.

He was admitted Sept 1698 to the first church of Exeter--his father-
inelaw, DRev, Samuel Dudley, pastor. He was "Impressed in his magesties - -
Service®, posted at Oystér River 23 July 1694 and was in the garrison -.~
1696, 1In 1701 he received French and Indian liar pay for 5 weeks servicew:
110,10, ‘

The land of Moses, along with others, was attached by Robert Mason, B
descendant of Capt. John lason who was granted this land by Royal Patent-
50 years before.. The land was abandoned after John's death and the

title purchased from Indians and bought by citizens. Robert tried to
recover it but the occupants remained on the land despite attachments

and when hason tried to sell, he got no buyers. This unsettled state
lasted 25 years until an independent jury pit a quietus on the Mason T
claims, -

Children of loses and Dorothy (Ludley) Leavitt

1, Moses 1683~1754; m 1)Sarah Leavitt  2) Anne Parke - .
2, Stephen 1686-1754; m lMary Gordon .
3. Timothy 16917-1756; m Anne Lyford
Lk, Daniel 1700-1759; m Elizabeth Drown )
5. Elizabeth m Edward ,'ifjeld
6. Joseph 23 May 1699-1792; m 1) Mary Yadleigh 2) Sarah Gilman- .
7. John 1701-1768 )
8, Dudley 1703-1776; m lary Lyford -~
9. Hannah In James Gilman
10 Sarah ~1781; m Stephen Lyford
11, Dorothy d unm e
12, Mary d 1724 um

Descendants of John Leavitt are gligible to membership in Founders and

Patriots of America and other Colonial Societies.

Descendants of Moses Leavitt are eligible for The Soc. of Colonial Mars and
Soc. of Colonial Dames, etc, T

Descendants of Dorothy Dudley are eligible for The Governor Thomas Ludley
Family Association, Descendants of Royal Families, etc.
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2 Hezron ILeavitt, son of Thomas (1), b 1644/5; d 30 Nov. 1712
m 25 Sept. 1667 c
Marthe Taylor, b. 1646; 4 10 Feb. 1715/6; dau of

Anthony Tagior (1)

On 15 Feb. 1702/3 Hezron Levet and his son Thomas, who like
his father was a tanner, made an agreement by which the
son was to take over all his father's house, tanyards, and
lands, and to maintain his father and mother in comfort "bhe-
side what my father shall get by his practis and my mother by
8tilling". The son also agreed to make certain payments to his
 four sisters. DBoth father and son signed their names “Levvit"

to this instrument (N.H. Deeds, vol. 13, p 237)

From the "New Hampshire Provincial Papers", page 419:

"Hagzen Levit aged about 36 years testified that he was
riding to his lot the last Thursday in July at night about
sun half at hour high, he saw John Fuller's wife upon her hands
and knees scrabbling to and fro, first one way and then an=-
other, and seemed to him to be mighty lazy," dated 14 July 1680
and testimony was in the case of Goodwife Fuller, witch.

Children of Hezron and Martha (Taylor) Leavitt
Lydia b 1668; d 16 Augs 1751; m Mephibosheth Sanborn
John 24 or 26 Nov. 1670; 4 8 Aug. 1717; m Sarah Hobbs

b
James- b 3 Dec., 1672; 4 6 Peb., 1673
Moses b 30 Nov. 1673; d bef. 1733; m Mary Carr
(3) Thomas b 8 May 1677; 4 1749; m Elizabeth Atkinson
Mary b 20°'0ct. 1679; 4 24 Sept 1747; m Benj. Thomas
b

Abigail
Sarah ab, 1683; m David Moulton

3 Thomas ILeavitt, (Hezron (2), Thomas (1) b 8 May 1677; 4 1749
m., (Int.) 1 Jan. 1704
Elizabeth Atkinson, b 20 June 1680; d 27 Aug. 1749
dau. of John Atkinson (2) of Newbury.

Thomas (3) Leavitt was a soldier of Hampton and served at
Newcastle, N.H. 1696 and 1708

Children of Thomas and Elizabeth (Atkinson) Leavitt
(4) Joseph b 8 Dec. 1704; 4 1764; m Bethia Bragdon
Samuel b 4 Sept 17063 d 1776; mr Ruth Johnson
Sarah b ---; m 6 Aug. 1731 Dr. Clement Jackson
Jonathan bpt. 31 Aug. 1712; d 12 Hay 1783; m lst
Mary Rand; m 2nd Anna Dole
Mary bot. 19 July 1713
Abigail b 13 July 1715; 4 22 Nov., 1799; m 10 May 1738
' Dr. Anthony Emery
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4 Joseph Leavitt, son of Thomas (%), Hezron (2), Thomas (1)
'b. 8 Dec. 1704 at Hampton, N.H.; d. 1764
m. (Int filed) 20 ilay 1727

bethia vragdion, b 20 June 1704, dau. of Dea. Arthur and
“Sarah (Came) Bragdon - :

., Joseph. (4) lived at 01d Vorke, liaine. He purchased lands at

. Warraganset (later called buxton) Maine, 24 Fov. 1752.
He was a mill builder in 1761 on Little kiver.  He bestowed
hig lands upon three sons, Joseph, Daniel and Samuel.” On 28
biar, 1768 his ¢hildréen couaveved shares of his gristmill to his
son, dJoseph, and six signed.: ILike his father he was'a cordwainer
and tanner. $e bought a tavern license 1745 and held it.through
17645 in extreme northwestern part of town. of Vork, Maine. All
of his sons %ived at Buxton -except Jeremiah wio lived in.York.

Children of Joseph (4) and Eethia (Bragdon) Leavitt
- . thomas "' b 6 Apr. 1728; d. 5 Feb. 1736 - ‘
Samuel -+ b 10 Oct. 1730; d. Sevt. 1797: m 1lst Sarah FPhinnev,
- 2nd Hannah Dearing ‘
Blizaveth b 19 Sept. 1734; ¢. 4.Dec. 1770; m John Nowell
~ Daniel B, 27 Apr. 17363 .d. 21 June 1829; m. 1lst Adigail
. +,  bradbury; m 2ud Abigail Dennett
(5)Josepli " b 27 Mar. 1740; d. 4 Apr. 1809; m. Sarah Bradbury
dJeremiah b 19 ¥eb. 1743; d. 27 kiar. 1816; m. lst Lvdia
] o Linscott; 2nd Harnah lMcIntire; 3rd Sarah Hanscom
Sarah © o 13 Peb. 1745; d. 4 Sept. 1834; m Thomas Nowell

5 Joseph Leavitt, son of .Joseph (4), Thomas (3), Hezron (2), Thomas (1)
¢ 27 Mar. 1740 York, Haine; d. 4 Apr. 1809 at Faraganset
. (Buxton), Maine. m lst 10 Nov. 1762 . .

1 Barah bradbury, b 10 Dec. 1739; d. 1774, dau. of” Thomas

~ (4) Bradoury. R o

2 Anna French : . o
Joseph (5) lived on Little River at Leavitis kills. On 24 Nov.

) 1752 he bought 3 shares (out of 123 shares) in the new town-
ship of Naraganset. He was one of 3 men to build the mill on
Iititle kiver in 1761 and was a surveyor of roads in 1773. He
sexved in the Rev. War and saw 'service 7 Nov. 1775 for five days
fighting at Louisburg under Capt. ¥athaniel Jonnell. Further
service as follows: b ‘ . )

A Sergesnt in Capt. John Elden's (buxton) Co., which
marched Apr. 24, 1775 in response to the alarm of Rpril 19,
1775, to Biddeford on an express from Col. Tristam Jordon,
service 1 1/2 davs. Also,same co., service 4 davs on an alarm
at Falmouth the day it was set on fire by the enemy; Roll dated
14 Dec. 1775, Buxton. Also Private in Capt. John Ilden's de-
tachment, Col. Mitchel's Regt., service 4 days; detachmgnt.
stationed at Falmouth, Cumberlznd Co. to assist in fortifying
said town: warrent for pay allowed in Council, 23 Jaun. 1779.
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English ancestry of John 1) Leavitt

It is believed possible that the two Leavitt immigrants to America, John 1)

and Thomas 1), were comnected through their ancestry. John's Uncle Christopher
Levitt bore the same arms as the Levetts from Melton from whom Thomas is be-
lieved descended

1. John Levett of Bolton Percy, co York (ill proved 1526)
m Agnes
Ch.e Yilliam 1111 of 1546 names sons Guy, Francis, John
John, a clerk; under 23 in 1526
Robert
Richard; exec. of father?s iill
Isabel m Kerdall
Alison m Pickering

2.._Richard levit of Appleton in Bolton Percy. (Will proved 1567)

m 1) Ellen

Ch. Henry of Appleton; /i1l proved 1597
1illiam -
Katherine Jopert
Isabel

m 2) Constance: Ch. Thomas and Margaret Ellen
3eeifilliam Levett of Harewood d 1569
m1l) Amne ‘
Ch. Matthew Anne
Elizabeth Katherine
m 2) Joan Ynglande
Ch Richard liayor of Doncaster
“iilliam, twin of Richard--no further record
Percivdl b 1560
Charles m Grace Ampleforth
Joan; m Thomas Usher

4, Percival Levett b 1560; freeman of York 1581, innkeeper, and
sheriff of City of York 1597. Buried 5t. Martint's
Micklegate 13 ieb. 1625 -
m Elizabeth Rotherforth, dau and heiress of Alexander
Ch. Mary bpt 1581; m John Srith
Rudderforth bpt 1582; d 1584 (+.:*Rotherforth?)
Grace bpt 158%: m illiam Todd
! Christopher b 5 Apr. 1586; Explorer to N.E. uUied at sea 1631
Percival, merchant of York
Anne m 1623 1) Christopher Topham  2) 1627 Joseph
Micklethwaite

5. Percival Levitt b 1580 n of Leverly
Merchant of York rreeman 1611
Many names of his family carried on in American family

Ch. John 1608 Immigrant to America
Joseph 1609
Sarah 1611
Flizabeth 1612
Benjamin 1614

Samuel 1615
Abigail 1616
lary 1617

tartha 1620
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2 (cont)
Children of Joserh (5) emd Sarsh (Bradbury) Leavitt .

Sarah b 8 Apr. 1764; d 20 jer. 18003 m 6 Apr: 1780 Daniel
. . Hill
(6) Joseph b 12 Sept 1765; 4. bef. 1819; m Martha Batch

?homas b 14 Jan. 1767; 4. 24 Dec. 1846: m Martha Bradbury
Williem b 16 June 1768; d. 11 June 1848; m. Mary Cobb
Samuel b 18 dar. 1770; m 1st Hannah Garland, 2nd Mary Aver,
) 3rd Dorcas Ridlon .
betsey b 25 Jen. 1772 : :
Eenjamin b 25 Nov. 1774} m, Susannah Bradbury
ch. of Anna | '
Amnma” b 8 Sept. 17775 d 19 Sept. 1814; m 18 Feb. 1795 Isaac
v ’ . Dcammon
Brzdtury) 4 23 De¢. 1824; m. Nancy Paul
J==twins b 7 Oct. 1779
True ) G 1826; m widow Abigail Wales

6 Joseph Leavitt son of Joseph (5-4), Thomas (3), Hezron (2), Thomas (1)
b. 12 Sept. 1765 at Neraganset Me. 4 bef. 1819
Martha Latch '

After the Rev. war the state of Maine offered free land %o
-+ men who would settle there, and a great many of the
Leavitts took up land. Joseph (6) had relatives living
at Shapleigh, laine which is near Acton. Children born
at Acton, Me. Samuel Burbank of Newfield, Me. was app.
< guardian over Wm. and .Joseph, sons, 1819
Children of Joseph (6) and Martha (Batch) Leavitt
(7) Joseph b 16 Jan. 1792: d. 29 Sept. 1858; m. Hannah Pifield
Lydia d young
Maxry .
Abigail ¢ b 1 Sept. 1785; d 15 Oct. 1866
' . m. 7 Apr. 1803 Samuel Fifield
William G. d 6 lay 1843; m Elizabeth ==
Lydia '
‘Betsey d 1874 at Gilmanton, N.H,

7 Joseph leavity, son of Joseph (6-5-4) Thomas (3), Hezron (2) Thos. (1)
b 16 Jan. 1792 at Acton, Me. ; d 29 Sept. 1858 at Loudon
© Lidge, N.H. m, 21 Fov. 1811
1 Hannah PFifield b 19 May 1792 at Gilmanton, N.H.
d 21 Nov. 1856
2 Mery Liudgett m 15 Sept. 1857 age 70 - -

Jaseph (7) and Hannah lived until 1818 at Gilmenton but before
1821 moved to Grafton, N.H, In 1830 they went to Ancover,
N.H, but before 1832 returned to Gilmanton and finallv settled

at Loudon.
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7 (cont) : : —
Children of Joseph and Hannah (Fifield). Leavitt - e
Lucinda b 18 Oct. 18105 4&. 14 July 1825 at Grafton, N.H.
(8)Joseph b 7 Sept. 1812; d. 1898; m. Betsey Swett
David Fifield b 15 liar. 1815; m. Nancy Campbell
William G. b 9 Bept. 1825 at Grafton; m lst Mary French
2nd Mary Sargent . -
Jeremiah C. b 16 Jan. 1818 at Gilmanton; m Abigail D Murray
Mary b 15 Apr. 1821 at Grafton; d. 6 Aug. 1905 ‘
. m. Josiah B. Jones
Daniel G. b 11 Mar. 1823; m 4 July 1843 Ann Furbush
' He was a minister at Boston and Lynn, Mass.
Moses ' b 18 Nov. 1827 at Grafton; d 19 Apr.,1875;
m lst Caroline Goff; 2nd Eliza bracey
Jefferson b 2 Apr. 1830; d. 31 Aug. 1831
Imcinda C. b 15 June 1832; d. 21 Jan. 1875
m 16 July 1854 Semuel S. Hoyt

8 Joseph lLeavitt, son of Joseph (7-6~5-4), Thomas (3), Hezron (2)
Thomas (1); b 7 Sept. 1812/3 at Acton, Maine’ ‘

d. 1898; m 1 Qct. 1837 = ° .

Betsy A. Swett, ©., 28 Apr. 1816

Joseph (8) and Betsy lived on Swett Hill, Gilmenton, N.H.
Joseph made his will 8 Oct, 1891 leaving each child $1.00
and the residue to son Benson. . —
The N.H. census of 1850 lists Joseph as a blacksmith and
shows a discreépancy in ages of Joseph and, Betsgys
Joseph Leavitt 33 .

Betsy - ® 29
Augusta 10
Jeremiah 8
Frances A 4

Children of Joseph (8) and Betsy (Swett) Leavitt
MaFtha Augusta b 27 Dec. 183%9; &. 18 Feb. 1888
unm. Jumped in lake, a suicide
Jeremiah 8. b 15 Mar. 1842; 4 uwnm 15 May 1902, insane
. Served in Civil Viar, enlisted 29 Mar. 1864
) 1st Reg't of N.H. Vol's Co. B - T
Eldora b. m Roger Morrill, ch: Clarence. After her
husband died she moved to Calif. 1919 from
Yo Medford, Mass.
(9) Frances A. b 1846; m E.L. O'Banion

. Benson Alford b 1857; d. unm. 24 Sept. 1919
Dixi swett b 17 Tec. 1851 d. 14 May 1919; m 12 Aug. 18872
‘ Almira Ordwadv, dau. of William, b 1864
ch. Nellie M. i 26 Apr. 1900 Burt E. Wadley
Ernest b 3 Jan. 1884; m 28 Apr. 1906 Naggie
M. Whitten
son b 26 FPeb. 1885 dau. b 13 June 1887
Gladys Gertrude b 11 July 1893; m Irving R
Garland
Doris Iillian b 4 May 1904; m Joseph T. Evans

—
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9 Frances Adelaide Leavitt, dau of Josevh and Betsy (Swett) Leavitt

b 14 Aug. 1847; d. 7 Aug. 1927; m 11 Mar. 1873
Blias Logan O‘banion, son of John Preston and Ruth (Turner)
O'Banion, b 20 Jaun. 1848; 4. 12 Mar. 1928

From a New Hampshlre newspaper, "News and Critic" under the

heading of Loudon Ridge, circa 1917

"A friend gave me, the other dav, an item in regard to

Fanny Leavitt, who was born and brought up in this region.
When in her teens she taught in the schools hereabkout and
was one of our best teachers. Her father was the late
Joseph Leavitt of Gilmanton. In 1867 she went west in
company with her uncle, Jeremiah C. Leavitt and continued
teaching for a number of years. ©Ohe married a hustllng
young westerner named O'Banion with whom she lived in
Illinois for a tlme, afterwards removing to their present

home at Storm Lake City, northwestern Iowa.
To them were born seven children, all but one of whom are
yet living. Four are sons, one of whom is superlntendent

-of one of the great ranches in California; another is a
forester in Oregon and s+ill another represents a packing
. company in Baltimore.: All have had a college education.

Mr. O'banion has @ charming home on the shore of the
beautiful ‘lake. \
What brings her very near our hearts is the warm interest

- which she feels for Gilmanton and Loudon Ridge. She has

taken the "News and Critic" for wvears and reads it thru
every week., She is nearing three score and ' ten, but her
health is good; and I trust it is among the p08n1b111t1es
that she will yet rev1s1t her native Hllls.“ '

From a printed obituary:

Uirs., B.L. O'Banion, a resident of Storm Lake -and buena

Vista county for almost a half a centurv and one of
the most estimable women of the community, -died at her
home, 416 Otsego Street, last Sunday at 9:30 p.m.,
following an illness of some time.

Pannie A. Leavitt was born at Gilmanton; N.H,, August
14th, 1847, and died at her home in Storm Lake, Sundav,
August 7, 1927, at the age of 79 years, 11 months and 24
Gays. Had she livec one more week, she would have rounded
out four score vears.

She was educated in the country school of her neigh-
borhood, Gilmenton Academy, and at Boston, Mass., prevaring
herself for the vocation of teaching. Her career as a
teacher lasted for ten wvears, five of which were spent at
Gilmanton Academy and five at Mason Citv, Illinois.

It was at Mason Citv, Ill., that she met and married
E.L. O'banion, the ceremony teking place at Decatur, Ill.,
on March 13, 18735.

lir. and Mrs. O'banion began housekeenlng on a farm near
Weldon, I1l., and in 1878 thev moved to Buena Vieta county,
locating on a farm four miles northeast of Storm Leke, where
with her husband, she experienced the hardships incident
to life in those days on the farm.
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Mrs. O'Benion was the devoted mother of eight children, all
of whom are living, with the exception of Guy, the first born, who
died of diphtheria at the age or nine years

The living childrer are: Wilbur, of baltimore, Maryland; Josie,
or Mrs. B.H. Coonradt, of Cherokee, Iowa; Walter of Canton, S.D.;
Dr. Archie L., of Santa Barbtara, California; PFlorence, or Mrs. T.F.
Wait of Storm Lake; . -Prof. Allen C., of Park Repids, Minnesote; and
Earl L., of Sioux City, Iowa. ;

These-children, with thirteen grandchildren, her husband, E.L.
O'kanion, and a host of neighbors and friends, remain to mourn the
death of oiie whose-love was greatlv: cherished, and with whom her
pleasamt meriory will linger long. ’ VLS

Mrs. O‘Banion was a member of the Church of Christ, having
become .one of the charter members of tne local organlzatlon and was
z faithful worker in the Aid Society. sShe was for many years a
member, and a worker in the Women's Christian Temperance Union. She
was a devout Christian, and during her months of confinement to her
bed by the dread disease, cancer, her faith in the promise of the
word of God grew brighter from day to day. DNear her pillow she kept
constantly her Eible and joined with spiritual satisfaction in the
prayers offered at her bedside by visiting friends and ministers.

Funeral services were held at the O'Banion home, Thursday afternoon
August 1lth, at 3:00 o'clock, conducied bv the Rev. W.H. Knotts of

Laurens, formerly pastor of tne Church of Christ here, essisted bv

the kev. H.E. Malone, pastor of the local church, and interment was
made in the local cemetery.”

Children of Frances (Leavitt) and Elias. Logan O'Banion
(For more detail, see under O'Banion)

Guy 1874-1884
Clarence W. 1875-1944
Josie G. 1877-1962
wWalter J. - - 1880-1963
Archie L. 1882-19%6
Florence L. 1884
Allan C. 1886

Earl L. 1889-19€5



-~ Leavitt

Descendants of Thomas Leavitt, the Immigrant 1616-
eand Isabella Bland ’ & 1696,

Emily Leavitt Noyes Tilton, N.H. 1953

Page 167

David F. Leavitt (8) son of Joseph (7-6-5-4), Thos. (3),

Hezron (2), Thos. (1) b. 15 Mar. 1815 at Sandwich, N.H. Do

not know when he died, but this town sets high on a hilland
it was—szid-ip early days, they had to kill a man to start

a graveyard, the place was that healthy. m. 18 Dec. 1842

Nancy C. Campbell at Orange, N.H. b 20 Nov. 1818, He claimed

"he was educated at the feet of Jesus Chrisé&,” and ordained

at Alexandria, N.H. in Aug. 1843. An Advent minister and

lived at Loudon Ridge, N.H.

Children of David F. and Nancy C. (Campbell) Leavitt

William Jefferson b 12 Feb. 1844 at Tamworth, N.H. d 23

Mar. 1910. Lived at Clinton, Ill. m 8 Jan. 1873 Emily

- . Evans, dau. of Samuel and Emily (Rounds) Evans. Her
2nd m. She was b 19 Feb. 1842 at Boston, liass. William
served in the Civil War, enlisted 31 Dec. 1864. Dis=-
charged 14 Nov. 1865. Emily d 12 Sept. 1933 at Masonic
Home, Zenith, Wash. ch: William Arthur, b 29 Dec. 1874
at Clinton, Ill. d 29 July 1929. m 3 June 1896 Lillie
Pearl Knudson, b 9 Mar. 1877. ILiving 1934 with her
daughter. ch: Marion Clare b 2 June 1898. Living 19%4
at Seattle, Wash. m 28 June 1922 Daniel Marion Lancaster,
b 11 Nov. 1888. ch: Arthur Leavitt b 20 July 1924;
Martha Jane b 17 Apr. 1928,

Clara A. b 30 Nov. 1847. m 29 Apr. 1871 at Centerbury, N.H.
Horace W. Chase of Plymouth, N.H.

~Jeremiah C. b 23 Nov. 1850. m 18 June 1873 at Lowell, Mass.
m Susie McCarlie, b 11 June 1849

S. Mittie b. 24 Jan. 1853. m S.M. Hussey of Loudon Ridge, N.H.

Nancy J. (called Jennie) b. 25 Nov. 1855. m Feb. 1874 John L.
Clifford of Gilmanton, N.H.

Hottie N. b 26 Sept. 1856. d 22 July 1932 unm.
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~— 1 John (vmita) Bland From Colchester, England, soun of -=-bland and
his wife Adriansg d. 1lo68
-1 Isabel. Dburied 12 Julv 1639, Watertown, Mass.
2 Joaiinsg '

"Genealogical Dicticnarv of Mzine and New Hamnshlre"

- Mr. John EBland, alias imith, was living at Bdgartown
on hartha‘®s Vineyard in~1646, undoubtedlv: the John Smith
associated with the Mayhews in the first movement from
Watertown to the Iclana, 'where he was always “Bland"

“hatertown, Mess." Henry Bond 1860 p 433
1. Smith (Bland): On the earliest 1ist extant of the pro-
& prletors of Watertown (1636/7) are 4 of the name of Smith,
viz John Sr., John Jr., Thomas, and Francis. Isabella, Wlfe
of John Smith 3r. d. 12 Oct. 1639 agec 60. It is nrobable that
John and Isabella were parents of John Jro and Thomae and
perhaps of Francis.and Dahiel.

2. Thomas Smith supposed to be a son of John- and Isabella
came to America. in the summer of 1635 (in the "Frimrose"
according to NEHGR Vol. 5, p 248) and was a proprietor of
Watertown  1636/7 where he d 10 liar. 1€92/5 aged 92.

"ﬁlstory of Martha s Vineyvard" Chas. Edward Banks 1911
Vol. 1, pr80-85 .
"Martha's Vineyard was purchased by Thomas Mayhew of

— * Watertown. In colonizing the island domain he made a grent
on 16 March 1641,/2 to 5.of the.Watertown neighbors to "meke
choice for the Present of a large Towne™ vith suthority equal

- to the pronfletors in admitting subsecment iahabitants and also
a future grent of "another Township for Posterity? These

5 associates were John Daggett, Daniel Pierce, Richard Dbeers,
John Smith, and Prancds Smith. dJohn Daggett was the oniv one
“to take up his share in the first grant..---It is not-sure

to claim identification of the. John ‘Smith who is the last but
one of the five. He had been a resident of Watertown for a
nurber of years and there .is more than & possibilitv tnat he
was -the person who had used this name as an alias ané when he
ceme. to the Vinevard resuuweé his pronrer femily name, Jomn
Bland. - John Smith of Watertown becane a freeman in 16736

. having previously resided in that place for the five’ rrecedlng
vears. His wife Isabel died in 1639 and sthenceforth he uis-
apvears from thes records. The evidence bedring on this is
considered more at length under the sketch-of John bland, one
of the earlw settle?s._ .

Vol. 2, pr 41-46 John Blapd alias Smith o
There is a certain alr of mysterv about. this nperson, wno
was one of ths earllest settlers at ‘Edeartown’. (notey A John
— .. Bland was a passenger.in the ship.“Globe" im 1635, aged 26
Vears. Whether the seme pérson &s John ﬁland of Martona‘s
i rq‘rﬂ “a nnknewn, )

If the town records can be trusted, he must have been
here as early ag the elder Mayhew and perhaos beforé: The
following entry in them shows that he had acquired provérty
in the vicinity of Katama prior to 1646:
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Mr. John Bland has bought of John Pease of Martin's
Vineyard a parcell of Laxnd about ten acres & two acres of
medo ILying against Mr. Blands house att Mattakeekset.
) March 2%, 1646
Mems Mr. John bland bought of Philip Tabor March 2, 1647
all his rights that he then possessed.

He was resident of Colchester, England, prior to his emigration
to New England, and it seems that for reasons which will be explained
later in this sketch, he had adopted the alias of John Smith, under
which name he would in all probability successfully defy identifi-
cation. He is undoubtedly the John Smith associated with the Mayhews
in the first movement from Watertown, of whom we hear no more in
subsequent Vineyard history, as he resumed his correct name when he
established himself here. Certain it is, that there was some contro-
versy about him and his identity as two of his early acquaintances,
Nathaniel and Abraham Drake of Hampton, N.H., deposed that "he was
sometimes called John Smith, but his name and his ancestors was Bland."
His known family consisted of Joanna his wife and two daughters,
Annabel anc Isabel, both married, and that his station in life was above
the average of his neighbors here is evidénced by the prefix of dis-
tinction, Mr., which uniformly precedes his name in the records. His
wife is given the prefix of Mistress also, and with Nicholas Butler
he is the only one besides the elder and younger Mayhew so distinguish-
ed by a title which had a definite significance in those days.

In 1654, John Rland was chosen one of the seven magistrates to
assist the elder lMayhew in the government, but beyond this it is not
krniown that he held any office. He participated in all divisions of
land up to the time of his death., His property he bequeathed to
his wife by an instrument dated or "confirmed" 2 Nov. 1663. He died,
in all probability, shortly before 6 Jan. 1668, as Mrs. Bland begins
to participate in the divisions of land credited to his share in-$he
in the commons from that time forth. His estate was inventoried at
5355-10~0, an especially large sum for that period, the full list of
articles shows evidence of household refinement in the way of looking
glasses, silver plate, table linen, books, and china, while among
his stock are found horned cattle, horses, sheep, and goats. A servant
g ILad for a Term of Time," was rated et £120, 21l of which he distri-
buted by a will in the Tollowing terms:

The Sixth of Jan'ry 1663: this is the Last will and Testament

of me John Bland of Martens Vineyard in or Belonging to
the Province of Main in New England. I say made By me John
Bland Delivered Into the Fossession of my wife Joanah Bland
this Second of November in the year of our Lord one Thousand
S8ix Hundred Sixty and three.

In the name of God, Amen. Be it Know unto all men By these
Presents and Express Partickelars that I John Bland Being in
perfect memory and full understanding But Week in Body:

first I do willingly Bequeath my Body to the Earth from
Whence it came When the Lord shall Be Pleased to Call for itt
and my Soul and Sperit unto God that Gave itt. Now for my
Temporall Goods after my Decease as Well as Whilst I am alive
I doe wholly Give unto my well Beloved wife Joanah Bland all
my houses and ILands with all my housellstuff together with all




3

my Goods or Chatiles of what Kind Sc Ever Giving her Most Hearty

thanks for all Her Care and Gratt Love Toward me in all myv needs
end Nessessityes: Excepting Twenty shillings Which I.doe Give
unto my Two Dafters Anable and Isable who are all the children
that are alLive whome I own and Give them -Twerty Shillings that
is to say ten Shillings.to each of them after my Decease to Be
Iruly paid to them at therz demand: and I Do Here by these
Presents make and ordain my well Leloved Wife my real and Sole
Executive of this my Iast will and Do apoint-her ;to Pay mv Debts
and Leagecies. Dated this Second of November im the year. of our

- lord 1663 and Confirmed ‘Ey Me John Bland as witness my hand this
same Second .of lovember 63 .

witnesses .. . . . his .
Thos. Daggett C Johmn X . Bland.
Richard Serson - ) nerk -

The terms of this will by which he disowned all children except
the two daughters, Annabel and Isabel, together with his dual verson-
ality as Bland and Smith, led the author into a loig and finally
successful search to identify him as "“John Smith" prior to his mi-
gration to the Vineyard. His edrly appearance here, contemporary with
the first coming of the Mayhews, indicated Watertow: &s the vossible
place of his settlement upon his arrival in New Englend. A -John
smith was found there in 1630 with g wife Isabel, and this name - - ¢
being borne by a daughter of Bland was regarded as significant. fhe
Wiatertown records contain an entry of the death of Isabél ‘Smith, the
w@fe, who was buried July 12, 1639, aged sixty years:. (Fdotnote:

This is a possible error as the early Watertown Hecords are a copy
transcribed by John Shermam, .who enters this explanation:. "What was
taken before was by Mr. Eirs and uncertgine in the transmitting." It
seems thet this age as given is ten years too great and may Ye an
error for fifty years.) ..An examination of the Watertown land grants
and estates also disclosed the fact that John Smith's homestall waa
contiguous to those of Jeremiah Norctross and William Barsham and that
later William Barsham sucteedéd in 16457to the possession of Smith's
lots. It further appeared that the wife of Barsham was nemed Annabel
and this cumulative evidence further pointed to &én identity with the
John Bland and his daughter Annabel, a most unusual nsme and.therefore
an sid to a solution of the problem. (Footnote: William Barsham

was of Watertown in 1630 and d. 13 July 1684. His wife Annabel signed
o deed in 1678, but is not mentioned in his will dated 23 Aug. 1683.
By her he had ten children, 1635-1659, and it is estimated that she
was born 1614/16, and merried after her arrival .in New England.)

. The connection of Jeremiah Norcross with Smith also proved to be
important and convineing, practically establishing' the connection be-
tween John Bland and John Smith. Norcross was & later arrival in
Weatertown than either Bland and Barsham, as he did not appear until
1639, with 2 second wife Adrian, who was the mother of our John Bland.
From all the facts in the case;, too numerous to rehearse, she had
probably married first Bland and second Smith and third (late in life)
Jeremiah Norcross, a well-to-do gentléman of a London family, ' con-
nected with the parishes of S. Mary, Sunbury, Middlesex and 55 Dundtan
and Sepulchre in the metropolis. He was son of Thomas Norcross, a
linen draper, married his second wife, Adrian Smith, about 1630, and
came to America eight or nine years later. (Footnote: A manuscript
genealogy of this family by J.W. Norcross in the library of the New
England Hist. and Gen. Society, furnished many corroborative facts in



ay the Bland-Smith search. This genealogy gives no authority for date
of second marriage. Adrien Bland-Smith-Norcross was probably born
about 1575 and was undoubtedly considerably older than her third
husband. It is not believed that she returned to England with him,
and may not have survived him). The connection between Norcross and
John Bland Smith is found in the following record: e
- Mr. Collens, Mr, Sparhewke and Goo:(dman John) Bridge are de-
sired to heare business betwen John Smyth.& his father Jeremy Norcros
& examine accounts, & settle things. if they can; if not to make re-
port to the Courte if there be cause.

This indicated a family disagreement between the son and step-
father, probably about inheritances, and surely establishes the
relationship of the two, and Adrian as the mother of John. It en-
ables us to conclude that John was the son of her first merriage
(Bland) and that as a boy he adopted the name of Smith at her second
marriage (Smith) or was legally adopted by the second husband. In
adult life, for reasons unknown, but possibly to be found in property
,interests, "he “resumed 'his 't1¢ birth name.of-Bland when he lcame to

“tHe Wingyard. ¢ v srIDL L ane D mne g Do pees ,

e R B AL O S S R L

= Jeremigh Noreross Feturmed.to Tnelsnd sitér mdking his will in
--1654, 'and.died:there three;yearg later, In this will he bequeaths "

to John Smith "my wives sonne® and 0 "Joanna Smith' his-wife,~*on& -

ewe sheep." (Footnote: Thig apparently ignores the Bland con-

nection, but in view of all &he circumstances which have developed,

Norcross may not have known %hat John Smith had reassumed his

true name at the Vineyard, and it is clearly apparent that there

was a family disagreement and a probable estrangement. Bland's will

further corroborates this.)

Nothing has been developed to explain the reference in Bland's
will o his two daughters as the only living children "whom I owne." —
It is inferred that he had others by the first wife, and thet his '
second marriage to Joanna resulted in opposition from some of them
which caused him to ignore them in the division of his estate.

As to the identity of this second wife, we are likewise in
darkness, She was lifing here 12 Aug. 1680, when she sold part of
her husband’s estate, but when and where she died is not known. The
Bland property in part came later into the possession of Philip
Watson, through meand not of record, and it is surmised that he was
a relative of Mrs. Bland and obtained it by gift or inheritance.

Isabel Bland, the second daughter, married first about 1636
Frances Austin of Dedham, Massachusetts, by whom she had 3 daughters
and second, about 1643, Thomas ILeavitt of Hampton, N.H. by whom
she had 6 children at least. Mrs. Isabel Leavitt died 10 Feb. 1698/9
aged “about 87 years™. - ‘ . . ;

* He left no:known descendants on the Vineyard and only those
through the barsham and’ Leavitt lines are certain descendants-else-
where. (Xote:  Dow's History- of Hampten, p. 810; Mrs. Isabel Leavitt
claimed  the bland- estate-on:the Vineyard.and filed as evidence the
depositions of N¥athaniel and Abram Drake of Hampton in support of
her heirship as. John bland‘’s daughter. These depositiions disclosed
the "Smith-Bland" situation and established the clues to his identity.)

PR o Saen L R
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Chert 2

1 Anthony Taylor; b. England ab. 1607; d. 4 Nov. 1687, Hampton, N.H.

(a)
()

(c)

Pnilippa; d. 20 Sept. 1683

Anthony Taylor came to Strawberry bank via Barbados, 1635

Anthony Taylor, feltmaker, a young man with the first comers
to Hampton, 'W.H.

The new "Banks Topographical Dictionary" names Cobham Co.
Surrey: in comnection with him, but impossible to tell
whether a positive identification or a good.clue.

He sold Hampton land to John Legate in 1642, the first of
meny transactions.

Oath Allegiance 1648

Signed petition in favor of Robt. Pike 1654

Tavern License 1654

Cath Freeman 1655 o

Selectman 1658, 1666, 1670, 1682

Fence viewer 1660 . '

Juryman 1665, 1675, 1676, 1678 -

Grand Jury 1679, 1680

Dismissed from militery training and watches 1666

Frison keeper 1668, 1672-4

Constable 1673, on spec. enforcement committee 1677

Oath Alleg. to Mass. 1678 :

page 989
Anithony Taylor, feltmaker, the first of the name in Hampton
was here soon after the settlement of the town. He had "5
acres of upland and swamp granted unto him at two severall
times; and 5 acres of upland and swamp Bought of Thomas
Kyng--granted unto him likewise at 2 severall times; 10
acres in all;; layeing between the house lott of Wolter
Roper toword the south; and common ground wher the clay-
pitts are, in Prt;\and the lott of Henery Green- -in p.*t
and a certayne swamp in p¥t toword the north; abutting
upon the meeting house--green in pTrt and a common waye in
pft toword the east; and, upon another p¥t of the sayd
swamp toword the west; more or lesse as it is layd out®.
His house stood where Christopher G. Toppan now lives,
Tthough he lived, at first, on another lot near the late
iloses Towle's.

Page 51; Labors, Controversies. and Superstitions 1647-1662
Measures were adopted in May 1655 to enforce a regulatior
made some time before, concerning the dry cattle owned in
town. Goodman (Godfrey) Dearborn, Anthony Taylor, Morris
and Henry Dow Jr. were appointed to see that thev were
vlaced under the care of the keeper provided by the town.
If any persons, after due notice from.the committee should
be found neglecting to drive their cattle of this dis-cript-
ion to the place where the keeper was to receive them,
they would subject themselves to a fine of 6d a2 head for
all cattle which thev should thus fail to drive. That this
order of the town might not be evaded through any negligence
on the part of the committee, they too, were made liable +to
a fine of 2s each for any failure in the performance of theiz
d’ll‘by .
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Page 84  Summer of 1676

Town meeting; a police regulation made for the purpose of
preventing damage by “violent and indiscreet riding in the

town". It was ordered that if,. after the publication of the
regulation, any person should gallop through the town or any
street thereof he should forfeit for every offence 2s 6d; 1/2

to the town and the other 1/2 to Anthony Taylor who was appointed
to carry the order into effect. :

Page 72
An ordinary was an Inn or Public House for the accommodation
of travelers, with lodgings and refreshments at established
prices. The first ordinary in Hampton was opened at a very
early period, in accordance with the expressed wish of the
town, by Robert Tuck. His house was on the corner of the
junction of 2 roads near Rands Hill about 40 rods ME from
the site of the first Meeting~house. He continued to keep
an ordinary there until he had occasion to visit England in
1654. It then became necessary for some other person to en-
gage in the business. The town having made choice of, or at
least, authorized, Anthony Taylor to open an ordinary; though
he lived on the border of the settlement about 2 miles from
the Meeting-house, the County Court approved the choice and
allowed him "to sell wine and strong water". Goodman Tuck

- returned a year later and reopened his ordinary.

Children of Anthony and Philippa Taylor

John m (1) 5 Dec. 1667 Deborah Godfrey

(2) 30 Oct. 1700 Susanna Bracket

d 15 Dec. 1712

Lydia m 23 Mar. 1666 John Moulton :
Martha m 25 Sept. 1667 Hezron Leavitt; d. 10 Peb. 1715/6
Sarah m (1) Thomas Canney Jr. of Dover

(2) John Wingate (parents of Col. Joshua Wingate)

References: )
(a) NEHGR Vol. 86, p 465
(b) Genealogical Dictionary of Me. and N.H. Noyes
(¢c) History of Hampton  Dow :
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Atkinson
Chart 2

1 Thomas Atklnson, of Bury Iencashire, Eng.; d&. 2.8 Nov. 1646

(2)

(b)

(c)

Susan m (1) Thomas Aﬁk*ﬂson
(2) William £1line (4lmie)

Thomas Atkinson, said 1o have been a brother of Theodore

(from bury $t. BEdmunds, Suffolk) settled Concord, Mass.,
admitted Freeman 7 Dec. 1€36, d 18 Nov..l646. His will
mentioned brotier Robert Atklnson in parish of Hal ifax,
Yorkshire, England. After his death, son Jonn (2) is said
1o have been brought up in family of Uncle Theodore.

Thomas Atklrson, d. 1646 Adm. gr. to widow 25 Nov. 1646,
80 pounds to be rec'd from England.
Major Willard petitioned the court with reference to the
estate (paner undated)s Thomas Atkinson, late of Concord,
came out of Engiand 25 years since, left an estate in
wngland. Left widow (who m. "Willi Almie, the tvler") and
3 deughters. Robert Tellison and Robert Atkinson in Eng-
land named. (Mdx Files 1659). ILetter from his brother
Robt. Adkinson of Timbv in the parish of Halifeax, Erg. 29
Mar. 1652: Thomas went to N.E. 17 vears ago this spring.
So0ld land before he went.
Administration gr. 4 Oct. 1659 to John Haward and Susanna
and Hannah Atkinson on the estate of "Wm Alline"™ who
married their mother. (Mdx Files 1671)

Thomas Atkinson and brother Theodore came from bury
Lancashire, Eng. and settled in Concord, Mass vefore
16%6. Thomas was made freemaenm 7 Dec. 1636 and d. Nov. 1646

Hie children: Rebecca, John, Susennah and Hanmah.

Vital Statistics, Concord, Mass. (Beginning 1640)

Births: Susannah, dau. Thomas Atkinson 286 (2) 1641
Hannah, dau of Thomas Atkinson 5 (1) 1643
Marriages: Jonn Haward and Rebake Atkinson 17 Aug. 1656
Calib Brooks and Seuessan Atkinson weare maryed
10 Aprill 1660 .

"Genealogical-Dictionary"™  Savage

Thomas Atkinson, Concord, by w Susanna had Susanna, b 28
Apr. 1641 and Hannah, b. 5 Mar. 1644
Both daughters married Caleb Brooks, the elder on 10 Apr.
1660. $he d. 19 Jan. 1669. ,

Children of Thomas and Susan Atkinson

Kebecca m John Haward 17 Aug. 1656

. (2)John b 1639/40 m Sara Mirick

Susénnah b 28 Apr. 1641 m Caleb Brooks; d&. 19 Jan. 1699
Hanmnah b 5 Mar. 1644 m Caleb Brooks

2 John Atkinson, b 1639/40 Goncord, Mass.; d. 6 Dec. 1711 (72nd year)

Sarah Mirick (Merrick) m 27 Apr. 1664; d. after 1685

(c) John Atkinson, only son of Thomas Atkinson, was born in

Concord, Mass. about 1639/40 and after his father's death
was ad0pted by his Uncle Theodore of Boston with whom he
learned the trade of hatter and feltmaker and settled in
Newbury, Mass. in 1662.
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(d)

Among the early settlers of Boston was Theodore Atkinson, a -
native of pury in Lancashire, Eng. b. 1611; d. Aug. 1701;

a man of some note in his day. Came to Boston in 1634, was a
member of the Artillery Co. in 1644. 1In a deed of gift dated
1674 he says "On account of the love which I bear to my nephew,
John Atkinson of hewburv,"™ etc. This John Atkinson was born about
1640, whether in England or in America is not known, was according
to tradition, the son of Henry (%?) Atkinson, Barrister, who came
with his brother Theodore and settled in Newbury.

John Atkinson came to Newbury about 1663 and resided on the
southwesterly side of the uvper green on the spot occupied in
1853 by Capt. Stephen W. Little.

“"Genealogical Dictionary of Maine and New Hampshire“ Loyes

Atkinson, John age 28 in 1666 wes "acting for my uncle" Theodore
Atkinson of Boston; Settlied Newbury.

Newbury, Massachusetts Vital Statisticss: Marriages /

Atkins, John (Attkinson (Ct. Rec.) and Sara iirricke, 27 Apr. 1664

Children of John and Sarah (Merrick) Atkinson

Sarah b 27 Nov. 1665; m 8 Oct. 1685 Steven Coffin

John m (1) Sarah Woodman —
(2) Hannah Cheney (wid. of Peter) 3 June 1700

Thomas b 27 Dec. 1669; grad. Harvard 1691; d. bef. 1699

Theodore b 23 Jan. 1671; drowned 24 July 1685

Abigail b 8 hov. 1673; m (Int.) 1 Jan. 1696/ Jonathan Woodman

Samuel b 16 Jan. 1675/6

Nathaniel b 29 Nov. 16773 m 22 Jan. 1707 Deborah Knight

(3) Elizsbeth b 20 June 1680; m 4 Jan. 1703/4 Thomas Leavitt

Joseph b 1 Miay 1682; Killed by Indians at Wells, Me. 1 Aug. 170V
Rebecea m (1) 15 Oct. 1714 Israel Adams--d 12 Dec. 1714
(2) 1716 Ensign Joseph Hilton"

References:

(a) NEHGR Vol. 89, page 47

(b) “"Pioneers of lMassachusetts" Chas. Henrv Pope

(c) “"boston and Eastern Massachusetts" John J. Currier

(d) "Colonial Families of the U.S.A." 7Vol. 6 Geo. N. MacKenzie
“Directory of the Ancestral Heads of N.E. Pamilies" Holmes



Merrick 29 -
Chary 2 '

Sara Mirick, b ---; d. after 1686

"Compendium of American Genealcgy™ : '
Atkinson, Johnj; b 1640, frem Boston to Newbury ca. 1663
m 1664 Sarah Myrick : '
"Newbury, Messachusetts Vital Statistics" st
Atkins, John (Attkinson (Ct. Rec.) and Sera Mirricke
27 April 1664 v

###1 have been unable to establish the identitiy of the parents of

sarah Mirick, but feel reasonably sure that she was related
in some manner to four Merrick brothers who appeared in Iass. ca.
1636. For the benefit of anyone who would like to pursue the
question, the following dats should be of interest. In cases
where information was duplicated, I will use that which seems
most complete. Por what they may be worth, I will add some con-
cluding comments.

"Directory of Ancestral Heads of New England Families™ Holmes
WMerricks James, at Marblehead, Mass. 1668

John, d. Hingham lMass. 1647

Thomas b Wales 1620; Hartford, Conn. 1638; Removed
to Springfield, Mass.

William, farmer, bro, of preceding; b. Wales 1603;
Charlestown 1636; Duxobury, 1640. One of origin-
al proprietors bridgewater, Mass., later rem,
Eastham, Mass.

Mirick, Myricks
James, son of Rev, Wm., b, Eng. 1612; Newbury 1656
John, bro. of preceding, b. 1614, freemen Charlestown,
Mass. 1641 -
Thomas, bro. of preceding; b. 1620; N.E. in 1645
William, Charlestown, Mass, 1636; proprietor at Bastham
and Duxburyv, lass.

"Genealogy and Family History of the State of New Hampshire"™ Stearns

The Meyricks, says Burke's Peerage, are of the purest and noble
Cambrian blood, and have possessed the same ancestral.estate and
residence at Bodorgan, Anglesey, Wales, without interruption about
a thousand years. They have -the rare distinction of being lineally
descended both from the sovereign Princes of Wales of the Welsh
Royal family, and from King Edward I, whose-eldest son was the firsT
Frince of Wales of the English royal family. The line of descent
ig traced from Cadvan (Catemanus), descended from a long line of
regal ancestors. He was king of horth Wales at the end of the 6th
century, and had his palace at Aberffraw. He fought at Bangor
Iscoed, and is supposed to have been killed there, and buried at
Bardsey. Succeeding him is another long line of roval and noble -
personages down to Mayrick ap Llewellyn (Heuric), who was a captain
of the guard at the coronation of Henry VIII, Avril 25, 1509. He
was high sheriff of the county Anglesey, which office he held until
his death. Irom him the name “Mevrick," signifying "guardian." is
derived as a surname, in pursuance of an act of Henry VIII, re-
quiring that the name of every man at the time should be borne by
his descendants as a surname, there being no surnames before that
time in Wales. He married Nargaret, daughter of Roland, rector of
Aberffraw, Anglesey, Wales. His will is dated November 30, 1538.
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His children were- ) ‘ - :
1 Richard Merrick, Esq., of Bodorgan, Anglesey, Wales, who ,
succeeded Meyrick ap Llewellyn as high sheriff of Anglesey.
2 Rt. Rev. Roland Merrick, D.D., bishop of Bangor, Wales, born 1505
3 William Merrick, who died unmarried )
4 Owain Merrick, who died unnarried . '
5 Rev. John WHerrick, rector of lLlandachya, Wales
6 Rev. BEdmund Merrick, LL.D., Arch-deacon of Bangor, Wales
7 Rev. Reynault Merrick, rector of Llanlechid, Wales.

Koland Merrick, second son of Meyrick ap Llewellvﬁ, was the first
- Protestant bishop of Bangor, and was buried in Bangor Cathedral.
ﬁﬁém.him is descended the Philadelphia branch of the family in
erica.. . : . .

The (Charlestown) Maasachusetts branch is supnosed to have been
derived from Rev. John NMeyrick, fifth son of Meyrick ap Llewellvn,
all evidence thus far owtainable indicating that source for the four
broigegs, William, James, John, and Thomas who settled in Massachusetts
in 36. ‘ .

The name Merrick has been spelled in at least eight different
ways in the early records of this country; at the present time the
name varies from Merrick to Myrick, Merich, 'and Meyrick.

Lieutenant William Merrick, the eldest of the four immigrant
brothers, was born in Wales, in 1603, and ‘came to Charlestown, Mass.
in the ship “James" in the spring of 1636. kothing is known of his
early life; he was a farmer after arriving in Massachusetts. He
served six years after his arrival in the colony, in the colonial
militia under Captain Miles Standish, and is mentioned in the records
as an ensign, and later as a lieutenant. 'That he gave all his time
and attention to his military duties seems to be indicated by the
fact that he was not married until 1642, which was at the end of
his six year tern of service. He appears to have had propertv both
at Bastham and Duxburv. He was probably married at Eastham but the
destruction of a part of the book of records of that town renders it
impossible -to determire this fact definitely. He certainly lived in
both Ezstham snd Duxbury, within the decade between 1637 and 1647,
as some of his children were born at Fastham during that time, and
yet he is reported as being a citizen of luxbury. The records re-
late that he was a citizen of Duxburv in 1636 when he was allotted
five acres of land “Next the Blade at Powder Point."™ In 1637 he
was allotted another twenty acres at Great Head. He was one of the
original pronrietors of Bridgewater. 'He was surveyor of highways
in 1646 and constable in 1647. On May 22, 1655 he became a legal
voter in FEastham, and took up his permanent residence there.

“History of Duxbury® Justin Winson 1849

William Merrick b 1603
(m. Rebecca Tracy 1642--"Genealogy and History")

William b Sept. 1643; m Abigail Hopkins 23 May 1667
Stephen b liay 1646; = m lMercy Bangs, 28 Dec. 1670
- Rebecca b 1648
Lary b 1650 .
Ruth b 1652
Sarah b 1654 o
John b 15 Jan. 1656
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"History of Hingham"

John Merrlck in kingham 1637; d. 2 July 1647 leaving son John
and probably widow Elizabeth who d Roxbhury 25 June 1650

"History of Charlestown"

John bMirrick, b 1614; d 1675; in Charlestown 1641
age 46 in 1660; m. Hopestill

Amathia .

Hopestill b 1642

Benjamin b 1644

Hannah ;

Sarah ' b 1657; m Thomas Chapman
Mercy b 1658

Abigail b 1660

John

Mary

- "Genealogical Dictionary of the First Settlers of N.E.® Savage

Thomas Merrick of Springfield, by tradition said to have
come from Wales through Roxbury and reached Salisbury in- 16363
but there is evidence that he was of Hartford early in 1638. He
was very young if he left, as he is seid, his native land in 1630;
and no trace is seen at Roxbury of him or fathery mother, brother,
or sister, nor can the name be found there before 1649. At Salis-
bury he m. 14 July 1639, Sarah, dau. of Rowland Stebbins, who was
the 3rd man in that town of any English. Thomas d..Sept. 1704

Thomas b 12 Feb. 1641 d. young

varah b 1643

Maxry b 16455 d. soon
Mary b 1647

Hanmnah b 10 Feb. 1650

In 1653 Thomas m Elizabeth Tilley and had children:
Elizabeth 1654 4 young -

Miriam 1656 d at 28
John 1658
Elizabeth 1661
Thomas 1664
Tillev 1667
James 1670

Abigail 1673

"The Flrst Centurv of the ﬂlutOTV of Springfield, 1636-1736"
Sarah merrlck dau. of Thomas and Sarah (5tebbins) Merrick .
b. 9 Nay 1643g m Eliakim Hitchcock

"Genealogy of the Merrick, Mirick, kiyrick lamily of Mass." 1902
oy Geo. bvron Merrick
Page 266
Thomas Merrick, born in Wales 1620, came to America in the vear
1636 with three brothers and probably one blster, who m.
John Atkinson at Lewbury in 1646. :
###a correction was penciled in---"m 27 Anr. 166444

Page 143
James Mirieck, born in Wales 1612 was in Charlestown 1636
m 1652/3 Margaret---; she died 1708 Newbury, Mess.

He was & fish vacker and cooper by trade and owned his own place
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of business on the waterfront in Chaslestown.

If the suppositioin is correct that he was born in 3t. Davids,
Pembrokeshire, Wales, his choice of occupation is easily accounted
for, as St. Davids depended entirely upon its fishing for the support
of its population. In 1657 he removed to Newoury and became a farmer.
The records of Charlestown show that "James kiirick, the cooper, and
Margaret his wife, sold house and lot in Charlestown to John Andrews".
The same record states that in 1676 “James Mirick, aged 52 in 1664,
deeded to his son James, in Newbury, lands situated in Newbury".

Date of his death not found but he died before his wife who d.
Apr. 2, 1708, Newbury. "

Children:
James b ab 1654 Charlestown
John b 1662 d 1657 (##Misprint?)

Hannah b 6 Peb. 1657

Abigail b 5 Sept. 1658

Joseph. b 27 Apr. 16561

Isaac ™ b 6 Jan. 1665 d. 1631

Timothy b 28 Sept. 1666; m. Mary Lancaster 1696
Susanna b 20 Aug. 1670

Children from Hannah to Susanna are listed Newbury Vital Stat.

A It would seem quite unlikely for Sarah Mirick Atkinson to have
been a sister of the four emigrant brothers who were born between 1602
and 1620. Sarah married in 1664 and nroceeded to have 10 children.

The daughters, Sarah, of William and John were born too late to have -
married in 1664. Sarah, dau. of Thomas, m. Eliakim Hitchcock, both

of whom were still living and still married after 1664.

It is apparent that other researchers have worked on this
problem as I found two books with notes penciled in--the correction
of marriage date mentioned above and another in which someone had
penciled that Saral. Mirick, wife of John Atkinson was "“sister of
James", Could the latter have meant James Jr.?

¥ could find ro proof that Sarah kirick Atkinson was a daughter
of James Merrick Br. but there are several things on which to base
a speculation.

(1) James Merrick Sr. spent 16 years in America before marrying
Margaret in 1652 at about age 40.

(2) Of the four emigrant brothers, James was the only one who
apparently had no daughter named Sarah. It is equally true
however, that he had no daughter Margaret nor did Sarah M.

: Atkinson name a son James.

(3) James Merrick was living in Newbury in 1664 at the time Sarah
married John Atkinson.

Another mystery is the John Merrick of Hingham. He died in 1647
and his wife, Elizabeth, died in 1650 leaving a son John. Did they
have a daughter, Sarah, who might have gone to live with relatives?
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Bragdon 33
Chart 2

1 Arthur Bragdon, b. ingland 1597/8; d. 1678, York, Maine

m. Mary w~--..

iy Thi§ family has been difficult to sort out. There were 4
Arthur Bragdons living at the same time and in the same area
and yet I found birth dates for an Arthur Bragdon in 1597,
1620, 1645, 1650, 1666, and 1670. The information on the
first Arthur (1) is probably ‘correct; he had sons Arthur,
Thomas .and possibly Samuel. Ar¥thur (2) and Thomas {2) had
sons named Arthur, both of whom married a Sarsh. The key
clues in determining which Arthur (3) belonged to whom seem
to be in the designation Jr. and Sr. and in the names of their
children. The dates of birth are uncertain---the men of both

- generations (2) and (3) seemed to have had their families
late, though Arthur Jr. (3) apparently had 2 families.

After making many charts and comparing dates, I reached
the conclusion that our ancestor was Deacon Arthur Sr., the
son of Thomas (2) Bragdon. My reasons for this conclusion
are at the end of the chapter. .

The following article is confusing and probadbly incorrect
in some respects. To make it somewhat more understandable,

I have changed some of the paragrarhing. :

"Genealogical and Family History of the State of Maine" ILittle’

Arthur Bragdon was a settler in York, Co. liaine 25 early as
1637 and was a citizen of prominence, having large grants of land
and holding much property on the south side of ihe Vork river.

The bragdons were leading spirits in some of the coast towns of
Maine for meny generations, filling pesitions of trust and honor.
All of this name are descendants of Arthur (1) unless pogsibly some
families of recent immigration. The surname of Bragdon or Bragden
has been in use for several centuries in England and a lineage of
the family appears in a visitation of ILondon as early as 1568. The
names Arthur and Thomas occur in a Bragdon family in Stratford on

Avon., .

Arthur {1) was Constable 1640, 1648, 1657; Alderman, 1641;
Prov. Marshall Lt. 1652,1658; 9 yrs. Grand Jury; selectman 1653,
1655; 1in 1655 on a deposition made in York, his age is stated as
"about 67 years"”.

Just before his death he deeded o his son Thomas, 20 May 1678
all his estate on condition that Thomas "provide all necessary
things as long as he and his wife live". His administrator filed
an inventory 2 Oct. 1678 (Part 1, fol. 36, Vol. 5, York Deeds).
Among the articles mentioned was “one hatt, 5s, too ould coats and
one peyre of briches 30s." Evidently the wardrobe of the progenitor
was simple enough. The spelling is that of the conveyances, not of
Bragdon, because he signeéd his deed with a large capital "A", the
ends of the cross bar and the terminals of each leg of thae letter
being divided like a forked stick. His son Thomas, signed with a
mark--plain capital letters "T.B."

(The Genealogical Diction of Me. and N.H. says his known chil-
dren were Thomas, Arthur b. 1645, and Samuel, and that his wife
Mary signed a deed with him in 1661.) :

2 Thomas, son of Arthur Bragdon (1) was b. ab. 1625. He was Treas-

urer of York Co. 1667. He received the homestead and other prop-
erty from his father but there is no record of his disposal of the
property. BEvidently his son Samuel came inte the possession of the
land however, and we know of no other children except Arthur who
married Sarah
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Arthur, Sergeant, sor of Amshur Bragdon (1) was born about 1620
in England. He died in 1711 or shortly before as we know

. from - a deed in which Arthur Bragdon statés that he is the son of

Arthur Bragdon .latelv deceased. This same Arthur mentlons his
grandfather Arthur in another deed. .

. . Arthur was deacon of. the church and a large owner of proverty
in York Co. He married Sarah. 'He bought of his son Arthur Bragdon
Jr. half the tract granted originally fo him, Ensign Arthur Bragdon
Sr., deed.dated Feb. 20, 1694/5. (There was another Arthur Sr., son
of Thomas). He owned a sawmill at York in partnership with Abraham
Preble  and Peter Nowell, built soon after 14 Nov. 1700 when the
partnership was formed.

Chlldren° Arthur. ©No other sons known but he may have had daus.

Arthur, son of Arthur Bragdon . (2) was born about 1650. An Arthur
Bragdon, farmer, son of. Arthur Bragdon, lately deceased, sold
land near the sawnill to Nathanlel Ramsdell, 21 June 1711 (York

- Deeds). He bought and sold many lots of land from 1710 to 1725.

He married Mehitable=-~-. He was called "Jr." long after the death
of his father, Arthur, proving that Arthur Sr. of that time must
have been a cousin, doubtless the son of Thomas, This Arthur died
in 1736 at York, bequeathing to wife Sarah, only son Thomas, and
daughters Sarah Johnson, Martha Lord, Tebitha Linscott, Bethia "
Leavitt, Love Sayer, and Mary Bragdon, unmarried.

Arthur was a man of property and distinction, removing to
Scarborough in 1725 and spent there “the remainder of a long and
useful life". He was one of the few to whom the title "Gentleman® .
was applied in legal documents of his time., Captain Solomon and
Gideon Bragdon, probably his sons, settled in Scarborough, and their
descendants have been numerovs in Buxton ané Lemington and other
adgacent towns.

Samuel bragdon, son of Thomas (2), inherited the homestead in Vork.
His will, "“aged and crazy of body", was made 10 lay 1709. He
mentions his Wife then living, sons Samuel, and Joseph "under age®,
daus. Magdalen, Patience, Sarah, and Ruth. He called Deacon Arthur
Bragdon his “dear cousin" and appointed him sole executor of his
estate. He married Mary Moulton, dau of Thomas Woulton, and d. 1712

Samuel Bragdon, son of Samuel (3) b. 16735 m. (1) Isabella Marston.
From Uncle Arthur Bragdon Sr. and wife Sarah;, he bought land
Dec. 1701. The land was "laid out to the grandfather of Arthur
kragdon Sr., grantor, on the sw side of York River "opposite the
house of Samuel Sr's house where Sam Jr. lives". This Arthur could
sign his name but his wife made a mark like a capital 0. It should
be said that meny of these pioneers could read and write, but from
choice used these marks which in many cases, were tantamount to a
seal or coat-of-arms in the way they were used and in the care with
which they were designed.
Semuel and his 2nd w1fe, Lvdla, déeded thls land to his son
Samuel Jr. (5) in 1725.
("NEHGR" Sam Bragdon, son of Sam bragdon, d. 3 Mar. 1746, age 73
Isabella Bragdon, wife of Sam Bragdon; d 2 June 1722, age 4¥
Lydla Bragdon, wife of Sam Bragdon, d. 3 Apr. 1757, age 85 —
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“"Genealogical TLictionary of Maine end New Hampshire" Noyes

2 Arthur Bragdon, Ensign 1668, 1678; gr. . 673, 83, 88; Prov.
Mershal 1689. Lt. Arthur, Deniel, and Thowmas Bragdon, with James
Preethy and Wm. Wormwood, were 2ll dead and their inv. taken on the
same day, 14 Oct. 1690; apparently the "five out of nine" were sur-
prised while loading a vessel at Cape Neddick. He married ILydia
Twisden. )

Ch, Arthur (3), b. 1670, capt, gre jey reme to Scarborough in
1728 where he was an orig., memb. First Church, In 1742 Arthur
'Bpagdqn, gent., in jail, sued his creditor Por beating him so that
his life was despaired of. .Living 5 Nov. 1746. He m (1) Sarsh
Masterson after 8 March 1691/2, who by contemp. hist. was killed
with their 5 children 13 Octe. 1703. By familiar trad. in Scar-
borough, he }eft her baking and found her and their four children
scalped on his return. DBut a dau. Abiel was carried captive and was
still living 1711. (Abiel is listed elsewhere as the daughter of
Nathaniel Masterson) . . . ,

Arthur m (2) in Hampton, 3 Nov. 1704, Mehitable Marston. His
second family of 6 children included Solomon and Lydia.

3 Arthur Bragdon, b. 1666, Deacon but previously Ensign. Weavédr, had
a mill at the foot of Cape Neddick pond. Gr, j. 1693, 1701.
Will 15 Mar. 1736/7, mentions wife Serah (Came) their 7 children
and Farnham gr. ch. . ' :
Sarah b 10 Dec. 1692; m 6 Sept. 1720 Benj. Johuston, Portsmouth
Martha , b 3 Jan. 1694/5; m. 1713 Jonadab Lord
Hennah b 25 May 1697; m. Daniel Farnhamg d. 27 Nov. 1729
Tabitha b 21 Aug. 1699; m. John Linscott
Thomas b 20 Feb. 1702/3; m 23 Mar. 1726/7 his double cousin
Mary Came :
(4)Bethia b 20 June 1704; m (int) 20 May 1727 Jossph Leaviti
Ilercy b 1 Apr. 1707 '
Love b 19 Hay 1709; m 25 Apr. 1734 Wm. Sawyer

2 Thomas Bragdon, son of Arthur (1) Bragdon

gr. j. 1665,66,75,85,89, 90; Selectman 1679-81; Killed by
Indians 1690. Estate Adm. 3 Dec. 1690 to son Arthur Sr.
Ch. Arthur 1666

Daniel killed with father

Martha m ab., 1693 James Smith

Elizabeth m ab., 1704 Josiah Bridges

Bethia m (1) Thomas Kimball, had ch. 1710~13

(2) Chas. Wnite
(no Samuel listed)

"jlaine Historical and Genealogical Recorder" Vol. 4
8 May 1695, Administration grented to Arthur Bragdon Jr. of
estates of his pneles John Twisden and Samuel Twisden lateof York.
From Court Recgi@g; Arthur Bragdon and Mehitable Masten, m. bef .
1705. ’ ) ,
First Congr. Church, Scarborough orgenized 26 June, 1728; lNember
Arthur Bragdon. : '

"NEHGR" Vital Records of York, Maine
Vol. 1093 Births of Deacon Arthur Bragdon Sr., and wife Sarah,
daughter of Arthur Came. ’
(same listing as above)

Vol. 110; A. Bragdon Jr. The births of Lt. Arthur Bragdon's
children borne of ye body of his wife Mehitable

Solomon 1709 Elisua 1717/8
Gideon 1712/3 Name nearly gone
Mehitable 1716 Sarah 1721

Elijsh 1722/3
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Vol. 109; Samuel Bragdon Sr., sznd wife Mary, dau, of Thomas Moulton

Samuel 31 July 1673 Jeremiah 1683

Mary 1675 Ruth 1691
Pations 1678 . Joseph 1694
Sarah.

Vol. 111; Joseph Leavitt, his children born in York of his wife

Bethiah, dau., of Deacon Arthur Bragdon.
(as listed in the Leavitt chapter)

##### The identity of the fathers of Arthur Sr. and Arthur Jr. is

Came

confused by the information in the paragraphs under Arthur (2)
concerning deeds and the term "dear cousin®" in the will of
Samuel (3). By accepting Arthur Sr, as the son of Thomas (2)
and Arthur Jr, as the son of Arthur (2) it is possible to make
some corrections. According to the "Gen. Dict. of Me. and N.H."
Arthur (2) was married to Lydia Twisden and was killed by Indian
in 1690. (Arthur Jr. was administrator of the estates of his
uncles' Twisden). This puts a different light on the deed of
1694 and makes it a contract between cousins rather than father
and son. Which Arthur (3) owned the sawmill is still not clear
though it would seem to have been Deacon Arthur Sr.

The titles “cousin" and "Uncle" under Samuels (3) and (4)
can be resolved by noting two other words “Deacon" and"Sr."
Samuzl (3) was probably referring to his brother.

"Genealogical Dictionary of NMaine and NMew Hampshire" Noyes

A Devonshire, Cloucestershire name. {(An Arthur Came m.

Marian King in Plymstock, Devon. 30 Nov. 1633

1 Arthur Cham had a land grant in Exetex,1664, likely the same man

gs Krthur Came; York) Blacksmith, who had built a house by
1669 and had grants of land 1670 and 1686. Jury 1676,88,

93,96; Coroners jury 1685; gr. j. 1687,

On 9 Oct. 1710 he and wife Violet, who was living a widow

in 1725, deeded their property to son Samuel for suppert.

Ch. Samuel
Blizabeth m, bef: 1694 Philip Welch
(2) Barah nm Arthur Bragdon

Eleanor m Daniel Jenkins
Also presum. Mary m. 14 May 1699/0 William Larrabee

—_
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1 Ihomas Braibury, bp 1610 Wicken Eonent, Bsssx Co. England ,
da 16 Mar. 1694/5 Salizbury, Mess.; Will 14 Peb. 169
Maxry Perkins, m. ab. 163%6; dau of John (1) Perkins
. ab. 1620 England
de 20 Dec. 1700 .

"State of Maine'- Gen. and FPamily History"  Stearns

. Thomas Bradbury, second son and child of Wymond and Eliz.
(Whitgift)(Gill) Bradbury, was baptized at Wicken Bonant, Essex
Co., England, February 28, 1610/1, as appears by the parish reg-
ister. Early in 1634 he appeared at Agamenticus, now York, Maine
as the agent or steward of Sir Perdinando Georges, the proprietor
of the province of Maine. He was one of the original proprietors
of the ancient town of Salisbury, Massachusetts, one of the earli-
est settlers in that place, and was one of the foremost citizens
there for a period of more than half a century. 1In 1640 he wss
made freeman, held at various times the offices of schoolmaster
of the town, town clerk, justice of the peace, deputy to the Gen-
eral Court, county recorder, associate judge and captain of the
military company, and always filled these important positions
with credit to himself and satisfaction to the public. He wrote

an easy, graceful and legible hand, and had a clear and concise
style of expression. :

In 1636 he became a grantee of Salisbury, and the following
year was appointed first clerk of the writs in that town. He
was chosen deputy to the General Court in 1651,52,56,57,60,61
and 1666, In 1654,56,58,59 he was a member of wvarious committees
to settle differences concerning lands, to fix boundaries and
locate grants. As agent for Gorges, he executed some of the

- o > G > gun e e e i

The grandparents of Thomas (1) Bradbury were William and
Margaret (Bell) Whitgift. Anne Bell, sister of Margaret, was
the first wife of ierdinando Gorges; thus Thomas Bradbury was a
a grand nephew by marriage of Gorges.

St > G > G e S G - o

"Pioneers of liaine and Hew Hampshire" Tope

Mr. Thomas Bradbury, mentioned in a letter of Sir Ferdinando
Gorges, 11 Aug. 1636. "“To my beloved Nephew Capt., William
Gorges, Gouvenor of New Somersett in N.E., or in his absence to
Mr, Richard Vines or Mr. Thomas Bradbury, or any of them, =---="

Wills 14 Feb. 1693
hged and weak--bequeath to grandchildren Thomas and Jacob Brad-
bury, who should pay to their Aunt True a certain sum and give a
receipt to their brother William about the administration of
their father‘'s estate and pay an ammuity to their grandmother;
to daus. Mary Stanion and Jane Prue; to gr. dau. Eliz. Buss;
5 pounds to the selecitmen for the poor. Wife Mary and dau.
Judith Moore, execs.

References _
Vital Statistics of Salisbury, Mass.
¥0ld Families of Salisbury and Amesbury" Hoyt
"Genealogical Dictionary of Maine and New Hampshire" Noyes
"Compendium of American Genealogy"
“"The Bradbury Memorial" Lapham 1890
"ancestral Roots of Sixty Colonists™ Weis:
"Your Family Tree" Jordan and Kimball 1929
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Chilidren of Thomas (1) and Mexy (Perkins) BFra
Wgmond o 1 April 1637 d. 7 Lpr. 19069, m S2ran Plke
Juéith © 2 Oct, 1638; m 9 Oct, 1665 Caleb Mocday ss 2nd wife
Thomzs b 28 Jan. 1640 )

Mary b 17 Mar. 1642; m 17 Dec. 1663 John Stanyan
Jane b 11 Mey 1645; m 15 Mar., 1668 Henry
5o BT Sole 1634 e onm 1660 parbadsy TU°
(2) William‘ﬁ 15 Sept 1649; m 12 Mar. 1671 Rebececa Maverick
b
b
b

dbury
Szran Pike

Elizabeth b 7 Nov. 1651; m 12 May 1673 John Buss
John 20 Apr. 1654; 4 24 Nov. 1673

Ann 16 Apr, 1656; 4. young 1659

Jabesz 27 June 1658; d Apr 1677

2 William Bradbury b 15 Sept 1649; d 4.Dec. 1678
Rebecea Wheelwright Maverick m 12 Mar. 1671/2 (Salis.)
D ===, 4 20 Dec. 1673 (Salis,)

William (2) Bradbury took the oath of Alleg. and Fid,

1677. Ele wife was the dauvghter of Rev. John Wheelwright.

Hder first husband was Samasl Maverick Jr.. son of the

King's Commissioner. He died in Bostcr 10 Mar. 1664.

L davghter, Mary Maverick mewntionsd In Rcbecca's will.
Children ct Wiilliam and Rebecca Bradbury

William b 16 Oct. 1672; m. Seran Cotton

- "Thenas b 24 Déc. 16745 m Jemima Troe
(2idacob b 1 Sept 1677; m Elizabsih Stozlmen

These children were brought up hy +heir grandparents
and are mentioned in will of Thomas (1) Bradbuxry

3 Jacch Bradbury b 1 Sept 1677; d 4 Mey 1718 (Saiie,
. m 6 July 1698 A
Elizabeth Stockman b 1679/80, dau of Jjohn and Sarah
(Pike Braabury) Stockman
m 2nd 6 July 1720 John Stevens
Q meeee

Jacob {3) Bradb was adnitted to Salishury Church
N ) ux.y o
1 Febd, 1707/8. His widow was & member of the charch
3G ang. 1718 ’
Chilérer of Jaccb and Elizaketh Bradbury

(4) Thomas b 16 Aug. 1699; bp Feb. 1707/2
m 16 Apr. 1724 Sarah Mexrrill
Ann b 23 gept 17013 & 16 Oct. 170L
Lnna b 3 Sept 170z bp 1707/3; m 1721 Capt. Wi True
Flizabeth b 25 Feb, 1706; bp 1707,/9; 4 14 Oct. 1723
Dorothy b 4 May 17085 bp 1708; m Rev., Awvmi Rvhamah
Catier

Jacob b 6 Oct. 17105 bp 1710; m 173% Abigail Easton
Sarah b 15 Apr 1713; m 4 June 1730 Elisha Allen
Moses b 3 Nov. 1715; m Abigeil Fogg

Jane b 1718; m ab 1737 Barnesbas Sowe
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Cont.
4 Thomas Bradbury (Jacob (3)}; William (2), Thomas (1)
b 16 Aug. 1699 Saiisbury.
d ab 1775 :
m 16 Apr. 1724 . R
Serah Merrill b 7 Apr. 1706 .- s , L

Thomas Eradbury was lnidwm as Captaln Bradbury and had
command of -the block house in 1748 and 1749. ‘He ;
was much in. the military during the Irdian.Wars and” affer

ghey wgre -over he moved to .what is ‘now buxton, Malne whare
e died.

Children of Thomas and Sarsh (kerrmll) Bradbury

Samuel: b 16 Oct:1724; 4.6 Jan. 1729/30

Elizaketh b 13 Apr. 17273 m Samuel Merrill

dacob b 15 Sept 1729; m Abigsil Cole

lMioses b 14 PFeb. 1731; m Mary Page -

Samuel. b 14 0c¢t., 17335 d young .

Thomas b.10" Jan. 17353 # Ruth Pagé .

RS Williem b 5 May 1738;.m Sugennah, Honklnson )

.o (5)garah b 10 Dec. 1739:.m Joseph Leav1tt (5)

Benjamin b 2 Mar. 1744;~m Mary Elden .
Mary - b =w-; m 5 Nov. 1767 Samuel Sands .

Mercy b 29 Jah. 17463 m 12 Sept. 1771, John Appleton
Jabez b 22 Apr. 17493-d.10 may 1749.

FR

#%## The ancestry of Thomas (1). Bradbury may be traced badk to many
great figures of history ineluding Charlemagne, Robert the Strong,
Alfred the Grent, the Magna Charta Barons and King John, William
the Conquerow. . Because’ of the, great number of branches, it is

’1mp0031bJe for me to include them in this work. The kev to this
snzestry is_in a book by Frederick Lewis Weis Ancestral Roots of
Sixty Colonists originally published in 1950 and again, with
correcvions, in-1964 by the Genealogical Publloalng Co. in Balti-
more. Maryland. This book traces the ancestry of Thomas (1) through
both parerts and gives references thrcughoutc whereby branches
may be traced which are not included in this partlcular book. #t#

—

The name Bradbury is of Saxon origin and is composed of the two
) elemenis Brad, meaning troad, and bury, meaning house, hill
domain, or tcwn. It is a name probably assumed by some one who
dwel® in the town of Bradbury, and was restrlcted in England to
narrow iinits. At the time of the settlement of the first emi-
grants in New ®ngland, it seems to have been confined to one
parish in Derbyshire. The radiating point seems to have been
Ollerset in the parish of Glossop, in the noxrtherly part of Derby.
The first mention of the name is in 1433, when there were living
in Ollerset Roger de Bradbury and Rodolphus de Bradbury. Their
connection to each other and to the following line is not known.

A Rober+t Bradbury, possibly the son of Edward Bradbury of Oller-
set in Derby., merried Eleanor, dau. of Thomas Shakerly of Longson.
— They had at least two children; Ottiwell, m Agnes Beard; and Robert

The line is continued on the following page.
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1 Robert Bradkury, the sarliest known encestor of this line, must
ave Leen born as early as 1400. He resided at 0ilerset in
Dervyshire.

m. dau. of Robert Davenport {(Damport) of Bramhall, county of
Chester. ©She was buried at Stansted, Mount Fitchet,
county of Essex.

ch.: William, m Margaret Rockhill

Thomas, Rector of Meesden, Essex in 1486; d. 1513
2 William Bradbury, of Braughing in Hertfordshire; Patron of the

church of Westmill in Hertfordshire in 1462,
n. Margaret, dau and co-heir of Geoffrey Rockhill of Worming-
ford, Co. Essex, .
ch.: Robert

Thomas, Sir of Kent, Sheriff of London 1498; ILord Mayor 1509
George, London merchant . .
Henry
Phillippa

3 Robert Bradbury, named in the inguisition of brother Sir Themas.
Witness to the will of George Nichall, of Littlebury, 2 Dec.
1484. Died 1489 and was buried in the church of Grey Friars,
London. There is some question as to the identity of his wife.
He is said to have been married to Anne, daughter of Infans
Wyant. Other researchers believe he was married to Jane (Joan)
Pitzwilliam, dau. of Sir John Fitzwilliam, Lord of Emlyn and
Sprotborough. (Barlier researchers believed she was married
to Robert's son William, but the dates do not work out prop-
erly.) The first husband of Jane Fitzwilliam was Thomas
Bendish who died in 1477 leaving a son Richard Bendish. She
could then have married Robert %3) Bradoury (as his 2nd wife?)
and been the mother of William (4).

If this be true, a further discrepancy in dates is
apparent. She cculd not be the daughter of Sir John Fitz-
william who married Eleanor Greene; he died in 1417/8. This
would meke Jane at least 60 years old when her first husband
died in 1477. DPerhaps she was a grandaughter of Sir John who
had 6 sons and one daughter.

ch. of Robert (3) Bradbury
(4) William b 1480
Philippa, m (1) Jeh# Barley; m (2) after 15C2 John Joslin.,
d. after 14 Oct. 1530. She was an ancestor of
Elizabeth Whitgift, mother of Thomas (1) RBradbury
of New England.

4 William Bradbury., named in the inquisition post moxrisn on tne
egtate of his Uncle, Sir Thomas, in 1510, to whose es3tate
he succeeded, Lord of the Manor of Mencendem, acquirved +%he
manor of Cetmere Hall in Iittlebury, Co. Fsmex in 1543, He
was buried at Littlebury, June 15, 1546. As stated above,
he is incorrectly s2id to have married Joan IPitzwililism,

An epitaph in Essex says "Fray for the souls of Willian
Bradbury and wife Elizabeth". This Elizabeth Bradbury died
13 Aug. 1530«
ch,: William, m Helen or Eleanor Fuller
Phillippa
Matthew, m Margaret Rowse

—
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5 Metthew Pradbury, Lord of %he Mohor of Hicken Ha¢1 which Menor he -
aequired oy turchase ia 1559, Ha rurshased she Mznor of Grange

in Thaxted, CuLntv Bssex in 1051 and sold itv the next year. He
is ment;oned in the wills of brother William and nephew Robert.
ds 19 June 1585; inguisition post mortem held 26 Oct. 1587, Son
William appointed administrator of estate 30 June 1585.
m. Margaret Rowse of Cambridge.
.ches William b-ab. 1544; m Anne Eden .
Thomas, m Dorothy, dau of Sir ---Southwell
Barbara m 4 times : .

6 Williem Bradbury of Wicken Bonhunt,Esq. aged 41 in 1585. Named
in wills of cousin Robert and brother Thomas. His own will dated
19 Apr. 1622; proved 6 May 1623; d 30 Nov. 1622 and bur Wicken.
m Anne, dau and heir of Rlchard Eden ¥sq., LILD of Bury St. Edmund,
Co. Suffcik?! His-wife was Margaret, dau. of Christopher Pevton
and Joanue m=ldmav (sister of Sir Walter Mildmay). Rorvewts—ef
Parents of Richard Fden were Thomas and Elizabeth, dau of Sir
Edward Waldegrave, whe 4 in the tower about 1561.

ch.: Matthew m Jane, dau of Wm. Whitgift

Henry d young, b Wicken 20 Ang. 1616

Themas d young

Thomas d young

Bridget m Francis Bridgewater

Anne m Thomas Kinethorpe of Louth

Alice bp Newport Fond 23 Feb. 1572; m (1) George Yardley

m (2) Thomas Wadeson.
VWymond (2nd child) m Elizabeth, dau of Wm. Whitgift

7 Wymond vradbury of Wicken Bonant, afterward of the Parish of White
chapel, Co. Middlesex; bp 16 May 1574; was “of London" 1628.
d 16505 dau. fane Stubbles appointed adm. 20 Nov. 1650 ™ag her
ryther Thomas was overseasY. m Eliz. Whiftgift, dau of Wm. Wnit-
glfq and sister cf the wife of his bro. Matthew. SChe 4 26 June 1l6/%
aged 38, and was bur. Croﬁden, Co. Surrey.
ch.z Wiiliam b 13 Sept. 1607; living 1628
Thomras bp 28 Feb. 1610/1, supposed to have come to America
prior to 1634
Jane bp 2 June 1606
Anne bp 20 Peb. 160879 m (1)-~Troughton, (2) ---Stubdles.

The Bradbury “Bvlck House® at Wickham Bonhunt (Bonant) is 45 miles from
London., t wes built by William (6) Bradbury for his son Wymond. It
"continmed in the aecuy stion of that branch of the family until the ex-
tinction o the name, and reverted with Wicken “Hall™ for debts. The
tsrick Houss™ was a pileturesque structure with ornamental gables and
was formerly adorned with statues, of which some remain in a mitilated
state. The Arws of Bradbury are still above the door
The maroxr house,; "Wicken Hall" was purchased by Matthew (5) in 15F7
from Rotant Cha+teﬁton, Esq. who had purchased it from Willism Barlee.
It continued in the family through several generations, until the early
part of the 1Sth century, when there was no male issue to inherit, and
Dorinda, dau. of Matvthew Esq., married Joseph Sharp,Esqg., who soid it
‘with the “Brick House" and about 100 acres of land to Thomas Coventiry
A Giwber structure with plcturesque chimneys, the "Hall" was a farmhousc
in 1890. It is 1/2 mile from the church called St. Margaret. Regi-
sters of the chuwch begin in 1598.
“Mr. William Bradbury, Lord of Wicken, died. upon St. Addrews daie
at night about xij of the clock, November ye last and was buried
uppon ye seconde of December, 1622, and was laid under the high
altar in ye chancel on ye southe side whose funerals was kept
after uppon Thursdaie after the twelfthe with the manie mourners
Yo ye number of thirtie.®
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1 John Whitgiii, Gert. Co. York, England
ch.: denry, m Anne Dynewell : £lnecin
Robert, Abbot of Wellow or Welhove, juxta Grimsby, Co. Len
Isabel, m Michael Shall or Shaller or Shellow

2 Henry Whitgift, Merchant of Great Grimsby, Co. Lincoln
m. Anne Dynewell of Great Grimsby
ch.: John, Lord Archbishop of Canterbury, Metropolitan and
Primate of all England. b 153%0; 4 29 Feb. 1603/4
William -m Margaret Bell

George d 1611
Philip

Richard

Jeffrey

Alice m Henry Cuckson

3 William Whitgift of Curles in Clavering Co. Essex. Will dated 13
June 1615; proved 8 Nov. 1615
m Margaret, dau. of Edward Bell of Co. Norfolk and Marg-
aret Barley, dau of Philippa Bradbury and John Barley.
ch.: John d 1625/6 m Anne Goodman
Isaac
Alice
Alice again .
Blizaheth b 1574; 4 26 June 1612; m (1) Richard Coles
d 1600; (2) Francis Gill, d 1605; (3) Wymond
Bradbury _
Jene m (1) ~~--Clarte; (2) Matthew Bradbury
Bridget m Robert Collingwood

Will of William (3) Whitgift ,

In the name of God, amen: +the thirteene daye of June in the yere —
off oure loxrd god 1615. I Williem Whitguifte of Clavering in the Countic
of Essex, geant. beying weake in bodye but of good memorye (praised be
AMlwightie god) doe hereby annihilate revoke and make voyde all former
willes by me at zny time heretofore made and nowe do make and ordayne
this my last Will and Testament in manner and forme following. First
I Commend my soule into the handes of Almightie god my hesvenlie
father and Jesus xpiste my only Savyoure and of the holie ghost the
blessed Sanctifier of me and all the Elect of god trusting assuredlie
to have remission of all my synnes and to dwell in the most sweete
presence of that heavenlie Maiestie of god forever thoroughe the
greate mercye merritts and passion of my gracious Savyoure and Redemer
Jesus Christe in whom all Nations are blessed., DNext I will that my
bodye according to the order of xpistian Buryall be honestlie and de-
centlie conveyed into the bosome of the Earthe there to be layed with-
in the parishe Chuxrche of Clavering aforesayd as neere unto the grave
of my welbeloved wife latelye deceased as convenientlie may be.

And as for the disposition of all my worldlie goodes Chattiells
plate money houshold stuffe Bondes and Debts of what kynd nature and
qualitie soever they be which god of his goodnes hathe lent me here
in this life. Pirst I will and bequeathe to Wymond Bradourye of
Wicken Bomnant gent. twoe hundred and fifteene poundes of good eng-
lishe money in liew satisfaction and full compensacon of one Bond of
twoe hundred poundes of good english money nowe in the handes of the
saied Wymond Bradburye in which bond I William Whitgift stood bound
to Frauncis Gill ny kynd and loving sonne in lawe late deceased for —
the payment of one nundred and tenne poundes of good englishe money
to the ssyd Prauncis Gill the Eleaventh daye of Januarye which was
in the yere of oure lord god ones thowsand six hundred and fower the
which bond remeynes as yet unpayed and resteth in the hands of Wymond
Bradburye aforesayed gent. by occasion of his marriage with my
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deughter ¥lizabeth the late wife and widow of the saied Frauncis Gill
deceased. Tho which somme of twos hundred and Tifteene pounées of
good englishz monsy I will to be payed to the sayed Wymoad in manner .
and forme following that is to saye one hundred pounds of good englishe
money within three monthes next atter my decease out of this my natur-
all life. And fiftie poundes of good english money (another part of
the sayed twoe hundred and fifteene poundes) to be payed within one
whole yere mext after the day of my naturall deathe. And sixtie fyve
poundes (the last parte of the twoe hundred and fiftesne poundes) 1o
be payed within twoe whole yeres after my naturall deathe to the saied
Wymond Bradburye or his Assignes uppon satisfaction as aforesayed.

Item‘l give and bequeathe to the poore people of Clavering the
somme of six noundes of good English money to be distributed amongst
them on y€ daye of my Buryall or within one monthe next after bv the
oversighte and discrecon of my executor herein named.

Item I give and begqueathe to John Mason a poor childe whome I
broughte up twentie shillinges to be payed when he shalbe one and twenty
yeres ould. - ‘

Iten I give and bequeathe to Jane Bradburye my daughter the wife
of Mathew Eradburye gent. the somme of twentie poundes of good english
money to be payed her within one whole yere next after my decease
out of this life.

Item I give and bequeathe to Philipp Clarte the daughter of Jane
Bradbury my daughter the somme of twentie poundes of good englishe
money to be payéd her within the *terme of twoe yeres next after my death

Item I give and bequeath to Mathewe Bradburye gent. my kynde
sonne in Lawe a Ring of gould of fortie shillinges to be graven with
my Arms uppon yt signet wise.

ttem I give and bequeath  to Anne Whitguifte the wife of my sonne
John Whitgifte one Ryng of gould of the like value to be graven in the
menner aforesayed, .

I gavr: and bequeathe to George Anthony Clerk one Ryng of goulde
of Twentic shiilings, < ,

ivenn I give and bequeathe to John Whitgifte the youngest the scnne
and hsire of Johyi Whitgifte my sonhe one yron Chnest standing in the
great chamvér over the parler with one Bagson and Ewer of siiver duble
guilt seaven siliver bolles guilt with silver Covers guilt belonging to
each of them twoe Belsalts of silver guilt twoe white silvexr bolles
one dozen of silver spoones guilt one dozen of silver sjpcoans unguilt.

uayning fast locked in the saved yron chest.

Item I give and bequeathe to Mery Whitgifte the daughter of my
scnne John Yhitgifte the summe of twoe hundred merkes of gnud euglishe
money to be payed her at her age of Fifteene yeres or at the deye of
her marriage which socever of them shall first happen.

Ttem T give and bequeathe to Alexander Wocdcocke my man the somme
of Fight poundes of good englishe money -to be payed hym within one
vere next aiter the daye of my death. .

The Residew of all my goods and chattells aswell moveable as un-
moveable stocke store sommes of money Jewells plate and thinges of
what kynde nature or qualitie soev..they are or be before by this my
last will not bequeathed nor given my Debts Legacseys funerall chardge
and expences payed and dischardged I whollie give and bequeath to
John Whitgifte my sonne whom I ordayne and make tae sole executor of
this my last will and testament. . )

And I do avpnoynte and make Thoms Tompson the elder of Berelen in
the countie of Escex, gent., Supervisor of this my last will authorising
and requesting hvm to cause entreat or compell mv sayed executor inslie
and truiie %o accomplishe and performe this my last will and testament
And in consideracon of his freindshivn and paynes to be ymployed therip
T do give anl bequeath to the saied Thomas Tomvson a+Rypg of gguld of
fortie shillinges to Ye graven with my armes uppon y° signet wise
desyring hym according to my truste to call uppon my sayed executor
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for the true accompllshmenf and par,ormarce of hws autie and fldelitze e
in the praaﬂsu>,-

ir. wiiress vhe”ecf . the seld William W%A+ giflte to 4'hm mv lest

will heve putto my harnd to.every leafe thereos ani-sealed tha Whole —
on the fylinge thereof togeather with my Weale of .Ayms in the 'il‘v

- prsence of those whose names are: hereunto subscrlbed. ’

g _ u*ll*am Whltglfte

s ) . hlc mark

Sealed smgned and dellvered in- the presence of Thomas Tompson, .
Ro Younge. Geacrge inthonye - -
Proved in <he Drerogatlve Court, at London, Nov. 8, 1615
- Book Rudd ‘folio 108

Reference: NEHGR 1869

1 John Perkins; b 1590, prob. in Newent, Gloucestershlre, Eng.
d 1654; m in Eng.
Judith Gates; b Engiand

Jonn Perkins came fo America in 1630 with his wife and 5

children. 'Roger Williams. was one of his shipmates .
aboard the ship "Iyon". Fe wds made freeman in Boston 18 -
Miay 1631, and was one of the 12 men who accompanied John
Winthrop Jr. to settle in Ipsw1ch in 16%3. He had lands
granted to him on various occasions and fulfilled several
important offices, chief among which was that of deputy to
the General Court in 1636. In 1645 he was an appralser and
in 1648 and 1652 served on the grand juary. In March 1650
"being over the age of 60 he was freed from ordinary training
of +the Couxri". )

Children of John and Judith (Gates) Perkins
Judith b «~=; m Wm. Sargent; d. 1633+
John b ab., 1614; m Elizabeth
Thomas b ab 1616; m ab 1640 Phebe Gould
BElizabeth b ab 1618; m Wm. Sargent

(2) Mexy b ab 1620; m Thomas. (1) Bradbury

Jacob b sb 1624; m (1) Elizabeth 1548

hs!

(2) wid. Damaris Robinson
--=bp 3 June 1632 Boston: d ab 1672
~ m Henry Bennet

The marriage of Wm. Sargent with a Judith Perxins rests on
tradition and may not be true. However, since she is
supposed bo have disd ca 1633 it is certainly possible that
she was the lst wife of Wn. Sargent and that he married her
sister Elizabeth after her death.

Lydia
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"Basex Tnstitute® Vol. 19 page 2.7

Jogn Ferkins Sen. wags boxn in Newent, Gloucestershire, Fngland
1590. He wes among the eexlisst imaigrants fror the mother country,
sailing from Svistol, Eng. Dec. 1, 1630 in the ship "Iyen" bound for
Bostgg in Americe, taking with him his entire family consisting then
of wirfe and five (?). children, After a stormy passage of 67 days
they arrived at Nemtasket Feb, 5, 1631 and on the 6th came to an
anchor before Boston. The following account from “Princes hnnals of
N.E." Vol., 1, p 341, describes the colony when they arrived and also
their. stormy voyage- '

"As the winter '1629/30 came on provisions are very scarce (in
the lMass. Bay) and ‘the veople necessitated to feed on clams and
miscles and ground nuts and acorns, and these got with much difficulty
in winter season. Upon which people grew much tired and discouraged,
especielly when. they hear that the Governdr himself has his last
~batch of bread in the oven, and many are the fears of the people
that.Mr. Pierce, who was sent to Ireland for provisions, is either
cast away or taken by the. pirates. Upon this a day of fasting and
prayer to God for relief is appointed (to be on the sixth of February)

vt God, who delights to- appedr in thé greatest straits, works mar-
vellously at this “time; for on :February 5, the very day before the
appointed fast, in came the ship Tion, Mr. William Pierce master,
now arriving at Nentasket, laden ‘with provisions. Upon which joyful
occasion the day is changed, and ordered to be kept (on the 22nd)
as a day of thanksgiving".

“February 8. The governor goes aboard the Lion riding at Long
Island; (next day) the ship comes to an anchor before Boston (to the
great joy of the people) where she rides very well, notwithstanding
thie greet drifts of ice. And the provisions are by the governor, dis-
tributed to the people proportidnable to their necessities."

"The Tion (had) set sail from Bristol December first, brought
about twensy passengers, and h&d a -very stormy passage; yet through
Gcd's rersy all the people came safe except one (Captain's son, Way)
of the sailoi's, who had not fdr from our shore, in a tempest having
helped to take in the sprit-sail, as he was coming down fell into <he
3e€, where after long swimming was drowned, to the great dolour of
+those ir. the ship, who beheld so- lamentable a spectacle, withcut being
able .t0 help him: the sea was so high and the’ship drove so fast be-
fore the wind, swhough her sails were taken down."

Por about two years after their arrival in America the Pexkias
family resided in Boston, where the youngest child. Lydia, was koin,
her baptism being recorded upon the parish books of the Firsw Church
th.ereg June 3, 16320 ‘

‘ Wo are not able Lo determine with certainty just what enploved

the time of our emigrant during the two years he resided in Boston.

but the record shows he was not idle but engaged in the public busi-
ness of the colony. o

.The foilowing extract is from the Records of the General Court
Nov. 7. 1632, ' ) '

“Capt Traske, Will® Cheeseboro, MY Conant and John Perking

are appointed by the Court to sett downe the bounds betwixte
Rocksbury and Forchestr. Ralfe Sprague is chosen vmpire."
(Records of Col. Mass. Bay, Vol. 1, p 102)

We find also the following concession made to him by “General Court,"
April 3, 1632.

"It was ordered that noe pson wisoeuer shall shoote att fowle
vpon Pullen Foynte or Noddles Ileland, but that the sd places
shalbe reserved for John Perkins .to take fowle wil netts.”

(Rec. of Col. of Mass. Bay Vol. 1, p 10%) o
On the 18th of May. 1631, he took the oath of freeman, admitting
him tc all the civil rights of the colony. He removed from Boston
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in 1633 to tae colony then newly founded by John Winthrop and nthers
&t Ivswich. IHere Le was lavgely engazed in cgricultire, and had
several grants of lend; the Loca“ron of his Fouse w23 near the river
at the entrance to Jeffries neck. on waat is now Lasht street,. where
he had considerzble land granted him. An agresment wes made with his
neighbors of fencing oi laand, 15 Feb. 1635, “This Daver Dos signifi
yt those prsons yb have ]and in we nack are compeied bo mack«safisant
fens acor Ding to yer proportions of land."

John Perkins, son of John (I); a band of Indlans sought to kill
son John (b, Eng. 1614) while he was living %in a little hut:on his:
father's island", but he was forewarded. of his danger by Robin,; a
friendly Indian. (Perkin's Island in Ipswich Rlver§ . ‘

Will ‘and Imventory of John Perklns, 'Sr. of Ipswich.

28th of ye first mC, called March, 1654. I John Perkins the :

elder of Ipswich being at this tyme sick and weake in body yet through
the mercy and goodness .of; the Loxd retalnlng my understanding -and .
memorey: dow thus dispose of and bequleath my temporall estate as
Followeth.

~ Pirst. I do give and beoueath unto my eldest-sonn John Perkins
a foale of my young mare belng now. -with foale if it please the Lord
she foale it well also I glve and bequeath -to my sonn John's two sonnes
John and .Abraham to each of them one of my yearling heyfers: also I
give and bequeath to my son Thomas . Perking one cow and one heyfer also
I give and bequeath to his son John Perkins -one ewe & to be delivered
for his use at: the next shearing time.also I doe give and begueath to
my daughter Elizabeth Sargeant one cow .and an hevfer to be to her and
her children after her decease as it. may please ye Tord they may in-
crease, the proffits or increase to be equally devided amongst the
sayvGe childrens also I do give.to my daughter Mary Bradbury one cow
and one hey;er or a young sheere 1o remain to her and to her children
in theyr increase or pzwffiis-.as it shall please the Lord +¢.bless
them and to be equaly devided. to ¥® children: also I doe give and
bequeath to my daughter Iidis Bennett one cow and one heyfer oi. steere
to be equaly devided to her children‘iﬂ theyr increase or proifits
after her decease: I doe also give unto my grandoallarzThomas Bradw
bury one ewe to be sett apari for his use at y© next shea:lng tyma
also I doe give and bequeathe unto my sonn Jacob Perkins ny dweillng
house together with all the outhowselng and all my landes of one
kinde and other together with all- improvements thesreupon to be his
in full possessign according to. a former. covenant after the decease
of my wife and nott before and so to remaine to him-and to his heires
forever; all the rest of my estate of one Linde and cther I do wholy
leave to my deare wife Judith Perkins gpointing and ordaining my sade
wyfe the sole executrix of this my last will and testemsnt desiring
my sayde wife to dispose of the cattell above mentioned according to
to her discresion as they shall prove steeres or he"f Ty, &as alSO to
dispose of some of the increase of the sheep to y© ckhildren of m
son Thomas and of my three daughters at the discresion of my. sayde
wife anc this I doe ordaine as my last will and testement subscribed
with mine own hand this twenty elghth aay of y& first month 1654.
Signed in pregence of

William BaThoimew
Thomas Harris

Proved in court held at Ipsw1ch 26 (7) 1654 by the Oath of William
Bartholmew and Thomas Harrls per.me Robert Lord, clerlc.

An inventory of the estate of John Perkins Sr. showed it to be
worth about 250 pounds. ) _
The dwelling House & Barn with outhousing 40.00
Land about house zbout & acres 12.00
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More land unbroken wup, aboui 14 acres 21.00
Parcel of warch about 6 scres at 40s per acre 12.00
Parcel of wupland & Marsh being msch brokaa about 20 acres
) <0s per 20.00
12 acres improved land at 40s per azre 24..00
ome mare with a Foal 25.00
six Milk cows - 30.00
Pour yearling heifers and a steer 11.00
Silx ewes at 35s 10.00
5 ewe lamk 5.00
1 yearling wether and 2 wether lambs 2.00
1 young calf «15
1 cow at the pasture, a sow & 3 pigs all 3.00
1 feather bed & bed stead & furniture 4.00
L Coverlet with other small things 2.00
Left in mon=y at his decease 10.00
A Caxt, ploughs, harrow, with several goods of lumber, as
cask. tubs, chains, exes, hoes, etc, valuable 5.00
Several kettles, vots & dishes in kitchen 2.00
His wearing apparel ' 5.00

2 Mary Perkins dau of John (1) b ab 1620; 4 1700; m 1637
Thomas Bradbury (1)

"Essex Institute" Vol. 19, p 259

Mary Perkine came, with others of the family, to Americs in 1631,
and in 1637 she was married at Ipswich to Thomas Bradbury, snd removed
with him to Salisbury. He died at Salisbury, Mar. 16, 1695. Thomas
Bradbury was a representative in 1651 and after; he was recorder of
Morfolk Co.; htown clerk of Salisbury, and was captain of a miliitary
company. His veried acquirements caused him to be elected to 21l
meny »laces of honor and trust. He was a man of no mean talents;
somz c¢f the records of Salisbury are in his beautiful hand-writing.

Viary (Parkins) Bradbury was one of those unfortunate people who,
in the dexk days of witchcraft delusion, was among the accussd. Sh»
way also convicted, but by the efforts of her friends her exscution
was a2layed, the horrid delusion passed away, and she was discnarxged
The parers conneczted with her trial, as well as those of the others,
vho were, some of them, more unfortunate, have been preserved, ana are
te be szen on the files in the Clerk of Courts Office in Salean Mass.

ler defence in answer to the accusations of her persecuinrs. tne
testimouy of ner husband with that of Rev. James Allin and dJohn Piks,
ber winisters, and the united testimonial of over one hundred <f her
nelgi.bcrs end towns-peonle were all of no avail, These paners show
her 0 have been a most estimable, pious and good woman. anid should
be mecorded co her praise. We copy them from the original;

“Thc enswer of NMary Bradbury to the charge of witcheraft ox
familiarity w'th the Devil., ----I do plead not guilty.--- I am wholly
lonccent of such wickedness through the goodness of God that hath
kept wme hithervo. I am the servant of Jesus Christ and have given
myself up to him as my only Lord and Saviour; and to the diligent
attendance upon him in all holy ordinances, in utter contempt and
defiance of the devil & all his works as horrid and detestable; and
havs cndesvored accordingly to frame my life & conversation according
%0 the rules of his holy word, and in that faith and practice resolve,
by the help and assistance of God, to continue to my life's end. For
the truth of what I say as %o matter of practice, I humbly relfer my~

1f *to my brethren and neighbors that know me, and to the searcher
cf all aearts for the truth & uprightness of my hearys therein, human
¥railtiey & unavoidable infirmities excepted, of which I hitterly
complain every day. Maxry Bradoury"
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"July 28, 1692~-Concerning my beloved wife, Mary Bradbuavy, this
is what I have to sey: We have been married fifty-iive yesrs, and she
hata been a loving and faithivl wife %o me. TUnbo tais day ehe hath
been wonderfully laborious, diligent and industrious. in her gplace
and employment about the bringing up of our family (which hath been
eleven children of our own and four grandzaildrer) sae was ooth pru-
dent and provident, of a cheerful spirit, iLiberal and charitable. She
being now very aged and grieved under her afflinction, may not be able
to speak much for herself, not being so free of speech as scue others
may be. I hope her life end conversation have been such among her
neighbours as gives a vetter and more real testimony of her than can
be expressed by words. Tho. Bradbury"

"Being desired to give my testimony concerning the life and
conversation of Mrs. Fradbury of Salisbury awong us which is as
followecsh, vim: I have lived nine years at Salisbury in the work of
the minisiry and ncw four years -in the office of a pastour; to my
best notice and observation of lMrs. Bradbury she hath lived according
to the goespel among us, was a conctant attender upon the ministry of
ye word: and all the oxdinances of the gospel, full of wovks of chawr-
ity and mercy to the sick and poor, neither» have I seen or heard any-
_ thing of her unbecoming the profession of the gospel. James Ailin

"Having lived meny years in Salisbury and bzen much ccnversant
there, according to my best observation and nctice of Mrs. Bradovury
must needs aftfirme to what is above written, and give my na*h to it
if called thereto. Joln Pike"

*July 22, 1692 . —
Comcerning Mrs. Bradburies life and convexrsaiiaon We the sub-
scribers do testifie that it was such as bacometh y© gospeal. shee was

a lover of y® ministry in all appearance and g diligsu®t attender
upon Gods holy ordinances being of a curteous and peacable dispusi-
tion and caring, neither did ary of us (some of whor have lived in
ye town wiath her fifty vears) ever hesave ov know ihai wshe ever had
any difference or Talling oute wih hew neighors, man, wcasn or
child--but was alwayes readie and willing to doe for ihem wht leye
in her power night and dey, though wbA hazerd to her heal’h or other
danger.-- more mighs be spoken in her comendation but this for the
prsent,!

The ebove was signed by 117 men and women of Salisbury

Marv (Puorkins) bradburydied in Amesbury in 1700 at the ags of
eighty years.

*Medfcrd Hist. Register™ Vol 8-9 p 51

I case L Mery Ferkins Bradbury-- “In the revulsion that
followed the distressing persecution of the victims cherged with
being ia league with the Devil, petitions were made to tne General
Coury for indemnity for loss of estate and position in socieiy and
justice in some measure was done the Pfamilies of the sufferers. The
heirs of Mary Bradbury were awarded 20 pounds.

References:
“Boston and Eastern Massachusetts® Cutter -
"Genenliogy and Family History of the State of W.H."* Stearns
. "02.4 Papilies of Salisbury and Amesbury®  Hoyt
UNEFGZR Voli. 101. p 65
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1 Rev, John Vheelwrigats b sb 1592/4 Lincolashirs fng.: 4 15 Nov. 1679
Salistwry, Mase, ‘
(ls6' Marie Steres, 8 Nov. L6217 dau Reve. Thomas Storre
: oi Bilegby Bag.: d. in BEage., bur. 18 May 1629
(2nd) Mary Hu'chkinson, b 22 Dec., 1605; dau of Edward, an
: Susanneh Hutchinson of Alford, Baglend . " '

. John Wheelwright was a son of Robert of Saleby, a weélleto~do

. “Lincolnshire yeomart and his wife Katherire., He.was.edy=
** ogted vat Sidney College, Cambridge; BA 1614/5, MA 1618 gnd was
‘-ovicer at Bilsby, Lincolnshire 1623=163%%.when .he was replaced,

though. apparently not resigning., He was a contexporary of

“% -Oki¥er Cromwell;: Cotton NMather writing on ¢ollege athletics
«ri.sald "When Wheelwright was a young. spark ‘at the University, he
% was noted for more than.en ordinary stroke at wrestling™; and
that "om oneé occasion when Cromwell had been describing Wheel~
wright 4o .gentlemen about him, he added that he remembered-the

time “when he had been more afraid of meeting him at féotball

' than of meeting an army -since-in the field." o
-~ VWheelwright was well received.ir Boston, 26 May 1636 and
.. was styled "a gentleman of learming, piety, and zeal". His
- zedl Yrought him into prominent notice and sodn causéd tur-’
~balent .outbreasks, now a matter of. well known history. As
-rpastor of Wollaston church. (Breintree) his sympathy with views
" 7ot hisirelative, Anne Marbury Hutchinson, led to his banishiment
© fromiMagsachusetts. He purchased.land from Indians in 1638’
Zsaand started .the séttlement: of ;Exeter but in 1642 Exeter was de-
clared within the limits of Massachusetts. Still under sentence
of benishment he removed with part of his church to Wells,
Maine, of which he was one of the original proprietors.
— . .« - _-His. sentence wag revoked in 1644 and he returned to Hassa-
chusetts. A Hé became’ the!3rd minigter of Hampton, N.H., and
remained. there from 1647, to* 1658 when he was called to England
for.2years..' In 1660.he returnéd to America and from 9 Dec.
1lo52 wntil His'| demth ih 1679 he was the minister of Salisbury
... Cnurch,. His Will, 25 May 1679, mentions one son, one son-in-
law and sik grandchildren,
Chiléren of John, and Marxie (Storre) Wheelwright
"t "John by Eilsby, 6.0ctl, 1622, Did not come to America
‘ Wrote a .book -in vindication of his father
William bp 10 Feb. 1627; buried 19 May 1627 Bilsby, Eng.
Susannah bp 22 May 1628; m Edward Rishworth; He signed the
" W“Combination'™ of Exeter, Mass.

Children of John and Mary (Hutchinson) Wheelwright
Catherine bp 4 Nov. 1630; m (1) Robert Nanny, d Boston 1663
. - (2) Edward Naylor
Mary bp 19 May 16325 bur 28 July 1632 Bilsby Eng.
Elizsbeth bp 9 June 1633; m Geo, Farsons (Person, Pearson)
Samuel b 1635 (Sist§r's‘oldest son in will of Sam Hutchinson
o T T 1667) .
Mary “bp 25 June 1637; Boston; m Edward Lyde 14 Dec. 1660
(2) Rebececa . bt -=~; m (1) 4 Dec. 1660 Samuel Maverick Jr.
7 . d 3/10/1664
(2) r2-Mar.. 1671 Wm. (2) Bradbury
Hannah b--=; m John Anthony Checkley; Att. Gen. of Mass

s

— .he d. 1708
Sarah Pb---; m 1671 Richard: Crispe o
? Thomas of Wells, Me. 1650; frm, selectman and commissioner

(one source says Thomas was bp 5 Oct. 1624; another

says Marie Storre Wheelwright died after 3 children
perhaps discounting Wm. who died young?)




50
"History of Hempton" Dow

.. After the excitement occas*oned by the discussiors about
Antinomianism, and the conduct of the persons charged with having
embraced that doctrine, had subsided, and the peop.e were enabled
to examine calmly and dlspa351onat°¢y the whole subject, the measures
adopted by the govermment were generally thought to have been far
foo severe. Even dat the time of the excitement, Governor Winthrop,
although he favored the proceedings against Mr. Wheelwright, yet
‘said publicly, that "he did love that brother's person, and did
honor the gifts and graces of God in him". Rev. John Cotton of
Boston says "I do conceive and profess that our brother Wheelwright's
ddctrine is according to God, in the points controverted". Dr.
_.Cotton Mather spesks of him as “being a man that had the root of

. ‘the matter in him". Governor Hutchinson calls him "a zealous

- minister, a character both for learning and piety".

Mr. Wheelwright's fast day sermen, which occasioned his ban-
ishment, has been preservad. Hon. Jzmes Savage of Boston, having
read it made the following declaration’ concerning it. "I un~
hesltatingly say, ‘that it was ‘not such as can justify the Court
in their sentence for sedition and contempt nor prevent the present
age from regarding that ' prodeeding ‘as an example and a warning
of the usual tyranny of ecclesiastical factions". ITastly,. Judge
Smith of Exeter, after having carefully read.this sermon, declared
on the matier of sedition and contempt. VI have no hesitation in
saying ~the charge was wholly groundless. There was not the least
coloxr for it®. ’

References

Y #Where are many books available which contain information
.on Rev. John Wheelwright. Because of this, 1 have put
down only a bare resume of his life. The books vary--
genealoglcal historic¢al, novels, fact and fiction; most
novels based on life in esrly Massachusetts will say
sometihing about him, along with his sister-in-law, Anne
Marhury Hutchinson (entinomien controversy) and the

inthrop family. Of the following books, I have not

seen the last two~-they were listed in the “Genealogical
Dictionary of Me.- and N.H.“ by bees.

HEJG Register
Directory of the Ancestral Heads: of N.E. Families

Boswon ani Bastern Massachusetts Cutter
Gen. end Pamily Hist. of the State of Maine Little
His3ory of Hampton ™ , Dow
Genla’oglcal Dictionary of -Me. and N H. Noyes
Porisreits of the Founders - - Bolton

(This beok contains a picture of Wheelwrlght)
Saints and Sectaries Battis

{(This bock conlains a lengthy section on Wheelwrlght
fvom his vou"'h in England to ‘his life in Mass.)

Colorial Soclety of Mass. Vol 1 P 271-303
S Mnife of John Wheelwright® ‘Heard 1930
ni 1onavy of Americen Biography Vol.: 20 ...
witn weferences for annals of his 1life beginning in
Llﬁcolnsh~re about 1594/4 and ending in Sa¢1sbufy 1679
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The grandfether of Ldward Hitchinscn has nodl been.didentified as he
lived before +he vperind of pariuhk registers and left nc will that can
e discovered. However, he was nrobably ¢f the city of Lincoln, Eng.
and had 4 sons .and ene daughter, jidentified by. their wills.

Christophen, clergyman; .4 ab June 1556

William, Alderman, sherlff and Mayor of ILincoln; will proved

6 Mar, 1556/7
;- dohn . father of- Ldward. .
- ATice m Jdemes Remlngton, will prove& 27 Mar., 1567
Thomas - .-

John Hutchinson was b ab 1515. He was apnrentlced 23 Sept. 1529 to

v Edward A-~kinson of Llncoln, glover, for 7 years. In Sept. 1547
he became shexriff of Lincoln, -.On-11 Apr. 1556 he was elected Alderman
and the following Sept. was elevated to the Mayoraslty. On 21 Oct. 1558
he was -elected Justice of the -Peace for an unexpired term and was re-
elected 2 Oct. 1561. In Sept. 1564 he was again elected Mayoxr and held

.that office t3il hig death 24 May 1565. He was buried in the church of

St, Mary le Wigford. To each. of his sons-he left lands and houses.,

. dJohi. Hutchinson married twice. As indicated by his will his 1s%
wife was Margaret Brown by whom he had 4 sons and 2 daughters: William,
Thomas, dJohn, Arthur, Jans and Alice. His second wife was Aunne Clint,
probably a WldOW. Presumably she.was .the mother of Edward and Mary,
thﬂ John Hutchiason, in his will, partlcularly commended to the kind-

ess of his wife. BEarlier children were committed to the guardianship
of others. Mary m 13 Sept 1478 George Freestoii.

Bdward Hutchinson was b ab 1564 and apprenticed first to his step
b*oxhe“»3n~law Edmund Knight, Alderman and mercer, who was

married {2 Jane Hulchinson. Edward was later apprenticed to Christopher

Dobson, mercer He is mentioned in the will of his brother Wiiliam,
1532/3, and DTOveé that of his mother in 1586.

AbgaJ@n 1y he moved from Tincoln to Alford immediately after com-
plesing ris apprenticeship. No# record of a will has teen found, but
foom his business and the character of the matches made by his childrern
he must have been a man of considerable position and estave. Nothing
is yet known about the parentage of his wife Susan. She was still
living in 1644, when her son John bequeatihed her a small legacy.

Edward was buried at Alford: on,the 14th of February 1631/2

##iBarlier lines of the Hutchinson family in Engiand are known but
the connection with this branch has not been established so far
as I know now.



52 ‘ Hutchinson, cont.

1 Sussanah Hutchinson; b Eng.; widow of Edward Hutchinsor who was
- - buried in Alford Co. Iincoln, 14 Teb. 1631;
She d after 1644 in Wells, M@inekl' o

Sussanah Hutchinson, leaving mogt of her children behind
came to Boston with John (1) Wheelwright, thence to
Bxeter and to Wells, arriving 26 May 1636. Adm to Pirst
Church 12 June 163%6. Dismissed to Exeter 3 Mar. 1638/9.
°  Grandmother of Edward Rishworth, Thomes ahd Samuel
Wheelwright, and Bridget (Huitchinson) Sanford Phillips of
Biddeford, for whose 2 husbands were twc Maine towns - -
named. a ‘ L.

Grandmother of Cpt. Edward, Col, Eiisha, and Councilor
Fliakim Hutchinson of Boston; she was back of much NMaine
history.. Of her 1l children five came to America; William,
Samuel and Sussanah- to Exeter. and Mary to Wells. From
Exeter Samuel went to R.I. The Storrss vanished. Edward
went to R.I. 'and back to Iondon, o :

Children of Edward and Sussanah Hutchineon .
William b 14 Aug. 1586; m 9 Aug. 1612 inne Marbury
Theophilus bp 8 Sept. 1588; 4 early
Samuel bp 1 Nov. 1580: In Portsmcuth. R.I. 1639-1655;
d nnm. 1667 Boston, Mass

Hestexr bp 22 July 1593; 4 9 Dec. 1569; m {1) Thomas
Rishworth (Rev.) 7 Oct. 15133 m (2) Thomas
Harneis

John b 18 May 1595; 4 20 June 1644; m Bridgst Bury
5 J¢ct. 1626
Richard b 3 Juns 1597/8; d 1670; wealthy merchant with
egtates in England
Susanna b 25 Nov. 1539; bur, Alford Eng. 5 Aug. 1601
Susanna b 9 Aug. 16015 m 21 Nov. 1623 Augustinz Silorre
(Wrother of Wheelwright's first wife?)
Anne b 12 June 1603; m 25 Jan. 1631 Ralph Levet,
" uncle of Thomas (1) ILeaviti :
(2 Mary b 22 Dec. 1605; m Rev._John Wheelwright
Edward b 20 Dec. 1607; to N.E. i633; returned to England

2 Mary Hutchinson b 22 Dec., 1605; m Rev. John Wheelwright
ca 1629/3%30; died before husband

Heferences:
NEEGR Vol. 19; Vol. 20, p 355
NEW York Gen. and Biographical Record Vol. 45
Saints and Sectaries Battis 1952
Gen. Dictionary of Maine and N.H, Noyes
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1 Johr Pike b---Eng.; 4 25 May 15543 Will 24 Moy & 3 Oct, 1654
m 17 Jan. 1612/3 at White Parish Wiltshire, Eng.
Dorothy Day of DLandford, Eng. :

John Pike cammre from Landford, Eng. in the ship "James"+o
Newbury in 1635, but was perhaps first at Ipswich. He
was of Salisbury when he died. The "History of Haverhill"
lists John Pike as acting as attorney in the courts in 1637.
"NEHGR" Vol. 66, p 261: Parish Reg. of Whiteparish, Wiltshire
1559-1640
- The John’'Pike, who m Dorothy Day of ILandford at Whiteparish
17 Jan. 1612/3 and had a son John bapt. there 8 Nov. 1613
was certainly the emigrant of that name who came to N.E. in
1635 and settled at Newbury, kass. His other children were
bpt. prob. at Lendford where the registers before 1671 are
lost. The Pike wills in the P.C.C. and in the Sarum courts
fail to show his parentage; perhaps he was from the adjoining
Co. of Hants, for there are wills at Winchester.

"Directory of the Ancestral Heads of N.E. Pamilies"
FPike: English.ancestor---Sip Richard Pike

Children of John and Dorothy (Day) Pike
John b 1613%; m (1) Mary Moody
(2) Elizabeth PFitzRandolph, 30 June 1685
("Early History of Perth Amboy" Wm. A. Whitehead 1856
John (2) Pike, son of John (1) Pike died Jan. 1688/9.
liajor Zebulon Pike of Rev. War and his son Gen. Zeoulen
lontgoiery Pike were of this. family.)
(2) Robert b ab 1615/6 m (1)_Sarah Senders, 3 Apr. 1641
(2) Lartha loyce Goldwyer, 30 Oct. 1684
Dorothy b ---; m Daniel Henrick (Kendrick)
Israel b =-=; meél) Henry True; (2) Joseph Fletcher, 18 June
' 1660 .
Ann b~-~3; had children. in 1654
Sarah d Nov. 1659 T

2 Robert Pike, son of John (1) b ab 1615; 4 12 Tec. 1706
. kajor and kr. of Salisb
1st -Sarah Saunders, 3 Apr. 1641; 4 1 Nov. 1679

2nd Martha Moyce Goldwyer 30 Oct. 1684; d 26 Feb. 1712/3

"Salisbury and Amesbury" Hoyt
. Robert Pike received land in the first division of Salisbury:
1640,41,42,54,etc. From the deposition of "Smith and Presse" it
appears that he -visited England in 1650 or 1651. His name heads
the list of M"commoners'" aftér the minister in 1650. He paid the
Jlargest tax in 1652, signed the petition of 1658. Major Robert
and Mrs. Pike (Martha) were first on the list of members of Sali:z.
«bury Church in 1687 and he was. the most prominent citizen during
the last .1/2 of the 17th century. Wife Mertha signed the Bradbury
. petition in 1692. . .

i Very decided in his opinions which were liberal in advance of
his time, he had difficul‘tiés with other members of the Salisbury™
Church as early as 1675 and as late a@s 1700. He has been called

. the "moral and fearless hero of New England", "the first and
strongest representative of the right of petition", the "power wheo
squelched the witchceraft delusion" etec. Full record of his civil
and military .1ife may .be found in "The New Puritan" bv James S.
Pike, 1879. ) :
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Pike. cont..

"Portraits o the Founders“ Cras, ¥norles Bol tom 1919
Vol. II vpage (44

A picture of Robe”+'P1ke, Ldwonate
Reproduced from a pho*o rapk by Nr. Baldwin Cnolidge, Boston,
of the original palnuvng in tnv Massachusetts Historical
Society. The wig is white, the eyes are brown, the complexion
florid, the clothes are tan.
Page 44%: Whittier said Robert Pike was "by all odds the most
remarkable personage of the place and time-~-one of the wisest
and worthiest of the early'settlers of that regwon" )

In 1653 Robert Pike denounced the law passed by the General

Court designed to.restrain Peasley and Macy of - Amesburv from preach-
ing in the absence of a minister.. He declared "that those members
who had voted tcr it had violated their oaths as Ireemen; that their
act was against the.liberty of the couniry hoth:eivil and ecclesiasti-
-cal and that he .shood ready to make his daeclaration grod", TFor this
he was tried, convicted., fined, .and disfranchised by the General Courf
The punishmen+ jnflicted on I, Pike caused petitions to be gsigned by
many persons in itnsz surrounding towns asklng that the sentence “be re-~
voked. This ‘offended the. Court still more and the signers were called
upon to give 'a reason of their unjust request". On Oct. 1654 out of
the wmolp numoer oY signers, about 1/5 or 15 persons only, were re-
ported “*who have 1ot given satisfaction" (see.John (1) Emery) and
therefors insisted upcn the right of petition. Robexrt Pike’s fine

was p2id and 1o Ott. 1657 his disfranchisement was remcved. In 1658
he was zagaln 2lectved to the General Court,

In the winver of 1575/6 the Major and Rev. John Wheelwright, the

pastor at Szlisbury fell out; the formevw's ghsence from charch and
“eonstent pleading -the wicked cause cf delinquents® seeming to under-
mins ministerial authority, Wheelwright excommunrcdted Pike, and the
lejor asked ihe Geneval Court to remove Wheelwright from office.
Mnally aciing on a committee report, the General Court persuaded
the church to receive Major Pike agaln, and peace reigned.

In 1692 he appeared in the third great cohtroversy of his life,

in opposition to the witchcraft delusion. At the peril of his owm
life, Le defended persons accused of witchecrarlt xrom The New
Puritan®; ’

WThis herdic act ™ it ‘has been said, ‘seem° to have becn but one
of several similar efforts by him to-convince.those Jurxsts of
the injustice of “their coursc. It stands out against the deep
b.ackness of ihose proceedings like a pillar of light upon a

a:cleqm _midnight sky. Confronting these judges stood this

wuwrdy ond man, his head whitened with the frosts of seventy~six

w1ntera, possessi ng a deeply religious character, and with con-
victions mouvided into fixed and rigid forms by the views and
practices of a lifetime. He was hampered by his belieT in the
power of the devil and his 1mps, living in an invisible world
close to our own, to vex and ruin the bodies as well as the souls
of men; accepting in full faith, like nearly all his contemporarics
the most literal interpretation of those passages of Scripture

upposed to bear upon the subject. The judges might have told
him, as they told Philip English, the richest and most active
merchant of Salem, when he tried- to persuade them to acquit his
wife, that this showed he was a witch himself, and have arrested
him on the charge, as English was arrested. But all such con- —
siderations, though prevailing with others, were discarded by
him, 'He laid before the court his argument against the convict-
ions, made not from the stand-point of cur times, which would be
a. comparatively easy task, but from that of the judges and prose:
cutors themselves. FHe dbmonquraueﬂ thas there was no legal way wof
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convieiing a witeh, aven according to the laws and beliefs of
those times .

Instead of withdrawirg to Meine with Wbeelwrlght, or to Rhode Island
. with Roger Williams. or béwing to oisOva as Cotvon and Higgin-
. 'soy- did, Puke held his grovnd and fought iike 2 man. He deserves a

large place 1in New England history, but his biograephy is unknown to

the makers of encyclopedias,

In.Anx*l 1714, Rev. John (3) Pike, .eldest son of Robert (2), stated
in his "Journal®: "My aged and Dear father llajor Robers Pike,
deceased, in the 91 or 92 year of his age, after lcng weakness and
Tllness; but no great siclmess; and he was Interred umon y2 19th of
y€ saune. Ke was always very temperate in Ref; to neats and Grinks
and Generally very healthy". kev. John (3) Pike of Dover was <dmini-
strator of the estate of Robert Pike 21 May 1707. At his death. the
,?$?2n1strat¢on of the estaue went to his son Robert (4) of Portsmoutr

"History of, Newfield, NJHLY .1638-1911' N.F, Cafter 1912

Robert (2) Pike

Freeman 17 May 1637

With 65 others, left Newbury and founded Salisbury 1639

Barly member of Salisbury Church

Magistrate to end small causes 1644

Representative to General Court 1648-49, 1663, and 1670~82

Lt. of train-band 1647, afterward Capt. and Major

Assistant 1650 and 1682-1692;.member of Council til 1696

Justice of Peace many vesrs

Commissioner to estimate line between Exeter and Hampton 1651

Fined and disfranchized for defaming General Court in de-
claring “the law restraining unfit persons from constant
nreaching was against the liberty of the country both
civil and ecclesiastical™ Sept, 7, 1653

Commissioned to take acknowledgement of deeds etc. 1665

Sgt. Maj. over militia companies of the County of Norfolk and
Pascataqua May 31, 1670

Committee on controversy bstween Exeter and Dover 25 Mar 1672

‘Plaintiff against Edward Gove in an action of trespass in
cutting wood near Hampton line 1673

Excommunicdated for "litigiously" 1mpeach1ng his pastor Rev.
John Wheelvr;ght 1675=-77

Complained of profaning the Sabbath by traveling 1680

His trooy ¢f horses divided by cuttlng off Hampton and Exeter
from Norfo]k Co, 1680

Counsellor 15689 ’

Commender-in -Chief militia east of the Merrimack 1696

Wrote letter.to. Jonathon Corwin stating reasons why "spectral
evidence™ was not reliable in the trials for witchcraft
Aug. 9, 1692
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Children of Robert (2) and Sarzh {(Sanders) Pike

(3) Sarah b 24 Peb. 1642; m (1) Wymond Bradbury 7 May 1661 .
4 (2, John Stockman ,
Mary b 22 Feb. 1643/4; d@ 3 Apr. 1647
Dorothy b 11 Nov. 1645; m (1) Joshua Purce 7 May 1668

(2) John Light 11 Sept 1674
Mary b 5 Aug. 1647; m (1) Jededizh Andros
"~ (2) John Allen, Aug. 1674
Elizabeth ‘b 24 June'1650; m 20 Aug. 1672 Wm. Caxrr
John b 13 May 1653; m 5 May 1681 Sarsh Moody
Robert b 26 June 1655, m Mafy Follansbee
 Moses b 15 Mar..1657/8; m Susanna Worcester

(3) Sarah : Pike b 24 Feb. 1642, -Salisbury: d € hav 1718 :

T (1, Wymcnd Bradbury, 7 May 1661, son of Thomnas (1)
Bradburx. He was a recorder.in old Noviclk-Co. and
died 7 Apr. 1669 on the Island of Neviz, in the West
Indles (stated on a record made by his father)
Children of Wymond and Sareh (Pike) Bradbury - -

Sarah b 26 Peb. 1662; m Abei Merrill 1686 . .
Ann b 21 Nov. 1666
Wymond b 13 May 1669

(2) John Stockman, m 10 Mdy 1671, Salisbury

References: ’
1014 Pemilies of Salisbury and Amesbury®  Hoyt
"History of Haverhill"
“Genealogical Dictionary of Maine and N.H." Noyes
"portraits of the Founders"  Bolton
"History of Newfield, N.H." Carter
"NEITGR“
“"Barly History of Perth Amboy"  Whitehead

1 MNr. John Stockman of Salisbury, b ab 1653, Signed Oath Alleg.
1677, signed petition of 1680. He d 10 Dec. 1686.
Estate admin. 8 Apr. 1687, divided 1694.

Children of John and Sarsh (Pike Bradbury) Stockman
Joseph b 29 Feb, 1671/2; m Hannah biorrell 14 ‘Jan. 1701
William b 2 Nov. 1675; living 1694
Dorothy b 20 Apr. 1678; d 19 liar. 1695/6
(4) Elizabeth be==; m 6 July 1698 Jacob (3" Bradbuzy
Jomm b. 5 Feb. 168l; m Joanna Cotton.
Robert - b 8 Aug. 1683; living 1694
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iauaderss  bp 16l5, Downton, Wiltshire, Frigland
a 1 Nov, 31679
m 3 Avpr. 1641L

Robert {2) Pike, son of Joau (1) Pike - RN

a "
v am

Sarah Rauuupvb, wJ‘a h«r orobaer John anu her.uncis John

Coile, cawe bto bhmevica froem Englend ia the ship "Confidence".
Sarah acd John Soundexs were cnrldren of John Saunders of
JDownton, Wiltshire, England, who .married 4 Fsb. 1610, Alice
Gole. On 21 Oct, 1634 an Alice Sauwders m Thomas Eestanan.)
Children of Jonn end Alice (Cole) Saunders - . -

John bp Mer., 1613 . . )

Elizabeth op 1614 _ te

Sarah . Dbp 1615 e . . .

Jose ph bp 1617. S

. Meses ™ |, bp 1622 .-

-

John Saundsrs (bp 1613), yeoman, married about 1538 Hester

Ralfe, and was one of the twelve original granteecs of
Salisvury, Mass. September, 1638; he drew land ia the first
division. IHe removed to Newbury in 1642 and after 1655
returned to Weeks, parish of Downton, Wiltshire, England: he
eppointed his kinsman, Richard Dole (%) of Lewburv, attornev,
to look after his Massachusettb property. -

Tlie reiathashln of %arah ‘Saunders Pike to John Cole seems
confirmed bv a 1703 deed in which Major Robert Pike spoke
of "umy uncle John Cole, of allsbury dec'd",

Sancers or Satinders is an anclent English surname found in -all parts
of the Tmited Kingdom. There were g number of Saunders pioneers
amorg the early settlers in Essex County, Massachusetts. The
similarity of names, the location °of their homes and many other
facts indicavce that they were related.

A discussion of the earlier Saunders and Sanders families
of Ireland ané Bagland slong with their cobats-of-arns may be found
in "Boston and Eastern Massachusetts" by Cutter, p 322,

References:
"Salisbury and Amesbury"  Hoyt
"Boston and dastern Massachuoett"" Cutter
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Clough ' —
Chart 3 :

1 John Clough; b ab 1613, England
d 26 July 1691, Salisbury, Mass.
(1) Jane ~---, 4 16 Jan. 1680, Salisbury
(2) ¥Martha Cilley (Sibley) 15 Jan. 1686

John Clough (sometimes spelled Cluff and Cluffe) was b about 1613

and came to this country from Tondon, England in the ship
"Elizabeth" April 1635, He settled in the coicny of Salisbury and
received land in the first division axnd also in 1640, He became a
“commoner® and took the oath of Fidelity in 1650; was on the tax list
of 1650 and other early lists. He 2ppears to heve been a man of
considerable importance in the affairs of the town during his life.
Numerous trensfers ol property to and from aim are recorded in the
old Norfolk Co. records., His second wife, #artha survived him and
was living in 1692. His occupation was house carpenter.

The will of John Clough Sr. was datea 3 July 1691 and mentions
now wife Martha; Benone, eldest son of his zldest son John Clough;
gson Samuel Clough; son-in~law Daniel ¥errill o¢f Newbury; son Thomas
Clough; daughters Elizabeth Horne and Sarah Merrill, wife of said
Deniel; John, Amos, and Elizabeth, ch of his daughter Martha, wife %o
Cornelius Page formerly of Haverhill, now dec'd; grandsons Samuel
and Ebeneger, sons of his son Samuel Clough. Appoints his wife sole
§§g§. Witnesses Henry Blyall Jr. and John Tucker. Probated 3 Sept. —
LOQS5La

Children of John and Jane Clough
Elizabeth 16 Dec. 1642 m Wm. Horne, living 1691

Maxy 30 July 1644, not in will 1691

(2) Sarah 28 June 1646 m 14 May 1667 Daniel Merrill
John 9 Mar. 1648/9 m 13 Nov. 1674 Mercy Page
Thomas 29 May 1651 m (1) 10 Mar. 1680 Hannah Gile

(2) 1687 Ruth Connor
Martha 22 Mar. 1654 ’m 13 Nov. 1674 Cornelius Page
Samuel 20 Feb., 1656/7 m 3 Aug. 1679 Eliz. Brown
‘References:
"Kostoa and Baster Massachusetts" Cutter

"01ld Pamilies of Salisbury and Amesbury"  Hoyt
"Essex Institute® Vol. 5, p 143
"History of Canterbury, N.H. 1727-1912" ZIyford
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Chart 3

1 Nathaniel Merrill; b 1610 in England

d 16 Mar, 1655 Newbury, Mass.
m in ¥Frgland ,
Susannah Wellerton (Wilterton, Williston, d 5 Jan 1672/3

=

mw (2) ‘===~ Jordan

"Boston and Eastern Massachusetts" Cutter
The first of this name, which was Merle originally, and signifies

"blackbird", was ‘a native, or at least & resident of France,
and took his name from the figure of a blackbird displayed upon
the sign at his door. The earliest generations of the family in
France used a seal on which are displayed three blackbirds. In
the persecutions following the revocation of the Edict of Nantes,
a Merle, being a Protestant, fled to England to save his life, and
cast his lot with the Puritans. Some of the family still remain
in France and still are Huguenots, the most distinguished member
of recent years being Merle D'Aubigne, the historian. As the
Huguenots were of the best people of France, so their descendants
in Bngland and America have been numbered with the most incustrious
the most thrifty, the most moral and the most law abiding of those
countries. '

. The New England Merrills of the branch considered here comes
of 'an” 0ld English family of that name whose ancestry runs to the
time of the Norman conquest. The Merrill arms as used from the
third generation-of the family 'in this country may be thus de-
scribed: "Or, a barrulet between three peacocks' heads erased
proper." Crest:. "a peacock's head erased proper".

Natheniel Merril]l and his brother John emigrated from England to

Massacusetts, landing at Ipswich about 1633. In 1635 they
removed to Newbury at the. first setitlement of the town. Nathaniel
settled on land at the junction of the Parker and Plum Rivers. In
his will, dated March 8, 1655, he gives his farm to his eldest son
upon vayvment by him of five pounds o -each of his. brothers, and
furnishing a residence Ior the testator’s wife and daughter.
Brother John Merriil died July 14, 1682, leaving one child, a
dzughter Hanhslly who married Stéphen Swett. :

Children of Nathaniel and Susannah (Wellerton) Merrill
Jonn (Deacon) ca 1632; m Sarah Baton; 4 8 July 1712
Abraham ca 1636; m (1) 18 Jan 1660 Abigail Webster
(2) 2" Sept 1713 Sarah bond
Natheniel ca 1638; m 15 .0ct. 1663 Joanna Ninny (Nianan)
Susanna b 16403 m 15 Oct. 1663 John Burbank
2) Daniel b 20 Aug. 1642; m (1) 14 May 1667_Sarsh Clough
(2) 29 iay 1708 wid. Sarah Morrill Rowell Page
Abel b 20 Feb, 1643/4; m-10 Feb. 1670/1L Priscilla Chase
: . (2) 1686 Sarah Bradbury, dau of Wymond and
‘ Sarah (Pike) Brad :
Thomas b 1645; not mentioned in father's will
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2 Daniel Merrill (Nathaniel (1)

b 20 fug, 1642; 4 27 Jan. 1777
m (1) 14 Mey 1667 -
Sarsh. Clough, dan of John, b 28 June ;646 Salis. Mass.
4 18 liér. 1705/6
(2) Sarah Morrill,. deu. of Abraham Morrill of
Salisbury. n "29 May 17065 She was b 14 Oct. 1650
end had m (1) 5 Jan. 1670 Phi ilip Powell and (2)
31 July 1695. One31phorus Page. ,

' Sergeant Daniel Merrill took the Oath of: ?1ée11t¥ ‘and Alleg.
-1668 -end- 1678; . was made Freeman 1682/3; Adm..t> Ne
- Church 168l., He was of Newbury in 1692 and laisr of Salis-

Wbury
bury. His will. was- dated. 10 May 1717 and probated 12 July

. 1717. Wife Sarah =znd "cousin® Thomas Merrill mentloned,

gon Daniel received homestead in- Newbury.

“Children of Deniel” and Sarah (Olougﬁ) Merrill -

Danisl b 15 Mer. 16713 m Esther Ghase . © '
John b 7 Oct. 1674 (Nb)3 m 23 Sept.1702 Ma“y Allin

Sarah b 15 Oct. 1677 (Wb); m 12 Nay 1€96 Wm. Morse
“Ruth b 7 Feb..1680/1; m.{Int) 22:Apr. 1701
Onesiphorus Page (Salis.) . .
(3)NMcgss b 3 Sept 1683.(Nb); m Mary. —=--

Mercha b 3 Sept. 1683 (twin)j; m l6. June 1708 John True.
“Stapien b 16-Sept,1688; m (1) 23 Nov. 1706 Dorothy Straw
X (2) 20 July 1710 Mary Capr ‘

\

L.

3  Moses Merrill (Dan.el (2), Nathaniel (1) b 3 Sept. 1683

d 17 den. 17563
ey w==iey b =3 d 1760, (NEHGR "Vol. 45, p 304)

Teazcon ioses Merrill was admitted to f3l communion in

" Salisbury Church, along with wife Mary, on 2% May 1710
nyitel Statistice of Salisbury,- Mass." :

Births to Moses and Mery Merrill

Apphia . 25 Dec. 1704
(4) Sarah . . 7 April 1706 ( m Thomas (4) Bradbury)
Moses 28 Dec., 1707
Mary - 25 O2'%. 1709
Samuel 20 July 1711
Betty - 18 Nov. 1715
Jacob . 25 Sept 1719
Benjamin i6 Peb. 1720/1
Dan‘ell .27 Apr. 1723

4  Sarzh MPrrmlW (Mbses (3), Daniel (2), Nathaniel (1)

T b T April 17063 m 16 Apr. 1724
Thomas 4) Braabury. (Jacob (3), Wt (2), Thomas (1)
b 16 Aug. 1699, a 1775 - -

References:
“Rogton and Eastern Messachusetts" Cutter
wCld Pemilies of Salisbury and Amesbury " Hoyt
"Your Family Tree" David Starr Kimball

MEAGR




French 61
) Chart 5

1 Edward FPrench b ca 1590 or 1598 England d 28 Dec. 16"4 Mass.
Anne Goodale; b and m Ergland; d ¢ Mar. 1683 Salisbury,
= il5s5. brob. sister OF Richerd Goodale, Who,- in a
document, called Edward Freneh his “Bro."

!

\—...»-‘" -

"Boston and Eastern Masg.”  Cutter 1908

The French family claims its origin from Rollo,. Duke.qf
Normandy, who was himself a’ Norseman viking, but who. settled
in France and in A.D, 910 formally adopted the Christian
religion and was" baptized,. taking the name of Robert; Count =
of Paris, who was his godfather. He had already congquéered:.
the province of Normandy which was now ceded to him in due tom
twbirs Charles the Simple of: Trénce, King, who: also gave him: 1n it
marrwage, his daughter Gisela,"A.D. 12. .

' . The surname Frenth is derived from the French word Grene--
the ash tree-- or by other derivation--an ashen spear. Anti-
quariens have brought.te light, about 40.variations.of. the name,.
including Frene, Freym, Freyhe, de la Fréyne. de la Fresnaj.

. -Brainch, Ff re s, and. French,. . The ancient motto of . the, family

o was “malo mer quzn. foedareM-~"denth rathér than dishoror", 'Of

o the arms it is said’ thatﬂef the 17 families of Prench mentioned

" in Burke are quite & Variéty of” armorigl bearings, the dolphln
~and the fleur-de-lig, being the, most conspicuous. -

, From Harlovam, third: ﬁp;p T Ro110,.8éscended Sir Max1m111an
ae F*enﬁnrwhose son Sir mbgo‘les (Theophilus, Prench (or Freyn)
went with William the Conqquor,to Engiand and fought at the
Jattle of. Hastings. T@us Was. ﬁh first branch of the. French:

. femily planted in Engibnd‘andf%ram thai, descent of Rolld is

e . Sprung e partlcular}famlly here“cpnsidered.

#W#A more definitedescent’from Rolls” fiay ‘be- found in the Bradbury
famllje Ro¢loxwas an ances%or of Wllllam the Conqueror.

NN

Edwa“d “rrnch, w1th w1fe Anne and 2~br Mmore sons, came to Ipswich
L E 1636 and received land in. the first division of Salisbury
s in 1637 where he also bought land®in 1642. He was a tailor by
trade ‘anid provably possesséd means when:-he left England. By 1652
he haé the 3rd greatest estate of anyone in Salisbury. He was a
a selectmen in 1646, 1647, and 1648 and his name appears on most
of the early tcwn l*sts as “commoner", "“taxpayer", etc.

His will, made 10 Apr. 1673 and proved 2 years and 3 days
later, speaks of his great age and names his wife Anne; son Josept
and ch., Joseph, Simon, Edwerd, Ann; son John and ch. John, Mary,
Hannah Sarah, son %amuel and chs Samuel, dau. Hannah Phllbrlck.

- ’-4

Children of Edward and Anne (Goodale)French
Joseph d 6 June 1710; m (1).Sysanna
John b bef, 1633; d 4 May 17063 m 23 Mar. 1659 Mary Noyes
(2) Samuel 4 26 July 1692; m (1).Abigeil Brown; (2) Esther ---
Hannah m (1) John White 25 Nov: 1662
(2) Thomas Philbrook-2 Sept. 1669




62 Prench con*.

"Lineage Book of ths National Sceciety of Daughters ani Foanders and
Patriots of America® VQl. 5, pr 218 . ,

Saeituel French - Coeevess28 July 1692; m 2- Jﬂﬂ" 1664
Abigeil BRowne . . ‘(lst wi£e~-23 Feb, 1643/4~=1) Jan. 1679/80
Edward French (13 Apr. 1598--28 Dec. 1674
Anne Goodale o N SHIAN Suiaaidle e s .-:«9, Maruléﬂﬁ: b:x,; worns il
Thohss’ French Jr e f:{*’.‘.’.’: .*“."."......-:-2 N“ov.”,}.613 “‘5 Py
Annie Oljstedd .’ - :,;(.....,.: ﬁ.--ii Feb,” 1624/5 e
Thom Freneh -Sr B (0 s G.s.bis e .;--Will“ 'proha'ted 1599 :.";.;f" o
Elizgbeth - SO cie cndno el sl o el R En
ek Bl g ae av A sfina s suw dordw ghome A A e A

HH#T dont kmew whather 0T, not’ the above is- accurate,  The: £o1¥6wing
notes show a Thomas and: Anne, Olmstead French. as ,pwerrts of-en
o Edwa.rd French bu:l' is he the Edward Freneh who came: to America in 163¢€

( . - .t M s

"Few msland Hist. and Gen: Régtiter™’  {ol.'65)'p 284 /. -2

e

1 ‘I'homas French of Arkesdeény Egse;g,_,};eld ‘the- Manot” o:t' Pitle ‘in
( Bardfield Essex,”  Will proved 1551, Wife Ellza'beth
‘ 311111 proved 1556 Daus. Eliz., Joane, and Agnes.
e son, 7 B
.2 Thomas French of We‘bhersﬁe’ld, Essex, who m (1) Elizabath and
L : (2):Bridget. -3 Trited the Manor of ‘Pit ey from
N his' father.- Will: probated 1599; daus. Mary,_
L Elizabeth, and one son.
3 Thomas ‘French who'm Anne or Agnes, dau and co-heiress with her
R 2 sisters of"John-Olmstead, gentleman, of Sanstead
Hall, Halstedd; which place she either inherited or
: had-as her marria.ge vortion.. Themas was buried &%
~Halstead, 20_Noy. 1613; will proved 27 Jan. 1613/4
Canterbury. Mentions wife Anne, son Thomas and
s motkher (insTew) Palladia. To sons John, Edward,
e e William, Robexrt, Frances, %400 each; to each dau.
% 300.. Wife’Ann buried Halstead 11 Feb. 1624/5
and estate admmlstered by son Edwa.rd and dau.

Mergaret. . .
Cha.ldrew *

: Thomas 1502 ‘

Mexry - - e 7

Ann . 1592, .

John

BElianor 1597 :
BEdward 1598, of Thorpe Morieux 1624, living 1642
Elizabeth 1600 .
Margaret 1601 - ‘ R
B William 1603. B '
_ Y " ‘Robert

"7+ -7 Freancis ' -1606
.Jemima 1607 -
“Judith’  1609-¢ ¢
Dorothy 1611



French cont. 63

2 Samuel French (Edward (1) b~---; d 26 July 1692 -

m (1) 1 June 1654 .
Abigail Brown b 23 Feb. 1644; 4 11 Jan. 1680
(2) Esther ) . . ,

Samuel French resided in Salisbury where he signed petitions
in 1658 and was a member of the church in 1677 and 1687.
Administration of his estate was established 16 Nov. 1692.

Children of Samuel and Abigail (Browne) French
Abigail b 17 July 1666; wunm 1701 .
Hannah b 15 Mar. 1669; 1 Thomas Nelson R
Samuel b 24 Mar, 1672; 4 1693 ‘
Henry b 1673; d 1752; m 19 Nov. 1695 Eliz. Collins
(3) Joseph b 16765 Will p. 18 Sept. 1749:; m Hanneh --—--

Nethaniel b 8 Dec. 1678; m Sary Judgkin

Children of Samuel and Esther French
Joanna © 16 Dec. 1683
John b 9 June 1686
Bether b 22 Sept. 1688

3 Joseph Fxgpg% (Samuel (2), Baward (1); b ca 1676; Will p. 18 Sept.
1 5
Fornah -

Joseph {3). French, Deacon, resided in Salisbury and was a
cordwsiner {shoemaker). Apparently a prudent man, he made
kis will 2C Mar. 1745, some years before his death.  His wife
Honxuoh was mentioned in the will. Salisbury Seconid Church
records, Vest Parish Rocky Hill list under “"Recommended from
the chucrch at Bast End", Joseph and Hannah Prench, 4 Jan. 1720
and egain in 1728. . .

hildren of Joseph and Hennash French
Abigail 16 Aug. 1698; living 1745
(4) Samuel 11 Dec. 1699 )
Nathaniel 2 Aug. 1702; & 19 Oct. 1720

Eligabeth 31 Aug. 1708
Joseph 15 Sept. 1713

4 Samuel French (Joseph (3), Samﬁel (2), Edward 1)

t 11 Dec. 1699; living 1749
mo--? ‘ )

Samuel French (4) lived in Salisbury until the establishment
of the nrovince line in 1741 threw his home-into South Hampton
N.i. where he continued to reside throughout his life.

Children of Samuel French _ ’

(5) gamel m Mary . probably Simon
renjamin deu who m Moses Page
Henxy '

i



R

64 French ccnt.
5 Semuel Freuch b ==--3 Salisbuory P

oy . . . - e e

#%#The Sallsbury Vital R°cords 118% +he marrwage of Samuel

French and Mary Calins (Colldns°) 2% Nov. L721 as wax’ as 8 —

" birth of a Samuel French, son of Sem and iy 1A bug. 1734.

I do not know whether this is tne marv¢u§c 02 oux Samuel (4)
but the birth date would no% fit Semuzl : .

Samuel (5) French was célled Samuel Jr.' He lived for a time

in Salisbury. However, a part-of that town was included in

South Hampton, N.H. by the establishment of the province line
ian 1741 and the birth of his 5thchild; Ezekial, is found in

' the records of the South ‘Hampton church in 1753.
Children of Samuel and Mary French

(6)

Reaben

Green

Heroy

Semuel

Ezzkial b 20 May 1753
RaSa

Debniah

Hannah

" Mary
(6) Bzekial French b 20 May 1753, South Hampton, N.H.

(1) Hannah Ordway; b 15 Jan. 1752; Q.m=-
m (int) 3% Jan. 1778, Amesbury, Mass.
(2) Sally Saith of Loudon, N.H,

Ezekial French was a farmer

Children of Ezekial and Hannsh (Orcwey) French
Polly .
Hannah :

(7) selly m Jeremish Swett (b. ab 1783)
funice
Thomas
Johr. m Tucy Tilton Prescott

John, son of Ezekial, was a wealthy farmer near Gllmanton
N.H.. dis children were:
Thomas H. b 18155 d 37 yrs; m Sarah Ann Brown
Samuael Prescott, physician in Massachusetts
John O., physician and surgeon in civil war
m (1) Martha Peaslee; (2) Martha Pertival
Ann mc§l) gan Willisms; (2) Wm. Brackett; (3) Nathaniel
oug
Warren B. lived on the old homestead in Gilmenton, N.H.

References. :
Genealogy of New Hampshlre Vol 4 Stearns
NEHGR - Vols 6, 8
#01¢ Families of Sallsbury and Amesbury"  Hoyt
"boston and Eastern Mass." Cutter ' -
Directory of the Ancestral Heads of N.E, Families
"Pioneers of Massachusetts® Pope

Gen. Dictionary of the First Setitlers in N.,E. Vol 2



Bxowne 65
Chart 5 m
George Brown: '
died in Ralisbury, England in 1633, leaving widow Christian
end sons Henry, George, Abreham ana William

_ 1 Christian Browne, widow; b England; 4 28 Dec. 1641 Salisbury, Mass.

Mrs. Christien Brown came to Salisbury, Mass. from England
in 1640 with_sons George, William, and Henry., She received
land in Salisbury in the 1st Division, 1640 and 1641.

2 Henry Browne: b ab 1615, Englandy d 6 Aug. 1701, Salisbury, Mass.
“Abigail, b =--; d 23 hug. 1702 :

Henry Browne :received land in Salis. Mass. in 1640, 41,
and 42, and was made a freemen,in 1649, He was a commoner ia
in 1650 and gppears on the records of Salis. Church in 1677 &f
of which he was a Deacon. His name appears on most Salis.
lists. By trade he was a shoemaker.’

Children of Henry and Abigail Browne .
Nathaniel b 30 June 1642; m Oct. 1666 Hannah Fellows
{3)Abigail b 23 Peb. 1643; m 1 June 1664 Samuel French
Jonathan b 25 Nov. 1646; prob. d young
Philip b Dec. 1647/8; m 24 June 1663 Mary Buswell
Abraham b 1 Jan. 16493 m 15 June 1675 Eliz. Shepnerd
Sarah b 6 Dec, 1654; m 12 June 1673 Andrew. Greeley
Henry b 8 Feb, 1658/9; m 17 May.1682 Hannah Putnam

3 Abigail Browne; b 23 Peb, 1643; d 11 Jan. 1679/80; m 1 June 1664
Samuel French (2) son of Edward (1) '

_ William Brown's wife is canceled on the church list of 1687. She
was insane for more than 30 years. According to the testimony of Wm
Browne at the witchcraft trial in 1692, Susanna Martin was, about 1660
accused of bewitching Browne's wife, "The church appointed . a day of
humilistion to seek God in her behalf, and thereupon her:trouble
ceased...for which the church, instead of the day of humiliation, gave
thanks for her deliverance. She came to meeting and went about her
business as before".

In April, about 1661, she and "Goodwife Osgood" were summoned to
give their evidences concerning the said Martin before the Grand Jury.
Flizabeth Browne told her husband that Susanna Martin said "she would
make her the miserablest creature for defaming her name at the court".
About two months after this, Browne says, his wife “would not own him,
and from that time to this very day (30 years or more) she has been un-
der a strange kind of distemper and frenzy, incapable of any rational
action, though strong and healthy of.body."™ On the strength of this
and other evidence, Susanna Martin was convicted and executed as a

witch,. oo

References:

*0ld Pamilies of Salisbury and Amesbury™" Hoyt
"New Hampshire Genealogy" Vol. 4, p 1908 Stearns

"Compendium of American Genealogy" Vol. 6, p 760




66  Thomas Brown Chart 4
Peter CGodfvey

1 Thomas Brown; b ab 1507, Malford England; d 8 June 1687/8 Newbury

Ma'p'y - na; d ‘. Jme 1055

Thomas Brown, a weaver of Malford in Wiltshire came from
Southampton, 1635, by the “James", in employment of
Thomaes Antrum. He reached Boston 3 June 1635 with wife

Mary and son Francis. He was a freeman 22 May 1639 and

may have been of Ipswich in 1641. He died from a fall

. in 1687, aged 80. His daughter Mary was the lst white

child born in ‘Newbury and his son Francis was the ancegtor
of John Brown whose family was carried off by Indians in
1695. "A kind of will" defective in some noints was not
received to probate Feb. 22, 1687 but administration of
the estate was granted to his son, Francis.

"Genealogical Dictionary of New England" Savage
Malford is a parish in the hundred of North Damenham,
about 6 miles from Malmsbiry and 5 miles from Chippenham

'+ in Col Wiltshire; on thé -map of thet shire in Camdaens

Britannia it is called Christian Malfox»d, perhaps t90 long
a2 name for modern maps. In this geographic detail I am

more full because a descendent sent lately to England to

explore the seat of his ancestors and his agent's aaswer
was ‘Pinds no such place in England as Melford'. In des=~
pair the inquirer accepted Walford in Walzss for the deri-
vation of his ancestors as if, in those early days, from
that distant principality, a weaver would travel with his
wife so far as Southampton to embark whén Brist{ol and
other ports would have been so much nearer.

- Children of Thomas and Mery Brown

Beferences.

Franciss b ab 1632.Eng.; m 21 Nov. 1653 Mary ‘Johnson

(2)Maxy" b 1635; m 13 May 1656 Peter Godfrey

Isaac m 22 kug. 1661 Rebecoa Bailey

"Newbury Newburyport and West Newbuxy" Ccffin
'Balisbury and Amesbury" . +Hoyrd
"Pionsers of Massechusetts"  Pope ‘
+##The latter book states érroreously that Thomas Prown's

wife Mary was a dau of Thomas Newhall of Iynn, Mass. WMary
Newhall of Lynn, MaSS. married another Thomas Brown.-

'l Peter Godfrey, b ab 1631; d.Oct. 1697 age 66; m 13 hay 1656

Mary Brown, b 1635; 4 16 Apr 1716;

Children of Peter and Mary (Brown) Godfreyv

(2)

Reference:

Andrew b 3 Mar. 1657

Maxy b.21 Oct..1659; 4 3 Nov, 1659

Mary b 23 Jan. 1661; m John (2) Ordwz

Margaret b 9 Oct. 1663¢ m 12 ‘July 1681 Joseph Richardson
Elizabeth b 8 Peb. 1667

Peter b 14 Nov. 1669

Joanna b 16 Nov. 1672

James b 9 Mar., 1677; m 10 Feb., 1700 Hannah Kimbel

Sarah b 7 April 1780

"Genealogy Dictionary of New England" Savage
Vol. 2, p 266




French Family A I G

Loudon Ridge Cemetery

. Isaac S. French, M.b.
Died Apr. 20, 1878==--=Ae. 44

1862 John S. 1947
¢ His wife
1880 Mary L. 1947 -
1904 W. Clifton S. 1962 -

. /-
History of Merrimack and Belknap Co. N.H. 1885
Page 512 ) ’

a

Story of David J. French, born Loudon Sept. 2, 1805. It says he
was the great grandson of Timothy French who came from Salisbury,
Mass. about the year 1773 and settled in the northeast part of
Loudon, =---(More likely the grandson of Timothy)----

David J. French was the son of Joshua French. He lived on the farm
with his father until about 26 yeears of age when he married and
soon after purchased his own farm. Mrs. French died Jan. 22, 1872.
"Since her death and that of his son Isaac, Mr. French has lived

at the old home alone---" This would make David 80 years old at
the time the book was written in 1885.

» Dr. Issac S. French was the only child of David J. French and died
in the year 1878. He married Augusta French and had no family.

Page 508 .
Timothy French had family of seven children
Betty .
Joshua Timothy -
Betty (2nd) ?ggﬁgﬁ
Mary ‘
Joshua French had seven children
Sally Sally
John Daniel
David ir-3 Charles
Timothy

e

Page 493 MNarriages by Rev. Jedediah Tucker
Possiblg marriages of children of Timothy French?
1809 - Timothy French and Polly Towle
1808 Rachel French and Sam Carter -
1810 Betsy French and Joshua Sargent
1813 Joanna French and Dan. J. Smith
1814 Betsy French and Benjamin Winslow
+ + + + + o+

Edward French and wife Ann Goodale came to Americe from England in the
-~ 1630s with 4 children: Joseph, John, Samagl, and Hannah. Settled in
Salisbury. Among the descendants, certain names are more likely to
appear in one line than in the others. I suggest the possibility of the
following line because of the following statement on page 522 of "Hist.



of Merrimack and Belknap": Solomon French and brother were early
settlers in area of Northfield region.

1. Edward French b 1599’%/Eng1and. d 28 Dec. 1674

2. dJohn French b bef. 1633. d May 1706+ m 23 Mar. 1659 Mary Noyes, dau
Joseph Noyes

3. Timothy French b 15 Aug. 1681l. 4 8 May 1742. m (1) Ruth Greeley
29 Apr.1708 (d. 30 May 1716 ,
m (2) Mary Pike 9 June 1722

. Ruth b 20 July 1709 4 24 Sept. 1709
L&ﬁﬁzh <Jgohn b 29 Aug. 1710, d 17 Aug. 1712
o M2 Philip b 18 Aug. 1715 4 6 Aug. 1716
»T3%7  + Solomon b 9 Mar. 1723 — 2ad sen™ 7v9
172 Sarah b 5 June 1724 m Moses French
Joshma b 6 Dec. 1725¢#d8 young -
Mery b 28 Oct. 1727 4 young,. _ o
Abigail b 15 Aug. 1729 - ;- [roing 17570 wIme o French
+ Timothy b 10 July 1731 F'd young

(These children were listed in "Salisbury and Amesbury" by
David Hoyt. Perhaps the lack of further information
oenfSolomon and possibly erroneous information on
Timothy was due to the fact that they moved to N.H.)

An argument againsts----

"Putnam's Monthly History Magazine"
Vol. TII '
Salisbury Mass. Records: Deaths
Edward French 1 July 1730
Timothy French 8 May 1742

However---on page 29L
A Hannah Wright of Hollis m Timothy French of Hollis

18 Se‘pt. 17750

These are mere speculations on my part. Presumably the French
feamily is well documented somewhere other than in my notes.
Possibly the above Solomon had sons Solomon and Timothy. It
would be a shame if thet whole family had "died young". There
was another,”unrelated, French family from Braintree, lass.
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€6 Thomas Brown  Chart 4 '
Peter Crifzey s ee e

e T

3=
. .. ‘.w{ P

1 Thomas Brown9 ‘b &b 1o07, Mahford Erglgnd, d 8 J""’1687/8 Newbury
SRR rMa”"‘y et d 2 Jane 1055 T e ey

Thomas Brown a ‘weave> of Ma¢ford 1n ﬁiltshire ‘same-from’

_ni-,. . -Southampton, 1635, by the “James", in employment of

re.. s . Thomes Antrum. "He'reached Boston 3 ‘Jude 1635 with wife

. .\Mary and son Francis. He was &’ freeman ‘22 Mgy 1639 and

may have been of Ipswic¢h in 1641.” Hé died from a fall

.- in 1687, aged B0.. His daughter lMary was the lst white
child born in Newbury &nd his son: Francis wes -the -ancestor
of John Brown whose family was carried off-by -Indians in

e 018958 MA kind of will" defectivesin some-points was not

©Locheere o preceived to -probate -Feb. -22,:1687:zbut’ adminlstratlon of

’ " ‘the estate was Zranted to his son, Francis..

“Genealogical chtlonary of,New England® Savage
Malford is & parish in the hundred of North Damenham,
gbout 6 miles from-Melmsbury end 5 miles from Chippenham
V. in Col Wiltshire; on the -map of theat shire in Camdens
Britannis it is called Christian Malfoxd, perhaps too long
e name for modern maps. In this gecgraphic detail I am
more full because & descendent seunt lately to Eﬁg]and to
explore the .seat of his ancestors esnd his -agent's azswer
was ‘FPinds no such place-in England as Melferd's. In des-
‘e pair the inquirer ‘accepted Walford.in Walzs -Tor. the deri-
.~ . .- vation of his =ncestors &s 1f, in 'those early days, .from
"7 that distent principality, & weaver would travel with his
wife so far as Southampton to embark whén Bristol and
_other ports would have been go much nearer..

Children of Thomas: &nd Mazy Brown ¢ - '
Y *»Francis b 'ab1632 .Eng.; m.21- Nov.. 1653 Nary Johnson .

(2 JMary: . - b 16355 ‘m 13 May 1656 Peter Godfrav‘ )
Isaac m 22 Aug. 1661 Rebecca Balley STl
'Referendeds” @ . - - Ersorala
: "Newbury Newburyport énd West Newbury“' “Co¢f“n -
“Waligbury and Amesbury”... .-«Hoyi .. T ~.;Z

t o 2a .54.- RN E 94 =»;X r..... SRS S

- WPlonzers of. Masqachasetts"’. Pope [N N )
. ##%The latter book states érroreously $Hat Thomas “rown s
_ wife Mary was a daui of Thomas N°wha11 of .Lynh; Masg.’ Mary
Newhall of Tynn,’ Mass. marrled anotner Thomas Bzown.._“

1 Peter Godfrev, b eb 1631, d Oct. 1697 ave 66; m' 13 May 1656

BMr Brown, b 1635, d 16 Apr 1716, o x-‘;«
Ch11dren of Peter and Mary (Brown) Godfrey . N;;:

Andrew b 3 Mar, 1657 o
Mary b. 21 0ct.,1659; 4 3 Nov, 1659 .. '?“ -
(2) Mery . ..b.23 Jan. 1661; 'm John (2) Ordwey.

Hezgaret' b 9 Oct. 16635 m 127 July 1681 Joseph Rlchardson
Elizabeth b 8 Feb. 1667 ’ won

Peter b 14 Nov. 1669
Jeoanna b 16 Nov. 1672
James v 9 Mar. 1677; m 10 Peb. 1700 Hennah Kimbel
Sarah b 7 April 1780

Reference: "Genealogy Dictionary of New England® Savage
Vol. 2, p 266 T

Yy

o Y

I



Ordway 67
Chart 4

1l - Jemes- Ordway b 1620, Wales; & ca 1710 Newbury, Mass., ., .
: - m 25 Nov. 1648 :

pnne Emery, b 1651, FEngland; @ 31 Mar. 1687, deu of
John (1) and Mary Emery - Lo

James (1) Ordway of Wales was en early settler of Newbury,
Mass. and was on the tax list of Dover, Mass, in 1649.
He was made a freeman in 1668, . '

Children of James and Anve (Bmery) Ordway

Ephraim
James

Edward

Sarah
(2) John
Isaac
Jane
Hananish

Ann
Maxry

b 25 Apr. 1650 .
b 16 Apr. 1651; m (1) wid. Tirzah Bartlett ab 1690,
: (2) Sarah Clark, May 1696
b 17 Sept. 1653; m (1) Mary Wood 12 Dec. 1678
(2) Abigail Bond 14 June 1704
b 14 Sept 1656

b 17 Nov. 1658; m Mary Godfrey 5 Dec. 1681
b 4 Dec. 1660; 4 15 Jan. 1668/9 age 8 g
b 22 Nov., 1663
b 2 Dec., 1665; m Abigail Merrill 1690

d June 1758 age 92
b 12 Feb., 1670; m (1) Isamac Buswell ab 1690

(2) Wm. Baker 21 Feb. 1722/3

b 5 Apr. 1673; m Daniel Goodridge, 16 Nov. 1698

2 John Crdway {James (1)3; b 17 Nov. 16583 4 1717/8 Newburv, Mess.

m 5 Dec, 1681

Mary Godfrev, (Peter (1); b 23 Jan. 1661; 4 1716

Stephen Ordway, probable descendant of John (2) and
Mary (Godfrey) Ordway, became a pioneer settler at Cockamouth

and lived

to age 93%.. His brother John, men of fine

intellectual attainments, won distinction as a member and

historian

of the famous Lewis and Clark expedition overland

to the Pacific Ocean in 1803-06.

Children of
Mary b

(3)John

James
Esther
Peter

Hannah
Stephen
Ann

b
b
b
b
Hennah b
b
b
b
Nathan b

Jom (2) and Mary (Godfrey) Ordway

18 Sept. 16823 m John Bartlett (Richard (3)
18 Nov. 1702

29 Oct. 1684; m Hannah Bartlett (Richard (3)
18 Dec. 1706

4 July 1687; m Judith Bailey 28 Nov. 1711

Aug. 1689; m John Rogers, 14 lar. 1712/3

15 Sept. 1691; m (1) Mary Moody 29 Oct. 1718
(2) Jemima Chase, 3 Nov. 1721

20 Nev. 1683; d in 2 weeks

6 liar. 1695; m Samuel Morse, 11 July 1742 .

8 Apr. 1697; m Abigail Merrick, 10 Julv 1718

15 May 1699; m John Coffin, 24 Aug. 1718

28 Apr. 170%; m (1) Hannah Rogers, 24 Oct. 1724
(2) Sarah Brown, 1l lar. 1727




8

3 John Ordwax (John (2), James (1); b 29 Oct. 1684 Newbury, Mass.
d 1733 Amesbury, Mass.
mn 18 DGCO 1706 PR
Hannah Barilett (Richard (3),(2),(1)
b 1384, d 2 Octe 1741, SBth year

Ghildren of John (3) and Hannah (Bartlett) Ordw@y
Hennah b 8 Septs 1707
(4) DNehemiah b 16 Feb 1711

Mary b 5 Nov. 1714
~Jolmn b 7 Dec. 1718, d 13 Oct. 1735
Marey b 16 Oct. 17245 -4 2 Oct. 1735

Richard b 29 June 1725; d 6 Oct. 1735 9th year

4 Dr. Nehemish Ordway (John (3), (2) James (1)
b 16 Feb. 1711 Newbury Mass.
d 13Jan. 1779, Gravestone Record Ameshury
m 22 Nov..1733 Union Cemetery
Patience Bradshew (John (2) Humphrey (1)

b 3 Peb. 1711/2 Medford, Mass
d 1804

Children of Nehemiah and Patience (Eradshaw) Ordway
Hannah bp 4 Aug. 1734

John b 15 Feb. 1736/7

* Richard 'b 20 Jan. 1738/9
Mercy b 6 June 1741
Nehemiah b 28 Feb. 1742/3 .
Samuel b 25 Peb. 17465 (Dr.) 4 1 July 1805
Bradshaw b 24 Sept. 1749

(5) Hannsh b 15 Jan. 17523 m Ezeklal French
Thomas' b 1 duly 1755
References: Boston and Eastern Mass. Cutter

.Genealogical Dictionary of N.BE. Vcl. 3
Vital Steatistics of Newbury and Amesbury, Mass.




Emery 69
Clart 4

1 John Emery, b 29 Sept, 1F¢S8, RomSOV, Hants, Engoand, son of John

and Agnes Emery: d 3 Nov. 1683 cge 85; Carpenter.
(1) Mary -, m in EngWQnd d Apra ch9 ¥ewbury, Mass.
(2) Mary (Shatswell) Webster, widow of Jonn Webster of
Ipswich; m 29 Oct. 165C; 4 28 Apr. 1694,

(a) John Emery, immigrent ancestor of this branch of the

family in America, was born 29 Sept..1598 in England, son of
John and Agnes Emery. He znd his brother, Anthony, sailed
from Southampton April 3, 1635 in the ship “James" of

London, Wm. Cooper, master. They landed at Boston, 3 June
1635, and John went soon afterward to Newbury where he had

a grant of half an acre for a house lot. On Dec. 22, 1637

he was fined 20 shillings for fencing in some ground not be-
longing to the town or laid out and the February following
the town granted him this same land. He was admitted a free-
men 2 June 1641 and the next year was appointed with 3 others
to make a valuation of the town. In 1663 he was tried and
fined for entertaining Quakers. A petition signed by 50
citizens and the selectmen of the town was presented to the
cout for remission of the fine but did no good. He was also
prominent in the case of Robert Fike. refusing to recognize
the authority of the court to deprive him and his neighbors
of the right of petition.

April 10, 1644 he had & grant from the town of 22 acres
and 5 rods in the great field beyond the new town. He was
selectman 1661, appointed to carry votes to Salem in 1676,
fgnce viewer 1666, on the Grand Jury 1666, on the jury trials
1672,

(b) When the inhabitants of Salisbury, Hempton, Newbury,

(2)
(2)

Haverhill, and Andover petitioned the General Court to revoke
the oentence against Robert Pike, the court resented the
matter so deeply that most of the signers apologized. dJohn (1)
Emery Sr. of Newaury and 9 others who insisted on the right
of pec:tlon, had "not given satisfaction™ and were, in 1654,
required to give bonds and “answers for: their offense before
the Courty Courts".

The will of John (1) Emery was dated 12 May 1683% and
proba ed 27 Nov, 1683. The overseers named were Jokn (2)
Fmery and Abrsham Merrill. The inventory of thg estate was
submitted 13 Mov. 1683 by John Kelly and Joseph Pike,
amcunting to L263-1-5.

Children of John (1) and Mary Emery

BEleanor m John Bailey

Aan b 1631 England; m 25 Nov, 1648 James Ordway
child -2~ LlVlng 1680

John. b ab- 1628 England; m 2 Oct. 1648 Mary Webster

Ebenezar (dau) b Sept 16 1648; m 21 Apr. 1669 John
Hoag. Living 1680

Child of John (1) and Mary (Satswell Webster)'Emery

Jonathan b 13 May 1652; m 29 Nov. 1676 Mary Woodman
res. Newbury, Oath Alleg. 1687; served King
Philips War, wounded Narragansett Fort 19 Dec.
16755 Living 1696
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2 John Emery b ab 1628 in Brgland, sorn of Jcha (1); will dated
‘e 3 Auge 1693 Nawbury, Mass.; m 2 Jet 1648
Mary Webster, deu of Jdohu and Mary (Shatewell) Webster;

d 3 Feb. 1709

. () ° Sergeant John (2) Emery ceame from England to

" Newbury with hHis father in 1635. In 1642 he had land
laid out to him; 80 acres over the Artichoke or Rasp-
berry River. Half of this was giv -1 to him by his father
("in consideration of love and affection” (c)¥ and the
remaining bought of Arciheleus Woodman. This tract was
included in the farm of the late Eliphalet Emery and
now owned by the heirs of his dzu. Mis, Mery (Eale)
Emery. He was admitied a freeman 1A75-76; tythingmen
1679; way warden, 1679.

Children of John (2) and Mary (Webstsr) Emery
Mary 24 June 1652; m 13% Mar. 1671 Samuel Sawyer
a 2/11/17.7 .
(3) Hannsh 26 Apr. 1654; m 18 Nov. 1673 Richard Bartlett

o wo—

Joha 12 Sept 16563 4 14 Juvly 21730
m (1) Mary Sawyer, 13 dune 16835 d 11/2/99
(2) Abigail Barilsth 27 Mey 1700
Bethia 15 Oct. 16583 m 4 ey 1.0&L. Hernry Bodwell
Sarah - 26 Feb. 1650; m 13 Junz 168% Isaac Bailey
Joseph 23% Mer, 1653; m 2 Oct 1693 Lliz. Merrill
Sterhen .6 Sept. 1666; m 29 Nov. 1692 Ruth Jaques
Abigail 16 Jan. 1663/9; m, ~=-Ingalls -
Semuel 20 Dec. 1670
Judith 5 Feb. 167%; m Abel Huse
Lydia 19 Feb. 1675; (pub:) 1695 Mey 23 Joseph Brown
. Blizabeth 8 Feb. 1680; mNov. 1696 Jchn Kelly
-Josiah 28 Feb. 1681l; m 25 Nov., 1714 Abigail lioody;
d 16 Mer. 1718 '

2 Ann Emery (John (1), .b 1631 England; d 31 Mar. 1687;
. . m 25 Nov. 1648
James Ordway (1)

Ann Emery (2) came to America with her parents in 1635.
Married to James Ordway she had 10 children.

References:
‘-(a) MBoston and Eastern iassachusetts" 1908 Wm R, Cutter
(b)Y ™Salisbury and Amesbury" David Hoyt
"Evans and Allied Families"™ Marion Boyle Evans 1946
.. Essex Institute Vol. 4
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"History of Newbury" John J. Currier 1902

~--"to the ccnstables of Dover, Fampton, Salisbury. Newbury, Rowley,
Ipswich; Windham, Linn, Bostoa. Roxbury, Dedham, and until these
vagabond Quakers are out of this jurisdiction,
You and every one of you are required in the Kings Majestys
name to take these vagabond Quakers, Anna -Colman, Mary Tompkins
and Alice Ambrose, and make them fast to thecarts tail and drawing
the cart thru your several towns, to whip them upon their naked backs,
not exceeding 10 stripes apiece on each of them in each town and so
convey them from constable to constable til they are out of this
jurisdiction as you will answer it at your peril, and this shall be
your warrent.
per me Richard Waldron
. at Dover, 22 Dec. 1662“

In Dover, Hampton and Salisbury, the above order was executed;
but in Newbury, Walter Barefoot, afterwards deputy governor of the
province of New Hampshire, nut g stop to the further punishment of
these “"vagabond Quakers" and "sent them out of the colony. claiming
that under the law they ¢ould not be whipped ir more than 3. towns.

Two of the Quakers naméd in the above order, -Mary Tompkans and
Alice Ambrose visited Newbury on their way to -Dover and were there
- entertained by John Emery as appears from the “following statement.
"Baward and George Preston and -Mary Tompking and Alice Ambrose, alias
Gary, passed east tward to visit the seed of God in those parts and in
their way through Newbuty they went into the house of one John Emery
(a friendly man) who with his wife seemed glad to receive them, at
whose house they found freedom to stay all night and when the next
woring came the priest, Thomas Parker, and meny of his followers
came %0 the men‘®s house and much reasoning and dispute there was
about truth, but the prlests and many of the peoples ears were shut’
against the truth-

And in ‘he.¢ime of their dlscourse, "the wind striving in Mary
Tompkin's stomach, making some noise, she having received no sus-
tenence for ihe.space of near 48 hours, one Joseph Plke, after they
were deparicsd town sald "she had-a devil in hexrM.

Afser awhile the priest perceiving that the battle mighi be too
hard for him, rose up and took the.man of the house and his wife out
of doows with him and began-to deal with them for entertaining such
dangerous pecple, They replied they were required to entertain
stiengers., The priest said it was dangerous entertaining such as
had plagus scxes vpon them, which the woman, hearing, began to take
the priest %to do for saying such false, wicked, and malicious words,
but ke hasted away, NMery Tompkins called him to come back again and
not to show himself to be one of those hirelings that flee--leave
their flocks behind them, but he would not turns and a while after
most of the people departed; and when Ipswich court came thither he
was had and Tined for entertaining the Quakers.

t appeers from an examination of the papers on flle at the
Court House in Salem, that the grand jury on the 31lst day Mar. 1663
presented John Emery for entertaining Quakers and also for inviting
neighbors to come to hear them, MNay 5, 1663 the case was referred to
the next court for settlement..

The followzng depositions indicate that John Emery had on
several occasions entertained Quakers and asserted his right to supply
them with food and lodging regardless of the restrictions and
penalties imposed by the general couxrt,
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The testimony of Heary Jaques, aged sbout 44 yesrs, saith that.
"I heard Joseph Noyes say after thawv time +thar ths Quekers had their
meeting at Jcha Emerys that We saw two Quokers at John Bmerys house
and John Fnexy bade ym welcome end further saith I that Joseph Noyes
say thal Johnbmery had entertained Quakers, both to bted and table,
after the time they had tueir meeting at John Emerys house and this
he testified before the church at Newbury and farther do I testify
thet I heard John Emery and his wife say that he had entertained
© Quakers and that he would not »ut them from his house and used argu~-
ment for the lawfulness of it." ’

. Henry Jagues. Sworn in Court lNey 7, 16673

Before Robert Lord, clerk. ’

The deposition of John Rolfe, being about the age of 28 years,
this deponent saith that where as John Emery Sr. did affirme before
the honored Court that he had not entertained an¥ Quakers in his
house since that time that the meeting was there when Mr. Parker
was sent for and ceme to them. I Doe "testifie" that I being at John
Emery:Sr. house about 3 weeks after that time did see two Quakers
there and I "herd" him say to them and “som" others that were there
yt.Joseph Noyce came to his house and told him that there were two
quekers coming toward his house and wish'd him not to entertain them;
he sayd if they came to his house they should be welcom' and he would
not forbid them; +there they were when I cam in and there I left them.
I was there upon occasion neare an houer and there were present in
goodman Emerys house, will Ilsley sen. and John Muselwhite.

Eg%rne in Court at Inswich 7 May
1
Per .me Robert Lord, cleric

The Depositlon of Joseph-Noyes, ageéd 26 years. This deponent
saith yt as he was a going 1o Goodman Emeries senior he overtook 2
women Quekers and supvosing they would call at ye house of ye fore
mentioned John Emmery, he desired him not to entertain ym. DBut whilst
he was in discourse, they came into ye house and there staid until
he went away. Goodman Emmery was in ve chamber (as he knows because
he ¥n upon an occasion called out to his wife) his wife being in ye
smae room with ye Quakers. Vs was after ye meeting of ye Quakers at
his house wm Mir. Parker was yr. Farther he had understood by those
yt ‘wr eye witnesses yt two men Quakers wr yr entertained very kindly
to bed and table and John Emmerie shook ym by ye hand and bid ym wel-
come; Ve substance of ys he, or his wife, in his presence told him
and owned it (according to his best remembrence) more yn once., This
also was several days after ye meeting above said.

Taken upon oath 24, 4, 1663 before me,
Simon Bradstreet.

What disposition was made of this ¢ase is uncertain. There is
no evidence in the records of the courts held at Ipswich, Salem, and
Boston that a verdict was rendered for or ageinst the defendant.

Mar. 31, 1663 John Emery was fined 4 pounds for entertalnlng Dr.
Henry Greenland "a Stranger" not having a legal residence in the town
of Xewbury; and that sentence probably led the author of "New England
Judged” (Geo. Bishop) and other writers since that date to assert
that he was fined for entertaining Quakers. -
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Webster; Chart 4

N,E, Hist, and Gen. Register Vol 89, v 376

Emerys of Romsey Co. Haats, Englend
Parish registers~-~begin with yeer 15€9 and were exemined for all

entries to 1635 and burials to 1640

1594 16 June  John Emerv buried

1597 24 Oct.  Thomas Emery ané Thomasine Carter married
1599 29 Fov. John, son of John Emery, baptized

1601 29 Aug. Anthony, son of John Emery, baptized
1601 7 Sept. Ellin Emery, baptized

1604 6 Oct. Hugh, son of John Emerye, baptized
1610 . 14 Sept. Margaret Emory buried: .

1624 7 Nov. Helena, dau of John Emmorie, baptized
1626 1 Nov. Anne Emry buried

1627 25 June  John Emry buried

1628 = 3 Feb., John, son of John Emry, baptized 1628/9
1631 18 Sept. James, son of Anthony Emry, baptized
1632 18 Har., Anne, dawu of John Emry, bpt. 1632/3

As the register contains no Emery entries between 1569 and 1594 it
seems certain that this family came to Romsey from some other parish at
the latter date. From entries in the register it appears that the
emigrants were the brothers John and Anthony, bapt. 1599 and 1601 re-
spectively, sons of John Emery. Their father was possibly the John
Emry who was buried 1627. 3Both brothers married before coming to New
England. Of the children of John Emery, the emigrant, Helena, bpt. in
1624 was doubtless the dau Eleanor who married John Bayley of Newbuby
about 1640; John Emery, bpt 1628/9 was with his father in Newbury; and
Anne, bpt. 1632/3 married at Newbury 25 Nov. 1648 James. Ordway.

e 2

1 John Webster, from Suffolk, England, in Ipswich, Mass. in 163%4;
d 4 Nov. 1646
Mary Shatswell, d 28 Apr. 1694, Newbury
m (2) John (1) Emery

Webster as a surname was derived from the occupation "the
webster", a weaver. The following lines appear to imply a differ-
ence between the webster and the weaver according to the material
wroughts Boksters and brewesteres

And bochiers manye

Wollen webbesters

And weveres of Iynnen Piers Plowman 1,14

As early as 1273 the name appears with the recording of John le
Webestere, in County Norfolk, England. Later in 1379 Robertus Webester
appears in the records of County York.

The most important English family of this name claims descent
from John Webster, who was a resident of Bolsover, Derbyshire in the
reign of Henry 1V, and whose descendants are settled in Bssex, in which
county, as well as in Cambridgeshire and Huntingdonshire, Henry 1V
granted Jolm Webster large estates about 1400, The Scots family of
Websier very likely also descended from this same John Webster, and were
in Edinburghshire before 1700, probably not long before that date however

Of +the American families of the surname Webster, there are two
important branches.

1 John ¥Webster from Warwickshire England, settled in Conn. He

was the progenitor of Noah Webster.

2 John Webster who came from Suffolk, England to Ipswich. (He has

been incorrectly called the progenitor of Daniel Webster.)
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John Webster (1) the  immigrant ancestor was born in England,
and as narly as 16%4 was a propr«etor and resident of the town of
Ipswich, Mass., Hes may have been the same John Webster, baker by
trade, who was admitted an inhabitant of Salem. in 1637 and had a
grants of land; who was a witness in the Essex court in 1639, and
applied for land at the Creek in 1642. He married Mary Shatswell,
sister of John Shatswell, who remembered her in his will. john (1)
liebster, a freeman 4' Mar. 1635, was voted a2 commoner by the town of
Ipswich 28 P2b.1646. Administration was granted his widow, 4 Nov. &
1646, and later at her desire, division was made to- the 8 minor ch.

To the eldest son, John, the farm, he paying to the youngest
son 5 pounds or quarter of the value of the farm; Mary, Stephen
and Hamnah to have equal shares in the island bought of widow
Andrews; Elizabeth, Abigail, and Israel to have 20 nobles apiece;
all at 21 years of age.

Mery Shatswell Webster married 2nd 2 Oct 1650 John (1)

Emery Sr. of Newbury. He and his son John (2) Emery were appointed
ggardlans6gf Israel Webster, 18, and Nathan, 16, at their request,
26 Nov. 1662.

Children of John (1)- and Mary (Shatswell) Webster
(2) Mazy m 2 Ock. 1648 John (2) Emery
Hannah m1l Anr. 1657 at Haverhlll Michail Emerson
. Their dau. Hannsh, b 23 Dec. 1657 m Thomas Duston
3 Dec. 1677 was the heroine of the Indlan Massacre.
John. b 1632; m 13 June ‘1653 Ann Batt
Abigail n 18 Jom. 1566 (Nb) ‘Abrzham Merrill, son of
. Nathaniel (1) Merrill
. Stephen b:ab 163(/9 m (1) 24 Mar. 1662/3 Hannah Ayer
(2) 26 May 1678 Judith Broad
Elizabeth m ab 1668 Samuel Simmons of Haverhill
Israel b ab 1643/4 m (1) 3 Jan. 1655/6 Elizabeth. Browne
(2) 9 Nov. 1669 Elizabeth Iunt
Nathan b ab 16465 m 30 June 1675 Mary Hazeltine

References:
"Poston eand Eastern Mass." Cutter
“Bvans andAllied Familieg®h: Bvans 1946
)1lé. Pamilies-of Salisbury and Amesbury" Hoyt
bbb bbb :

"Genealogy Dictionary of N.E.® Vol 4, » 61

Jokrn Shatswell, Ipswich, 1633 was fined % Sept. by our general
court for distemper in.drink, but 5 years sfter, half of the fine was
rewisied and he was more correot in deporumen Died 1647, will
probated 30 Mar. 1647. Names wife Joanna, son Rlchard brother
Thecphilus, brother Curwin and sister Mary Websten, WLfe of John,

Theophilus Shatswell, Inswich 1642; Haverhill 1646; back to
Ipswich 1648; wife Susanna. Died 1668

“Ipswich in the HMassachusetts Bay Colony" Waters 1905 p 497
John Satchwell will, Peb, 1646---bequeathed to sister Webster
"About seven yds of stuff to make her a sute".
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1 Richard Bartlett b ab 1575, England; 4 25 May 1647, Newbury, Mass.

Nare of wifz unkuown

Richard Bartlett, progenitor of this branch of the family in
America, was bornm, according to some- genealogigts in Wilt-
shire, b;lglana9 but according to others, in Suskx, and probably
at Barnly in that county. He was a shoemaker by trade and one
of the earliest settlers of Newbury, living there before 1637.

- His family Bible--~one of the famous "Breeches Bibles", so
called from the translation of the word for the orlglnal garment
worn by Adam end Bve, was purchased bv Richard (1) in 1612.

He was the progenitor of Hon. Josiah-Bartlett of New Hamp-

'shire, signer of ,the Declaration of Independence. His will,

proved 29 September, 1647, .will be discussed in following pages.

Children of Richard (1) Bsrlett, all born in England
Joane b 29 -Jan 1610; m Wm Titcomb bef. 1640; he rem. 1654
Johm b 9 Wov. 1613; m Joanna--- who d 1678, he d 5 Feb. 1678/
Thomes b 22 Jan. 1615y prob. died in England

(2) Richard b 31 Oct. 1621; m Abigail--~ who d 1 Mar. 1686 Nb.

Christopher b 25 Feb. 1623; m (l) Mary-- 17 Aor. 1645
- (2) Mary Hoyt Dec. 1663
Anne b 26 Feb. 1625; prob. died in England

i

2 Richard Besrtlett; b 31 oct. 1621; 4 Amesbury, Mass July 1698

(

m Abigail ememmeee

Richard (2) Bartlett was a shoemaker and was called yeoman on
~various records. . He resided first in Oldtown, Newbury,

Mass. removing finallyv. to Bartlett Corners near Deer Island on

the lierrinmac Rlver and in 1678 was voted the. privilege of
setting vp a sawmill in Haverhill, Mass.

He was reputed to be facetious, genial, and an intelligent
men, He was a deputy to the General Court for many vears
beginning with 1679. His wm¢l ‘was dated’ Apr. 19, 1695 and
proved 18 July 1698.- :

Children of Richard (2) and Ablga11 Bartlett
Samuel b 20 Feb. 1645/6;°d 15 May 1732; m 23 May 1671
Elizabeth Tltoomb (a 26 Aug. 1690)

3
voken @

3) Richard b 21 Feb. 1648/9; m 18 Nov. 1673 Hannah Emery

Thomas b 7 Sept. 16503 4 6 Avr. 1689; m 21 JOVo 1685
Tlrzah Titcomb .
Abigail b P4 March 16533 m John Emery 27 May 1700
John b 22 June 16553 m (1) 29 Sept. LGQO Mary Rust’
© (2) 2 Nov. 1710 Dorfas Phillips

Haymah b 18 Dec., 1657;.d unm 17 June 1676
Revcecca b

23 May 1661; d 1723, w5 Sept. 1700 Isaac Bagley

-,




.3 Rlchard Bartlett, b 21 Feb. 1648/9, Newbury

d 17 Apr. 1724 Kewbury
m 18 hov. 1673

annah Emery (John (2), (John (1); b 25 Apr. 1654
d 6 May 1705

Richard (3) Baftlett was a currier (tanner) and cordwainer.
A Richard Bartlett, widower of Newbury, m 11 Nov. 1718
in Amesbury, Abigail Frowse (wid. of Israel Diamond)

Children of Richard (3) and Hannsh (Emery) Bartlett
Hepneh b 8 Nov. 16743 d 17 June 1676
Richard (Capt.) b 20 Oct. 16763 4 10 Feb. 1749/50
m (1) 12 Apr. 1699 Margaret Woodman
"(2) 8 Dec. 1720 Mrs. Susannah Eastman
John (weaver) b 23 Sept 1678; 4 May 1741; m 18 Nov. 170¢
Mary (3) Ordway
Samuel b 8 July 1680 d 20 Nov. 1685
Daniel (weaver) b 8 iug. 1682; 4 4 May 1756; m Ablgall
before 1705
Joseph (cordwainer) b 18 Nov. 1685
m €1) 5 Dec. 1717 Elizabeth Tewkesbury
(2) 27 Apr. 1721 Sarah Hoyt
(4)Hannah b 1687; m 28 Dec. 1706 John (3) Ordway
- Samuel (weaver) b 2 May 1689; d Nov. 1749; -
m 2 Jan. 1716 Judith Coffin
Stephen b 21 Apr. 1691; 4 10 Apr. 1773; m 18 Dec. 1712
Hannah Uebster (d 1768). Stephen was the fathe
of Governor Sosiah Bartlett, born at Amesbury Msss.
1729, signer of the Declaration of Independence
Josiah b ab 1693; d 1746; m 13 Apr. 1725
Elizabeth Bartlett
Thomas b 14 July 1695; 4 1771; m 18 Nov. 1718 Hannah
Moody
Mary b 15 Sept 1697; m 30 Sept. 1718 Josiah Hills
Mary outlived all brothers and sisters.

Richard (5) Bartlett, grendson of Richard (3) was a New Hampshire
Secretary of State.

Referencesa
Vitel Statistics of Newbury Mass .
“Boston and Bastern Mass." Cutter

Pamilies of Salisbury and Amesbury"  Hoyt

Burkes*s Peerage and Bzronetage

"History of Weare, N.H." Wm Little

Colenial PFamilies of the U.S.A. MacKenzie

KEHGR 1958 "Heraldic Glass in Stopham Church, Sussex Eng."

#7/The latter describes heraldic windows showing the coats~ —
of arms of the Bartlett and related families.
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"0ld Families of Salisbury and Amesbury" David W. Hoyt

Joseph (4) Bartlett, son of Richard (3) was drafted in 1707
and sent with others to Haverhill to defend the town against an
expected attack of French and Indians from Canada. About 160 French
and Indians attacked the town and set fire to several buildings,
29 Avug. 1708, Mr. Bartletit and others were in the chamber of Gapt.
Wainwright's house, from the windows of which they fired upon the enemy.
They were informed that their only chance was to surrender, 3Bartlett
secreted his gun in the chimney above the fireplace, went down and
asked for quarter, was bound and carried to Canada, where he remained
& prisoner until rensomed. He started to return to his home in- - :
Newbury Octs 5th end arrived Nov, 8, 1712:after 4 years of captivity.

He afterward visited Haverhill, found his gun where he had
hidden it and this very interesting relic descended to his great -
nephew, Richard Bartlett of Amesburv, Mass. who carried it while a.
soldier in the Revolution. At a later date this old gun was blown
to fragments, but the pieces were collected and patched together in
1874 by descendant Levi Bartlett of Warner, New Hampshire and de-
posited in the rooms of the New Hamnshire Historical Society.

After Joseph returned from Canada he settled on a farm in
Newton N.H. TUseful citizen, Justice of the Peace, Deacon of the
church, he married twice and with his second wife, had 7 children.
Number 6 was Mary, who married Governor Josiah Bartlett who signed
the Declaration of Independence. :

"New England Historical and Genealogical Register™ Vol 40 (1886)
pages 192-204 John Coffin Jones Brown -

No Colony in the Province of Massachusetts had so definite
purpose in its settlement as Newbury, and none furnished men of more
exceptionally sterling character than this old town, whose 250th
anniversary was celebrated during this past year (1886). The Capital-
ists who organized this settlement for the first stock raising town
in the province, had selected the site as the only place left in its
domains which was well suited for stock raising and distribution.

Sir Richard Saltonstall, Henry Sewall, Richard and Stephen .
Drummer, with others in England and here, were the projectors of this
movement. After having offered sufficient inducement to the Wilt-
shire colonists who came with Rev. Thomas Parker in*the “Mary and John"
to become the nucleus of the settlement, they completed their plans
by the purchase of Flemish stock to add to their own domestic herds,
and largely increased the number of original settlers by contracting
with the Wiltshire people accustomed to the care of cattle and to the
handicrafts growing out of the developments of such a community, to
join their 0Old-English neighbors in this new settlement.

Gov. Winthrop, in his History of New England, under date of dJune
3, 1635, records the arrival of the new colonists and of the Dutch
Cattle: "Here arrived 2 Dutch ships who brought 27 Flanders mares
at B34 a mare, and 3 horses; 63 heifers, at $12 the beast; and 88
sheep at 50 shillings the sheep. They came from the tressell in
five weeks and 3 days, and lost not one beast or ship. Here arrived
also, the same day, the "James", a ship of 300 tons with cattle and
passengers, which came all safe from Southampton within the same time.
Mr. Graves was Master, who had come every year for these seven vears.”

On the last day of Feb., 1633/4, nine ships were lying in the
river Thames, bound for New England, Wwhen orders were issued that
the vessels be detained until new articles in relation to passengers
should be promulgated. These required the masters to furnish bonds
of £100 each; to cause to be observed and "“putt in execucion these
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ticles" amcng others:: . P oae ;
“2nd  Thas tlhey cause, the Pravers in the BOOA ‘of Common Prayers
establishad iX the Church cf Englend to be said daily at
the usual nours of Morning and Evening Prayers, and that
ney cavse all Peruons on beard said shlps to" be present at
"~ the same. "
“3rd That they do not receive aboard or transport any Person
‘ that hath not a certificate from the -officers of the Port
‘where he is’ to -embark ‘that he hath taken both the Oathes
of- Allegiance and Supremacy."
- Amorig these vesseéls were the ships “Mery and John", and the
“Hercules“, in which 'Rev. Thomas Parker and his Wlltshlre friends
<> and - nelghbors embavked. “The principal number of Jpassengers came
over in the ‘"Mary ditd John%, while those most interested in the
cattle accempanied them in the “Hercules", Ligts-of- passengers
were made up without mach detall, some- giving ‘the nemes of men only
in representing the family; others giving'an accompanying list of
the names 6f women and- children, and other lists combined the two .
Upon the list of’ the '"Méry and John" is the name of Rev. Thomas
Parke“, ‘the religious ‘leader of this moving colonv.‘ He had been
driven away -from- -Oxford ‘shortly after entering on account 'of the
non-conformity of hig father with the forms and ceremoniés required.
He compieted his educdtion in Ireland and Holland.
.~ “Among this moving-Wiltshire colony was Richard Bartlett and .
family. It is most likely that they were on-the same ship with Parker
as we find the name of his son John Bartlett representlng the family.

Richard Bartlett was -probably - married in 1610 as his first
child was boin in 1611 accordlng to modern ways of dating. In 1612
he purchased a Bible whith Mr. John VWard Dean, the editor of the
T’Reglsuer“ :Yas minutely- descvlbed orn p -203. ' This book, which for
more ten twenty:years had ‘been the full source of their religious
rucflon, ‘at home and in the parish -church, was now to be used
h joy end reverence twice each day while they were crossing the
broad Atlentics+ It contained also ‘the Book' of Common Prayer, to--°
gether with Sternhold and Hepkins's metrical version of the Psalms ,
and the music ‘to them; prefixed to  which was ingtruction in music,
. @nd -the spiritual songs of Veni Creator, Te Deum, Benedlctvs, Mag=-"
nlflcau; “fudi Israel Pater Noster, the X commandments, and many
- others. "'The Rev. George E. Ellis stated at the 250th anniversary’
of:"the first church in Boston, that “The very rarest volume~~so
rare, that I know not of a single copy--in all our treasured re-
positories, shelves and cabinets of relics, books and papers,
guathered from the homes of our first generation here, is the Book
of Common Prayer of previous or, contemporary editions.”

..~ - When this r;ohly prized and, sacred memento of the Bartlett
fanlly was dﬂsplayed at the Newbury celebration, it brought up to
the minds of. those familiar with its daily use on ship~board and in
the <ltvsches 8% Tpswich and hewburv, the potent power of a single
voliime unad ws this had been. After the nrescribed services of the-
merning end af terncon were. concluded, we can see the groups of
pa”“en\*fs ¢nU0J¢no a regular pzr reise meeting of song, and particu-
la~ly woticeabls is that of the Bartlett family; perhaps now the

. chn¢a en aeplclngnng - The song. of the three children praising God,

" proveking.all creatures to dos the same," the boys Richard and
Chrﬂsuophsr _joining wiih no unéertain +caes, -as the diamond--
snaged nOues are scanned, w:tn.the hi deously crowded old black-
1euncrs beneath them, g1v1ng the music .and. words to the qualnt old
soiig; riow the whole company w;ll close in singing “"The Lord's .
Prayer® or "Pater Noster" and the rich voices of the father and
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elder son,-with the flute- like voice of Joan; combined with those of
Ehe ghlidren give us an idea of the home concerts of this music loving
amily.

It has been considered doubtful whether Richard (1) Bartlett,
the father, had ever come to New England obut in the Salem Probate
parers, in the will of Richard (2), the son, born 1n 1621 he mentions
his honored father, late of Newbury....

In Coffin's liet of grantees, dated- 1642, the names Richard, John
and Christopher appear, and there was no known reason why John and
Christopher should each have a right in commons and their brother
Richard have none, but it is now supposed:that the senior Richard's
right was arranged to be given to his son Richarc Jwii... -

The church records of Newbury prior to 1674 have been either lost
or stolen. It has been said that they were destroved "to bury in ob-
livion the o0ld quarrel". The town records from 1635 to 1685 were com-
bined with the proprietary records and the volume has been subject to
hard useage; for year after year the records are entirely lost. Rich~-
ard (2) Bartlett was born in Englend Oct. 31, 1621. The records of
his marriage, his wife Ablvall's maiden name, and details of his

- early history, can only be known -when the lost papers and records of
Newbury come to light--if ever they do. He probably died in Amesbury,
as tgere is no record of his death at Newbury; the date given by Ooffin
is 1698.

Richard (2) Bartlett was prominent in church affairs, after Rev.
Thomas Parker had changed his attitude in relation to church govern-
ment and discipline. From the beginning Mr. Parker felt the necessity
0f 2 head of authoritv in the church, but allowed the voice of the
brethren in church affairs while he had confidence in the Jjudgment of
the majority. At the settlement of Newbury, the brethren acted in the
admission of members by vote, and all the affairs were conducted in a
congregational way; but in 1669 Parker had determined that the pastor
represented the government of the church and members in opposition to
the pastor could only “express themselves by their silence"; in matters
aprroving his own course, "he no ways approved a governing vote in the
fraternity, but took their consent in a silential way". Either way, he
appeared to be a petty-pope in his own parish. PFinally, in 1671 Mr,
Parker had a majority to act with him, and succeeded in obtaining a
judgment of the court at Ipswich; in consequence of which Richard
Bartlet and his brother-in--law Williem Titcomb were fined four nobles
each,--26 shillings 8 pence; and John Bartlet, Sr. and John Bartlet,
Jr., the brother and nepnew of Richard, were fined 13 shillings and
4 pence.

We can judge of the respect felt towards him (Rlchara (2) in
Newkury ty the fact that he was its delegate to the General Court for
many vears. begimming with 1679; this was shared by the neighboring
towns . Hivcrhl 11 had been greatly troubled for want of proper
accormmodscion from those to whom its mill-privileges had been granted,
but who had not fulfilled their agreements to the town's people; +o
remedy the evil, in 1678, "the town unanimously ‘voted, that Richard
Bartlett of Almsbury be granted the privilege to set a saw-mill in
Haverhill;, on the north meadow river'", Bartlett lived near the Haver-
hill line, and we presume that his mill was built on the site of what
are now known as "Peaslee's Mills" (Chases'®s History of Haverhill, page
132). . He agreed among other conditions, that he should pay: the regu-
lar rates (that is, texes) at Haverhill.

It appears by his will, a summary of which is glven hereafter,
that he had, while living, given liberally of his real estate to each
of his song; the writer does not know to which of them he gave the




80 RBaritlebtt ¢onte.

house in Areshury aenticnecd by Chase; “ithre nursells of uplend and.
meddow in Amesbury bounds," cunsisling of 300 zcres, valned at 80
redqrined ir nis possession, as appears by the inveantory of his
estate, and wcre distiribvted in accordance with his will.

. When in 1688 {axes were levied uader Gov. Andros, Richard
Bartlett®s taxable property in Newbury was given, and the law re-
guired that all males ahove 14 years of age should also be regis-
tered upon the lists; yet it was noticed that no “head", meaning
person, was indicated as represented with his property. This fact
tends to recognize the idea that he was personally rated at Haver=-
hill, in fulfillment of his contract. The thrift of the family can
be judged.of by perusal of the Newbury tax lists in the "Register"
Vol 32, pp 156=-164. A copy of his will, and of the inventory of
his estate, I have deposited. in the vault of the N.E. Historic
Genealogical Society, for reference. The following items are upon
the inventory, the spelling modernized:-- .

Weering appareli, woolen and linen and books £8.0s 0d

A carpet, flax, wool, a piece of cloth, yarn, a cutlass £3.108.0d

These two lines were selected because each line mentioned a
power in the femily;without doubt the Bible bought in 1612 by his
father was one of the “books"; and I have no doubt but that identi-
cal cutless was girt by Richard himself around the loins of his
son Samuel as he mounted his horse to hasten to Bosion and join in
the overthrow of Andros; this was in April 1689. This Samuel Bart-
lett wag the great-grandfather of Bailey Bartlett of Haverhill, who
accompanied John and Samuel Adams to Philadelphie in 1776, when the
Declaration of Independence was prochaimed; and Bailey Bartlett
was grandfather of the intrepid hero, Gen., William F. Bartlet, who
laft his studies at Harvard College in April 1861 to join in sup~
pressing the Rebellion; he was the wvoungest Gzneral in our army, 22
years of esge-~~to which position he was appointed for his gallantry.

. The details of his valor are fresh in the minds of the whole peoprle
north and south, and his generous fraternal feeling towards the

foe who.tried his mettle, has been one of the many noble examples of
the brave soldiers who have found the enemy worthy of their steel....

. The family was remerkable for its united fraternal feeling,
embracing their marriage connections with the cordiality cf con-
sanguinity. Thay held together in the troubles of the first church
on the broad ground of equal brotherhood.in heart and voice. After
a second chnurch had been formed in the. vicinity of their homes,
which a larger neighborhood threatened to draw away, they offered to

.maintain the churck in their own vieinity, and bear their portion of
expense of the distant church until dismissed; (Footnote: Eleven men
of this family signed the petition in PFeb. 1709, against the re-
moval of the meeting-house to Pipestate Hill, viz: Richard Sr., Jr.,

© and Tertius; John Sr,, Jr., and Tertius; Samuel Sr., and Jr.; Thomes,
Deniel, end Nethaniel. 9ix used one 't' terminal, five used '¥t')
but a mob came from the larger neighborhood and ruthlessly tore down
and carried eway the meeting-house near the Bartlet homes. This
aroused their righteous indignation, and resulted in their felling
trees and hauling them towards the desecrated site of their worship,
and expressing their determination to erect a new church in a fort-
night. This the people and Cowrt tried to prevent, but were un-
successful, except in delays. Finally, after it was completed, the
only way in which it was found possible to use it, was 0 announce
that they considered the Church of England, with whose services they
were familiar, as orthodox, and had appealed to the Bishop of London
and to the governor of the colony (Dudley) for protection and en-
couragement. As their old.chureh building had been. destroyed, they
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cConiae ’
would no lenger consanl 10 pay wewazde the experses of "the dis-
senters". The governor prouptly repiied, favoring the views of the
petitioners; and the Bishop was happy to pray, “God prosper your
pious endeavors". This was early in 1712,

The influence of Parker in favor of home services and music was
¢arried by his pupils to their homes, Judge Sewall had the Psalms
read in his family in regular course; at home and in the meeting-
house he liked to lead the singing, but frequently found that when
he had intended to start with one tune, he had led off with another.
The Bartletts had no trouble of this kind; fortunately this family
possessed a violin, and after prayers and collect, the instrumental
music was a correct guide for the voices, in time and tuné, and with-
.out doubt they too went through the Psalms in order, following the
music in their family Prayer book. Samuel (3) Bartlett, the son of
Richard (2) was widely known a8 a fine fiddler in his time.

These Wiltshire men had high hopes of the restoration of the
Stuarts and many of the first settlers, like Parker, lived long
enough to see it, and to be disgusted with Charles II. The Prayer
Book of the Bartletts contained a prayer for Queen Anne of Denmark,
wife of James I, the first of the Stuarts; when her great gran-
daughter Queen Anne, wife of George of Denmark, was upon the throne,
this first Episcopal Church at Newbury was named in her honor--Queen
Anne's Chapel. Rev. Matthias Plant, its third Rector, married the
youngest daughter of Samuel ( 3) Bartlett, and he had the pleasure
of recording among his memoranda of natural phenomena in the church
records under date of October 9, 1727, in his full description of the
earthquake, "The very first shock opened a new spring by my father
Samuel Bartlet's house in the meadow". ’

Under the auspices. of this Chapel, St. Paul's Church of Newbury-
port was developed--a monument to the power of the use of a Book of
Common Prayer brought over by a first settler. It is a black-letter
Bible, quarto post, very much trimmed down. Prefixed to the Bible,
which includes the Apocrypha, is - the Book of Common Prayer, and
appenrded are a Concordance, with Sternhold and Hopkins's version of
the Psalms. The latter has printed notes for singing the tunes. The
title~page and several pages of the Prayer Book are wanting, and
this is also the case with the 0ld Testament. A portion of the title~
rage of the New Testament is gone; including the date. The title-pages
of the Concordance and Psalms are preserved, the first dated 1611 and
the latter 1610. Some pages at the end of the Psalms are wanting.

The title of Concordance states that it was “Collected by R.F.H.Y,
and the preface ‘is dated 1578, and signed "Robert G. Herrey".

On the front margin of the page on which the 4th chapter of
lst Esdras is commenced, is the following writing of which a fac-
simile is given in the margin (of the NEHGR): :

Richard Bartlett Bought This booke Anno Domyni 1612

At the end of the Prayer Book is a blank page on which is written
* in the same handwriting the following record.
I Richard Bartlett writ this for the age of my children

Joane Bartlett borne in Januarey 29, 1610 wensday 8 of the
‘ cloke at nyght '

John Bart borne. the .9.. of november.l6l3.a.ll. of the clok
in the-day (~)eauesday

Thomas Bart borne Januarey . 22 1615

Rich Bart was borne october the 31, 1621 wef® mor 3 clok

Chris B the 25 of febru' being y' yeare S, mathias 1623 betwen
.12 . & . 1 . in the morn.
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(All abowe- taws is written in one shade of ink and apparently at
thersame time; -except, the margwnal entry. (- )eeuesdﬁy and the inter=
lined word day, which arve in fhe same ink as, the following entry)

- _Anne“BePt was.borm ther . 26 . -of febvarye belng sonday abeut
w0 ~-’12 ~of the«clank 1n the day in #oe- yeare 1625. E -

o~

. .
e U - i

,Page 200 - Wlll cf Rlchard (2) Bartlett RPN

In- the Name cf God and by His As51stance, I Rlchard Bartlet
Qren?". 0f Newbury in the' County -of; Essex -in. the Provihce of the :
Massachusetts Bay in New England do ‘humbly., comitt my. soule body &
spiritt both in-life & death into the everlasting arms of God all.
sufficient my Heavenly Father & unto Jesus Chirist my allone Saviour
& Blessed Redeemer thru the power & presents. of His eternal Spirit
my body to ye earth whence it originall was taken in hope of a -
happy & glorlous resurrection in ye great day of the Man Christ
Jesus -to Him be Glory both now and ever, Amen:

ind for such good things ‘of this world ‘as it hath pleased
God “to comitt to my stuard ship I as much as in me is do dispose
as is he”after expressed.

 Impx imis " I give to my son Samuel Bartlet one third _pt of my
lott of upland & meadow in Almsbury called -the Pond Lott by the .
plainé. " Also one third part of my Sawmlgl Lottt in Almsbury. Also
one third part of that lott oftgplan& wCl I bought of James George
in the towneship of -Alms all the priviledges to the said
parcells of land belonging to- be the lawful inheritance.of my sgid
son Samvel Bartlet his heirs and-assignes forever. As also gll
the lands & meadow wth I have formerly %1ven to my said son as by
deeds maye appear. As also one third pt of a freehold or priviledge
in the comons or undivided lands in the towne of Newbury origenaly
belonging to my honored father Richard Bartlet late of Newbury,
deceased wth all the -priviledges that may or shall arise thereby

"in time ‘to .comes .

(The same item repeated to sons Richard and John--the words
.underlined not hav1ng been written in the item to son Samuel.): .

Ttem I glve to my grandaughter Tirza Bartlet the daughter:
of my scn Thomas. Bartlet (late of Newbury. aeceased) three acres
of vpland adjoining to his house, &-c.--but if she die, &c. then
to my thrse daughters Abigail, Hannah & Rebecca Bartlet.

Item +o my three daughters (above hamed) I give my. dwelllng
house and barn and oxchard and land adjoining about 12 acres; also
one freenold in the comons of Newbury, purchysed of lMr. Henry
Sewall of Newbury &c.-also several lots. of land, specified.

Item My will is* & T do hereby appoint my three daughiers,
namely Abigail Bartlet, Haneh Bartlet & Rebecca Bartlet to be the
executors of this mye last will & testament, giving and beoueathing
to them besids what I have formerly given them, all the rest of my
estate not mentioned this my will, whither debts dew to my bye bill
bond booke or other wise or what ever may heer after appeer to be
mine my debts and funerell charges belng by them discharged.

" Lastly I do apoynt Tristram Coffin Esq¥ & my .cosen John Bartied
and my three sons aforenamed as overseers to advise my esecutl in the
management of the trust committed to them in this my last will &
testament. Heerby -renouncing all former wills of mine.

Dated 19 April, 1695.  Proved July 18, 1698
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The earliest ancestryv of the Bartlett family seems to be open
to question. However tne Bartellot family of England ciaim that
their first kmown ancestor was Adam de Bartellot, an esquire to
Brian de Stopham, a knight whe fought at the battle of Hastings
under William the Conqueror. This would sesm t0 be established
from the act of William who granted Adam a large tract of land
in Sussex; he was buried at Stopham in the year 1100. The pedigree
from that time down to 1360 is uncertain, though the most complete
list may be found in Eurke's "Peerage and Baronetage"™. From John
Bartellot, who married Joan of Stopham, the lists seem to be in
agreement though with some discrepancies in dates.

In 1356 this John Bartellot, in charge of the Sussex troops,
captured the castle of Fonrtenoy, under Edward, the Black Prince.
For this feat he was granted a castle as his crest. In the 16th
century the swan crest was introduced to commemorate the right of
the femily to keep swens upon the River Arun, a right granted by
William the Conqueror. The following is from "Peerage and Baronet-
age®:

William Bartellot of Stopham was father of John and grandfather of
Richard of Stopham, b 1216. ,

This Richard had a son Adam Bartellot on the Subsidy Roll, Sussex 1295.

Adam was father of Thomas Bartellot de Stopham, on the Subsidy Roll
for Sussex 1326-27. ) ‘

Thomas was father of John and grandfather of Adam of East Preston
and Stovham, who m Assoline, dau of John of Stopham. He d 45
Edward III leaving

John Bartellot of Stopham, in the right of his wife Joan, elder of
2 daus and co-heirs of William of Stopham who d 1399. This John
Bartellot d 1428 and was succeedéd by his son.

John Bartellot of Stopham, who fought at Agincourt and represented
Sussex in Parliament in 1434, m Joan, dau and heir of John Lewknor,
son of Sir Thomas Lewknor by Joan, dau and heir of Sir John
D'0ley, (##ralso heir of her brother Thomas D'Oley) by Margaret
Joan, dau and (on the death of her gr nephew, Bdward, 5th Baron
Tregoz) sole heir of Thomas, 3rd Baron Tregoz. John Bartellat.d
1453 and his wife 4 1473, leaving issue--

Richard Bartellot of Stopham d 1482; m Petronella Walton. Thelir son--

John Bartellot of Stopham m Olyff (Olive) dau of John Artour (Arthur)
of TLondon. H d 1493 leaving--

Richard Bartellot who m Elizabeth, dau of John Gates; Richard died
at Tournay, France in 1514 pre-deceasing his brother John

Edmund Bartellot of Ernly was the 4th son of Richard. He 4 1591
leaving 4 sons, BEdmund, John, Richerd, and Thomas.

The last named Richard is supposed to be the emigrant to Newbury,
Mess. in 1635 ‘
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Brzdshaw
Chexrt 5

1 Humphrgy Bradshaw b ca 16143 d 9 kay 1682 at 68 years

(1) Patience Bowers (George (1)
(2) W=rtha, widow of Wm Russell, 24 Mar. 1665/6
she m (3) Thomas Hall, 24 May 1683

Humphrey Bradshaw (Bradsheere, Bredsha, Bredshew)

wes in Cambridge, Mass. in 1652 and received his
dividend of the Shawshine ldnds. He signed = petition
adhering 4o the Government. He resided in Menotomy,
frequently held minor offices and acted on committees
for the town.

Children of Humphrey and Patience (Bowers) Bradshaw
Sarah Db 3 May 1653
(2)Jonn b 24 June 1655; m Mary Hall (John (2)

Ruth b 3 Nov. 1657

2 John Bredshaw, b 24 June 1655, Cambrldge, Mass.

d 19 Mar. 1745
Mary Hall (John (2); b 1668
.4 18 Apr 1758 age 90

John Pradshaw had liberty to build & seat in the

meeting house in Cambridge, and is supposed to have
afterwards resided in Medford. He was listed as a
Sergeant in 1699 and as Ens. John Bradshaw in 1702.

Children ‘of John and Mary (Hall) Bradshaw
Mery b 8 May 16875 d 9 Oct. 1712 age 25
barah b 8 Sept 1690; d soon
Rath b 29 Kov. 1691/2
Johnn b 11 Feb. 1693/4
Jonathan b 18 Dec. 16963 Deacon, d Feb. 17, 1769
Sarah agaln b 19 Mar. 1699
Samuel-b 29 Aug. 1700
Abigail b 29 Apr. 1704
Hanaah b 31 Jan. 1706°
Stephen b 16 Sept 1707; 4 2 Dec., 1767
Simon b 5 0ct. 1709

(3) Patience b3 Feb. 1711/12; m Nehemiah Ordway of

Amesburv 22 Nov, 1733 (Church record lst Parlsh
Uhltarlan)

Referencss:

"History of Cambridge"  Paige
"Genealogical Dictionary of First Settlers N.E." Savage
Vital Statistics of Medford, lMass.
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1 Ceorge Bowers b <--; d 1656 |
(1) Barbara (Smyth?); d 25 Mar. 1644
(2) Elizabeth Worthington 15 Apr. 1649.
She @ Henry Bowtell 25 J?ﬁe 1651 :

George Bowers, planter; was a Freeman 7 kar: 1636/7 at
Scituate, Mass. where he was a town officer. In 1639

he wes in Plymouth, Mass. 'and on'2 Apr. 1640 he sold his
land in Scituate and removed to Cambridge.:

" Mr. Bowers resided on the easterly side of North Ave.
‘not far south from the Railroad bridge. In 1656 he con-
veyed to his son Benanuel 20 acres in Charlestown, adjoining

- thé Cambridge line, Previously, however, an unhappy diffi-
culty occurred between the father and son, for Thomas Dan-
forth complained to the General Court, 31 May 1652, against
George Bowers "for rending a deed committed to his trust,
with several articles beiween the said George Bowers and

- Benanuel. Bowers, his son" for which offence a.fine was
imposed; at the same Court "George Bowers of Cambridge
being complained on, for putting in a vote on the election
day for the Governor, acknowledged the fact, not only this
year but every year since he came into €héB&dipartsl{and)os
pleaded ignorance. It is ordered that the said Beorge
Bowers, for his offence therein, shall pay the sum of 10
pounds". He was not a _sworn freeman and therefore not a
legal voter.

##i#This seems to conflict with -another record above-~that he
‘was 2 Freeman in 1636,

Children of George and Barbars Bowers

John d 14 June 1687 o
(2) Patience m Humphrey Bradshaw
Silence o :

Mathew. d 30 Jan. 1644/5
Benanuel m 9 Dec. 1654 Elizabeth Dungter

Children of George and Biizabeth (Worthington) Bowers
Jerathmeel b 2 HMay 1650

The will of -George Bowers named his wife and children; Benanuel
(who had already received his portion) John, Patience Bradshaw,
Silence; and dJerathmeel; the .widow and Jerathmeel to inherit
the homestead. co-

Benanuel (2) Bowers suffered much abuse as a Quaker by prison,
whip, and fine in 1677.

.dJohn (2) Bowers was a school master at Plymough, perhaps the
earliest. He went into the same business in New Haven on the
invitation of Gov. Baton, there taught tntil 1660 and after

, was in othér towns, He was preacher after Pierson left
_Brandford in 1667 to Feb. 1673; soon afterisetiled BirDerby.

References: . ’ L
"History of Cambridge® TLucius Paige
"Genealogical Dictionary"

"pPioneers of Massachusetts" Chas H. Pope
"Genealogical Dictionary of First Settlers N.E." Savage




1 Mary Hall, widow of Cambridge, Mass.

“"Boston and Easterm Mass.® Cutter
" The nuinerous Halls of England are believed to have
descended from the men of Halle who went there in the
geveral Saxon invasions of the country. They were called de
la Halle (of .the hall) which became a surname and now is
simply Hall. ~They were not only rumerous but. they were
brave mén loyal in their allegiance to the sovereign. Many
of them were tourtiers, "favorites of the king and in token
of the royal feavor they were given goodly estates, high
~official positions and many-coats-of-arms. One guthority
. enumerates more than 100 distinct bestowals of arms on rep-
resentatives of.the surname Hall in England.
The Halls .of England were early comers to New England
" -and were here with the Puritans in. good numbers. The records
show nearly a-hundred heads of families of the.name in the
colonies ‘before. the..year. 1700. Among them was . Widow Mary
" Hall of Cambridge. whose name appears there in 165%. She was
a member of the chuich as early as 1658 and in 1662 had
lands granted her by the -town. When she came over is not
known nor the name-of her husband,: although tradition says
_* that he came in 1630 in-the ship. with his-brother John and
- -'settled in. the plantatioh at Charlestown, Mass,. Some gene=-
-valogists have it that  the husband of Mary may have been “Mr
Nathaniel Hall" to whom lands were granted in.Dorchester in
1634 and that he "held a. very: respectable rank-in Society"
‘a8 the prefikx "Mr*' in the .times of the colonies. was an evi-
* dence- of high'social: position. . While there is little to con~
firm'“the theory that-Mr., Nathaniel Hall may have been the
" husband of Mary there is nothing to contradict it. (##/Unless
you consider the fact that Mary's first son was named John,)

*Children of Widow Mary Hall ... . :

(2) John Db 1627; m Elizabeth.Green 2 Apr. 1656
Susanna .
Mary m Israel Mezde 26 Feb., 1669
Hannah m Stephen PFrancis 27 Dec. 1670
Lydia m Gershom Cutter 6 Mar..1677/8.
Stephen b ca 1640; m Ruth Davis 3 Dec. 1663
William m Sarah Marigm 18 Oct, 1658; d 10 Mar 1666

Will of William Wilcox, d 28 Nov. 1653 (Hist of Cambridge)
"to my loving brethren .that were of my family meetinge---
to my sister, Widow Hall, 20s-t0 her son William and
- daughter Susan 10s each" .
###(das she a real sister or a church “sister"?)

2 John Hall (Widow Mary (1) b 1627 Englamd; d 18 Oct. 1701 Medford
Mass.; m 2 Apr. 1656 ’ co
Blizabeth Green (Percival (1); b 1639; 4 4 Feb. 1713

John (2) Hall of Cambridge, Mass. took the oath of
fidelity in 1652 and the same year thé town of Cambridge
granted him 20 acres of church land in Billerica, Mass.

He lived in Concord séveral years previous to 1667, then

. .returned to Cambridge .and in 1675 removed to Medford.
There he bought a farm from Caleb Hobert; 27 June 1675,
.and gave a mortgage for 260 which was paid on 2 May 1681.
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The record of Medford begins in 1674 but very little is written
before 1677 when John Hall w-s chosen constable and selectman,
which at that time were the most important offices of the town.
Deacon Thomas Wilis and John Hall were chosen selectmen 12 Mar. 1690

In the year 1696 Mr. John Hall was licensed to keep a public
house and in the years 1697-8-9 Mr. Stephen Hall was licensed to
keep a public house. Again in 1700 Mr. John hall was licensed. This
was the last wear the court issued such licenses. Thereafter
licensees were known as innnolders. It is assumed that the John
Hall licensed in the years 1696 and 1700 were Mr. Jonn Hall Sr. Mr.
Hall died in Oct. 1701 and from the year 1702 to 1706 bota inclusive
%;. John Hall (son-of John Hall Sr.) was granted an innholders

icense.

. Mr. John Hall Sr. lived on what is now the corner of High and
Allston streets. WMr. Stephen Hall, his son, provably lived in his
father's house and Mr. John Hall Jr. lived on Woburn road.

In 1699 John Hall méde -his will, dividing his large landed
estate between his sons who were to pay his daughters portion in
money and his widow, Elizabeth, had rights reserved for her during
her 1life ard had the use of a portion of the house and cellar;
Stephen and Tnomas had the house and land near it. The house was
situated a few rods east of the RR depot in West Medford and was
demolished many years ago, and the old cellar filled up in 1876.

In the old burying ground in Medford is & thick slate grave-
stone zbout as wide as i% is.high and arched at the top; in the
arch is a death's head under which stands an hour glass flanked
by 2 winged figures; at one of the uppér corndrs is written "Momento
More", at the other "Fugit hora", and on the body of the stone is
engraved as follows:

"Here lies the body of John Hall, aged 74 years
Died the 18 of Oct., 1701
lie memory of the Just is blessed®

By the side of this stone is another on which is engraved:
"In memory of Elizabeth, wife of John Hall, who died
Feb. 4, 1713 in the 74th vear of her age".

And on the other side of the first mentioned stone is a smaller
one. "In memory 6f William Hall, aged 19 years who died 21 Jan. 1683

Children of John and Elizabeth (Green) Hall; Born in Concord
Elizabeth 18 Sept 1658; m John Oldham
John 13 Dec., 1660; 4 1720; m Jemima Sell
William prob. 1664; 4 Medford 1683 age 19
Born in Medforad -
Nathaniel 7 July 1666; d 14 Apr, 1725; m Eliz. Cutter
Jonathan 28 Sept. 1667; d 11 Jan. 1754; m Lydia Hall Cutter 1701

(3)Mary 23 Oct. 1668; m John Bradshaw
Stephen prob 1670
Susanna 1675
Sarah 31 Mar. 1677; d Mar 1764; m Benj. Pierce
Thomes 16 Nov. 168l; 4 1754

Percival 11 Feb, 1672; d 1752; m Jane Willis 1697

Referencess
" *History of the town of Medford" Brwoks
Medford Historical Register Vol 8-9 p 4
"History of Cambridge, Mass." Paige




88 Greer ClLart 5

1 Percival Gresn b ab 1603, England; & 25 Dec. 1639 Camorldge liass.
» T Blien ~-+~-=- b ah 1603, England; 4 27 May 1682
. " T (2) Thomas Fox ab 1650

In a list of early immigrants who were "to be transported
- (from Londond to Yew England...in the Susan and Ellin,

Edward Fayne, Master"™, in the .srring of. 1635 we find the

names of
"Percivall CGreene _Husbandm~ 32 .
Ellin Green X - Uxor 329

- who came to this country with 2 serVants. They were of
Cambridge in 1636 and were both members of the church. He
took the freeman's oath 3 Mar. 1635/6 where his namé is
spelled Passevell Greene. On the town records it is written
Perceiveall., He owned a house, situated near the site of
the Harvard Branch Railway Station, on the north-side of -
the Common where he died 25 Dec. 1639; leaving 2 children.

Mrs. Green told in church.that she was born of godly

varente; her father suffered imprisenment and was taken

- ‘away while she was young. As & widow she married thomas
Fox, said to be a descendant of the historian of the martyrs.
Thomas Fox arranged for the estate of Mr. Green to pass to
her and he» children 24 (3) 1650. “Ellen Greene Fox, died
27 May 1682; her death was occasioned by a fall she got on
the floor whereby she broke her thigh." ‘In 1691 there was
a lawsuit between the grandchildren of Percival Green and
Thomas Fox to recover the o0ld homestead that had belonged
to their grandrather and which was then in the possession of
Fox who succeeded in retaining it.

It is supposed that Percival Green was tae brother of
Bartholomew who settled in Cambridge in 163%. Thomas, in
his "History of Printing" (p235) asserts this as a fact; but
his account of them in o0ther respects is very 1naccurate.

Children of Percivzl and Ellen Greene
John b 1636, a member of the church, m 20 Oct. 1656 Ruth,
dau of Baward Mitchelson. In May 1481 he succeeded
his father-in-law as Marshal General of the Colony.
He was superseded in office by Samuel -Gookin in 1687
but was re-instated 15 Aug. 1689; d 3 Mar. 1691. His
widow afterward m Samuel Champnev. An inventory of
of John‘s estate was made 4 Apr. 1691; it was
appraised at #85-16s-6d. Among the items were “A
House and Orchard with yepr1v111dge in ye Towne
Comons #£20" and "Sixteen Acres of Lana on Cambridge
Rocks L14". .
(2) Elizabeth b Avr. 16393 a 14 Peb. 171%; m 2 June 1656
John Hall of Concord

-

References: ’
"Pioneers of Mass." .Pope :
“History of Cambridge" ~ Paisge
NEHGR Vol 15 p 105




Gre=n cont 89
Swetvs Chart 2

ST Greene: The arms whizsh were borne by this ancien* family are still
used bv the descendants. 1In Kinge Chapel buriali ground, Boston,
they are to be found on & family tombstone. There are 2 crests,
the one used by the New England Greenes is a Bucks nead erased.
Arms: Agure, three bucks trippant or (gold)
Crests: A buck's head or
Motto: Nec timeo, ned sperno
The family of Greene, originallv written de la Greene, derived
their name from their anclent,posse331ons in Northamptonshire
where they were “seated" in the time of Edward I. In 1320 Thomas
de Greene succeeded to the estates and was Lord of the Manor of
Boughton and Norton, afterwards Greene's Norton, formerly Norton
Davey, a large village 2 miles west bv north from Towcester.
References: ."Directory of the Auncestral Heads of N.E. Families" Holmes
"Ancestral Records and Portraits® Colonial Dames of America, Vol 1L

###This, Greene family of Norton is also supposed to be among the
ascendants of the Bradbury family.

Swett: The first member of this family of whom definite information is
obtainakle was a native of Scotland. During the war of Bruce and
Clan Wallace, the property of this family was confiscated and it
fled into, Holland, from whence three brothers sailed to America,
landing at Portsmouth. Their descendents settled in Maine and
New Hampshire,

###1 have been unable, as yet, to find a connection between Jeremiah
. (1) Swett and the other Swetts and Sweatts of New England.

1 Jeremiah Swett; m Deboran

Jeremiah (1) Swett was one of the pioneer farmers of Gilmanton
N.H. The baptismal name of his wife was Deborzh and their
children included Jeremiph and Deborah. The latter married
John Allen of Gilmanton.’

2 Jeremiah Swett b ca 1783; m (1) garah French, dau of Ezekiel French
© (2) Nehitable Bryer, of Loudon

Jeremiah (2) Swett.was.a native of Gilmanton, born on the farm
purchased by his father and there lived and died. He was a:
drover by occupation and purchased cattle and sheep from
various sections of New Hampshire and Vermont, and drove them
overland to his slaughterhouse located on his farm. He con-
ducted this business for many years before the rallroads were
in operation north of Concord.

Ref. "Genealogy and Family History of the State of New Hampshire"

Ezra Stearns

New Hampshire Census 1850: Gilmenton, N.H.
Jeremiah Swett 67 Farmer Value real est. 3000
Mahittaba 55
William 27 (2)
Heah (?) 26 Fen.,
Laura 4 Fem,

Office of Town Clerk, Belmont, New Hampshire )
~ " Children of Jeremiah and Sarah French Swett
Rebecca b 11 Mar. 1803 Mary Ann Db 28 Aug. 1813
Benjamin F. b 29 Oct. 1804 Betsy P. 28 Apr. 1816
Jeremiah Jr, b 19 Nov. 1806 William b 17 June 1821
Elisha b 8 Dec. 1808 Dixi b 29 Oct. 1823
Jethro B, b 16 May 1811




90 Pifield Chart 2

1 Wllllam Pifield, b ca 1614; 4 18 Dec. 1700
Mery d 9 Hov. 1683

he American Fifields-are of Scottish descent and “the surneme
they bear is understood to have been originally a unioh of the name
of the county of Fifge in Scotland with the name of Field, The
accepted common ancestor of the family in this country was William
Fifield, who came over in the ship "Hercules" in, 1634 ard was probe
ably at Ipswich first, next at Newbury, and removed thence to Hampton
N.H. “in 1639 where he settled upon what is known as Sandy Lene.

Giles Fifield is sunoosed to0. have been a brother of William but
.did ntt apvea¥? in.N.H, ntil some years after the latter. He marrled
Mary Perkxns, 1652, dau .- of Ab¥aham .Perkins, and they lived in' Charles~
town, Mass. in 1655. Their daughter Mary was born in dempton in 1659
and their son Richard was born in Charlestown. Richard hed & daughter
Mary who married Samuel Adams in 1713%; thev were the parents of Gov.
‘Samuel Adams.

- Wllllam became promlxent in.Hampton and owned what has since been
nown as the Fifield Ferm on the South. Road. He was admitted :freeman
2 June 1641, The record of his death 18 Deu. 1700 stfles hlm “ould
William Pifield-~akove 80Y, . :

- Children of Williaw and Mary F1¢1eld
’ Bevaamln b. ab 16463 d 1 Aug. 1706; m Marv Colcord 28 Dec. 1870
"William b 1 PFeb. 1652 d 8 Mar 1715, m Heénnah Cram 26 06t. 1693
Iydia - b 12 Jan. 1655
Lllzabeth L 7 Sept 1657
, Hanngh b 10 Dec. 1659
: Deborgh b 6 Feb, 1661

Benjamin (2) Fifield succeeded his father Wllllam (l) On the lst of
. August 1706, Benjamin was .coming out of his pasture on horseback
‘when he was slain by ¥-or 8 Indiens who were lying in ambushy- A -
lad who was his kinsman was carried away Tradition says the lad was
“supposed to:have had an Indian father. -Benjamin was killed near a
large’ rock and the farm became known as.."Indian Rock Farm®,

#v#%#bengamln (2) 2nd Mary Colco#d Pifield had 8 childien born between
. 1671 and 1687. William (2) and Hannah Cram Fifield had 7 children
4 .. borm between 1693 and after 1700. Though I have the names of ’
' these children as well as some of the grandhhildren (generations
¢ .~-3.and 4), I have been unavlé to egtablish a connecting link betwee:

" them and David, father of Hannah Pifield who married Joseph (7)
Leavitt.

From the office of the Town Clerk, Belmont, N.H. (Vol 1742-1858, p 113
Parents of Hannah Fifield ue@z;3~ born 1792, Gllmanton, N.H.
Devid Pifield born 27 Merch 1749 Father ‘
Abigeil Fifield born 25 June 1746 Mother .

Captain David Fifield 4 6 Jan, 1806 in the 57th year.of hls
sge and was buried Jan. 8, 1806

###They could find no record of the parents of David snd Abigail.

e s
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Fifield, cont. o1

Children of David and Abigail ™ field
Samuel b 19 Jvly lJ7°§ m.1R0% Abigail Leavitt, dau of
Jogseph (6} aad ch'%a Leavitt and sister of
Joseph (7) Teaviit who m Hannah Fifield in

1811. DBetsy Leavitt Fifield, 1804~1861, m 1821
John Beedy.

Betsy b 25 Feb. 1773

Mary b 16 May 1776

Abigail b 29 Mar. 1778; m Archelius Moore
Sarah b 23 Mer. 1780; m ----Nelson

Ruth b 21 Apr., 1782

Olive b 15 Feb. 1784; m ~——~Greely

David b 6 Mar. 1786

Iydis. b 9 Har. 1790

Hannah b 19 May 1792; m Joseph (7) Leavitt

®*Annels of Meredith, N.H."®™ Hanaford 1932
Archelius Moore, b 1779 m Ablgall Pifield, dau of Capt. David
Fifield, went to Gilmanton in 1780 from Stratham.

##4/t is not clear here who moved from Stratham in 1780-~-Capt.
David Fifield, or Archelius Moore at the age of one. There
was a family of Pifields at Stratham beginning with Bdaward (3)
b 1678, son of Benjamin (2) and Mary (Colcord)., Edward (4),
John (5) (8th child), and Moses (6) b 1760 were all of Stratham.

* Linfage Boo#s Daughters of American Colonists

Captain David Fifield, b 1749 Portsmouth, N.H. Signed the
Association Test of Gilmenton, N.H. where he dled 1806.
Married Abigail Iarey.

##The City Clerk of Portsmouth, N.H. could find not record on
David or Abigail Fifield.  "Our early records are very scant
and often it is found that the early Churéh records are more
complete than the City Records. It seems that the place of
death would have "the parents names on their records%.

References: M@enealogy and Family History of N.H." Stearns
"Hi story of Hampton Dow
"Colonial Families of U.S.A" DliacKensie

' Genealogy and Famlly History, State of Meine Little

P 2133
Lary---0f Celtle encestry; family neme co~ex1stant with the
early settlement of N.E. and the early military history
of the colonies.
Cornelius feary of Exeter N.H. oath Fid. 30 Nov. 1677
Daniel Lary of Bxeter N.H. and Epping N.H.--member of Col.
Ballwin's regt. of Middlebury. Oath Alleg. 7 July 1775
Daniel Lary (same or other) of Sanford Green Co. N.Y. in
army 1778-9 .
Jemes Iary soldier 1776 .
John ILary . in army under Washlngton
Alexander Leyy  Boston army 1780 .
. Joseph Lary b Mass. removed. to Wolfboro N.H. m Hannah Blake,
farmer and innkeeper. Rgma %o Gllead, le. 1789

5 .



92 Fifield, cont.

‘ Slnce_pyplng‘the preceding pages, I have accumulated many more
Pleceg of information on various Iines of this family. Though not estab-
%;sélng the parenthocd of Capt. David Fifield they, ssem to narrow the —-
Iield. BSome of the pieces which point +o David come from Lancaster's
“Hist. of Giluemton®. Gilmanion wss incorporated in 1727 and proprie~
tors (not necessarily resident) included Edwerd Fifield. In 1736 and
1761 en Hdward Fifield was mentioned in lists pertaining to land in
Gilmanton. Following lists of 1761: "Edward Fifield, the father of
David Fifield came to Gilmenton in his 0ld age and died in town".

- In 17%1 Semuel and David moved into town. Samusl appears there~
after on several lists and both men signed the Association Test Taper
along with 113 others. In 1780 anm?dwarquifield was a settler.

> =
Benjamin (2) and Mary Colcord Fifield had & son Bdward (3) b 1678

who m. Elizabeth --- and lived in Stratham. BEdward (3) had 9 children
including Edward (4) b 1704 (m. 1727) and -John (4) b 1718. I do not
know all of the children of the two latter men. The "History of Salis-
bury" by Deardorn includes Fifield information~-some of which I be-
lieve to be incorrect. Howsver, he sayvs that the Kingston Church rec-
ords- show a Devid Fifield bpt. 14 Mar. 1751, along with Joseph bpt
1748 and John and Mary bpt 1754. A process of elimination indicates
that they may have been the children of John (4) (son of Bdward (3))
who probably m. Elizabeth Grele in 1739/40. Since children were not
always baptized immediately this could be our David.

A1l of my Fifield research seems to ‘point to David as a descend-~
ant of benjamin (2) and lfary Colcord (rather than Wm. (2) and Hannah
Cram) so I will include some data on the father of Mary. He seems to
have been a controversial person.

"Fiscatagua Pioneers’ 1623-1775"  John Scales 1919

Edward Colcord 1615-1682,.born in Ingland.

It is stated that he came over when he was 16 years old; if so he was

drifting around the settlements from Maine to Mass. The 1lst record of
him is when he was at Exeter with Wheelwright when he witnessed if he

did not participate in the founding of thet town. (1638)

In Oct. 1640 he was at Dover & signed their Comb. agreement. He
aprcars to have resided in Dover for several years following. He was
then a young man of 25 and in some way had become acquainted with the
laws and law methods of. that. period so he was really the 1st practising
lawyer of Dover. In Dover until 1645 he was one of the active busines:
men of the town. In 1642 the town gave him one of the 20 acre lots on
the west side of Back River. He received other grents of land which
shows he was in good favor with the town. For a year or two he wes a
megistrate for the settlementof small cases.

In 1645 he appears in the history of Hampton as resident zand thers
was his home nearly all the rest of his turbulent 1life; engaged in con-
ducting lawsuits for others or in defending himself against from others
He died there 10 Feb., 1681/2. Part of the time betw. 1645 and 1652 he
was at BExeter where he obtained a grant of land and became a freemen.

From 1652 on, his energies were chiefly devoted to practise of l&
When heirs of Capt. John Mason began their law suits against N.H. farm-
ers to establish the claim that the land was granted to Capt. Mason
and that they must pay rent to him, Colcord became one of their attor-
neys and in that way became wvery -unpopular with the land owners.

Married about 1640 Ann ----{(Rbt. Page of Salem called Bdwaxrd —
brother and Ann sister in property deed)

Ch. Jonathon @ 1661; Hannah b 1643; Mary 4 Oct. 1649; Edward 2

Feb, 1652, killed by Indians 1677; Samuel ab 1655; Hehitable ab

1658; Shuah 1660; Deborah 21 May 1664; Abigail 23 July 1667.
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Blias Logan O'sanion (See chart

1 aad pp 109-110)

1848-~1928
. m Frances A. Leavitt, 1873
ad 1847~1927
oL T - - T i = =
Archie Lawrence Barl Leslie Florence (Waitd)
b 30 June 1882 b 23 Jan,. 1889 . b 28 Aug. 1884
d 18 Feb. 1956 d 1 Mar. 1965 '
m Helen Collins m 31 Dec. 1913 m 24 Liay 1905
Nell Moore -~ '~ - Dre ToPoWait
1 1 i - ] E
1. Helen ( Virginia ILouise 1. Marguerite (Cornwell)
b 23 Apr. 1914 b 23 Sept. 1922 - b 27 May 1913
m’ ' m Ewart Cornwell
-"'.'""-""'—;‘-"; ————— . -----'-!' ------- 0 6 020 o v . s e e e T:‘--——-'——'—"--‘--—--——-——? —————
1) Peter 1 Carol (Serne) 2 Laurel (Escher) 3 Cheryl
b 5 July 1939 b 1 July 1942 b 28 Mar. 194
m David Serne m C.D. Escher

2. Corlice (Wepndling)
b 19 June 1916

m Edward Wendling

e

e A




Josie O'Banion (Coonradt) Chart 1)
b 10/21/1877 d 8/4/1962
m Rev. Bert H. Coonrudt 9/24/1908
b
d 3 Jan. 1944

Tucille iCrouch)
b 21 Nov. 1911

m 4 Auge 1932 ..
Owen Lyn Crouch
Prof. Greek, 0Old
Tegtament
]
1 James Edwin
b 7 Aug. 1935
Prof. Phillips U.
m 31 Aug. 1956
Donna Lynn Andre

1} Susan Denise
b‘8/27/l958

2) David Allen
b 5/25/1960

3)" Jeffrey Owen
b 3/22/1963

4) Steven Lyn
b 5/9/1965 -

- —— WP S TR e W U A G WS NP S Cw

2 iLorna Jesnne (Hightower)
b 12 Jan. 1944

m 22 July 1968
Hugh H. dightower Jr.

USAF

Florence Margaret (Hossom) Virginia Arlene (Davis)
b 30 May 1913 b 23 Dec. 1918
d m 29 Aug. 1939, Rising Sun, Ind
m 24 July 1938 . Paul Andrew Devis ’ ’
Rev, Harold E. Hossom Chemist-U.S. Government

b 21 Dec. 1917

"y

] ]

1 Connie Jo (Whitaker) ' 1 Paul Andrew Jr.
b 7/31/1939 b 7 Feb. 1947
m 11 July 1959 K SR
James Curtis Whitaker
b 7 Maxr. 1938
1) James Michael . :
b 25 July 1960 - - - -~ v -2 ~Ginny Lee
b 15 Mar. 1951
2) Karen Lee : '
b 13 July 1964

- etn v > - T~ -G

2 Donald Bugene ’ a ‘
b 5/28/1944 .3 Candy Ann
m 30 Aug. 1966 b 28 Mar. 1957

Gloria Candalaria - .
b 4/29/1947 :

1) Mark David

© b 6/30/1967 S
T 4. Connie Jo

Thmss ST se— s - . b 16 Apre 1958
3 Sylvia Laa (Schafer) .
b 5/28/1945 B . .
m 20 July 1963 :
Dale Edward Schafer
1) Darby Dale '
b 7 July 1966



Walter O'Banion (see Chart I)
b 6 Feb. 1880
m Oline Jensvold

Harold ﬁalter
b 23 Aug. 1904
a

m Theola

1 Jeaﬁ inson)
b 2/14/1934
m Herbert.:Olson °

- W - - — —— —— -~ w*

2) Cindy -
b T

3) brenda Kay
'b . .

4 ; michael

2 Terry walter
b 23 Jan. 1938 . _
4 L

1

Dr. Kenneth J.
b 20 mar. 1907

m 8 Oct. 1935
\oulise Palmer

1
1 Dr. Jerry K.
b 17 Sept. 1938
m 4 Oct. 1955
tvary Lee Less
1) Jerry Lynn
b 3 Apr. 1956

'5) ‘Gail Olene
b 27 May 1958

3) Louise Jane
b 25 June 1960

4) Patricia lee
' b 13 Feb. 1962

Y ey o - - - o W ——— ot G -

2 Saﬂdra Lou
b 17 Feb. 1940

]
Alyce 'Ruth (Marty)
b 31 Mar. 1910

m Marvin Marty

KN

b 10 hov. 1919
m Walter F. Rihn

~ v
-

-
. . Doris Mildred (Rihm)

-

. 1 John Walter

- o~

- . - P -

—

.3 Rogek Shephen, |-

N

2 Mark Anthony 1 ‘-

L]




Allen Chester O'Banion (Chart 1)
b 9/15/1886 4 29 Oct. 1967
m 3 Ltug, 1918 Elyndon, Minn

Ida Nesseth; b 18 Peb. 1895

Allan Chester Jr. S Jean Leavitt (Bolenbaker)
b 1 July 1920 Park Rapids, Minp .. . b 21 Jan. 1924, Park Rapids, Minn
’ gﬁaé?gl}n%?r?%ﬁg:g}lgf’Egz:n!jlgér : Occidental College-Pre-Nursing
Stanford Univ.-Business ' Grad. Stanford University 1947
m 1941 Washington m 30 ey 1946-Fertile, Himn.
L Was! \ - ilip Roger enbaker
Etgei .];:fzksgg]étet deBlois Wack , ' b 26 Apr, 1323 Tulare, Calif,

Grade Pomdna College-Chemistry
Lt. JG Navy-World War II

---------------- oo me e ——— : Chefnist~Shell Chemical Corpe.
1 . , e e —————————————————— = o e e e e 2 o e e e o
Ethel Barksdale "Dale" (Textor) 1 Richard Allan .
b 11 June 1942 . b 20 Peb. 1947 San Francisco
m 22 June 196% Pasadena, Calif - University Coloradoc-Business

Brenton Allen Textor, B.Oe.

1) Brenton Allen Jr.
B : . :
‘ ' g 2 Susan Kay . t
2? J?pn b 24 Nov. 1948 Houston, Texas
Lewis and Clark College=Business

3 Wendy Jill :
— - b 19 Septe 1951 Houston, Texas
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* 'G'Banhon--0'Banion

“he name Bannon originates in Irelard and means "Grandson of
banain® (little white one). PFerhaps this is why a Bannon-O'Bannon
codt-or-arms may be found listed under the name "White". This par-
ticular coal-or-asrms has a background of white, a chevron gules (red)
between 3 red roses. The crest is a hand holding stemmed roses. The
mottos Dans la Rose Je Fleuris.

“o" names are devived from a grendfather or even earlier an-
destor, 0 or wua being the Irish word for grandson or more loosely,
fele descendant. However, not all nedieval surnames with the prefix

"0 were hereditary since some occurred before heraditary surnames came
into being. MacLysaght®s Vlore Irish Pamilies™ has en interesting
section on O°‘Bannon which shows the sections of Irgland from which
the name springs snd also some variations of spelling.

Castle Erdughili;of broughal near Frankfort and Kilcormac, Co.
Offaly, is supposed to be +the ancestral home of the Q'Bannon tribe

. and is listed in DeBurgh's .“Iandownérs of Irelsnd® (1878). Burkes

“Landed Gentry of Irelend” lists a family of Bandns of Broughall
Qastle, descendants of a James O'banon who was living in Co. West-
meath in the early 1600s. " S

. Mr. Ioven $. O'Bannon and wifey- Marie, of Columbus, Ohio, visited
broughal Castle in recent years. They found that the stone castle,
which had contained well over a hundred rooms, was now in ruins. Be=-
cause tourists wade it a hazard, it has been pushed over so that
nothing is left except-a few of the stone walls and turrets.

- e wn we w- . - - - - — o — - © - wp e o oy -~ - ae on o

v 1. Bryan O'Bennon, b Ireland; d°'(will probated) 23 Feb. 1762
Emigrated to America (Harper's Ferry) very early in the
1700s. As one of a handful of-pioneers in the region north

..of the Pignut (Pigginut) in Virginia, bryan O'Bannon ac-
quired 635 acrzs, 26 June 1728. This arez was to become
part of Pauquier County in 1759. His will was dated 4
Sept. 1760. The folldéwing version is incomplete.

"Sick and weak in body. o

To son John Obannon and wife Sarah, land where he now lives,
convaining 212 acres, and slaves; mention is made of
grandsughter Sarah, dau. of son John.

Son William. plantation where he now resides containing
212 acres-.:

Son Samuel: pilantation and land in King George Co. con=-

" taining 300 acres, and all wearing apparel.

Daughter Elizabeth Ambrose, to have 60 pounds of current

money and horses. o
- Daughter Ann Willer to have 100 pounds of current money.

Grandson Thomas dbarinon, son of John, plantation where 1
now live. coataining 220 acres.

Grandson William Obannon (son of Wm.) to have remaining
pars of land I now livé on.

Grandson bryan Obanunon, son of John, to have slaves.

I give to each of my grandchildren (27 in no.) the sum of
10 pounds currency tc be paid to them by my executors
when they become of age- . '

To Asron and.Francis Johnston, children of largaret

' " Johmsion, my plantation and land in Frederick Co.

I appoint Jacob Hite (son-in-law) and Elizabeth Hite
(grandzughter) to have care and management of said,
children until they come of age. ‘

Exrs: sons John and William Obannon and Jacob Hite.
Wite Blias BEdmonds, Samuel BEarle, James Rogers
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##7# Another source says this will also mentions grandsons Bryan
and William, scns of William and John respectivaly.
The following. story from “Iynchburg and it's Neighbors" by R.F.
Yancey glves cne version of *he dangers of life in those days.
Gatherine 0° 'Bannon, dau of Bryaa slf, married Jacob Hite..-They .
were the parents of Betny (?lzsahe+h, who married Col. Tavener
Beale Jr. and who wes mention in the will of Bryan (1).

“"Jacob Hite was the second son of Jost Hite. He was a man of great

energy and aided his father in cclonizing the Valley of" Virginia,
making several voyages to Ireland to secure emigrants. QOn one of these
voyeges he met and married Catherine OfBanmnon. -{(##0ther sources say
bryen O'Bannon came %6 Harper's Ferry 20 years before Jost Hite (Heydt)
and his band made their settlement in the Valley of Va. (west of the
Blue Ridge) ca 1730/1). He built h:s home in what is now Jefferson Co.
where he was very prominent.

. He was dissatisfied with the location of the county seat; he con-
tended for Teetown but Martinsburg was chosen and he was so 1ncensed
over this that he deeced his home to his children and left for South
Carolina where he bcught land from an Englishman named Pearis who had
& grant of 10,000 zcres. Part of the Pearis grant of land included
the present 31te of Greenville, S.C. Here Pearis lived in the midst
of Indians with whom he had great influence. Hite settled near here
about 1773 and he too won the friendship of the ‘Indians.

. When the Revolution broke out Hite sided with the colonles while

"the Indians, incited by the british agents sent among them, went with
the British, Jacob Hite, hearing of the work of these agents sent his
son, Jacob O’'Bannon Hite; with presents:to the Indian towns hoplng to
defeat the efforts of the English. This -son had made himself very popu-
lar with the Indians-and he.and his father were confident of success--
too confident as events proved, for on his way to the Indian towns
- Jacob O'Bannon Hite met a large party of Indians on the war path and
was instantly murdered. . -

« .The murdered man was engaged to the daughter of Pearis, the
Englishman. When she hear of his death and of the Indians bloodv ine-
tentions toward the other Hites, braving all dangers, she hurried
through the forest to warn her dead lover's people. She reached them
~.in time to wesrn them to escape to a place of safety, but they were
still too confident of the friendship of the Indians. They delayed
leaving and the Indians .fell upon them and killed Jacob Hite with
fiendish tortures in 1778%.

### A less romantic version of this story (Cartmell's “Joist Hite,
the Pioneer") states that it was &n Indian squew, friendly to the 2nd
Mrs. Jacob Hite, who warned of impending danger; also that a man
named Parrish, jealous of Hite's popularity with the Indiens, insti-
gated the savages to commit murder.

Because of the duplication of names in the O'bannon families and
a lack of explicit identification and dates in the various sources, I
cannot be certain that all of the following information is applied to
the proper person- Por easier reading I have not listed children in
order of birth. The Roman numeral indicates the number of children
-and - the Arabic numeral, the generation.

Children of Brvan (1) O“Bannon
I (2) Elizabeth Ambrose; -named in father s will
IT (2) A Millér; named in father's will.
IIT (2) Margaret Johns»on' mentioned in w1ll along with 2 children
: Aaron’ and Francis.
I¥ (2) Cathexrine, m Jacob Hite; 5 chlldren: Elizabeth, Mary, Jacob,
John and Thomes (latter borm 1750)

(cont.)
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(Children of Iryan (1) O'Bannon, cont,)

V (2) William ‘Bryan (1). named in Bryan®s will 1762; a William
0*Barnon Sr. was listed on the Fauquier Co. Rent Roll
1770. His son Willilam was named in 3ryen’s will and
the Rent Roll of 1300. A'single William Obanon was on
the Rent Roli of 1777, .

Bryan (3), son of William, wzs named in will of Bryan (1)
Apvarently William Sr..merried Elizabeth ---, and had

a daughter Caty. From Ky. State Hist. Vol. 30:

Joseph Duncan Jr, m Caty O'Bannon, dau. of William and
Elizabeth O'Bannon. He was a brother of Lydia Duncan
who married John O'Bannon, son of .John Sry and grandson
of Bryan. Joseph died about 1822, Harrison Co. Ky. aged
about 80 years.

VI (2) Samuel O'Bannon (Bryan (1); Aside from being mentioned in
Bryan*s will I have nothing more on Samuel with the
possible exception of the following: The will of Elize
abeth Etherington probated 23 Mar. 1778 bequeaths to
"nephew Thomas O'Banion, soén of Samuel and Stelle,

1 tam~--(illegible) for use during life. Nephew Thomas
to have slaves".

(The latter Samuel may be the son-of John (2) and Sarah.
It Would)be helpful to know the age of Eliz., Etherington
in 1778.

VII (2) John O'Bannon Sr., (Bryan (1); probably born bef. 1720; Will
probated 28 ilarch 1774. -
Sarah Barbee, wife, (Named in will of her father, Thomas
Barbee, proved Stafford Co. Va., 10 Mar. 1753)

Will dated 18 Nov. 1773, Fauquier Co. Va.
Wife Sarah Obannon, to have use and benefit of plan-
tation where I now live during her natural life.
To son William, land on the east side of Pigginutt
Ridge. and slaves; mentions a lega¢cy left son Wm,
by grandfather Bryant Obannon, 189 acres of land.
To son James, to have a good suit of clothes.
To son Thomas, -to have a good sult of clothes. '
To son Samuel, to have a tract of land and slaves.,
To son Andrew to have a negro, in lieu of a legacy
' left by CGrandfather Obannon.
To son Joseph; to have a negro boy, in lieu of 50
pound ‘legacy by grandfather.
“Po son Bryant, ‘one riding horse.
To son Benjamin, new saddle and bridle.
To.daughter Sarah Foley, one negro,
To daughter Caty Nelson, one negro.
Son Bryant to have plantation at death of mother,
Execs: Sons William, Ssmuel and John.
Wits Thomas Elliot, Benjamin Elliot, and John Moffett.

Children of John (2) and Sarah O*Bannon

I (3) Sarah Foley (John (2); named in her father's will 1774. A
Sarah Poley m Francis Watts 16 Oct. 1777. (Daughter?)
‘II (3) Catherine (John (2); named in her father's will 1774; m
Joseph Nelson 23 Dec. 1771, Pauquier Co.
III (3) James (John (2); A James Obanion was listed in Brumbaugh's
Rev. War Records of Dunmore Co, (Formed from Prederick
Co.) in 1775¢ a male over 16 and 4 white females.
A James O'Bannion was listed in the 1790 Census of
Shenandoah Co. Va.: "8 white souls"™ in the family.
(Either or both of these men may have been James, son of
John (3) and Twdia O'Bannon.)
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(Children of John (2) and Sarah 0O‘Bannor, cont.)

IV (3) Thomas (John (2); b 17%9; 4 1601: m Prances (Fanny) Jennings,
dau. 6f Augvstine and Haansh Jennings. The will of
Augustine Jennings was dated 13 Dec. 1776 and proved
24 Aug. 1778, Faug. Co. In it he bequeathed to his dau.
Fanny “Obannon 1 slave and all estate she has received.

' Thomas was a private in the -Am. Rev. and moved to Barnwell
Dist. S.C, soon after the Rev. His daughter Judith
(0'Bannon) Cook, 1770-1837, m (2nd) Capt. Tarleton, Am.
Rev. 1775-81; sheriff Barnwell Dist. S.C. 1801.

A John A, O'Bannon (probably son of Thomas, died at
Barnwell Court House on 13 Sept. 1815 aged 46. His
‘wife d 11 months earlier.

Jennings O'Banon Esq. (prob. grandson of Thomas) m Miss
Harriet C. Ford ih Barnwell Dist. on 6 April 1809.

Heads of Families in the Census 1790 S. Carolina
e Free wh males Fr. wh. m. slaves ¥Fr w!

16 and up ‘under 16 Fems.
Thomas O 'Bannon 1 1 10 3
(Orangeburgh Dist.)
dJohn Q*Bannon 1 2 i
. Ben Obannon T o1 . 2 . 1l
(Edgefield Co.). ‘o
. Joseph Obenyan - 1 1 3

(Greenville Co.)

(3) Samuel. (John (2); Iisted in the ¥a. Militia in the Rev. War as
Samuel Obanon, Second Lt. recommended by county court,
, Fauq. Co. 25 Sent. 1780. Was this the Samuel who was
G merried to Stelle and had & son Thomas? (See Samuel
! (2) son of Bryan (1), Also see Thomes (4) son of
Wme (3), John (2).

VI (3) indrew (John (2); m Mary Smith (widow) 10 Oct. 1777, Faug. Co.
From Ky. Pioneer and Court Records:
Buth Smith Logan, b 10 Mar. 1772; 4 19 June 1821.
Marz 0*'Bannon, mother of Ruth Smith Logan, b 8 Peb.
754,-d 2. 0ct. 1839,
Andrew was on the 1782 Ve. Tax Payers list, Faug. Co.,
5 slaves; and in the 1800 Census of Mason Co. Ky.

VII (3) Joseph (John (2); There were two Joseph O'Bannons listed in
the early records of Hampshire Co. Va. This was called
Hardy Co. in Rev. times and later became part of W. Va.
Census 1790 . White wouls dwellings other bldgs.
0*Banion, Joseph - 6 (1784) 1 .
0‘Bannion, Joseph 2 (1782)
(Dates in' parenthesis were in earlier listings)

W. Va. ancestors whose Rev. services were non-mllltarys
Hampsnlre Co. Joseph O'Banion and Joseph O'Bennon.

VIII (3) Benjamin (John (2) b 1759; m Eleanor -Ash, 3 Nov. 1780 Faug. Co.
‘ Benjamin was a sonler in the Infantry, 3rd Continental

. Line, Vlrglnla. He received his pensmon in Lincoln Co.
Ky. about 1831/3 '

K1l




IX (3) Bryan (John (2); The following information could ‘epply to
Bryan, son of William (2).

A Pryan was z t2x payer with 1 slave in Berkeley Co. 1782.
Elizabeth Obanion named guardian of John Obanion, orphan
of Bryea Obanion, £300, Berkeley Co., 16 Aug. 1785, ;
. William Park and Richard Ransome were named guardians of
et "John 0'Banion, -orphéfi-of “Briar" O!Banion, %500, 17 Dec.
. 1788, Securities: James Wilson and William Cherry.
(An O'Bannon family researcher from Texas says his grand-
.mother was Sarah O'Bannon:of Summerfield, Claibourne Parish,

La. ©She 'was daughter of J. Wllson O'Bannon who was & son
of Bryant O'Bannon.)

X (3) John:(John (2), b ca 1735 Prince Wllllam Co,; 4 1797; m ca 1758
. ‘ Lydla Duncan, b ca 1730-35; dau of Joseph (will proved- 23
' J Sept..1793) &nd-1; dla Dunean (will pr. 24 June 1797)
‘ Lydla Duncan m (lst) Thomas Stamps ca 1752. He 4 ca.
1756.. Court Order Book (Prince William Co.) p 239,
containg adm. record of the.widow of Thomas Stamps-—
Lydla Stemps ¢ Joseph Duncan.and John Duncan Jr.
were securities, 22 llov. 1756+

. John O'Bannon was, a, Oaptaln in the Va, Mllltla. In 1780
o “his company served 6 months gbout Williamsburg.
- From the Calendar of Va. State Papers: 12 Apr. 1781,
Capt, ‘John O'Bannon to the Executive, Williamsburg.
Urging his célaim to succeed Major Aylett Buckner as
Ve jor 0f the Faug. Battalion who has been forced to
resign on acedtunt of ill health. He is recommended
by the County Officers..-
John-0'Bennon was a member of the first Vestry of
Leeds in 1772, created by Lord Fairfax.

Wlll of John (3) O'Bannon’ (Paugnier Co. Will Book 3)
. 21 Feb. 1797; probated 24 Apr. 1797
Wife Lydia to have slaves and land during widowhood.

To son Joseph, 1/3 of all my land in Kentucky.
Daughter Elizabeth Smith -

To son James, 300 pounds currency.
Daughter Jemima Johnston, a slave.
Son Isham, a slave.
Son Elias, to have 1/3 of land in Kentucky.
Son William, residue of land in Fauguier Co.
Son John 1/3 of land in Kentucky.
Exrs: wife, sons Joseph, James, and John.
Wits William Metcalf, Alexander Keith, Richard Parker.

Children of John (3) and ILyvdia O'Bannon

I (4). Jemima Obanon (John (3) m Archibald Johnson 30 Nov. 1786, Faug.
II  (4) Elizabeth Smith (seé William (4)

IIT (4) John; A John Obanning, "Frederick Co., 1782-3 whites, 2 black.

IV (4) William.and John O:Bannon wére .BExrs. to will of Enoch Smith,
: 6-Oct. 1803 (probated 25 July 1803) in which -he mentions
wife Elizabeth and sons’ John, Elijah, Hedgman, Isham,
Elias, dau. Iucinda, and unborn child.

v (4) Elias O'Bennon (John (3), b Oet. 1771; d 3 July 1828,
buried Hardesty Farm Graveyard, Eminence, Ky. His will
dated 22 Oct. 1824, names wife BElizabeth B. and brother
Isham as executors. He bequeaths property to wife
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(Children of .J hn (3), cont,)

hllzabeth--wafter her death it was to be equally dividea
. . . between brother Janes O Bamon and sister Jemime Johnston.
- <. 'No chlldren were nertioned.

VI (4) Joseph (John (3) Captain in Va. Militia; b 14 Dec. 1759;

Sy -d 1824; m 2 Sept. 1782 Fauquier Co.

P e .-(1) Elizabeth Grigsbty, dau of Samiel. Their son
cTe * Parmenes m (1;.Jatherine Johnson; (2) Mildred
TR _j . *_Roberts, 1821. He d 1836 leaving no sons.

L (2) Blizabeth Lewis; children were Nency liarrs,

. Elvira Blizabeth, Joseph Oscar Francis,
Amanda Catherine, William Searlés, and
James Henry.

: vn: (4) Isham 0'Bannon (John (3),.b 9 Apr. 1769; 4 1 Mer: 18453 .

buried Jefferson Co, Ky. (Lawrence Family Cemetery)
. W Mary Winn. (The first member of the original Winn
.. . or Wynn family of Fauq. Co. was named Minor Wynn.
A Minor O'Bannon of Shelbyville, Ky. m. Jane P.
Richardson in Fayette Co. 8 July 1835. Her parents
were John C. and lMary Ann Parker Richardson. Mary
Ann was sister of Ann Eliza Parker who m. Robert S.
. Todd and had deu. Mary, wife of Pres. Abe Lincoln.)
Mary O'Banrion, dau of Captain Isham and Mary (Winn)
O*Bannon m. Dr. Peter Foree of Henry Co. Ky.

VIII (4) James 0*Baxmon (John (3); It is possible that this James
married & Polly and was the father of James O'Bannon
of Cunberland Co. Ky. The Cumberland Co. Court
Records contain the following:

0'Banion, James died 1855 Apr. 23, age T70; b, in Va.
parents James and Folly Obanion.

His will (Book E 367) names wife Elizabeth her life-
time and for support of children, the home tract
end at her death between deau Lucindy O'Banion
and son John Obanion. The tract where William
lived to Malindy Pelmore.

Iand for maintenance of my two unfortunate child-
ren Tilford Obanion and Polly Ann Obanion.
Rest divided betw. my present orphan grandchildren.
9 Aug. 1847; probated 15 May 1855
Will Book C %03¢ "Inventory of Ullllam O'Banion, dec'd.
Appralsers, James Obanion, James Turner, John
' ' Pedigo, 16 Oct. 1837
Will Book D 447 Settlemgnt of accts. of Adm. of Wm.
’ Obanlon, dec'd. Paid to James and Alfred Obanion,
5 Jan. 1847,

it A genealogist of Columbia, Ky. sent me the above information

regarding the will of James Q'Banion and the inventory of
William O'Banion, dec'd. She also had this to say: "tThe -
Monroe Co. penple pose a problem as their records were lost in
a.fire about 1860.. These two O'banion men died in Cumberland

. Co. early, as you will see. James had a daughter Malindy Pal-~
more and one of +the appraisors of Wm. L'Banion's-estate was John
Pedigo. The names Palmore and Fedigo were used in Monroe Co.
quite a bit, so it seems very likely that these 0'Banion men
were in the part of Cumberland Co. that fell into Monroe Co.

. (Monroe Co. was formed in 1820 from parts of Cumberland and

: Barren Counties.) There isn't anything about the O'Bariion

. family in the Monroe Co. biographies I have, nor are there any
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deaths .in the Monroe Co. vital statistics. These recoras are at
the Ky. Hist. Soc. in the library."

I have nofurther 1nformatlon on “son John Chbanion® nor on Alfred
Obanion, unless he was the A.S. Obanion who acquired Southern Ky.
(property in 1841 and  *51 and was in the Civil War. It is not clear
whether the above William was 2 son or a brother of ‘Jemes. Because
he died before James and in his will Jemes mentions "orphan grande
children" it may be & clue to the relationship. .It is interesting
to note the consistent spelllng of the name-~0'Banlan,—--and the
Cumberland Co. area is that part of Ky. from which our John Preston
O'Banion is supposed to have comg._

Other Cumberland Co, notes:
Casey's Fork Presbyterian Church organlzed 1848 near village of
Marrowbone; among members-~James O'Banion and wife Elizabeth.
* Marriages: Rhoda Obanion and Bquilla Hall, 23 Nov. 1815.

Land Grents: James O'Bammian (0'Banyan, O'Bannon) 1814, *'16,'19,'32.
William O*Bannon, 1832,..

Deaths: MNary Cloyd, d, 14 Mar. 1855 age 37; b Washlngton Co.,
parents William and: Sarah Obanion

Hancock Co. records the death of O'Bannlon, C. of pneumonla 12 Mar.
1854, age 49; b Val parents were Wm and Anng O'Bannion.

XI (3) William (John (2) and Sarah O° Banna@

24 Much has been wr¥itten on this branch of the family

and not all sources are in agreement. My information
cam¢, for the most part, from books. Some of it, however,
came through letters from other researchers on the O'Bannon
family

Wllllam (3) m. Ann (sometlmes called Nancy)} dau of Gen.
Joseph Neville (Joseph and brothers, Gen. John and
: Presley, were sons of Richard and Ann Burroughs KHeville.
-Presley married Nancy Morgan, dau of Gen. Dan Morgan.)

- It has been sazid that William and Ann had 13 children.
Apparently his will, - dated 12.Dec. 1806 and proved 27 Oct.
1807 (Book 4, p 435 Faud. Co.) mentions the following:

"William, Jesse, Alexander; -Thomas, Joseph, and Presley
Neville. The latter was charged by his father “"to pay every
possible attention %o' his- mother and see her righted in
every instance". Witnesses were Geo. Chriesmsn, John
0'Bannon, and . Moffetin William and Ann had at least
two other children beside Johns Sarzmh and Bryan,

William (3) is supposed to-have served in the Rev. War.
Both Va. and N,C. War Records list a William O'Banion. The
‘Bute Co. .0, Tax List of 1771 lists an Obsnion, Wm.---
this may have been Wm (3) son of Wm (2).

Childreh of William’(3)-gnd Ann Neville O'Bannon
I.(4) Jesse (Wm.(3); no information

II (4) Thomas (Wm (3); Possibly the Thomas who m Hannah Sarker 1783.
There was a Thomas listed in Madison Co. 1816 (MlSSlSSlppl
" Territory other than Natchez)

I1I(4) Alexander (m (3); An Alexander was listed in the 1800 census
of Woodford Co. Ky. and had land grants in Ky.

IV (4) Joseph (Wm(3); “Compendium of Am. Gen."™ Vol 7 p 442: Joseph
O'Bannon (1758-1824) son of Wm, and Ann, of Moorefield,

W. Va. and Cape Girardeaun, Mo.; Am. Rev.; m Jane Marthe
Wal+An
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» Children of William (3) and Ann Neville O'Eanuon cont.)

\

VI

(4) Bryan (wm (3)' “my R?ppahannock btory Book" Bliz. Hite.
N - “Hisztery of Virginia" Vol. 1, p 442 -

. Of Irish descent; located in Fauquier Co. in young
-manhood :but later moved to Rappahannock Co. where he
“became a large slave owner and farmer; n Polly Morris
»din 1798. Children: .

‘1. John Maurice- I, m Harrlet CQrbln 1830 .
e © . ag Walter m Maxtha Eliza Lucas’
SR o (1) John Veurice’
‘ (2).John Hill; m 2nd’ Rena Armstrong
(3) lrs. Sam Barber
2. Walter; m ? ‘
&,.-Molly; m-High Mercer Smlth (12. children)
, 7+ Jemes Il.; m Lucy Mildred Iillaxrd .
R Coad Preﬁleg Henry, b 1848, n Josephlne Miller
T +7 (1) Iouise Mildred
b. daughter, m =-=Cooper

(4) Sarsh Weville (Wm {3} b.17 Sept 17705.d 25 itg. 1848. m.
.. Elijah Pepper 20, Feb. 1793/4 Pauquier Co. (see John (4)

YIX (4) John (Wn-(3); b not. later than 1756 in Va. Became a

surveyor. Major. between 1781 and 1736. In 1786 went
on expedltlon ag inst Indians. In 1787 Deputy Sur-
veyor of thé Va. MNil. Dist. of Ohic. (Penn. Mage -:
Vol. 61ls Custom House records of Philadelphia 1791.
- Nine Shlps arr from New Orleans. One ship, cargo
tobacco, ‘from-Cap Francois (S5+. Domingue) assigned
to- John OBannon, sprincipal agent of Ford and Reede
in Ohio Valley.)
In 1795, a trustee of Versailles, Ky.' In 1805 he
was sheriff of Woodford Co. Ky. ’
Apparentlv John (4) ‘merried twice: Mary Ann Taylor
. ab. 1774, arid Susarinah Martin, 19.Decs 1790,
Woodford Go.: Ky. U“Historical Records of the
Ky. Blue Grass Region" by Mrs. Carl licGhee
states {hat his will (Book D, p 51-2) names
wife kery Ann, and, among the witnessés, John
Buckner (son-in-law?) Perhaps Mary Ann was
R named as the mother of his daughters—--~
Elizabeth m.George T. Cotton
Bliza m =--=--Buchem (%)

Will 7 Jan. 1810, afflicted with rheumatism but of sound
mind."

o ey " ‘Devised his wife 7 slaves with home plantatlon and

~  lot in Versailles.
- Gave daughter Elizabeth Cotton & plantatmon and 5
- slaves, Devised lands’ and slaves t0 grandsons
named Cotton.
‘Daughtier Eliza, 500 acres in Hopkins Co. and
several slaves. .
Tc brother Presley OfBannon 1000 acres in Cleremant
. R Coe. Ohio, a slave and a horse..
Hed et s Mo brother William 2 slaves and & ‘plantation.
To niece Margaret O'Bannon and nephew George
- O'Bannon, a slave each. -
Died 17 Feb. 1813
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John (4) (son of Wm (3) cont. C
"Kentucky State History® Vol. 18, p 82; Vol. 19, p 106, 43,

John O'sannon and brother~¢n-law, Elijah Pepper, nusband of
Sarah Neville Q'Bannon (Elijah was of the Culpepper family of Va.)
ceme to Kentucky ca. 1790. They built a distillery aust below
the big spring thot gushes from = cave back of the court house in
Versaille in which taey distilled whiskey in a limited way. This
paritnerstiip continued for several years, or until Lllgah Fepper
bought & large tract of land 7 niles below the spring on Glemn's.
Creek when the vpartnershiyn was alsuolved9 John O 'Bannon contlnued

_the distillation of whiskey at Versailles, whilé Elijah ‘built a

new, distillery where he produced "0ld Pepper® cnd "01d Crow".
The latter.whiskey wae naued for 2 Scottlsh chemlsh, Wllllam Crow.

- ajor John O'Bznnon was a comrede 1r arns énd = pefsoaal
friend of Gem. Lafayette, and when that dlstlﬂgulsheu veteran
visited in Kentucky in 1825 he was entertzined at Sugar Grove,”‘the
home of Elizébeth O'Bannon Cotton, ddvgnter of Jcohn.

- When Lafayette toured the state to pay resvects for the last
time in person to his old friends and.comrades of the Revolution,

; Col. John Steele with a company of mounted militia met the dis--

-

tinguished visitor near Frankfort and escorted him to Versailles.
When he reached the town he was driven to the home of the widow

of Geo. Tavlor Cotton, who was a daughter of Major John O'Bannon,
one of the founders of Verseilles. - This home on Elm Street is now
only a memory . Here lLafayette was tendered a reception that deeply
touched: the old soldier. Instead of the widow Cotton waiting on
the porch, :or within the portals of the home in the formal manner
of the period to greet the veteran, she descended the steps and met
him cordially with outstretched hands as he approached the house
after alighting from the carriage. I have ofiten heard that the
scene was graphic. As this begautiful lady extended her hand, the
patriot grasped it with emotiin,  bended his body low and pressed
his lips to it. Too bad that such a picture was not preserved on
cenvas.,. .

NVIII (4) Wllllam (Wm. (3), was-listed in the 1800 census of Kentucky

in Woodford Co. In an article by Lew M. O'Bannon,
liditor of the Corydon (Ind.) Democrat, 10 June 1925
(Ky. State Hist. Vol 23, p 273)5 +..."Lt. Presley
Leville O'Bannon of Tripolitan War fame:...was a
brother of our grandfether William O°Bannon whose
name we found in the assessment records of Breck-
enridge Co., Ky..in 1828 as the owner. of '5 blacks,
2 horses and mares and 23%6 acres of land'".

##4# The will of John (4) O'Bannon in 1810 would seem to indicate
that his brother William had a son George and a daughter .

largaret., That Villiam had another son Presley Neville O'Bannon

(named for his uncle) is indicated by the following letter (1965)
from Mr. Robert OF Bannon, Publisher of the Corydon Democrat, son of
Lew M. O'Bannon. Lew M. O°Bomnon was a son of Presley Neville
Q'Bannori and Caristiana Ferree O'Bannon. Other children were Jacob
Torenzo O°*Bannon, Ferdinand O'Bannon and Mrs. John (Sannie) Davis.
Presley N. O'Banron by a previous wife had two sons, William and
Bonﬂamln. Perdinand 0 Bannon had a son Mourice N. O'bBannon. - Son
of Laurlce N. is Ioran S. 0'Bannon of Columbus, Ohio.
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IX (45 Presley Neville O'Benmon (Wm (3), b 1776 Fauguiier Co.;

d. 12 Sept. 1850, Ky. Married in Frederick Co.
24 Jan., 1809, Matilde Heard, deu of Major Jaies
.and wife Betsy, dau. of Gen. Dan Morgen who defeate
Tarleton at Cowpens. . S

"Kentucky State History" Vol. 18 )

In the war of Tripoli, Presley Neville O'Bannon led a de<
tachment of marines on a 600 mile march from Alexandria Egypt
to Derne, arriving 26 Anr. 1805. After the fortifications had -
been shelled by the Hornet, Nautilus, and Argus on 27 April they
were stormed by marines under Lt. O'Bannon; the Tripolitan ensign
was hauled down and for the lst time the U.S. flag was hoisted
over a fortress of the 0ld World. ' '
#i## A more detailed account of this event may be found in Vol. 18,

.. (Abstract from Richard,.S. Collum's “The History of the U.S.
Yarine Corps") The same Vol. p 73 describes the preparation
for, and the ceremonies-which took place when O'Bannon's body
was moved from Henry County.to Frankfort in 1920. .

When Presley N. O'Bannon.returned to the U.S. after the battle of

berne, his pathwsy from Hampton Roads through Richmond was strewn
with flowers and the ladies of Philadelphia presented him with en

embroidered saddle cover.. The saddle is now in the museum at -~

Philadelphia and the cover in & museum at Richmond, Va. A jeweled
sword was presented to him by Congress.:

“"Calendar of Va. State Papers"™ Vol 10, p 86 : )

John M. Carter to the Governor, 6 July 1810, Richmond.
I have now the happiness to acquaint you that I have at length
completed the sword for ILt. O'bBannon which you confided to umy
execution. I trust the manner. in which it is executed will meet
with the approbation of the honorable Executive.

However, I think it due to the occasion to state to your
excellency that the many unforseen difficulties which I have
encountered in effecting its execution have much enhanced its .
value and I certainly could not have afforded it for the agreed .
price had they have been at first anticipated by me, which con=-
sideration may perhaps in the estimation of the honorable Execu-
tive entitle me to some additional compensation for effecting
their object in the menner I have. I am induced to believe that
the work is done in a manner by no means inferior to the original
design and the intention of .the Executive. Dbut should they not

wiew the subject in this light nor think any additional compen-

sation- ought reasonably to be extended to me they will act accord-
ingly. In any event, I shall feel confident of having exerted

' -myself to conform to the wishes of the Executive.
'fagé 111. Presley Neville O*'bannon to the Governor; 4 July 1811,

Russellville, Ky.
~Owing to my absence from this place I had not the honor of
receiving your frimndly and polite answer to my letter of the
20th of April las+t, until last evening. _

I thank you for your communication and as I contemplate
visiting Richmond this fall will then have the pleasure of receiv-
ing from my native State a present of real value to me, as it will
be flattering proof of the approbation of my nublic conduct, which

I consider as the most pleasing reward for my services.

I am much pleased. that the Sword and Lelt are of Virginia
materials dand marmfactured there, 2s it proves our independence
of Europe, and also the progress of our infant manufactories—-
and while a Carter lives we never shall want articles.
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Presley Neville O'Lennon had no surviving children and
whether he had any children is questionable. Some sources -say
thet his wife died at the birth of son Baton and that BEaton was
dead when Lt. O'bennon returned from Tripoli. This would have
been before his marriage to liatilda Heard in 1809, -

“"Famous American liarines" by Chas. Lee Lewis says that an
infant son named Presley Neville O'Bannon Jr. died in 1815 at
the age of 5. Grief occasioned by this bereavement clouded
O'bannon's life for many years. It adds further, a2 letter from
a member of the O'Bannon fawily stating thet the oft repeated
story that Lt. O'Bannon was married before he went to - the Medi-
terranean and had a son named Eaton O'Bannon cannot be sub-
stantiated.

This book also states that Fresley was a son of John and
Nancy Neville O'bannon and that Betsy Heard, mother of Matilda
Heard O'Bannon (wife of Presley), was a niece of Gen. Daniel
lMorgan. However, the will of Dan Morgan, 17 Mare« 1810, bequeaths
property to his "well beloved daughter Betsy Heard, wife of James.

“"Genealogy and History" 13975. Re: Gen. Dan'l Morgan. Irs.
Morgan died in the home of grandaughter Mrs. Matilda
O'Bannon near Russelville, Ky. in 1816,

Presley Neville O'Bannon was a member of the Kentucky House
of Representatives: from 1812-1820, and of the Senate 1824~-1826.
Two destroyers were named ih his honor, 1919 and 1942.

"My Rappahannock Story Book"™ Mary Elizabeth Hite., News Item:

WThe President has given a citation to the destroyer, O'Bannon
for outstanding performance in the Pacific. TIt's skipper Commander
Donald J. MacDonald is the most decorated officer in the Navy as
a result of the ship's sensational exploits".

O *BANNON and MAC
"0 *Bannon, oh baby, oh boy, what a ship!
In any engagement, oh man, she's a pipt
MacDonald's her skipper; oh my, what a pair!

Qther notes of interest:

The following will was in form of letter and probated 25 Aug. 1777:
Dear Mother and Brothers,

I write to let you know that I am in good health, thanks to God
for it, hoping this will find you all in health. Remember me to all
my friends, not forgetting Cuzzen Elizabeth Carle--remember--my love
to her. I don't expect I shall write any more and this is to let you
¥now that we have been in no battle yet but we are expecting it every
day and night. We are on an iland about 15 miles long and 2 or 3
miles wide and the innamy is all around the iland and we have no way
to get off, we must fit our wey off. )

Our men are fighting every day and night. The other night there
was a battle at Kings Bridge where the town is on the iland. I am
in grate hopes I shall see vou all ageain but we expect a battle every
day. I am in hopes the town will be burnt in a few days--the English
would have burnt it before this time, but they want it for barracks,
but if they don't burn the town we shall.

Now more at present but you dutiful son,

George OBannaon

(Oath of James Foley as to writing) D
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Notes of interest:
Keith Obaunon was witness to the will of James Foley 14 Oct. 1793.
barriages in Fauquier Co. not mentioned above:

Obannon, Susannah Covert sartin 22 Oct. 1790
Obannon, Joyce Larrance, John 13 Mar. 1736
Qbannon, Betty Nelson, James ' 11 Feb. 1765
Obannon, . Nancy " Lawrence, Mason -24 Mar. 1788
Obannon, Ann. . : Farrow, Alexander 1753 .

Living in Fauquler Co. 1827
Joseph OQ'bannon - .
Benjamin O'Barmon .- : .
James O'Bannon S . . ,

Rev, War Records Va. ) . ‘ ¢,
John 0'Bannon ) . -
James 0-'bannon
Benjamin O 'Bannon .
Thomas ('Bannon B .
Aaron O‘Bannon ‘ ' .

Deaths: Bracken Co. Ky, . - :
Susan O'Bannion, 15 Qct. 1853, aged 73. " Born Fauquier Co. Va.
Parents--Wm. and B, Asberry. Widow, midwife.

Will of George Francisco, Woodford Co. Ky. 1805 names daughter
Nancy O *Bannon.

lMerriages in Kentucky - -
Obannon, Florence Geo. Gampbell Turner

i

Obannon, Nancy Coppage James, 19 Dec. 1791 Lincoln Co.
Obannon, Mary Jackson, "John, 3 Nov. 1813.Woodford Co.

Bondsman ¢ Wllllam O * Bannon
(waes Mary another daughter of w¢111am (4) son of Wm?)

0! Banno Susanna
CGEmiSSlOHFISS%Bd to Wllll%ﬁvbnﬁgﬁﬁgﬁyaszitq %%%Ollth Regt.
Woodford, Co. 25 Apr. 1797

Slave hol@ers in Versailles Ky. in 1810
John Qkennon 2 in family 17 slaves
Williem OBannon 4 in family 5 slaves

Joseph O'Banlon .was listed in the 1800 Ky, Census-Barren Cos In
© 1801 he bought 25 acres on Beaver Creek

liore and later marriages and deaths in Kentucky.
B¥lijah OfBannon.m Tebitha inn Browning, Harrison Co,-
29 Jan. 1833
" (Mrs. Sally Browning died at the Fayette Co. residence - ..
"~ of her dau. lirs. O'Bannon 18 Nov. 1854, aged 74 years.)
. nr. Alcennon J. O'Bannon m Charity ftunyon 14 Aprll 1835 :

(she was supposed to-be age 21) Mason Co.

Harriet, wife of Dr. I.J. O'Bannon 4 of cholera, 2 Nov. 1849
age 39 vears. Mason Co. .

Missé Elizabeth O'Bannon d of cholera July 1835 3951dent
of Russelville Ky.

M:Llley O'Banion b 3/8/1837, d 7/27/1885

Henry County Obitdery: James O'Bannon 1821-1908
" 'Susan F. O'Bannon 1835-1923 °
Hopklns County—-John Rs O'Bannen; 3 Apr. 1812-16 Sept. 1896
Zilphia J. O 'Eannon, 19 May 1828-10 May 1908

i




The following lines have not been completely established.

1. John O'Bannon, b 25 Nov, 1771, Paugquier Co. Va.,; m 1796 Elizabeth
(Polly) Allen who was b. 22 Apr., 1778, North Carolina.
Family tredition says his father®s name was William, and
that he moved to Mo. ca 1812 with brothers Thomes and Wm.
His first child was b. 1799, Tta child in 1812, and 9th and
youngest child was fenj. Allen O'Bannon.
John d 4 Fov. 1853, Pettis Co. Mo.

24 Prmslev Neville QO'bannon, listed in 1850 Ceunsus of Franklin Co.
I, as 32 years old, b. in Tenn. He m Marizs Morris, b ca
1824 in. Tenn. Children listed in Census were James Hite 5,
and Dora Ella 9 mo. Family tradition says his parents were
Presley (b ce 1790) and Mary Sherrill Waller 0°Bannon (b ca
179%)." He is supposed to have had a brother, Jemes Hite
O'Bannon, who d unm 1845, and a sister Mary Waller 0 *Bannon
(b ca 1825 Tern.) who m Peter Summers and had son Presley
O'Bannon Summers (aged 8 in 1850 Ill. census)
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John Preston O'Banion, b about 1827/8, Ky.; m ca 1847
' Ruth Turner, dau of David & Betsy Crews Turner

1850 Census Monrde Co., Ky, 5 Auvgust
Preston Obanion age 25 Occup. farmer real est. val. D. Ky.

Ruth ' 19 150
B Ilc 2 .ll
EliZabeth o 3/12 . "
George Obanion 27 - Parmer 150 Ky.
Sarah ’ 24. T n
James 6 "
John - 4 "
Margaret 1 "

#w# The fact that George and Preston Obanlon were the only two
Obaniong listed in Monroe Co. in 1850 and the proximity of
their ages might be an indication that they were closely re-
latedw~perhaps brothers? The name “George" as well as dau.
"Hargaret” might indicate a relationship to William (4) son
of William (j and Ann., The eldest dau of John Preston O'B.
(Mery Elizabeth) named one of her sons George and John's
second son was named William G. (G for George?) "Knowing the
names in-other branches might provide further clues to ponder.

According to the recollections and notes of Josie O°‘Banion
Coonradt, Florence 0'Banion Wait, and Allan ¢. O'Banion (Here-
after referred to as “notes") their grendfather John Preston
O*Banion moved from Monroe Co. Ky. (10mpk1nsv1lle) to Greenview
T13. (Menerd Co.) by covered wagon in 1857. At a later date
he moved to Maroa, I1ll. (Macon Co.)

1860 Federal Census, Township 19, Range 6 NMenard County, Page 114
lines 3%8-40; page-llSA, lines 1-6 State Archives-Records.

0'Banion, John P. ‘32 = Farmer Born Ky
Ruth 29 . u
Hlilas 12 n
MaTy B&. 10 "
William G. 8 "
Louisa Q. 4 n

Almonzo G. | 3 111,
Marlon W. 1 ﬁ

DeHar$, ‘Sarah 35 T

"Notes" Johan P. and Ruth had two moreaso%%o gurner and Charles,

The State Arch1v1bt, Springfield, I1l. 1ncluded 3 other 0'Banion
families from the 1880 census. The names may be of interest
to someone. Sangamon, Jackson and Scott Countiess
Henry 43, b Ky.; Biddie 40, b Ky.; ch., Emily 19, Ky; George 16,
Ky« Bettie 13, Ind., Amondia 11, I1l.; Mandy 7, Ill;
Henry 3, Ill; Abel 6/12 T11.

James A. 31, Ky.; Saxah Jde 27, I1l.; ch. Hattie 7, Ill.;
Willie 6, I11l,; Baward 2,I11.

James G. 38, Ill.; Martha 37, Ill.; ch. William, 15, Ill.:
Jona 12, Ill.; Charles 8, Ill.




That John Preston OfBanion lived in Maroa. Ill. is confirmed
by a letter written by his son Elias L. in 1302 following a trip 10
Kentuckys VIt was raining in keron when I gow to Fathen's home
and the train was three Jnurs iate". Whether John P, was still
living in 1602 is not clear from this levter. Howaver, Allan C..
O'Banion recells ‘that his brother Wilbur passed “hvough liaroa, Ill.
in 1896 and did not stop to pay a visit to his grandfather's hone,
which' annoyed his father, Elias L.

The County Clerk of Macon County, (Mar. 1967) wrote that
their death Tecords start in 1877. He had searched between 1877 and
1921 and could find no reccord of the deaths.of John Preston nor
Ruth Turner 0'Banion., He did have a record of a Caroline O'Barion
who died in 1906, ‘ :

"Notes® Children of John Preston and Ruth Turner O'Banion

Mary b 1850; m 1883 Thomas Wilmer Cleveland . A
(Cleveland Genealogys Thomas b 11 iar. 1843, New Market)
ch: - Alvin, living in Greenview 1934 . . '

George (his son, Logan, b.ca 1922)-
Dick
Emma m --Ogilvy and had ch: Fern and Ralph L X .
Quinty (was this Louisa Q% W%zaggngmarried mee=Barber dnd/for Heff
(Cousin Raymond Ba%ﬁ% Visited im Storm Ieke, Iowa

(Aunt Lee Barber d 27 Oct. 1948, bur. BEvergreen Cemetery,
Jacksonville, Fla,) : .

William G. No information

Almonzo b 1857, apparently nicknamed Sam.
Marion . b’'1859, ajparently nicknamed Merl.

Marl and Sam were printers in Chicago, Ill.
Turner Helped colonize Dos Palos, Calif. -ca 1890,

chs Marguerite, d age 9 : »
Qlaude d 1940s Calif.; m twice; % sons, 1 dau.

Charles .had barber shep in Chicago, IIl; d 1943, ‘
- chs Jennie, m ----Judy; living 1962 Ja@%onville, 111,
. Ruth m ----9tewart; living 1924 Coldwater, Kan
Dean b 18925 Florist and bootlegger in Chicago
mown as Dion O'Banion. Shot to death 10
Nov. 1924 by henchmen of Joseph Torrio and
Al Capone. @ Violag -=--. - ‘
Elias ILogen O'Banion, b 20 Jar., 1848, Glasgow, Ky.; d 28 Mar.
1928, Cherokee, Iowa.- : ‘ . .
m Frances A. Leavitt, dau Joseph (8) Leavitt”® '

Obituary irém.“The Register",~0herokée; Tows..

B.L. O'Banion, former business men and city official and a -
leading citizen of Storm Lake for many years, died at the hgmeAQf
his daughter, Mrs. B.H. Coonradt, 'at Cherckee, Monday of. this week
following an illness of some time.” :

. . Mr. O'3anion came to Buena Viste County in 1878, settling in
Maple Valley township. He later purchaged land in Washington town-
ship, where he carried on general farming until 1891. He then came
to Storm Leke and for five years succedgfully conducted a meat mark-
et. His fellow men, recognizing his wofth and ability, elected him
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sheriff in 1897. On his retirement he turned his attentions to
‘the real estate business and also engaged in the sale of farm
machinery and supvlies. : '

He filled the office of sheriff for one term and was a member
of the city council for 15 years, and in the spring of 1907 was
elected mayor of the city, in which position he gave a public
spirited, progressive and businesslike administration.  His offi-
cial record was always characterized by the utmost devotion to ‘
duty and he was always in thorough sympathy with every movement
towards benefitting the commmnity along substantiegl lines of pro-
gress. The following obituary was submitted to The Register by his
son~in=law Reve B.H. Coonradts

BORN IN KENTUCKY . E . ' ,

Elias L. O*Banion, son of John P. and Ruth (Turner) O'Banion
was born in Kentucky, January 20th, 1848 and.died at the home of
his daughter, Mrs. B.H. Coonradt at Cherokee, Iowa,.March 12, 1928,
having reached the age of 80 years,.l month and 22 days.

He moved with Kis parents to Illinois in 1857 where he was
~educated in the public schools of that state. .

March 13th, 1873, he was married to Pannie A. Leavitt and
celebrated with her the 50th anniversary of their marriage five
years ago. :

They became the parents of eight children., 'he eldest child
Guy, died at the age of nine vears. Clarence W., of Baltimore, Md.;
Josie G, or Nrs. B.He. Coonradt of Cherokee, Iowa; Walter J, of
Canton, .5.Ds; Archie L., of Senta Barbara, Calif.; Florence, or Mrs.
T.F. Waite, Storm Iske; Prof. Allan G, of Park Rapids, Minn.; and
Earl E. of: Ventura, California are all living. - '

The wife and mother departed this life August 7th, 1927. A
few days following, lir. O'Benion submitted to .an emergency operation,
since which time he had been confined to-his bed most of the time,
gradually declining in health until the end came.

PAYS TRIBUTE to MR. O'BANTON

Rev. B.He Coonradt, his son~inelaw,. offers this as a tribute

to Mr., .O'Banion: %I was related to Elias L. O'Banion by marriage.
I am glad to speak a word of tribute to his memory. Few men have I
met that could grow old so gracefully as did this man. He was in our
home for six months. His affliction could have given him reason for
conplaint but he did not complain, but submitted with patience to
the inevitable as it’'gradually dawned upon him. It was a delight
for us to.have him in our home and verform this ministry to him 'in
,'his lagt sufferéng. . . ’ .o N

' 'WUntil Februery 19th Mr. O'Banion had never professed Christ-
ianity, although he had been a, supporter of the church for years,
‘moral in life and elways interested in the cause of temperance. I
" had spoken to him soje days before about his personal- relationship
to Christianity and invited him to accept.. He sald he would think
“it over. On February 16th he told me’ that he was ready “o join the

- church. February 19th we “took him to the church where he deliber-

ately confessed his faith'inm Christ as ‘his personal Saviour ‘and was
baptized at my hands. From this act he apparently received great
satisfaction and said to me; "If I were able, I would write to one
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hundred of my friends." February z6th the eldexrs of the church
here held a communion service in his sick »oocm in which he
hearily participated. Le anticipated his departure with joy and
was glad to go. He was uncouscious for the last 48 hours and
sufferea 1atensely. Death was cextainly a great blessing to him
with no hope of recovery in ev1dence‘

WAS SHERIFF and MAYOR

Mr. O'Banion was for yvears a member of the 0dd Fellows lodge,
being one of /the eldest in Storm Laké. His business career began
as a farmer in the pioneer days., He later moved to Stcrm Iake and
conducted a meat market. In 1897 he was elected 10 the office of
sherif? and later served the city of Storm liake as mayor. Politi-
cally ne was & democrat and slwars true to his con®ictions. His

service in public office is a matter of memory to tie citizens of
Storm Lake,

FUNBERAL HELD WEDWESDAY

Funeral services were held at the Coonradt home, 452 Sumner
Street, Cherokee, Wednesday afternoon at 1:30 o'clock and at 3:00
from the Fiscug Funeral Home on West Fourth and Ontario Street,
Storm Lake, Rev., C.S. Kleckner, pastor of the Church of Christ
at Cleghorn and Rev. H.E. Malons, Fastor of the Storm Lake Church
of Christ officiating. DMembers of the I1.0.0.F. Lodge attended in
a body. Purial was in the.local cemetery.

o . - . S ST e e W e e e P S e G e e S e W

Blias and Prances O'Banion celebrated their 50th wedding
annlversavy on Christmag Day 1922. The celebration was held early
because their daughter, krs. Florence Wait wes leaving soon on a
trip to Ca11¢orn1a. After a separation of 20 years all of the
children were together on this occasion.

In 1926, the family gaﬁhered ‘once agaln to celebrate the
53rd anniversary at a reception planned by daughters Florence and
Josie.

Children of Blias and Frences (Leavitt) O'Banion

Guy' b 1876 Weldon, Ill; 4 1884, bur.: Storm Lake, Iowa

‘Clarence W. b 11 Sept. 1875 Weldon, Ill.; d ca 1944 Baltimore Nd.

Jogie G. b 21 Oct. 1877, Weldon Il1l.; & 4 Aug. 1962, Johnson
City, Tenn. DBuried Osage, Iowa. m Rev. B.H.
Coonradt;

Ch. Margaret (Hossom)
Imecille (Crouch)
Virginia (Davis)

Walter J. b 6 Peb. 1880; Storm Lake; d 2 Nov. 1963 Anaheim,
Calif., Bur. Canton, S.D. m (1) Olihe
(2) Ida : .
¢ch. Harold
Alice (Merty)
Kenneth
Doris (Rihm)
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Ch. of Blias and Frances O'Banion, cont.

Archie L. b 30 June 1882, Storm lake; d 18 Feb. 1956, Santa
Barbara Calif.; m (1) Helen Collins (d 22 Oct. 1937)
m (2) Nina Nichols Clock, April 1940. :
Sante barbera Hews Tress: Graduated 1908 from Iowa

State College in Ames with degree in Veterinary
medicine. ‘orked for federal gov, in livestock
ingpection until 1921, Santa Barbara; Founded and -
operated OfBanion Dairy; again worked for Calif..
Dept. Agr. as inspector 1947-1952,
Che. Helen (Winters)
Corlice (Wendling)

Florence L. b 14 Aug. 1884, Storm Lake
m TR, Wait
ch. Marguerite (Cornwell)

Allan Chester b 15 Sept. 1886, Storm Iake; m Ida Hesseth
ch, Allan C. Jr. b 1 July 1920 Park Rapids, Minn
n Ethel Wack 1941
d 22 Aug. 1966, Needles, Calif.,

Jean. . b 21 Jen. 1924, Park Rapids, Minn.
m Philip R. Bolenbaker, 1946 -
Barl L. b 23 Jan. 1889 Storm Leke; 4 1 Mar. 1965 ¥t. Dodge

Towa; m NellMpore Dec. 1913 Evanston Ill.
Residence ‘'wag in Sioux City, Iowa until moving
to Ventura, Calif. 1927. In dairy business with
brothers Archie and Allan and later, in charge
of Public Works Dept. Point Magu, Calif. Moved
to Fort Dodge, Iowa, 1964

che Virginia

#4% In the letter which Elias Logen O'Banion wrote to his rela-
tives in Ky. he mentioned several mames, apparently of the
Turner side. Because of these names and more pariicularly
because it is such a beantiful letter, I feel it must be in-
cluded in full.

July 19, 1902
Dear Uncle Herod & wife: :

Your welcome letter received some time ago, I was so glad to
learn that you were well and that you recovered so soon after I
left you. Dear Uncle, you spoke of the pleasure my visit gawe you.
I will not undertake to tell you of the pleasure it gave me to
make that long enticipated trip after forty--five years to your’
home and the other homes of our relatives.

It would be beyond the power I have to express my thoughts
to you either by word or pen.- We are all well at present. I
have so meny relatives there that I cennct write them each a
letter at this time, so I will write one and heve it copied so
that I can send one at least to each of the families of my Uncles:
Herod, Granville and Ben; then all my cousins and relatives can
Tead them. After I left your place on *he 21lst of May I had a
pleasant trip to Tompkinsville with Aunt Mirinda's boy. I can't
remember hisg name. It was a little hot at times whensver we were
out from under the shade of the grand old caks. Cousin Geo. W. -
Brown took me to the hotel and we passed a very pleasant evening.

I left Tompkinsville the next morning at 5 A.M. and arrived at

——
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Glasgow at 12:30 P.M. and at Hopkingville at 9 P.M. tired and
hungry. I went to & restaurant and ordered fish for supper and I
think I must have eaten a little too much for a late supper. I
was given one of those hot rooms which one finds din the hotels
down south in the summer time. I tried to sleep but I couldn't.
It seemed to me to be the hottest place in which I had ever tried
to sleeps But I really don't know yet whether it was the heat or
the fish that was the trouble. If it had been chicken in place of
the fish I would have been all right. Especially if I had not
eaten more than two pieces, the number that Francig Ann allowed
me to eat while with you.

But the morning finally came and at 4:30 AM. I tried to get
myself together to take the train for Paducah, Ken, I arrived
there at noon. It was still very warm. It was raining in Maroa
when I got to Father's home and the train was three hours late.

I went from there to Mendota where my sister lives on the 27th,
Then on to Chicago where I was joined by little Ruth O'Banion,
my youngest brother's girl, seven years old. She will spend the
summer with us. We reached Storm Leke Ia., on the 29th of May
and found the folks all well and anxious for me to comeé home.

Our pictures have come! 7You all look fine in them, but
myself, dJust look at me! It must have been the heat that made
my hair take so white. And I had one eye shut, but I think that
was caused by my watching that little mule of Uncle Herod's down
in the pasture. He stopped eating grass about that time and
looked up &t us. No doubt he had one eye shut too? How is the
little mule by this time?

We have had very wet, cold weather all the month of June. In
fact too cold for corn to do well and our wheat will be a very light
crops oats look fine and hay never looked better. It is still
¢old and rainy at this writing., I think if Uncle Ben were here he
might get it back on me in regards to keeping a fire all summer.

It was a grand visit to me those six days that I was with you
and after I had come away I wished that I had stayed longer, for my
visit wasn't half out, But I'll not wait forty-five years next time.
If T wait a year I'11l do well, and next time I'll stay longer than
six days with you. Heving visited you once, it will be easier for
me to go again, than not to. I have always thought a great deal
of my relatives on my Mother's side, although I hardly knew any of
you and many of my dear cousins, I hadn't ever seen before. But the
more I was with you the more I learned to love you all.

I love the name of old Kentucky, for it is my native state. Her
beautiful scenery is very dear to me. I love her grand old mountains
and the Rivers in their beautiful valleys: I love her People. I
loved to roam over mother earth where I spent my boyhood days.

“How degar to this heart are the scenes of my childhood;
When fond recollections presents them to view;

The orchard, the meadow, the deep-~tangled wild-woods,
And every loved spot which my infancy knew;

The wide-spreading forest and the mill which stood by it;

The dam and the rock where the cataract fells" )

The cot of my Pather has long been removed; and the golden grain

grows on the dear old ground. The old hill to the right that was

bare has long been covered with giant caks and the old spring,

where my Mother dipped the cold, sparkling water, back in the

fifties, from beneath the mountain-side has even changed its

former location. . o
I cannot express many of my thoughts which I had on our picnie




li2 . ’ S

day, but.one question kept running thro my mind all day, and that
was, Yis this my old home"s Thece was nothing left to mark th=
dear 0ld spot where CGrendfather once lived, but one lone. beach
tree, and the cruel woodsmen's ax had deadened that.

I visited the s.enes around “the old homestead where Uncle
_Herod once 1lived. The loved cues.that I had left there forty-five
years ago were all gone: some had found homes elsewhere. And some
had gene to the home beyond. Onz lone cedar tree stands there vet,
ag though it werée a monument. - The ‘old stone spring house which has
stood there for a half a.cen*uxy9 And the old rail. fence that
encloses the land down %o the creek, were tae two mos+t natural
things that I saw while viéiting the old homesteads of those I
love. - I walked up‘and down the ereek:in -the hot sun on our picnic
day, as you who were ‘thare’ well know, and tried to fish but it didn't
seem as it did once before. The fish did not- recognize me. I had
been gone too long, Thev just would.not bite. Dut it made me
think of the o0ld -days when I had better luck. Perhaps if T had
not had quite so much “to eat- ané nad a little harder time fishing,
my efforts wowlld have been more successful.

I remembered every thing as it was when I left there, but
nothing has remained the same--nothing seemed Iamllnal. Strange
as it may be and odd as it may seem to us, it is nevertheless
true that even the old pond in the creek has changed its abode and -
moved on down the stream. I looked for the prints of my barefeet
in the sand, but they too were gone;. .they wsre orice there for my
Mother saw me make them'there in-the sand with my bare-feet. But
like meny other things, time has done its work. I waited too long
i returning to find them there. If we could but turn the.wheels
of time backward forty--five years that we might catch a glimpse of
our .0ld. homes as they then were would we not enjoy it. We would —
see Grandfather s family on the old Homestead, where it is so barren
today. We would see, Unclé Herod's family on the old hill that
looked sc forgaken and whose tender memories made us SO sorrowful
.on, that las{ day we viewed it. We would see' the old mill and all
these- who helped to run it. We would see the little house where
Father and dMother 11ved and I could see myself, bare-footed;, at
the age of nine vearo, fishing and plow1ng corn. But time will
nov turn backward for us, not even for a moment. We can't stem
the tide, it must run its course. We have lived these years.

They have passed into eternity and nothing remaing but the memories
. of them. You that are still young mav look forward to the future; . |
to live lives .full of usefulness. Together with the havpiness and
joy of a life well spent. Youth is the seed time and I trust that
you will live to .reap a golden harvest.

Now we wish that you all might come and see us. If you only
could see our beavtiful ITowa in June, you would be.more than naid -
for the trip up here. Come that you might see her boundless prair-
ies, covered wi th wild flowers, hexr. oeau*zful rivers and lakes
dotted: over with. steam and sail boats. Her millions of acres of
corn, and Her great fields of golden grain, yielding a bountiful
havrvest to the reapers; Iowa means Beautiful Land, and it is well
named. While we have meny beautiful flowef'ss they cammot begin to
coupare with those of the south-land. I have seecn the sweet fra- .
graat filowers. of California, the more plzin hardier ones north to

Manitcha, aAd I have seen- the Mav-flowers and the trailing-arbutus,
of 014 Hew tinglend. Bu% the most beautiful of all the flowers I -
-have seen was the sweet scented red rose of Tennessee.
T it is possible for one to be forgiven .for writing so’ much
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at one time, you will have to forgive me just this once. I have
thought of you and the good time I had while there so much since my
return. One hears so much of the Hospitality of the south; I have
tested it now and find it a reality. ’

., VUrite to us as soon and whenever vou can. My Wife and Children
Join me with love and best wishes to all.

##%# It was my conclusion that his letter was written to relatives
in Keatucky because of the reference to Tompkinsville and to
thé-picnic in the area where Blias spent his childhood. EHowever,
another pogsibility exists. Iionroe County, and particularly
Tompkinsville, is next door to Tennessece, The reference to the
red rose of Tennessee and the indication that none of the family
still lived in the picnic area may mean that the relatives were
living in Tenn. in 1902,

Turner

. Research into the Turner and Crews families may help provide
the information needed to determine the parents of John Preston
O'sanion. $So far my work on those lines has been almost neglible.
Apparently some member of the Turner family started out to trace the
various branches and incorporate them in "The Turner PFamily lMagazine".
Only Vol. 1-2 (Jan. 1916-April 1917) was completed. Not knowing
enough about the branch in which I was interested, I was unable to
get much information from this magazine other than the followings

.An ancient house of Norman French origin; 35 different branches
of critish family. Barly Turners were millers and the distinguishing
feature of most coats-of-arms is the mill rend in which the center of
the millstone is set.

Humphrey Turner was in Plymouth, Mass. 1628
Henry Turner, -Northampton Parish, Va. 1672
by 1750 Turners were settled in North Carolina

"Notes"
1. There were relatives named Carter.
2. An uncle of Blias L. 0'B. was a confederate soldier who had
several horses shot out from under him.
3, lias T» 0'B. met cousin Gladys Turner while visiting south, 190z
4. Porents of Ruth Turner O'Banion were formerly of Culpepper Co.
Va. (David and Betsy Crews Turner)

Culpepper Co. Va. fromed 1748 from Orange Co.
Tax list Culpepper Va. 1783 included William Turner and
John Turner, Broomfield Parish.

Several Turner men were listed in the 1850 Census for Monroe Co., Ky.
A1l were born in Virginia, and age-wise might have heen related
to Ruth who was 19 (1850) though she was born in Ky. according
to the census.

David 22, snd Mery had child, Sarah.
James 30, and Mahaley had sons William and John
William, 26, and Jane had children: Sarah and James
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Crews

"Iy Kinsfolk" Iaura B. Crews 1941

As early as the 12th century there lived near the town of
Crewe, England, & people by the ndme of Crews. The suprosition

is that they took their name from the Crewe parish where they
lived. The name is veriously svelled, but all the spellings
except Kruse, which is distinctly German, ars English.

iost, if not a2ll, the Crews families of America are of ex=
tremely ancient 11neage and trace descent from the ancient Cheshire
and Devonshire lines.

... Virginia was the gateway bv which the Crews entered Amerlca.
Ancient state and county records, almost without number, prove. that,
Therefore it is certain that the ancestry of all the Crews families
in America go back to one of these lst Va. immigrants .

These uen named Crews came in large numbers in the first days
of Jamestown, mostly froum Cheshire and Devonshire, England. It is
1nterest1ng to note that kin often follows kin to & new land. . There-
fore it is probable that relationships moLe or less distamt existed
between these Virginia settlers.
‘ Among the first of the name in Amerlca weres
Randall Crew who cam over in the ®Charles" in 1621

Robert on the'Marmaduke" 1624 Joshua Crews in 1623 .
Josepn Crews on “"hkiarchmont"1624 Marie Crews on “the “Faulson" 1635
Rebecca Crewe 1635 Roger Crewe 1638
. John Crew 1642 John Crew 1649
Robert Crew 1681 Anne Crew 1652 -

Tnomas Crew 1652

None left anv definite records concerning 1mmed1ate families or

descendants.
John Crews was listed as a member of the Conventionl625, House

of Burgess, Va.

»







When mimeographing the first section of genealogical notes I
thought it possible a time might come when there would be some
additions-~perhaps the present generations only. Not anticipating
any lengthy supplement, it is with some surprise that I find myself
Once again floundering in a sea of paper and ink,

.. As a means of distinguishing this supplement from the first part
it is labelled Section II (SII). References to Section I are noted as
ol. Again I make no attempt to index names except as family names.
Because of the number of descent lines from the Bachilers and San-

borns I am ineluding the given name of the immigrant ancestors in
those families.

I would like to emphasize that the data on these pages must not
be considered incontrovertible fact. Almost all of it has been copied
from the printed work of others. TFerhaps it is reasonable to assume
that most of the information is fairly accurate since quite a number
of professional genealogists have gathered the material.

Most lines which go back to the immigrant ancestors are based on
land records, wills, church records, etc. In some cases the forebears
in Europe, at least for several generations, may be determined in the
same way. The vast majority of early American settlers came from
yeoman stock and the few who came from landed people were generally
younger sons looking for greater opportunities., All lines which pur-
port to go back to the so-called Gentry may be viewed with interest
but also with suspicion. There are some lines which appear to be well
documented and acceptable to the most reliable of the professional
genealogists. One of our Bradbury lines seems to fall in this cata-
gory through the paternal grandmother of Thomas (1) Bradbury--Anne
Eden Bradbury. (See page 41, SI). -

An example of the pitfalls in accepting the printed word as
gospel occurs in the Swett line. Though forewarned that "lhe Geneal-
egy and Family History of the State of New Hampshire" by Ezra Stearns
was a valuable reference but not always accurate, I found myself at
an impasse by accepting Jeremiah (1) Swett as noted on page 89 SI.
Meny times I found information on the Swett family and discarded it as
"wrong family" because it didn't include a son Jeremiah who could be
a father of Jeremiah (2).

The authenticity of our line back to Jeremiah (2) and his wives,
Sarah French and Mehitable Bryer, would seem to be established by
census records, cemetary markers, and one of my few attempts toward
legal proof, the letter from the Town Clerk of Belmont, N.H, stamped
with a seal as being a true copy of the records. (p 89 SI)

In following up this "new" line it was interesting, though not
surprising, to run across names from Section I. Some of them were pre-
viously discovered ancestors and others were slmply associated through
business, marriages, etc. Such is the case with Robert Tucke and
Anthony Taylor (p 26 SI and p 37 SII). William and Benjamin Flf%eld
and Edward Colcord were but 'possible' ancestors in Section I, Members
of the Mason family (p92 SI under Colcord) seem 0 pPOp Up as trou@le-
some in the lives of several of our ancestors--John Sanborn (p21 SII)
and the letter of Stephen Bachiler (p28 SII).

The "Bland-Smith" mystery (p2l1 SI) takes an intriguing turn when
we find ourselves descended from John (1) Smith of Watertown. The
latter John Smith could conceivably be a son of John (Smith) Bland--
they being the John Sr. and John Jr, on the list of early proprietors
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of Watertown.- On the. other hand the terms Junior and Senior wefe
C— sometimes used to distinguish between an older and younger man of
the same name though unrelated.

Accordlng fo. Donald'Jacobus in "Genealogy as Pastime and Pro-~
fession" the first names of early settlers were of three types--
English origin, Hebrew .origin, and those.intended to have a moral
31gn1f1cance. "The o0ld.English names, on account of their connection

~with the Church of England, were not in favor with the Puritans;
those who bore them were, as a rule, either not Puritans at all or
else had been christened before their parents turned Nonconformists."
‘In some cases 0ld family names were retained. "The most numerous
of the 3 types of names employed by the Puritans was the Biblical
group.  Here with the exception of thoroughly Anglicized names such
as John, James,. or Thomas the 0ld Testament patriarchs and prophets
were. the favorites.," The Church. of England had made common use of
New Testament names which made them unattractive to the Puritans.
The custom of picking a name by pointing at an open Bible with eyes
closed accounts for such unusual names as "Con31der" "Dellverance",
and even “Notw1thstand1ng“

L9N

Surnames often changed over the years, largelv due to poor
spelling abilities and printers errors. A good example is that of
¢he name Bach11er~Batchellor-Batchelder.’- :

A copy of this genealogy--Sections I and II--may be found in the
library at Gilmanton, N.H.




Corrections and Additions

Introduction SI: O'banions born in ¥onroe County, Kentucky -
Chart 1, SI: Birthdate Florence O’Banion—-8{28/1884

Death date Elizs Logan -O'Bbanion-l2 Mar. 1928 —
Death date Allan C. O'Banion 29 Oct., 1967 .
Bethesda Hospital, Crookston, Minn.,
i Buried Fertile, Minnesota
Neme and birthdate of Guy O*Banion from family Bible
Arthur Guy, b 22 Dec. 1873; d ‘14 Dec. 1882
Clarence Wilbur O'Banion 4 17 Sept. 1945, a suicide due
to i1l health. He married twice: '
1) Anna Collins of Sioux City Iowa 27 Aug 1900
b 17 Mar, 1876 Atlantic, Iowa .
bur. 1 Jan. 1908 Oak Woods Cemetery,
Chicago, Ill. °
2) Estelle Hutchinson 16 Apr. 1908
d 21 Dec. 1934, Baltimore, Maryland

Newspaper Clipping--Greenview, I1l1. 9 Jan. 1934
"Menard Resident.for 76 years, is 84 years of age.

Mrs. kary Cleveland, resident of this community for 70

years, is celebrating her eighty-fourth birthday, at her

home in this city, Tuesday.

Mrs. Cleveland was born in Monroe County, Ky., near -

Mammoth Cave, on Jan. 9, 1850. She came to Illinois with

her parents when she was eight years old. On liay 10, 1866,

she married Thomas W. Cleveland. Mrs. Cleveland is the

mother of three sons, all living, A.H. of Greenview; John C,

of Storm Lake, Ia.; and George of Philadelphia, Pa. There B
are nine grandchildren and nine great-grandchildren. Mrs. ~
Cleveland has one (#fsurviving) sister, Mrs. Lee Barber,

of Coldwater Kas., and one brother, Charles O'Banion, of
Coldwater, Kas."

(See S8I-p 107--this clipping would seem to indicate that
Quinty was also known as Lee unless it be her husband's name.
Second thoughts of Allan C. O'Banion=---"Cousin Raymond" was
Raymond Huff or Hough. Did Quinty marry twice??)

Chart 2 S{;

i

3
i

Chart 4 S5I1%:

Page 13 SI:

Elisha Swett instead of Jeremiah (1) Swett; b 2 Dec. 1751
Married Hannah Sanborn 10 Oct. 1782.
The two dates of his Will (1810-1819) (See SII p 3) may
be due to difficulty in reading an old record. According
to the recollection of Frances Leavitt O0'Banion, hgr
great grandfather died when her grandfather, Jeremiah,
was 14 years old, :

Jeremiah Swett was born 8 July 1783%; d 6 Jan. 1866.
Married Sarah French 24 Nov,., 1802.

Betsy Swett a4 23 July 1873 (Gilmaenton, N.H. Cemetery)

Sarah French m Jeremiah Swett, son of Elisha

(Paragraph 2) Thomas Leavitt moved to Hampton, N.H. before
March 1644
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Page 16 SI=

- v

Enily Noyes,  in. her book -on "Leav1tt Descendants of Thomas"

confused Joseph .(5) with Joseph' (4) Leavitt in reference

to the purchase: of land 24 Nov. 1752. I compounded the

error by repeating it. The follow1ng artlcle clarlfles

"and elaborates: - .

"Buxton—-Report of Proceedings at the Celebration.of the
» * Centenial Anniversary, 1872". J.M. Harshall 1874.
On 24th of Nov., 1752 Joseph Leavitt of York, tanner,
bought 3 full shares. or rights in New townshlp ~larra-
gansett No. 1 being 3/123 of -the whole town. Probably
not a. resident., One-of 3 to build mills 1761 on Little
River. Three.sons.Samiel, Daniel and Joseph. His great
grandson, Daniel Dennett, said Joseph. came. o Buxton in
1751 and purchased 3 lots for his sons--Jogseph on Little
River, Daniel on, Beedh Plain and Samuel (grandfather of

- Daniel Dennett) near Union Falls.

'Joseph (4) aied before 28 iar. 1768 for»on that day
Samiel and Daniel of Narragansett No. .1, Jeremiah of .-
York, John Nowell and Thomas Nowell of .York, and their
wives Eligabeth and Sarsh (daus. of, Joseph 4) conveyed
%o Joseph (5) ‘Leavett of Narragansetf, "six seventh
parts of one fourﬁh part of a certain grlstemlll in

“ ' said harragansett, which was our father's Joseph Leavit,

- late of bek, deceased, with ye apvurtenapces and ye

" land to’ yé said quarter of ye same mill which. lys on the
Bastern side. of ‘the Mi11 Brook and is supposed to con-
tain 2 1/2 acres™.  In’ 1791 Samuel to brother .Joseph
"gll my rlght in the 2 saw mllls in buxton.commonly
called Leavits Mllls".

Joseph (5), son of Joseph of Vork in 1766 bought Lot 8.
Range B,, 3rd Div, and in 1779 bought lot 9 and in 1772
the adaacent 1ot 7. He lived at Leavit's kills on
1ittle River.” Died 4 Avr. 1809 in 70th year, First
wife, ‘Sarah Bradbury {m_10. Nove. 763) dled 1774. Son
Joseph (6) born 12 Sept. 1765.

Page 17 SI: CoTr iy . I

I have been unable to find anv'further 1nformatlon on
Joseph (6) or Martha Batch Leavitt. However, I question
that Samuel Burbank was appointed guardian over Joseph (7)
and William (7) in 1819. At that time Joseph (7) was 27
years old. It may be a result of a Will made much earlier
by Joseph (6) and was a matter of legal settlement. Sam

Burbank was a contemporary of Joseph (6), having been b 1769.

Page 38 S5I1:

Marshall's "Centennial Report of Buxton" says that all of
the children, including ‘'posthumous‘child, of Jacob
Bradbury were included in his Will of 1718.



page 53 SI:
NEHR July 1967, "John Pike Pamily" by Anne Borden Harding
John Pike is said to have been registered in the Customs
House in Southampton as a ‘laborer of Langford®., To
. _qugte.Savage this was certainly done "to evade the de=-
. . Spicable tyranny of the regulations" goverring emigration.
. Joshua Coffin says "No laborer of those days had ‘two such
educated sons as Robert and John Pike Jr. Both were men
of ‘'marked prominence in the colony.” -

-John Pike apveared on 28 lar. 1654.for the town of Newberry
against John lerrill, . o ,

He was such a man of -independent mind as Wwould have de-
lighted Bobby Burns. In Pebruary 1638 he was 'fined 2
spllllngs and six pence for .'departing from tovwn meeting
without leave and contemptuously'. - -

He endedrs himself to us by his very humaness.- When in
an -argument with Thomas Bloomfield he laid hold of his
coat; - ‘the latter slipped out of it and ran away. Where-
upon John Pike, enraged by such cowardice, calmly cut the
coat to ribbons.". o . - C-

page 63 and Corrections and Additions SI: . o
liore -work needs to Ve done on the French family. The
Boston Transcript, & newspaper which ran a genealogy
question and answer column for & mimber .of years, had some
queries in the 1930s by reésearchers on the Ford-Dearborn
family. Apparently Henry (6) Ford married a daughter of
Moses (5) French and his wifeé Mary Dearborn French. The
questioner -asked for further information concerning the
~mother (and grandmother) of Moses (5). - The mother, Mary
" - -Collins, b Salisbury, Mass. 1 May 1698 married 23 Nov. 1721
- Samiel’ (4) French (b 1699) son of Déacon Joseph and Hamnah
French. lioses (5) b 20 Dec. 1736
page 90 SI: (also p 7 SII) Fifield ,
‘Deletedate” of death of lMary Fifield, wife of William
NEHR- Vol 50 p 48: William Fifield, aged about 80 and Mary
" Pifield, aged about 76, testified that they khew = Willix
- family, "William Fifield and liary his wife appeared this
2nd day of May 1696, made oath to6 the truth of all above
written before me." Henry Dow, Justice Peace, New England.
(##1t is possible that MHary was. related to lirs. Willix. See
' Ruth Dalton's Will in the.chaper on the Parkhurst family

SII B 33.)
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Rev. Stephen reter Coffin Joén Greenleaf N
Bachiler 1580-1628 "ngl. n Margaret ) ¥
1561-1660 m Joanna Thember (probaple grsndparents) %
d 1661, Wess. [~ A o
John Sanborp====== | R . ) } Leaf
b ab 1650 Lnn Bachiler Tristram Coffin uQmund Greenlea
b “ d Zng. b 1601 .ng. 1605-1681 1590~1670/1
- m Dionis Stevens m Sarah Dole
dau Robert d 1663
Lt Jéhn Sanporr: Tristram Coffin Jr.====Judith illianm  fRdward
b ca 1620-1692 1632-170L Greenlesaf wifield Colcgrd
m lary Tuck dau n 1652/3" 1626-1705 ce 1620- ca 1618-
nobert 1700 1631
m ary m Ann b 1622
1 - T - T 1
John Sanborn Jr.== = ========Judith Coffin 3en jo=======Mar .y
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b 1683
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Abi, ail Sanborn 1713/b-1802/10 . ‘
m Ceac. Llisha (L) Swett, son of Lt. John

D T e

t. 3 .
Slisha Swett 1751-will 1310/10 (?)
m 17382 Hannah Sanborn, bLeae. Jeremiah

0 .

Jeremiah Swett 1783-1856
m Sarah French, cau ..zekial



Peter Wears

Rebert Page Jehn Hussey Rev. Stephen
of England m 1593 Engl, Bachiler
a 1617 Mary Wood 1561-1660
m Margaret d 1660, Mass.
I} l ! !
John Swett Nathaniel Weare Robert Page Christopher==========Theodata
to Mass, d 1681 Mass. 1604-1679 Hussey Bachiler
1642 m Sarah m Luey ca 1596-1686 159 _-1649
m Sarah 1607~1665 m bef. 1630
d 1650
s 1 ! 1
Capt. Benjamin===Hester Weare Thomas Page ==Mary Hussey
Swett 1629-1718 1639-1686 1637-1733

ca 1626-1677

m 1 Nov. 1647 m 2 Feb, 1664

14 - T

o

=====Bethia Page
1679-173

L

Lt. John Swett=== ==
1670-1753

m 3 Oct. 1696

l
Deac, Elisha Swett 1705-1/111 1788
m (2) 10 Feb. 1736 Abigail Sanborn
1713/16-1802/10 dau John and Mehitable F. Sanborn

i
<lisha (5) Swett 1751-will 1810-19 (?)
m 10 Oct. 1782 Hannah Sanborn
b 1751, dau I'eac., Jeremiah and Abigail T. Sanborn

t
Jeremiah Swett 1783-1866
m 2l Nov. 1802 Sarah French, dau Ezekial French

!
Betsy Swett 1816-1873
m 1 Oct. 1837 Joseph (8) Leavitt

ya qLQ12917
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1643-1773 Batchelder Batchelder Tilton
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veac., Jeremiah Sanborn============ m==z==z.=m = == fipigail Tilton
1730-1772 1729-1816
m 1749
hARBRS — —— ; .._1 " . -t ———— ——— - N e e v ean (ne e e v —e———— .
Hannsh Sanborn b 1751 i

m 10 Oct, 1782 ilisha (5) Swett, son of Deac. Slisha Swett

1
Jeremiah Swett 1733-13866 N
m Sarah French, dau Hzexial French
2l Nov. 1802



. SWEDT GENEATOGY: Descendants of John Swett of Newbury, Mass.
Everett S. Stackpole 1914
The Journal Printshop Lewiston, Me.

(New York City Public Iibrary)

e

[ Jeremiah Swett, b Gilmanton, N.H. 8 July 1783,
m (1) Sally French 24 Nov. 1802 ~
(2) Mehitable Bryer
(see N.H. Genealogy Vol III p 1324)

children listed as those from Town Clerk of Belmont, N.H.
in my genealogy page 89 except-----

fhstead of Jeremiah Jr b 19 Nov. 1806 this book listed
Rev. John b 26 Pec. or 19 Nov. 1806, m Nancy Jane
Baton 12 June 183%2, d Toledo, Iowa 18 Dec. 188

(We know Jeremiah Jr. existed because of the stone inr
Gilmanton Private Cemetery---

BELD
Jeremiah Swett
Died
Aug. 27, 1840
Ae. 34 yrs. .

Son of Jeremiah and Sally Swett
e R L I o I R e D

)

-5 Elisha Swett, b Kingston N.H. 2 Dee.-1751
m 10 Oct. 1782 Hannah Sanborn of Kensington, dau of
Dea Jeremiah and Abigail (Tilton) Sanborn
Will 1810~1819 names wife Hannah, only son Jeremiah and
only one dau. Deborah.

Jeremiah (m Sally French and Mehitable Bryer)
Deborah b 19 July 1789, m 14 May 1812 John Allen of Gilmanton
Abigail b 10 July 1794

4 Beacon Elisha Swett, b 30 Sept 1705
m (1) 11 Nov. 1729 Sarah Tilton, dau Capt. Joseph and
Margaret (Sherburn) Tilton of Hampton. -
Ch., Esther, Joseph and Stephen
(2) 10 Feb, 1736 Abigail Sanborn, dau of John and
Mehitbel (Fifield) Sanborn
Ch. Stephen, Sarah, Abigail, Hannah, and Elisha

m (1) 3 Oct. 1696 Bethiah Page, dau of Thomas and Mary
(Hussey) Page. Mother of all children.
(2) Mrs. Sarah Brown 10 Nov. 173%6

ch. Huldah, Sarah, John, Elisha, Benjamin, Nathan

2. Capt. Benjamin Swett, born Eng. as early as 1626
m 1 Nov. 1647 Hester Weare, dau of Hon. Nathaniel

Weare of Hempton. (Other books say she was the
dau of Peter Weare and sister of Nathaniel--will

check further.

|
|
\
\
|
3,  Lt. John Swett, born Hampton 17 Mar. 1670
\




gh. of Capt Benj. and Hester (cont)
Hester, Sarah, Mary, Mary again, Joseph, Moses, Benjamin,
Hannah, Elizabeth, John, and Stephen.

1 John Swett, in Newbury, Mass in 1642 with wife and 4 sons
Wife Sarah d 11 Dec., 1650, He d 13 June 1651
ch. John Jr., Joseph, Stephen, Benjamin

New England Hist. Register 10-271 Senborn Family
by Nathan Sanborn .

1 'John? b ab 1600 m Ann Bachilor, dau of Stephen.

(Stephen Bachilor b Eng. 1561, lended Boston with widdwed

dau Ann and her 3 sons. Went to Lynn, lMass where dau

Theodate was already settled with .husband Christopher Hussey)

2 Lt. John b 1620%2 m (1) Mary Tucke, dau of Robert (d 30 Dec. 1668)
(2) Margaret Moulton, widow, dau Robert Page

3. John Jdr. b 1649, m 19 Nov. 1674 Judith Coffin (a"%0 Nov. 1723 age 74)

4, John b 1683, m 1 Jan 1707 Mehitahbe Fifield, Kingston

5 Abigail b 1713, m 1736 Elisha Sweatt (4)
+ 4+ + + +
3. Nathaniel, bro of John Jr. b 27 Jan. 1666

m (1) 1691 Rebecca Prescott (d 1723)
(2) Barah =-- .

4 Richard, 1693, m (1) Elizabethe--- . .
(2) 1753 Judith Prescott, widow.

5 Jeremish, 1730, m Abigail Tilton.
6. Hannah, 1751, m Elisha Swett (5)

{



. -Section II Swett - 1
o e . - s Chart 7 -
Correction and additions to page 89, Section I

1 John Swett: b 1580 (Gompendium of American Genealogy)
* d 13 June 1651/2
m Sarah 7 4 11 Dec. 1650 America

: ~ "Degcendants of John Swett of Newbury, Massachusetts"
& by Everett S. Stackpole 1914

Just where John Swett of Newbury came from has"not been
learned. He brought a wife and 4 sons with him. Admitted
freedom of Mass. Colony 18 May 1642, he was one of the grant-
ees of Newhury 7 Dec. 1642, He must be carefully dise
tinguished from John Sweet of Boston. Wife Sarah 4 11 Dec.
1650. He may have had a second wife, Phebe, who died a
widow, 6 May 1665. He lived on the first lot east of the '’
old landing on the north side of Parker's River.

The monument erected on the lower green at Newbury to the

memory of the first settlers does not bear . the name of Jehn

Swett but of Stephen, his son, it being then supposed that

Stephen was the first of the family to settle in Newbury.

Children of John (1) and Sarah Swett :
John Jr. b ab 16035 m Mercy Rouse 2) Jane Hodges?

" Joseph " m Eliz. Taylor 2) Mrs. Mary Buttolph
Stephen b ab 1620 m Hannah Merrill 2) Rebecca Smith
Benjamin b ab 1626 m Hester Weare, dau Nathaniel Weare

(##Presumably John Swett had other cEiI&ren who did not
accompany him to America.’ ’

"NEHR" Vol 6, p 49: "“John Swett, like his associates, NathanieF
Weare, John Emery etc. was & devout low church man, re-
publican, and man of thought and action."

2 Capt., Benjamin Swett: b ab 1626 England; 4 29 June 1677

m Hester Wearel Nov., 1647 (4 16 Jan. 1718)
Lived 7 years in Newbury on Woodbridge Farm just east of the
upper green and about where the Woodbridge School now stands.
Removed to Hampton Falls, N.H. The Gove House where poet
Whittier died stands very near the site of Benjamin's house and
-the enormous elm tree close by is said to have been brought
from England by Swett's brother-in-law, Nathaniel Weare. ]
Captain in militia and commended the expedition to.Black Point,
Scarborough where he was killed in battle with Indians 29 June
1677. Widow m Ensign Stephen,Greenleaf 31 Mar. 1679. She

died 16 Jan. 1718 aged 89 at Hampton, N,.H.

Captain Swett was. one of the leading men of Hampton and a brave
military officer.

“"Soldiers in King Philips War"™ Rev. Geo. . Bodge
“"Benjamin Swett, active and energetic, was early c@osep to
places of trust in town and community but he was inclined
to military exercises and was chosen Ensign of phe military
company of Newhury as early as 1651. After moving to Hamp-
ton he was prominent and influential in both civil and
military affairs, o
He remonstrated against the court in 1671 for aprointing
Robert Pike as Sargeant Major instead of leaving the cholce
To the people. (Document preserved in the Mass. Archives,
Vol, 67, P 57T)




2 o311 Swett cont.
He held the rank of Lieuwftenant in 1675 and marched with a small
company into the wocds to recover the body ef Goodman Robinson.of
Exeter, killed by. Indians.,  He was also a recruiter in 1675. A
Captain in 1677, he was called to command troeps and go to Black
Foint where Indians had been making daily attacks on York, Wells
and Hampton. His group was young and untrained. He marched up one
gside of the hill and his ILieutenant up the other. The Indians fired
on both and the men scattered and more or less shifted for themselves
while a few bore the brunt of battle. ILt. Richardson was killed seon.
Capt. Swett received "near twenty wounds, yet still held out defending
and encOuraging his men until he was surrounded with more of his
_ enemies than he was able to grapple with and so was'at the last hare~

berously murdered by them within a little of the Garrison house.
There were slain at this time somewhat above 40. ¢f the English and
13- of the friendly Indians that assisted, very few escaping but were
either killed right out er 'dangerously weunded'". :

(told by Mr. Hubbard, historian of the war)

- Children of penjamin and Hester Swett (seven childrenfrecorded in
: Newbury and four in Hampton)- - :

Hester b 17 June 1648 Abrgham Green 5 Sept 1668

m
Sareh 7 Nov. 1650 m Morris Hobbs 1678

ary . . 7 Jan., 1651 4 young

ary .. 2Nay 1654 m Richard Waterhouse 3 Dec. 1701
Joseph =~ " 21 Jan 1658 m Hannah 2) Sarah Andrews
Moses 16 Apr. 1661 m Mary Hussey

penjemin .. 20" May 1664 m Theodora Hussey

Hannah' 16 Lar. 1665 m John Rust 12 lay 1682

Blizabeth 2 May 1667 m John French? 8 Dec. 1709

John = - 17 dar. 1670 m Bethid Page .
Stevhen ° 13 July 1672 m Mary Kent

3 Lt. John Swett: b Hamnton 17 Mar. 1670. s
- d Kingston 3 Sept 1753

m1l) 3 Qct..1696 Bethia-Fage, dau Themas and

- . Mary(Hussey) Page
b-23 May 1679, d 16 Apr. 1736 ,
2) 10 Nov. 1736 dirs. Saran Brown (4 17 Apr. 1756)

John Swett bought a farm from his brother-in-law John Page.
His will, dated 16 June 1748, names: .

huldsh® b 16 July 1699 m Sam Winslow

" Barah’ 23 Dec. 1700 m Thomas Gage-or fGeorge
John * "4 Dbec. 1702 - m Judith Young
Elisha 30 Sept. 1705 m 1) Sarah Tilton; 4 10 Oct. 1755
2) Abigail Sanborn
penjamin. 17 Oct. 1707 m Abigail Darling
Wathan 9 June 1711 m 1) Mary Dearborn

293 rs. Jane Garland




SIT - 3

4 Deacon Elisha Swett:. b 30. Sept- 1705; 4 ca 1788 .
"m 1) Sarah Tilton,. dau-of Capt. Joseph ‘ana
Cm s e a e . Margaret (bharburn) Tllton
e A 2) Ablgall Sanborn, daw of John and Mehitabel
" “(Pifield) Sanborn. m 10 Feb. 1736
T - ' 'Y Hampton 6 May 1716 d 10 Mar. 1802
LIVed in- Klngston, N.d.
* Captain in Crown Point Expedition of 1756
Will dated 10 June 1778; Probated 29, hov., 1788
Chitdren of Eljsha (4) and Sarsh T. Swett '
- Bsther 7, Aug. 1729 - m Capt. John Judkins 8 lov. 1750
Joseph ' 9 Jan. 1732/3 m-Hanneh Sleeper :
stephen 18 Dec. 1734 4 7 Apr. 1736 . :

thldren of Ellsha and Ablgall S. Swett
- =710 Stephen: b 21 May 1739 m Sarah:Garland .
C o, 7 Parah ~

' . 4 Jan, - 1741 unm 1789 .
yE v T Abigail 18 July 1744 m Capt.- John Moody
< - Harnnah 13 Apr, 1747 m Thomas .Swett
Ellsha 2 Deo. 1751 ‘m Hannah . Sanborn

t

5 Ellsha Swett. b Klngston N.H. 2 Dec. 1751 :
m Hannah ‘Sanborn, dau’ of Dea. Jeremiah and
Abigail (Tilton) Sanborn of Kénsington.
b 30 Nov. 1751
leea Gilmanton N.H., settling there in 1781
Will 1810-1819 names wife Hannah, only son Jeremiah and
only one dau. Deborah.-*
Children of Hlisha (5) and Hannah S.-Swett
, Jeremlah b 8 July, 1783 m 1) .Sally French
, " 2). Mehitabel Bryer
' " ‘Déborah 19 July 1789 m.John Allen 14 May 1812
' Ablgall © 10 July 1794
afd The spread of years betweeil ohildren seems unusual.
d ’erhaps there were others who dled young 3

6 Jeremldh Swett b’ Gllmanton, N.H. & July 1783, a6- ‘Jan. 1866
(See p 89, bII) m 1) 24 Nov. 13802 Sally Freénch 'dau hzeklal anad
" -Hannah (Ordway) French’
'2) iehitable ‘brye¥; d 22 Aug. 1877
Children of. Jeremiah (6) and Sally Swett . ‘
Rebecca b 11 Mar. 1803
benjamin 29 Oct. 1804 m 22 Dec., 1830 Abigall dau of
. o Archilaus - roore
‘Jerémieh 19 Nov. 1806 'd 27 Aug. '1840-- -
Elisha * ‘8 Dec. 1808 m SYarah Bragg 1848; den Alex~
Co ‘ ' -ender bragg, b 1527-h01t0n Vt.

Jethro ' 16 lLay 1811 -

Mary Ann = 28 Aug. 1813

betsey 28 Arr. 1816 m Josenh’ (8) Leavitt 1837
William 17 June 1821 m lariah'H. Tage: 25 Apr. 1854
Dixi 29 Oct. 1823 E

.....

(m,,btackpole did not include son Jeremlah  His gravestone
in Gilmanton reads: 4 27 Aug. 1840 age. 34, son of
Jeremiagh and Sally Swetty Stackpole s list did include
Rev. John, k' 26 Yec, or -19 Nov.. 1806; m Nancy Jane Eaton
1032, d Toledo, Iowa 18 Dec. 188%. Elther there were
twins or Rev. John belongs to someone else.)




4 SIT - Weare Chart 7

1 Nathaniel Weare: b -~ " d 1681 Nantucket '
m Saran_
- Nathaniel Weare was an early settler in Newbury, Mass.
He later acquired property on Nantucket Island
‘ Some of the children of Nathaniel and Sarah Weare
Hester (Esther) b ab 1629; 4 16 Jan. 1718
. m 1) Benjamin Swett 1 Nov. 1647
2) Stephen Greenleaf

Na'thaniel b England 1631; m Bliz. Swain 3 Dec., 1656
) - . ) dau Richard Swain
Mary . b m John Swain, son of Richard

NEHR Vol 25, p 246 "Families of Weir or Wyer in N.E."
' © . William S. Appleton _
The family of Weir is one of good standing in Scotland whose
name is said te.be the same as Vere. In the .early years in
this gountry were persons spelling their name Weare, Weir,
Weyer, Wier,. Wyer, all probably intending the same name and
many if ‘not all, belonging to one family.
1. Robert Wyer of Boston, wife Mary, soh John b 11/1/1646
2. Peter Weare who d 12 Oct. 1653 Newbury L
34 Another Peter whose name found in all forms of spelling,
was a prominent citizen of Kittery and York, freeman
in Mass. 1652 and several times in Mass. Col. Rec¢ord.
(Compendium of American Genealogy-p 891---Peter Weare
1616/9-1692 from England 1635. Settled Kittery, Me.,
later at York. Kiled by Indians.) '
4. William Weare d boston 1658
5. Nathaniel Weare or Wire was early in Newbury and after-
ward Nantucket where he d 1681. He had dau Hester the
wife of Benjamin Swett, and a son Nathaniel who m
Elizabeth Swain and d 13 May 1718 leaving sons Nath-
3 aniel and Peter. '
I know of no clue to the origin of any ef these men but it
was likely Scotland from whence certalnly came Edward liyer
b 1622 Scotland, and was in Charlestown, liass in 1658. It
may be possible he and Robert of Eoston were sons of the
first Nathaniel '6f Newbury. Nathaniel and Robert were
commen names in, the Charlestown line.

(### Others say that Nathaniel (1) was & son of Peter Weare,
possibly the abeve Peter #2%)

"History of Hampton®  Dow .

Honorable Nathaniel Weare, son of Nathaniel, an early pro-

prietor of Newbury Mass., born Eng. 1631, m Blizabeth Swa1n.

One of the most influential men in Hampton and the province.

He went to England twice as agent to lay grievances of the

people before the King. He was a councilor for more than

20 years and in 1694/5 was Chief Justice of the Sunreme

Court. He later continued as a Justice of the Feace.

Weare Arms, Seals and Signatures prerared by Wm. M. %argent:
This paper showed the signatures of Chief Justice ¥ath-
sniel Weare and- some of his descendants along with seals
showing fragmentary impression of Coat-of-Arms. These
can be comvared with  "Burke's Armory" description of Arms
of Weare of Wear-Gifford, County of bevon.--"Argent on a
bend vert, between 6 crosses crossledl fitchie gules, 3
¢roziers or" )

AEHR Vol 6, p 49 "In 1695 Wesre, aged ab 60, deposed that in Y

aoout the vear 1655, my brother-in-law Benjamin Switt.....
e c.




Page  SII 5
Chart 7

Robert Page Sr.. a England.July 1617 (W1ll dated & Proved)

. 1m Margaret
Children: Robert b 1604 m Lucy ]

? omas
Rebecca bp 1608
Henyry - 1610

Francis Y1612

13 Robert Page: b Ormsby Co. of Norfolk Eng. 1604; 4 1679
- m Lucy , b 16075 d 12 Nov. 1665, age 58

Robert Page came to.N.E. 1637, aged 33, with wife ILucy,
aged 30, children Francis, Margaret and Susanna and 2
servants: William Moulton 20 and Ann Wadd, 15.
Records of Hampton show him to be one -of the most active)’
energetic, and influential of men. Selectman many times,
General Assembly, Marshal® of old County of Nerfolk, built
first saw mill. Highest taxed of the 76 persons in 1659--
equaled 1/20 of total. Always assigned a front seat-place
of honor. The only deacen of church for more than 20 years.
Apparently however; he was unable to write his name--at
least he always used a mark.

Children ef Robert and Iucy Page o

Margaret b 1629 m 1)Wm Moulten, 2) John Sanbern

Susan 1631 prob 4 yeung -
Francis ¢« 1633 m 1669 leribah Smith
Rebecca 1636 m Wm. Marston Jre.
Thomas 1639 m Mary Hussey
‘ : Hannah 1641 m Henry Dow Jr. .
- . Maxry . 1644 m-Samuel Fogg- :

Will of 1679 names chlldren Margaret Moulton, Mary Fogg,
Hannah -Dow, ‘Francis and Thomas; Grandchildren Rebecca,
{wife of John Smith &.dau of Rebgcca Marsten), .itobert

" (son,of Thomas), John, and son~in-law-Wm. Marsten.

2 Thomas Page b 1639; d 6 Sept. 1686

m 2 Feb 1664 Mary Hussey, dau Cnrlstowher

thldren of Thomas and Mary -Page:

Mary b 1665 m-Samuel Robie 1690

Robert 1667 4 1686 -

Christooher: 1670 m 16&9 Ablgall, dau Daniel and
Mehitable (Sanborn) Tilton

John -1672 m and sold his farm to John Swett; removed
to Cape May where he died young.

Theodate 1675 d young :

Stephen 1677 4 1714, m mary Rowllngs 1701

Bethia 1679 m John Swett

bethia Page: b 23 liay 1679; d 16 Apr. 1736
> Dot . m 9 DecY 1696’John Swett, son of Benjamin Swett

John Swett bought the farm of his brother-in-law,
John Page.

c!

References: NEHR 26, p 75 — ‘
nGeneulogical Dictionary"  OSavage



é SII Hussey
Chart 7

According to Patronymica Britannica: "According to Stapleton's Rotuli
Scaccaril Normanniae Osbert de Hussey who was living #n 1180 was so
nemed from le Hezu, a fief in the parish ¢f Grand Quevilly near Rouen.
And one ienry de la Hosse, or Henze held interalias, the sands of
Hosse+++In an old account of the Hussey family, the name is said te be
Touasi de Hosa--from a 'boot of buskin®' and the crest borne was a boot"
John Hussey: of Dorking in the County of-Surrey England
m 5 Dec. 1593 Mary Wood or Wooding
Circumstences, indicate that they were people of. good sdanding.
He died in Bngland and records show that his children wers:
"+ " John died young :
Christopher (possitly the son bpt 18 Feb., 1599
one or more daughters

1. Christopher dusseyve b 1595/6; a 6 nar. 1686, buried Hamvtou.
B m 1) Theodata bachiler, 159 -1649%
" 2) hnn, widow of Jeffrey Mingay, 9 Dec. 1658

Chiidren of Christoﬁner and Theodata Hussey
Stephen- 1630 m 8 Oct. 1676 Martha Bunker, dau of William

Joseph Repr. Hampnton 1672
John 1635 -m Rebecce~Perkins
Mary 2 Apr. 1637; d 21 Jan. 1733

m 1) Thomas Fage, 2) Henry Green
: . . .+~ 3) Henry Dlow
Theodata 23 aug.21640- (dampton
Huldeh ~ 1643 m John osmith (the “Cooper")
Christovher hussev was probably among the parishioners of
Stephen sachiler who went to Holland with others to avoid
nersecution. Only after his promise to emigrate did Stephen
consent to the marriase of ‘his daughter, Theodata, to Chris-
topher, They were married in fngland either before or after
the: Holland exodus.
vhristopher and 'Wheodata sailed on "Yilliam and Francis"
fhe frem Southampton zomatime may 1630 gnat resched Charlestown
23 Juty 16%0. " They settled in Saugus (Lynn, Mass.) and were
joined 2 years later by Stephen Bachiler.
Christopher became a prominent man when ne later moved to
Newbury: first Deacon of church, Cagt. of Kilitia, town clerk
selectman in 1636, Court revresentative
In 1638/9 he moved to Hampton with his family, including
his mother, lary, and his father-in-law Stevhen Bachiler.
"among the grantees of Hawypton, N.H. was ‘'Christo' aussev and
e widow, Mary Hussev, the latter nresumed tc be his mother,
widow of John. They resided on opposite sides of the meeting
house. green, the 5 acre house lot of the widow being later
the site of the Town House..... In 1650 seats iu the Meeting
House Wwere assigned to 'ould mistris husse and her dafter
nusse'. No record of such a daughter avnears--it may have
referred to the wife or dau of Mary's son. Wwiliow russev
diec 16 June 1660." ,
It is supnposed that a record of death 20 Oct. 1649 refers
to Caristopher's wife but it may be tneir dau. as her death
appeers or: the same date. Christopher uwarried again in 1658.
Ii 1650 he sold all his property in Hampton and moveda to the
"Falls" side.
4 sea captain for a time he was erroneously said to have died
on the coast of Florida. ' :




Hussey (cont.) 7
"Pifield-Chart 6 SII

Christopher Hussey was one of the first purchasers of land on
Nantucket Island. Though his name appeared on the monument in .
the o0ld burial ground of Nantucket as being one of the male
members of the settlement buried there, he never actually lived
there but passed that property on to his son Stephen. Stephen
also acquired the property of Robert Pike, and was the only one
of the family to live on Nentucket. He died there 2 April 1718.

Christopher incurred -the displeasure of the General Court by
petitioning, with others, for a mitigation of the sentence of
Capt. Robert Pike for seeming to uphold speaking in public withe
out a license,

He was a commisgioner in the charter when N.H. was made a royal
province. As one of the original settlers of Hampton he was
aprointed one of six governing councilors for the newly organ-
ized state of N.H. in 1679

It is believed he died in Hampton where, according to the record
he was buried 8 March 1686.

NEHR-1897 Victor Sanborn  (Norfolk Deeds 11, 437)
"April 8, 1673 Bdward Colcord of Hampton ae 56 and William-
Ffifield of Hampton testify that when Mr. Stephen Bachiller
of Hampton was upon his voyage to England they did hear Mr,
Bachiller say unto his son-in-law Mr. Christopher Hussey that
in consideration that said Hussey had little or nothing from
him with his daughter which was then married to the said
Hussey, as also in consideration that his said son Hussey and
his wife had been helpful unto him both formerly and in fitting
him for his voyage and for other considerations, he did give
to the said Hussey all his estate consisting in cattel, house-
hold goods, and debts, for which his aforesaid gift he also
gave a deed in writing and delivered a copy thereof to the
said Hussey".

2 lary Hussey: b 2 Apr. 1637/8
m Thomas Page 2 Feb. 1664

References: "History of Hampton" Dow ‘
"Gen., and Fam, Hist. Maine and New Hampshire" Stearns

"History of Nantucket”" Alexander Starbuck

"Nantucket Odyssey" Emil F. Guba .
"Genealogical Guide to Barly Settlers of America' Savage

PP RUR PR RIS AL 2t e I ot o e A e i
Fifield See page 90 (SI) and 2nd page of Additions (SI)

1 William Fifield: b ca 1614; d 18 Dec. 1700
m liary (living 1696--see Corrections SII)

2 Benjamin Pifield: b ca 1646; 4 1 Aug. 1706
m Mary (2) Colcord 28 Dec. 1670

3 li:ehitabel Fifield: b 9 Apr. 1687
m John (3) Sanborn 1 Jan. 1707




8 sII Colcord-Chart 6 (See Section I, p 92)

Edward Colcord: b 1615/17; 4 10 Peb. 1682
minm  a2b 1640
(### This might be Ann Wadd who came to America as
a servant of Robert Page in 1637, age.15)
"Genealogical Dictionary" Savage Lk
Pike's Diery mentions ‘the death of a lMrs. Colcord on
24 June 1689. She had 7 davghters. " '
Children of* Bdward .and Ann Colcord ‘ B -
© - Jonethon - b 1540° 4 1661, age 21 - I

p—

b - - Hannah . 164% m 28 Dec. 1665 Thomas. Dearbor:
s Sarsh ... .1646 -m 30 Lec. 1668 John Hobbs. .
Maxry 4 .0ct. 16493 d Hampton 174L; m Benj. Fifield 1670
Bdward 1652 killed by Indians 13 June 1677
. Samuel. - .abl655 .m Mary __ ; T
.Mehitable 'a@bl658. m 20 Dec. 1670 Nat Stevens
Shpeh . ¢ 1650 . .. . o B
Peborah 1664 m Tristram Coffin.
. Abigail, . 1667 - '

"Higtorical Memoranda Concerning Persons and:Places in 01d Dover"
by John Scales .. . - ) o

A petition to- the court indicated that Edward Colcord wag;not]too well
liked Gy others. - Subscribers of the petition included Timothy Dalton,
Robert Tuck and William Pifleld. . . . .. . "~~~ = .
e Lived Lo himself, Aisorderiy towards others what with vexatious
sutts and frevdilent dealing in severall respects, cheating and coz-
ening, wresting mens estates out of their hgndé,“ﬁy colour of law, by
reviling thei» persons, by fomenting of strifes, by raising discord
amoxng neighbors by false swearing before a court, ete. 'Strange that
he ‘gets away with it; he, fearing punishment escapes and runs away
- from the town where he lived aud the places adgace@i:qnlpkly perceived
by their pssce.and gquietness what a blessing it was ‘to be free from
such -an incendary; he, . traveling from pl@pgltp.p%ac? til every place
was weary of him, supposing by irength of “tinie 133urles_m1ght be for-
getten and the heat cf our splrits someﬁhqt‘allayed,"hg ?eturns again
and for o short stay applies himself to some orderly’11V}ng‘bgt»a wan
nebituated in atl manner of wickedness is not so easily reclaimed.”
The Court replied in agreement, saying Colcord must pay a fine of.5£
fo: Treasurer of Court, to be-committed to House of Correction in.
koston, not to°be discharged unless;bornded with sufficient surgt;:f
for his good behavior and. particularly thet he not ‘sue gny%nedbzr ]
afier without good cause”and security,  (Signed by Thomas Dra b T%omas
(Apparently he had somehfr%ends, ;pcluﬁ;g%iggbert, Francis, and Thomas

e . Moulton who became hls S «) ) )
gﬁé éi:§gkgmstémmed‘largely frofi- his espousal to claims of proprietors
rather than inhabitants, and lMass. rulers of -that time were usually
convinced that-anyone who opposed. them was a villain., =~ =~ '~~~
kr. Colcord was not depressed by accusations against him. He was still
living in 1679 and keeping his eyes open 10 his own advantage. -Having
become an 'Auntient Inhabitant® he had learned what party is best and
now speaks a good word for lassachusetts people~~~though not without
expecting a consideration. . o - ) .
In 1681 he was brought to court for abuse offered to his wife at di-
verse times; To be imprisoned til next court meets unless bail of 40%
put up, and to keep the peace towards others and especially his wife
and children who stand in fear of their lives if he be at liberty.
The court gave him 3 weeks to a month extra time to raise 40k. If in
the meantime he didn't behave himself he would have a prison sentence.
The Author didn’t know what finally happsned to Edward. His children,
however, were excellent citigens and much respected.
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Chart 6
Branchés: Bf’ ‘the Coffin- family may be traced hack to the Norman,
Conques®;, the ancieit seat ©f the. name in England, now called
Portledge, in the Parish of Ilwington,.near Bideford, County of
Devon, having been granted to Sir Richard Coffyn, Knight, for
valukblé services rendered to Wm. the Conqueror. The family sent
off branches into different parts of Devonshire. Allen Coffin Esq.,
in his history of the Coffin femily says, however, "While many have
searched .for -the pedlgree of our .ancestor, Tristram Goffyn, among
the .records of Devonshlre, rio one has yet been able to trace his
pedigree beyond that of his grandfather, Nicholas Coffyn.
$.J. liacy (NEBR'1870).says the Coffin family "is one of those

which have always used arms in this country, though unable to prove
a right to them." The Coffins 6f Devonshire (English Heraldry) are
unlike any other family bearings . and consist of Bezants and Cross
Crosslets; Bezants are never 1léss than *3 nor more than 4. The Cross
Crosslets vary from 5 upward to0 .gemee "(irdefinite)., "Smith's M.S.

. Promptuarium Armorum contains a drawing of the arms borne by "Sir
William Coffin of Pertledge-in Devon .of-ye Privy.Cha. to King
Hénry 8'=---Vert, five cross crosslets argent, between four plates~--

) .Heraldic Journal, Vol III. These are the arms used by the family in
. this country, wee ot .

‘ English Ancestry NEHR 1870 (Vol 149).

hlcholas Coffin of butlers, Parish of brixton, Co. Bevon, England
TWill, 12 'Sept. 1613, Probated 3 Nov. 1613: .wife Joan, sons
Peter, Trzstraml hicholas and John, dau Ann, and Joan, dau
‘ "of one of his sons. He was. grandfather of emlgrant to

v 7 America, Fristran (1) Coffin.

(Other relatlves are “{ridicated: by - the followlng Will:
. Tristram Coffin of Butlers made his Will 16 Nov. 1601;
.;1robated Totne=-Devon, 1602; left legacies to Joan, Anne
.+ . &and John, cHildren of Rlcholas Coffin; Richard and Joan,
. "children of ILionel 'Coffin; Philip Coffin and son Tristram;
., appointed’ hlcholas, son of Nlcholas Coffan, executor.)

Peter Coffin of: Brixton~6w111 21 Bec. 1627, Probated 13 lar. 1628:
Wife Jgan to-have-possession of land etc. during her life
and then said property was to go to son and heir Tristram

. “who is %o’ be provided for. according to his degree and
" ‘calling", and that son John was to have certain property
when he was 20:years. He speaks .0f. daughters Joan, Deborah,
Bunice and lbry, under. 20. : Refers.to his tenement called
Silferhay in butlers:and t0. his. brother Nicholas.,

(John -Coffin of Brixton (brother of above Peter) Will 4 Jan.
1625, Probated 3 Apr. 1628... Appointed nephew Tristram

'3y Bxec. and left legacles to Joan, Deborah, Eunice, hary
and John, all undér 12). - .

Joan %hember, mother of emigrant, Trlstram Coffin, was said
10 possess remarkable strength of character.

" Children of Peter and Joan T. Coffln

John b Bng. 4 Plymouth Fort - Englaiid
Tristram " d 2 Oct., 1681 Nantucket Island
Joan prob. d@ ¥ng.

Deborah prob., d Eng.

Bunice b Eng. m William butler of New England
Mary b BEng. m Alexander Adams
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Coffin (cont.)

1 Zristram Coffin: b Brudon near Plymouth, Co. Devon 1605/9

son of Peter (ca 1580-1628) and Joanna

(ca 1584-1681)
d Oct. 1681 .
m Dionis Stevens, dau Robert Stevens, ca 1630

Children of Tristram and Dionis Coffin
Peter 1631 m Abigail Starbuck
(A Judge, he d 21 Mar., 1715)
Tristram 1632 m Judith Greenleaf Somerby (widow)

‘Elizabeth m Stephen Greenleaf
James 1640 m Mary Severance
John d 1642

Deborah 1642-1642 ,

Mary 1645 m Nathaniel Starbuck

_John again 1647 m Deborah Austin
Stephen 1652 m Mary Bunker

Tristram Coffin came to America in 1642 accompanied by wife,
five children, ‘mother Joan, and two sisters, Eunice and
Mary. They made a brief stay at Salisbury, removing the
same year to Pentucket (Haverhill). According to Mr. Coffin
he was the first person to plough land in Pentucket, using
a plough of his own construction. In 1648/9 he removed to
Newbury and in 1654/5 back. to Salisbury. In 1644 he was
allowed to keep an ordinary, sell wine, and keep a ferry on
the Newbury side and George Carr on the Salisbury side of
Carr's Island. On 26 Dec. 1647 these permits were renewed.

In September 1653 -his wife, Dionis, was complained of for
selling beer at the ordinary for three pence per quart.

The complaint was brought under the law of 1645, which proe’
vided that "Every person licensed to keep an ordinary, shall
always be provided with good wholesome beer of four bushels
of malt to the hogshead, which he shgll not sell above two
pence the ale quart, on penalty of forty shillings the
first offence and for the second offence shall lose his
license. Dionis, however, as a.defence, proved that she
put six bushels of malt in the hogshead and the Court con-
sldered the defence a valid one and discharged the defen-
dant.” It may be fairly presumed that Tristram Coffin was
not necessarily actuated by a sentiment of persecution of
of religious restriction in changing -his abode, and yet he
seems to have been the pioneer in the movement for the
purchase of Nantucket in 1659. :

It is quite remarkable that,. while the name of Tristram has
been perpetuated through all the generations, and in genea-
logical researches becomes a source of confusion because it
occurs so often, the name of Dionis is repeated but once in
all the generations down to the present time. One grand-
child was christened Dionis, but upon her marriage, the
name appeared as Dinah. The origin of the name is not
known unless it is derived from Dionysus, son of Zeus.
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2 Tristram Coffin Jr. b BEngland 1632; d 4 Feb. 1704 age 72

m 1 Mar, 1652 Judith Greenleaf .Som&rby, dauw -
Edmund Greenleaf
b 2 Sept 16255 d 15 Sept. 1705

. Tristran Jr. came to America with his parents in 1642, He"
.. became an apprentlce of Henry Somerby. Henry, died on Oct.’
: . 2nd,-1651, and his widow, Juditli Greenleaf Somerby marrleﬁ

Tristram Jr. 1 Mar. 1652.

’ :',A me¥chant and tailor, he was a Deacon for 20 years. It has
“" "been'said that he built the "o0ld" Coffin Mansion .in. Newbury

in 1654, &t111 occupied-in the -9th generation.  Others. say.it

.~was built by Henry Somerdy. It was bullt around a vast

chimney stack and had spacious flreplaces, windows large and

-, small opening in pleasant surprises in closets or 'stair cases;

walls were or$gLna11v elegant’ frescoes with artlstlc designs

T of figures:and foliage..

In Wewbury- graveyard, Ist Parlsh.

To memory Tristram Coffin d 4 Feb. 1703/4 ae 72
On earth he purchased a good degree )
Great boldness ih the faith :and liberty

. and now possesses immortality.

Gravestone at 0ld Town Newbury

- To the memory of Mrs. Judlth, late vzrtuous wife

of Deacon Tristram Coffin Esgq. who having lived

to see one hundred and seventy seven 'of her children
.and children's childrén to the third generatiohn,

d 13 Dec. 1705 ae 80

Grave, sober, ‘faithful, Truitful v1ne was she,

A rare example of true piety’

Widowed awhile she walted, wished for rest

Wlth her dear husband in her Sav1ours brea&t..

Chlldren of Tristram and Jud1th Coffln
Steven = 1652 .
_ Judith 4 Dec. 1653 m John Sanborn

Deborah: 1655 oseph Knight 1677

‘Mary . 1657 . m Joseph Little

James  -1659 m Florence Hooke

John . .1660-1677 p ,

Lydia- - 1662 m 1) lioses Iittle 2) John Pike

Enoch . 1663-1675

Steven 1665 m Sarah Atkinson 1685

FPeter . 1667 phia Dole

Nathaniel 1669' § Sarah Brocklebank 2) Sarah Dole
References: "New England Famlly Hlstory" ) Henry Cole Quinby 1912

+ "History:..of Newbury" " Joshua Coffin
“ggggaloglcal Guide to aarlv Settlers. of America" Savage

Wife of Tristrem Coffyn" " Allen Coffin
"History of Nantucket" Alexander Starbuck 1924
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Chart 6

From all that can be gathered on the origin of this family, it is
believed that the ancestors of Edmund (1) Greenleaf were Huguenots,
the name being a translation of French "Feuillevert", The neme is
not found among English parishes other than Ipswich, Cos Suffollk,
so it is believed the Peuillevert family came te England as French
refugees in the 16th century. Edmund (1) Greenleaf was a silk dyer
by trade, a trade that does not appear among English industries
until about the time of the coming of French refugees.

BEdmund was probably born about 1590, His baptismal record has not
been found but it is more than possible that he was a grandson of
John Greenleaf of the parish at St. Mary-at-the-Tower, Ipswich Co.
Suffolk, England., The following record may be found there:
"BEdmund Greenleaf: son of John and Margaret, bpt 2 Jan. 1574"
(This Edmund was likely the father or uncle of Edmund (1))

1 Edmund Greenleaf: b ca 1590; 4 ca 1671
m Sarah Dole who 4 18 Jan. 1663

Edmund (1) came to New England before 1638 and.settled in
Newbury, Mass., where he received a house lot and 12 acres.
Among the relics which he brought with him was a cane with
a silver band initialed "J.G.". He became @ Freeman 13
Mar. 1639, Ar Ensign of the Militia in 1644 he was dis-
charged from military office at his own request in 1647.
Called "r." and "Captain", he kept a tavern near Newbury
end was also a silk dyer and "Chirgeon". In 1650 he moved
to Boston where his first wife Sarah Dole died in 1663.

His second marriage to Sarah (widow of 1) Wilson and
2) William Hill) was an unhappy alliance. His Will,
dated 25 Dec., 1668 and Proved 12 Feb. 1671, is on record
at the Probate Office, Suffolk County, but the original
can not be found. However, appended to the Will was a
paper which probably shows the reason why the second wife
was not mentioned although she seems to have outlived him.

“ithen I married my wife, I kept her grandchild, as I
best remember, 3 years to schooling, diet and apparell;
and William Hill, her son had a bond of 6%-a year
whereof I received no more than a barrel of pork of
3% of that 6% he was to pay me, and sent to her son
Ignatius Hill to the Barbadoes, in mackerel, cider,
and bread and pease, as much as come to 20% and never
received one penny of it. His Aunt gave to the 3
brothers 50% apiece. I know not whether they received
it or no, but I have not received any part of it.
Besides when I married my wife, she.brought me a
silver bewl, a silver porringer and-a..silver ‘spoon.
She lent or gave them to her son James Hill without
my consent." ‘ '

Witness my hand ' Edmund Greenleaf
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bole-Chart 6

Children of Edmund {1) and Sarah (Dole) Greenleaf

Enoch bp St. Mary-at-the Tower 1 Dec. 161%
Bur. St. Margaret 2 Sept 1617
%amugl guiél$}é Margaret 5 Mar. 1627
1noc m Mary » was of Walden, lMass in 166
Sarah bp St. Margaret 26 Mar. 1620; .4 1655 , ’
' m Wm. Hilton of Newb
Elizabeth bp St. Margaret 16 Jan. 1622 .
. m 1) Giles Badger of Newbury; 2) Richard Brown
Nathaniel bp St. Margaret 27 June 1624; buried 1634
Judith bp 5t. Margaret 29 Sept. 1626
m 1) Henry Somberby of Newbury who d 2 Oct. 1651
" . 2) Tristram Coffin.Jr. 2 Mar. 1652
' She d 15 Dec. 1705, He d 4 Feb. 1704
Stephen  bp St. Margaret 10 Aug. 1628 .
m 1) Elizabeth Coffin
' 2) Esther Weare Swett, widow of Benjamin,
Daniel bp St. Margaret 14 Aug. 1631; d Newbury 1654
John b America; m Hannah Veasie; he d 1712
hary b America .
Stephen (2) Greenleaf was a purchaser but non-resident of
Nantucket. He married, Nov. 1%, 1651 Elizabeth Coffin, dau
Tristram Coffin Sr. Subsequently he married Esther Swett, dau
of Nathaniel Weare or Wyer and widow of Capt. Benjamin owett.

Abdddtt  Fbdbdddd bttt Fdddbbbd o bbb bdbdbddd bbbt

Dole

There seems to be good evidence that Dole, as a family name is of
French origin, introduced like many others at the Congquest. It is
supposed to have been derived from the ancient city of Dole and it
is found in some early instances with De before it.

Richard bole, first American ancestor, was bpt. in Ringworthy near
Bristol England 31 Dec. 1622, the residence of his grandfather
Richard and his father William. He came to Newbury 1639 and m

1) Hannah Rolfe. His son Richard, b 6 Sept. 1650 m Sarah, dau of
Capt. Stephen and Elizabeth Coffin Greenleaf.

It has been suggested that Sarah Dole Greenleaf was a sister of
Richard (1) Dole. She may have come from the same family but it
is unlikely that she was his sister--he was bpt. in 1622 and her
first child was born in 1613. «

References: ) ]
"New England Family History" Vol 4 Henry Cole Quinby
“"History of Nantucket" Alexander Starbuck 1924
"History of Greenleaf Family" James Edward Greenleaf 1896

NEHR Vol 38, p 299 william Appleton
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Chert 8

According o Patronymica Brittannice, Swain is a Scandinavian
~per§onal name offg?egt antiquity, introduced into England under
Danish rule and originally -applied to a ‘pastoral servant.

1 Richard Swain b ab 1601 England; d 14 Apr. 1682
.- ‘ m Elizabeth ' ,

§1chard Swain is supposed to have embarked in London on the
Truelove™® 17 Sept. 1635, for America; that in April perhaps,
he had sent his wife Elizabeth in the "Planter", his sons
William and Francis -in the "Rebecda" and daughter Elizabeth
in the "Susan and Ellen", under the care of various friends.
He was then 34 years old. He was settled in Rowley in 1639
and was made a Freeman 1% March 1639. He had liberty, with
others, to plant in Hampton in 1638 and in the following
year was authorized to settle small causes in Hampton. He
had a house and land in Exeter in 1650.
On -12 Nov. 1659, he was fined by the General Court for -
entertaining Quakers. . . ]
... .The date of the. death Qf -his first wife does not appear to
. "be ‘given, but in 1658/9 he married Jane, widow of George
_ bunker with whom he had sold land in Topsfield. Soon after,
" he and Jane moved to Nentucket, taking the Bunker children
with them. ,
. He _gave part of a house lot in Hampton to his daughter Grace
“ and husband Nathaniel “Boulter 4 Sept. 1660 and another tract
., to Hezekiah, eldest son of son William: -After removing to
Nantucket he sold his remaining estate in Hampton to son-in-
law Boulter 6 July 166%. - ' :

He was not an educated man and his signatures are by mark.
In Nantucket his house lot was ;on both sides of ‘the cove -
formed by the north-westerly extension of Hummock Pond. .He
néver held any Town office, but performed labor for the
Town in relation to sheep and cattle. - S
‘His wife Jane; died 31 October 1662---the first death . on

* record.in Nantucket. His house and land were sold in 1687.

Children of Richard Swain

Francis
Nicholas
Williem (SGT) lost in.vessel.sailing from Hampton to;Boston
. in 1657 T

" Grace -: m Nathaniel boulter ‘ . :
Blizzbeth m Wathaniel Weare, son of Nathaniel and Sarah
Richard said to have moved to New Jersey but he was

administrator of his father's estate
vorothy
John m Mary, deu Nathaniel and Sarah Weare
References:

"Higtory of Nantucket" Starbuck
"Pioneers of Maine and New Hampshire" DPope
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In 1641 Thcmas Mayhew and his son. Thomas Jr., of Wateriown pur-
chased ‘Ndntiucket and several adjacent islancs o 49%. Having doubts
that Nantucke® had the capacity for a settiement, Thomas purchased
Martha‘’s Vineyard in 1642 and with several other persons, Thomas Jr.
settled there at whet is now Edgartown. Thomas Mayhew Sr. probably
moved there himself about 1645. '

In 1659 Tristram Coffin, having decided on a change of residence
for himself and family, visited the islands lying off the south-east
coast of the Massachusetts Bay Colony. Accompanied by Edward Starbuck
and -Isaac Coleman (age 12) he -visited Martha's Vineyard. While there
he learned.that the title to Nantucket was vested in Thomas Mayhew who-
was willing to dispose of the larger part of his .interest. Taking
Peter Folger as. an interpreter, they sailed to the island for a survey
and . to .ascertain its adaptability to their purpose.. Coffin wished to
provide.a place where his children could be located around him and

finding the Island suitablé and the Sachems willing to make satisfactory
terms, he reported to his friends and the agreement was drawn up.

Coffin and others purchased 9/10Q of the Island for 30% and two beaver
hats, beaver being very stable in value.. Among the original purchasers
were Tristram Coffin Sr., Thomas Macy (some of whose descendants estab-
lished kacy's Department Store), Richard Swain, Thomas Barnard, Peter
Coffin, Christopher Hussey, Stéphen Greenleaf, John Swain, and William
Pile. The deed was witnessed by John Smith, 2 July 1659.

At a meeting at Salisbury, the major part of the purchasers, and
approved by the rest, 'agreed that ten of the purchasers would take ten
other partners, or craftsmen, who would own one half as8 much land as
the .first purchasers. Among them were Robert Pike (with Christopher
Hussey), Tristram Coffin Jr. (with Stephen Greenleaf), John Smith (with
Thomas Mayhew), .and Thomas Look (with Richard Swain). :

The causes leading to the settlement of Nantucket have generally
been considered a repetition of those which led to the early settlement
of New England. This view is not entirely consistent with admitted -~
facts,; though of the first ten who came to the Island three of them,
Thomas Macy, Richard Swain and Edward Starbuck had been the subjects of
religious persecutions. Of the proprietors who were non-resident,
Christopher Hussey (whdse son .Stephen took his place in Island affairs)
and Robert Pike suffered from similar proceedings. ‘However, even those
involved in infractions of the law and the Puritan code, returned to
their Salisbury homeland to settle their affairs and for long visits.

Another possibility was a desire to promote a model kingdom-of land

owners or landed aristoeracy, covied after the English system in which
only the proprietors or stockholders would have the right to vote.
Tristram Coffin was loyally devoted to this plan.

At that time Nantucket was, for the most vrart, a sand bank. Some
of the originali proprietors became discouraged and withdrew from the
project. William Pile conveyed his interest to Nathaniel Boulter, who
then deedad 1/2 to John Bishop and the other half to four of five chil=-
dren of the decessed George Bunker. Their mother Jane Godfrey Bunker
subsequently married Richard Swain. '

Among those who chose to remain included Tristram Coffin Sr., John
Swain Sr., husband of Mary Weare and the only son to accompany his
father, Richard Swain to Nantucket. The settlers established them-
selves on the north side of the Island close to BEdgartown. Because
Nantucket was not adapted to farming and was not forested, the settlers
had to turn to the sea for their livelihood; food and commercial.
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In the early stages of the Island's history the recerds were
kept at Salisbury by Robert Pike, and at Nantucket by Thomas lacy.
At a meeting in 1660 it was agreed that each man should choose his
house lot and that each house lot would comprise 60 sq. rods of
land to a whole share. Tristram Coffin was honored to make the
first selection and he chose a site at the head of Capaum Pond
(Cappamet Harbor). The remainder of the Island was to be kept as. a
an .open pasture held in common. ' .

Another meeting in Salisbury, 10 May 1661, it was decided that -
"Irigtram Coffin Sr., Thomes lacy, Edward Starbuck, Peter Folger - °
shall also measure and lay out, the rest of the land.....": Thomas.:
lacy, Tristram Coffin, 'Sr., Bdwerd Starbuck and Richard Swain, -' ..~ .-.
having, at the date of this meeting taken their lots, were to retain
them, while the others were to draw lots for the choice. (This-:.
-agreement was signed by.John Smithe-e=the last time his name seems;
to appear. e : :

.~ The'first white '¢clild born on Nantucket was lary Starbuck,

30 March 1663. The first death date was that of Richard Swain's
wife, Jane Bunker Swain, 31 Oct. 1662. Her remeins werée laid under
her own 'doorsill. Richard died in -April 1682, 20 years later.

In 1671 Nantucket became a distinet enfranchised township with
the .issuance of a new'ipatent from Governor Francis Lovelace. The
new charter with -its form of ;government created .strife and insure -
rection which lasted:from 1673 to 1680.. The families were split
into. two opposing-factions led by Tristram Coffin and-John Gardner.
When the town was incorporated Tristram Coffin was commissioned
Chief Magistrate of Nantucket and Tuckernuck Island. In.ensuing
years, when control-of. government was changed back and forth be=~. —_
"tween Dutch and English in New Amsterdam, thé.control -of Nantucket
became a contest between the first purchasers known -as whole share
holders headed by Coffin and 1/2 share holders headed by Gardner.

In 1674 New Amsterdam was again acquired by the British and
a.new charter was inaugurated favorable to the resident free
holders, All prior deeds to Island claims derived from Thomas
Mayhew were dissolved as, well as absentee ownership of land. ‘This
was & blow.to Thomas ilayliew and the rion-resident Coffins (Peter,
James, and Tristram Jr.) and other original proprietors and:
absentee landlords (Greenleaf, Pike, Hussey, and Smith) who hed
invested their wealth in the islands. Mayhew wrote "Noe man had -
a right to a foot'of land before date of last charter, and they
by .the Book endeavor to dethrone our l;bertys, announcing my
right obtained from the Earle of Stirlinge nothing, also the
Indian Right nothing, my quiett occupation there of 29 years .
nothing, the-grounding.of the ten pariners upon my first grant.
nothing." The Coffin faction was supported by Governor Thomas
tiayhew. h ’ .

! offin favored a land. owner's aristocracy, a man-
orial ES e  e Toute of the few. He claimed the right to |
vote on the shares of his two sons who never lived on the Island.
He wanted two votes for the full share owners and one vote for
the half share. owners.. The restriction of suffrage was current
in the government of that day and Governor Winthrop of the Mass.
bay Colony defended it. Tristram stood for conservatism. Hist- —
orians have marked him as a feudal lord aspiring to introduce on
Nantucket a land owner's aristocracy. The Gardners and free
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holders fought to abolish the distinction of whole and half shares.
The purpose was to confiscate the idleé lands of the proprietors
without compensation and revert them to common lands in which the
half share men held an interest. The Gardner faction demanded rule
by all land owners and a single vote for each individual, but they
never thought of conferring suffrage on those inhabitants who were
not land owners. Their type of democracy hardly went far enough.
Since the Gardners were in control of the Nantucket Courts, there
was no way for the whole shares men to bring them to.account.

The leaders of-the factions went to New York. John Gardner and
Peter Folger represented the half shares men and Tristram Coffin and
Matthew Mayhew the whole sharés party. . After four days of conferences
with Andxos the Island lost somé of its sutonomy in local government.
Mayhew's patent to the Islands was respected, and ownership of land
by non-residents was retzined providing the properiies were improved.

+ :¢ Purther turmoil ensued in following years including the jailing
of Peter Folger for refusing to make any entries of court actions or
.to giwve up.possession of court records-~he was Clerk-of Court. In

this time-his "Court Booke" with records from 1661 to-1672 was lost,

nevér to be found.. . e ‘ o e
. Coffin and Gardner were later reéconciled with each other when
Gardner befriended 'Coffin by.getting a substantial reductitn 'in the
penalty imposed .on Coffin by the Court of Admiraliy, 1680. Coffin
had been commissioned Chief lMagistrate in 1677 and had failed his
authority in +the plundering of .a French vessel wrecked on Mantucket
in 1678, He was now old, weak, and tyramnical. Descendants of both
men completed the reconciliation of- the families by :marriage.

Referencés: - e . LT
"History of Nentucket" Alexander Starbuck 1924
"Nantucket Odyssey" Emil F. Guba A C
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_“History of Nantucket" Alexander Starbuck
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Chart 8 Chart 8

1 Nathanlel Bculter, b ca 1625, d 14 Mar. 1693 )
»  m Grace Swain, dau of Richard Swain -  ~

Nathaniel'Béulter was a proprietor in Hampton., He‘sol&
:vhls*land before: 1644 and removed ‘to ixeter, but Feturned
- 16 "Hampton ;where he *bought land from his father 1nniaw«

", Richa$d Swain. o, ) .
Chlldren dT-Nathanlel and ‘Grdce Boulter .
‘Mary ' b-15 May 1648, Exeter; d 4 Oct. 1735 Kingston

.m James Prescott

Temperance 1650:N

Nathaniel S
Joshua - 1655 .& young: ...
Joshua 1657 & 4 yrs..
L .. Rebecca: '+ 1659 .4 2 yrs
.. Jodéph,. : 1661
. . Gragce - f?” 1662"d next month S
Hannah. . - 1665 -
Elizabeth 1669 .m Jqseph Fannlng
. .John- 1672
On the death of Nathanlel and John the famlly name became
extlnct. . e v

References' "Gen. Gulde to Early Settlers of America" Savage

"New England Family History" Quinby

“ Pioneers of Maine and New Hampshire" Tope
"Genealogy and Family History of New Hampshire" Stearns
vAncestral Roots of Sixty Colonists" . Weis
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1. James Prescotts bpt 1643, Driby, Co. Llnooln°
d Kingston, N.H. 23 Nov. 1728 ae 85
m Mary Boulter, dau Nathaniel Boulter

James Prescott setiled in Hampton 1665 where he had a
farm. He removed to Kingston 1694 where he was a chair-
man of the first- Beard of Selectman,- He was called a man
of integrity and influence, with good sense. and a dis~
criminating mind..

_Though generally accepted, there is no positlve proof
that this James Prescott of Kingston was the James
Prescott bpt at Driby in 1643, If true, he was g
descendant of Henry III and Edward I. -

Chlldrpn of James and Marv Prescott
Joshua 1669, m unknown x ) ,
= James . 1671 .. m-Maxry .Marston. 1695 _
.2) VWidow -Abigail Sanborn 1746
'‘Rebecca .1673 m Nathaniel Sanborn 3 Dec. 1691
" Jonathon <1675 .m Elizabeth .. .
Mary 1677 m Jabez Coleman
Abigail and Temperance, twins 1679 .
. Abigail m Richard Bounds
John 1681 -m Abigail Marston 1701
Nathaniel 1683 m Ann Marston 1702 . .
References: "Gen..Guide to Early Settlers of America" .Savage
“Ancestral Roots of Sixty Colonists" Wei's "
“Pregscott Memorial® Wm. Prescott, M.D. 1870
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If the name of the family had been taken from lends it is likely
that it would be indicated in old records before’ 1300, but it does
not appear except in 1211: The Wiltshire "Placite" speaks of Julien
de Sandeburne. The next mention is in 1327 with Richard of Wiltshire
and in 1333 with Robert de Sambourne of Somersetshire. It is more
frequent afier 1350....several pedigrees in Herald's Visitations,
There appear ¢o hgwe been two brarvches---one in Sunning, Oxfopdshive,
the other at Timsbury, Somersetshire. The Arms are the same: argent
a chevron sable between 3 mullets gule pierced or: there are 3 diff-
erent crests.,

“History of Hampton" Dow g Sambournes of England

“N.E., Family History" Quinby) by Vietor Sanborn

The connection between the following John Samborne and others of the

English family is known only by implication. -

John Samborne: b ab 1600; m Ann Bachiler, dau of Rev: Stephen Bachiler
They were parents of 3 brothers, John, William and Stephen, who
came to America in 1632 with theiTr grandfather, Rev, Bachiler,
There is no evidence that their mother, Ann Bachiler Sanborn,
came wi4h them. In 1630/1 she, a widow, was living in the Strand
in London. The name was spelled Samborne or Sambourne in the
0l1ld World., .

1. ILt., John Sanborn: b 1620; 4 20 Oct. 1692 o )

(deposition in Norfolk Co. England files)
m 1) Mary Tucke, dau of Robert. Bhe d 30 Dec.'68
2) Margaret Moulton, widow, dau Robert Page

" Children of John and Mery (Tucke) Sanborn

. John- Jr, 1649 m Judith Coffin
Mary 1651 4 1654 )
. Abigail + 1653 -4 -1743; m Ephraim Marston
Richard 1655 m 1) Ruth Moulton 1678
. . 2) Wid. Mary Boulter 1693
Mary 1657 4 1660 . -
. Joseph 1659 m Mary Gove
Stephen 1661 d 1662 . .
Dinah . m James Marston
‘Nathaniel . 1666 m Rebecca Prescott
" Bénjamin 1668 m three times

. T

John Sanborn received lots in Hampton in 1640, His house was
next to that of his grandfather, Stephen Bacplle?. An Ensign
ih 1664 and a Lieutenant in 1679, he fought in King Williams
war 1689, Py L. . :

Tn 1647 Rev. Stephen Bachiler left Hampton and on Apr. 20 of
that year he conveyed "all hisg remaining estate 1in Hampton,
including all grants not appointed, to his grandson John Sam-
borne, he to pay the other 3 grandchildren Nathaﬁlel Bachiler,
William Samborne, -and Steven Sanborn #20 apiece.

In 1654 Robert Pike héd mpoken'slightingly of the Massachusetts
authorities for forbidding an unordained man to hold religious
services when there was no settled pastor. For this, a heavy
fine was imposed on him which his neighbors in Hampton etc.
petitioned to have remitted. The Authorities so persecuted
the petitioners that most of them apologized and withdrew
their petition. John Sanborn and Christopher Hussey were the
only ones of Hampton to refuse t0 withdraw their petition to
remit the fine and were fined £10 apiece themselves.
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(John Sanborn (1)

Lt. John Sanborn was a very active man in towa. When Charles: IT
decided to make N.H, a Royal Province in 1679 Sir W. Warren wrote
to the Tords of Trade that in Hampton the men most eminent and
best. qualified for his Majestie's Council were Samuel Dalton, Capt.
Hussey, John Samborne and Nathaniel Wyer. (State Papers, Colonial
1670-1680.) R - BN : S
In the Cranfield and Mason Persecutions we find that John Sanborn
suffered: "wWilliam Fifield etc, depose that in Oct. 1684 being
at John Samborne Senior's house, when Robert Mason, Sherlock the
Marshall, and Jemes Leach -came to give Mason possession--when
Semborne not opening the door, Leach broke it open and Sherlock
took: Samborne prisoner, when Mason told the people .openly--This
is what you shall all come to". (N.H. Prov. Papers i 539)

Also, in Capt. Henry Dow's diary--"Bro Sambourn put in prison
2k Oct. 1684, Capt,.: Sherburne and I compared a.copie. with the
original execution; and there was no return made upon it the
lst Nov. 1684%, {###See SI, p 92 under Colcoxrd)

John Sanborn died 20 Oct. 1692. Only the closing words 'of his
Will remain at Exeter. It had been witnessed by Nathaniel
bachelder Sr., Will Marsden, Rob Moulton and Henry Dow. Inventory
was taken by William Maston, Nathaniel Bachelder, Henry Dow and
Lt. John Smith. The estate amounted to $294.14.00.

.. Imprimis. the house, orchard & hse 10t - =~ = = = = = = < = = = Bd4

About 4 acres swamp land s« == ='= @ = « = = « @« « v+ = =~ = 9
About 4 acres selt marsh in the:little commone = « = = « = =« « 20
About % acres fresh meadow at the beach = - =~ = = = « « - = 20
3 acres meadow and 1 of upland - = = = « = =« « = = - -1
Ab, 10 ‘acres of upland in East Field near great causeway - - - 30
Track of land at new Plantation, ab 70 acres = = = « = = = = = 35
Track of land 1/2 Goodman Tuck's right in place called North ..

- : . . Division=-45
One share of Cow COMMON = = = = = = @ = = = = = « = '= =~ = <05,
2.0xen, 3 Cows = = = = = « = L meeeooeeoeeewemee=--=14
A 3 yr 0ld steer come Spring = = = « = e = = e = = = - - = - 1,10
A 1l year old and one €alf = = = = = « =« = = = = = - -« = ® = =1.10
6 sheep and 1ambs = « = = = ~' = @« = = = « = = = = = s I 1

14 swine great and small = ~ = = = = = = «w = = =~ = = @ ~ ~ - - 8,10
1 fedther bed with bed clothes and furniture = « « = = « = - « 5

‘Feather bed in parlor and bed clothes and furniture- < - - - - 5
onedheStOflinen""'-'--—_—-'--v---—--‘-o----a
All waring clothes = « = = - - - B T T I Y 4

lgreatputerpléttéf"b“"--'—-t----------------l
23 pieces puter great and small < « = = = = « = = = « = = = - 3.10
& tin dripring pan, tin colender~ - = ='= = = = = = @« < « - = < .03
iron pots, tramel dripping pan tongs, cob irons and

several other pieces iron works = = = = = = =« = 3.15
1 brass kittel, one copper kittel, & other brass things~ - - = 1.10
Logging chain, 2 other chaines, axes, hoops' for wheels etc.~ - 3.05
5 yards new woolen cloth= = = =" = = = = & =« = = == = =« << 1l

table, chairs, bedsteads, tubs, chests, & other lumbere - - <
1 gunn & sword and belt- = = = = = = = = = c =« o o - - -~ 1.05
a Great Bible & other books- - = = = = 4'- ~m-desmcre- 1




22 BII Sanborn, 'cont.

2 Jehn Sanborn Jr.; b 1649 son ' of John and Mary Tucke Sanborn
. d 10 Nov. 1723 age 74 (NEHR 10-271) '
or 23 Sept. 1727 (Stearn's Gen ‘and Fam. Hist.)
m Judith Coffin 19 Nbv. 1674, dau Trlstram
Coffin Jr.
Children of John Jr. and Judith Sanborn
Judith 1675 m Ebenezer Gove
Mary, 1677 m Ebenezer Stevens

Sarah. 1679 :

Deborah 1681 m 1) Sam Fellows; 2) Benj. Shaw

John 1683 m Mehitable Fifield

-Enoch 1685 m 1) Eliz. Demnet; . 2) Mehltable Godfrey
Lydia 1687 .

Peter .m 1716 Aphla Shaw, d 1724

Tristram - m 1711 Margaret Taylor ‘

Abner 1694 m Rachel Shaw :

3+ Lt John Sanborn: b 1683
m 1 Jan, 1707 Mehltable Fifield, dau Benj..

Children of It John and Mehitable Sanborn
Tristram 1710 m 1730. Abigail Blake
Abigail 1713 m BElisha (4) Swett 1736
"Pau§ 1715 - m 1737 Mary Fifield; 2) Betsy Currier 1746
Mary - 1717 m Jonathon Blake
- Sarah - 1721 m John Dent
‘ Poss:bly Jonathon who m Rachel Flfield 14 May 1738

Mention is made that all chlldren were 11v1ng in 1735—-
perhaps this is the year.of their father's death.
e A . E ko o o A o o o T e . s

2. Nathaniel. Sanborn, b 27 Jan. 1666; 4 9 Nov. 1723 Hampton Falls
. son of John (l) and Mary Tucke Sanborn
m 1) Rebecca Prescott 3 Dec. 1691, dau James.
She 4 19 Aug. 1704
2) Sarah Mason (1663-1748)
Nathaniel Sanborn was a brother of John Sanborn Jr.
.He lived first at Hampton Falls and was then a Prow-
prietor at Kingston 1694 where he was Town Clerk 1695/6.
. He was . also a grantee of Chester, and in 1707 he was
.. 2 Captgin in James Davis' Company.
. Children of Nathaniel and Rebeg¢ca P. Sanborn
Richard b .1693; 4 1773; m Blizabeth Batchelder

James 1696 m Elizabeth Leavitt 1720
Rachel 1698 m Thomas Ward 1718°
Jeremiah 1701
. hbigail 1703 m Iuther Morgan 1723

Children of Nathaniel and Sarah M. Sanborn

. . Nathan 1709 m Elizabeth Pearson
Jacob 1711 m Amy Sanborn 1731
Eliphaz 1712
.Nathaniel 1714
Judith 1717

Daniel 1719
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3 Riechard Sanborn; b 27 gebé 169%; 4 14 Sept 1773; son of Nathaniel (2)
anhorn ' : :
m 1) Elisabeth Batchelder, dav. of Nathaniel &
Elizabeth (Foss; Batchelder. She d 1753 aeS5.
2) Judith (Gere) Prescott, dau Ebenezer Gore and
widow Capt. Jonathon Prescott who & 1746
Richard Sanborn lived in Kensington. He was one of Hilliard's
Scouting perty in the Indian War of 1712. In 1722 he served
‘under Major John Gilman .
Children of Richard and Elizabeth B, Sanborn '
Jonathon "1714

Moses 1716, 4 1802; m Priscilla James 1738
Rebecca  1718.4d.1735 .

David - 1721 m but no children

Mary 1724 m Benj. Clough 1753

Abigail 1725 m Richard Currier 1744
Jeremigh 1730 m Abigail Tilton

Richard - 1732 4 1735 of throat distemper'
Betsey 1734 (1] 1" 1) 0 ”
Richard 1737 mn Elizabeth Prescott 1762

4 Jeremigh Sanborn; b 16 Jan. 1730; 4 12 May 1772 . )
m Abigail Tilton 15 June 1749 dau David Tilton
She 4 29 Feb. 1816
- Children of Jeremiah, and Abigail T. Sanborn
.Theophilus 1750 m Mehitable Kimball

Hannah 30 Nov. 1751; m Elisha Swett (5) 1750
Abigail 1754 m Jacob Graves .
Jeremiah 1757 m Lydia Tilton (married -twice again)
Iydia 1758
v Col. David 1761 m'Elizabeth James
.. Rebecca 1763 m Jethro Brown 1787 .

Jonathon 1770- m Lydia Page 2) Hannah Page
bbbt Adbdbbd EhRbbdT bbbt bbb | bbbt bbb b bbbt
1 William Sanborn; b ab’'1622 Brimpton, England, son of John and Ann

" _Bachiler Sanborn
d 18 Nov. 1692 -
m Mary Moulton, dau John and Anne hioulton
A younger brother of John (1) Sanborn, William's was the
.earliest Sanborn record found in Hampton, Mass.: "November
27, 1639, Willi Samborne (with his consent) is appointed to
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